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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 618 OF 2018

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

And

In the matter of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT
Engineering Limited and their respective shareholders

KPIT Technologies Limited, a company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
having its registered office at 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi
Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune —411057. Applicant / Demerged Company / Transferee Company

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY PURSUANT TO THE
ORDER DATED 12 JULY 2018 OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH

To,
The equity shareholders of KPIT Technologies Limited (“Company”).

Notice is hereby given that by an Order dated 12 July 2018, the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT")
has directed a meeting to be held of the equity shareholders of the Company, for the purpose of considering, and if
thought fit, approving with or without modifications, the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst Birlasoft (India)
Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, a meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company will be
held at KPIT Auditorium, SDB-II, 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase — 1, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune 411 057 on
Wednesday, 29 August 2018 at 02:00 p.m. and the said equity shareholders of the Company are requested to attend to
consider and, if thought fit, approve with or without modification(s), the following resolution under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with requisite majority:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the rules, circulars and notifications made thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof, for the time being in force), subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company and subject to the approval of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“NCLT”) and subject to
such other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject to
such conditions and modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the NCLT or by any regulatory or other authorities,
while granting such consents, approvals and permissions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall be deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s)
constituted/ to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which the Board may nominate to exercise its powers including
the powers conferred by this Resolution), the arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited and their respective shareholders
(“Scheme”) placed before this meeting and initialed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification, be
and is hereby approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may,
in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this Resolution and effectively
implement the arrangement embodied in the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or
conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in
the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or
difficulties that may arise including passing of such accounting entries and /or making such adjustments in the books of
accounts as considered necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper”



TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that you may attend and vote at the said meeting in person or by proxy provided that a proxy
in the prescribed form, signed by you or your authorised representatives, is deposited with the registered office of the
Company not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the commencement of the meeting. The form of proxy can be
obtained from the registered office of the Company or can be downloaded from the website of the Demerged Company
(www.kpit.com)

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that in compliance with the provisions of (i) Section 230(4) read with Sections 108 and 110 of
the Companies Act, 2013; (ii) Rule 6(3)(xi) of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules,
2016; (iii) Rule 22 read with Rule 20 and other applicable provisions of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014; and (iv) Regulation 44 and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided the facility of voting by postal
ballot and e-voting so as to enable the equity shareholders to consider and approve the Scheme by way of the aforesaid
resolution. The Company has provided the facility of voting through ballot or polling paper at the venue of the meeting.
Accordingly, you may cast your vote either through postal ballot or through e-voting or through ballot or polling paper
at the venue of the meeting.

It is clarified that the votes cast by means of postal ballot or remote e-voting does not disentitle an equity shareholder
as on the cut-off date from attending the meeting. However, the equity shareholders who have cast their votes by postal
ballot or e-voting will not be eligible to cast their votes at the meeting. It is further clarified that votes may be cast
personally or by proxy at the meeting as provided in this notice.

Copies of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with
the enclosures as indicated in the Index, can be obtained at the registered office of the Company, 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi
Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057.

The NCLT has appointed Mr. S. B. (Ravi) Pandit or in his absence, Mr. Kishor Patil to be the Chairman of the Meeting. The
above Scheme, if approved by the equity shareholders, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the NCLT.

A copy of the Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, the Scheme and the other
enclosures as indicated in the Index are enclosed.

Sd/-
S. B. (Ravi) Pandit
Chairman appointed for the Meeting
(DIN:00075861)
Place: Pune

Date: 25 July 2018
Registered Office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057



Notes:

10.

11.

Only registered equity shareholders of the Company may attend and vote either in person or by proxy (a proxy
need not be an equity shareholder of the Company) or in the case of a body corporate or Registered Foreign
Portfolio Investors (“RFPI”) or Foreign Institutional Investor (“FII”), by a representative authorised under Section
113 of the Companies Act, 2013 at the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company. The authorised
representative of a body corporate/RFPI/FIl which is a registered equity shareholder of the Company may attend
and vote at the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company provided a copy of the resolution of the
Board of Directors or other governing body of the body corporate/RFPI/FII authorising such representative to
attend and vote at the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company, duly certified to be a true copy by
a director, the manager, the secretary or other authorised officer of such body corporate/RFPI/FII, is deposited
at the registered office of the Company not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company.

As per Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, a person can act as proxy on
behalf of not more than 50 (fifty) equity shareholders holding in aggregate, not more than 10% (ten percent) of
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. Equity shareholders holding more than 10% (ten
percent) of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy
and such person shall not act as proxy for any other equity shareholder.

The form of proxy can be obtained free of charge from the registered office of the Company or can be downloaded
from the website of the Demerged Company (www.kpit.com).

All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialled.

During the period beginning 24 (twenty-four) hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting
and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, an equity shareholder would be entitled to inspect the proxies
lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than 3 (three) days of notice
in writing is given to the Company.

The quorum of the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Applicant Company shall be 30 (Thirty) equity
shareholders of the Company, present in person.

A registered equity shareholder or his proxy, attending the meeting, is requested to bring the Attendance Slip
duly filled-in and signed.

The registered equity shareholders who hold shares in dematerialized form and who are attending the meeting
are requested to bring their DP ID and Client ID for easy identification.

The registered equity shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such
joint holder whose name stands first in the Register of Members of the Applicant Company/ list of beneficial
owners as received from National Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”)/ Central Depository Services (India)
Limited (“CDSL”) in respect of such joint holding, will be entitled to vote.

The documents referred to in the accompanying Explanatory Statement shall be open for inspection by the equity
shareholders at the registered office of the Company between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working days other
than Saturdays up to the date of the meeting.

NCLT by its said Order has directed that a meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company shall be convened
and held at KPIT Auditorium, SDB-II, 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase — 1, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune
411 057 on Wednesday, 29 August 2018 at 2:00 p.m. for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving,
with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme. Equity shareholders would be entitled
to vote in the said meeting either in person or through proxy.

In addition, the Company is seeking the approval of its equity shareholders to the Scheme by way of voting
through postal ballot and e-voting.

The Company has provided the facility of voting through ballot or polling paper at the venue of the meeting.
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The Company has engaged the services of NSDL for facilitating e-voting for the said meeting to be held on
Wednesday, 29 August 2018.

The Notice convening the meeting, the date of dispatch of the Notice and the Explanatory Statement along with
the postal ballot, amongst others, will be published through advertisement in the following newspapers, namely,
(i) Business Standard in the English language; and (ii) translation thereof in Punya Nagari in the Marathi language.

Mr. Jayavant Bhave, Proprietor, J.B. Bhave & Co., practicing Company Secretary (Membership Number: FCS4266,
CP-3068) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to conduct the postal ballot and e-voting process in a fair and
transparent manner.

In compliance with the provisions as stated hereinabove, the Company is pleased to offer postal ballot and
e-voting facility to its equity shareholders holding equity shares as on 20 July 2018, being the cut-off date, to
exercise their right to vote on the above resolution. A person, whose name is not recorded in the Register of
Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by NSDL/CDSL as on the cut-off date i.e. 20 July 2018
shall not be entitled to avail the facility of e-voting or voting through postal ballot or voting at the meeting to be
held on Wednesday, 29 August 2018. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of the equity shares
registered in the names of the equity shareholders as on 20 July 2018. Persons who are not equity shareholders
of the Company as on the cut-off date should treat this notice for information purposes only.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes an equity shareholder of the Company after
dispatch of the Notice and holds shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Friday, 20 July 2018 may obtain the User ID and
Password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or bhagavant.sawant@linkintime.co.in. However, if such
person is already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then he / she can use his / her existing User ID and
Password for casting his / her vote.

The equity shareholders have the option either to vote through e-voting process or through the postal ballot
form.

A postal ballot form along with self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope is also enclosed. Equity shareholders
voting in physical form are requested to carefully read the instructions printed in the attached postal ballot form.
Equity shareholders who have received the postal ballot notice by e-mail and who wish to vote through postal
ballot form can download the postal ballot form from the Company’s website (www.kpit.com) or seek duplicate
postal ballot form from the Company.

Equity shareholders shall fill in the requisite details and send the duly completed and signed postal ballot form
in the enclosed self-addressed postage pre-paid envelope to the scrutinizer so as to reach the scrutinizer before
5 p.m. on or before 28 August 2018. Postal ballot form, if sent by courier or by registered post/speed post at the
expense of an equity shareholder will also be accepted. Any postal ballot form received after the said date and
time period shall be treated as if the reply from the equity shareholders has not been received.

Incomplete, unsigned, improperly or incorrectly tick marked postal ballot forms will be rejected.
The vote on postal ballot cannot be exercised through proxy.

There will be only 1 (one) postal ballot form for every registered folio/client ID irrespective of the number of joint
equity shareholders.

The postal ballot form should be completed and signed by the equity shareholders (as per specimen signature
registered with the Company and/or furnished by the Depositories). In case, shares are jointly held, this form
should be completed and signed by the first named equity shareholder and, in his/her absence, by the next
named equity shareholder. Holder(s) of Power of Attorney (“PoA”) on behalf of an equity shareholder may vote
on the postal ballot mentioning the registration number of the PoA with the Company or enclosing a copy of
the PoA authenticated by a notary. In case of shares held by companies, societies etc., the duly completed postal
ballot form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the board resolution/ authorization giving the requisite
authority to the person voting on the postal ballot form.
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The scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman of the meeting after completion of the scrutiny of the votes
cast by the equity shareholders of the Company through (i) e-voting process, (ii) postal ballot, and (iii) ballot or
polling paper at the venue of the meeting. The scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the vote (including e-votes)
shall be final. The results of votes cast through (i) e-voting process, (ii) postal ballot, and (iii) ballot or polling
paper at the venue of the meeting will be announced on or before 31 August 2018 at the registered office of
the Company. The results, together with the Scrutinizer’s Reports, will be displayed at the registered office of the
Company, on the website of the Company (www.kpit.com) and on the website of NSDL i.e. (www.evoting.nsdl.com),
besides being communicated to BSE and NSE.

Kindly note that the equity shareholders of the Company can opt only one mode for voting i.e. either by physical
postal ballot or e-voting. If an equity shareholder has opted for e-voting, then he/she should not vote by physical
postal ballot form also and vice versa. However, in case equity shareholder(s) cast their vote both via physical
postal ballot and e-voting, then voting validly done through e-voting shall prevail and voting done by physical
postal ballot shall be treated as invalid.

The equity shareholders of the Company attending the meeting and who have not cast their vote either through
postal ballot or e-voting shall be entitled to exercise their vote at the venue of the meeting. Equity shareholders
who have already cast their votes through postal ballot or e-voting may also attend the meeting but shall not be
entitled to cast their vote again.

In addition, the Company is seeking the approval of its equity shareholders to the Scheme by way of voting through
postal ballot and e-voting. Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10 March 2017 (“SEBI Circular”) issued by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), inter alia, provides that approval of public shareholders of
the Company to the Scheme shall be obtained by way of voting through e-voting. Since, the Company is seeking
the approval of its equity shareholders (which includes Public Shareholders) to the Scheme by way of voting
through postal ballot and e-voting, this notice will be deemed (i) to be issued in accordance with the provisions
of the Act; and (ii) to be the notice sent to the public shareholders of the Company in accordance with the SEBI
Circular. For this purpose, the term “Public” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Rule 2(d) of the Securities
Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 and the term “Public Shareholders” shall be construed accordingly.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme shall be acted
upon only if a majority in number representing three fourth in value of the equity shareholders (which includes
Public Shareholders) of the Applicant Company, voting in person or by proxy or by postal ballot and e-voting,
agree to the Scheme.

Further, in accordance with the SEBI Circular, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by the Public
Shareholders in favour of the aforesaid resolution for approval of Scheme are more than the number of votes cast
by the Public Shareholders against it.

The scrutinizer will submit his combined report to the Chairman of the meeting after completion of the scrutiny
of the votes cast by the equity shareholders, which includes Public Shareholders, of the Company through (i)
e-voting process or postal ballot and (ii) ballot or polling paper at the venue of the meeting. The scrutinizer
will also submit a separate report with regard to the result of the postal ballot and e-voting in respect of Public
shareholders. The scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the vote (including e-votes) shall be final. The results
of votes cast through (i) e-voting process or postal ballot and (ii) ballot or polling paper at the venue of the
meeting including the separate results of the postal ballot and e-voting exercised by the Public Shareholders will
be announced on or before Friday, 31 August 2018 at the registered office of the Company. The results, together
with the scrutinizer’s Reports, will be displayed at the registered office of the Company, on the website of the
Company, (www.kpit.com) and on the website of NSDL, (www.evoting.nsdl.com), besides being communicated to
BSE and NSE.

Equity Shareholders interested in availing the transport facility (within Pune) for attending the Meeting are
requested to register themselves at least five days before the meeting by contacting Ms. Shalini Vishwakarma at
shalini.vishwakarma@kpit.com at +91-20-6652-5000, Extn. — 2981.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR ELECTRONIC VOTING BY EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS

VI

VII.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended by the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, the Company is pleased to provide equity shareholders facility to exercise their right
to vote on a resolution proposed to be considered at the NCLT Convened Meeting (NCM) by electronic
means and the business may be transacted through e-voting. The facility of casting the votes by the
equity shareholders using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the NCM (“remote
e-voting” or “e-voting”) will be provided by the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

The facility for casting the vote through ballot paper shall be made available at the NCM and the equity
shareholders attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to
exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

The equity shareholders who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the NCM may also attend
the NCM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, July 30, 2018 (9:00 a.m.) and ends on Tuesday, August
28, 2018 (5:00 p.m.). During this period, equity shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, July 20, 2018, may cast their vote
by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting shall be disabled by NSDL after the remote e-voting period ends.
Once the vote is cast, the equity shareholder shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote
e-voting as well as voting at the NCM through ballot paper.

The voting rights of equity shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date i.e. 20 July 2018.

The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:
- How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

. Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://
www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholders’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification
Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://
eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your
vote electronically.
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Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat | Your User ID is:
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a)

For equity shareholders who | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

hold shares in demat account | For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID
with NSDL. is 12%%%%% then your user D is IN30Q***] 2xxwkxx

For equity shareholders who | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID
hold shares in demat account | For example if your Beneficiary D is 12%*+#tssririox
with CDSL. then your user ID is 12%x#ssisikitix

For equity shareholders holding | EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered
shares in Physical Form. with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

Your password details are given below:

a)

b)

If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to
login and cast your vote.

If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to
change your password.

How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(@) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the
email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf
file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains
your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(i) If your email ID is not registered, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to
you on your postal address.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten
your password:

a)

b)

c)

Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat
account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Click on “Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number,
your PAN, your name and your registered address.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the
check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.



VIII.

. Details on Step 2 are given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see the Home page of e-Voting. Click on
e-Voting. Then, click on Active Voting Cycles.

2. After click on Active Voting Cycles, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote.

4, Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.
8. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
. General Guidelines for shareholders
1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to jobbhave@gmail.com . Please mention the e-mail ID of
Scrutinizer with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders
and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.
nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800-222-990 or send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

The Chairman will, at the end of discussion on the resolution on which voting is to be held, allow voting by
use of “Ballot Paper” for all those equity shareholders who are present at the NCM and have not cast their
votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall, after the conclusion of voting at the NCM, first count the votes cast at the meeting
and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses
not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the
NCM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favor or against, to the Chairman or a
person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting
forthwith.

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company
(www.kpit.com) and on the website of NSDL (www.evoting.nsdl.com) immediately after the declaration
of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately
forwarded to the stock exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed.



IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 618 OF 2018

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

and

In the matter of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst
Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT
Engineering Limited and their respective shareholders

KPIT Technologies Limited, a company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
having its registered office at 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi
Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune —411057. Applicant / Demerged Company / Transferee Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3) READ WITH SECTION 232(2) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES,
2016

1 Pursuant to the order dated 12 July 2018, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Bench, at
Mumbai (“NCLT™), in Company Application No. 618 of 2018 (“Order”), a meeting of the equity shareholders of
KPIT Technologies Limited (“Demerged Company”) is being convened at KPIT Auditorium, SDB-II, 35 & 36, Rajiv
Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase — 1, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune 411 057, on Wednesday, 29 August 2018 at 2:00 p.m. for
the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the Composite Scheme
of Arrangement amongst Birlasoft (India) Limited, KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited and
their respective shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Scheme™).

2. In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the said meeting for equity shareholders shall be 30 (Thirty) equity
shareholders present in person. Further in terms of the said Order, NCLT, has appointed Mr. S. B. (Ravi) Pandit of the
Demerged Company and in his absence, Mr. Kishor Patil of the Demerged Company as the Chairman of the meeting
of the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

3. This statement is being furnished as required under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act™) read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
(“Rules™).

4, As stated earlier, NCLT by the said Order has, inter alia, directed that a meeting of the equity shareholders of
the Demerged Company shall be convened and held at KPIT Auditorium, SDB-II, 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech
Park, Phase — 1, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune 411 057, on Wednesday, 29 August 2018 at 2:00 p.m. for the purpose
of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the
Scheme. Equity shareholders would be entitled to vote in the said meeting either in person or through proxy. In
addition, the Demerged Company is seeking the approval of its equity shareholders to the Scheme by way of
voting through postal ballot and e-voting.

5. In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 — 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if a
majority in number representing three fourths in value of the equity shareholders, or class of equity shareholders,
of the Demerged Company, as the case may be, voting in person or by proxy or by postal ballot (which includes
e-voting), agree to the Scheme.

In addition, the Applicant Company is seeking the approval of its equity shareholders to the Scheme by way of
voting through postal ballot and e-voting. Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March 2017 (“SEBI
Circular™) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), inter alia, provides that approval of
Public Shareholders of the Company to the Scheme shall be obtained by way of voting through postal ballot
and e-voting. Since, the Applicant Company is seeking the approval of its equity shareholders (which includes
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Public Shareholders) to the Scheme by way of voting through postal ballot and e-voting, this notice will be
deemed (i) to be issued in accordance with the provisions of the Act; and (ii) to be the notice sent to the Public
Shareholders of the Company in accordance with the SEBI Circular. For this purpose, the term “Public” shall have
the meaning assigned to it in Rule 2(d) of the Securities Contracts (Regulations) Rules, 1957 and the term “Public
Shareholders” shall be construed accordingly.

Background:
6.1 Details of the Demerged Company:

a) The Demerged Company is a public listed company. It was originally incorporated under the
name K&P Information Technology Private Limited on 28 December 1990 under the provisions
of Companies Act, 1956. The name of the Demerged Company was subsequently changed over a
period of time as listed below:

. K & P Information Technology Limited on 26 July 1996;

. KPIT Systems Limited on 23 August 1996;

. KPIT Infosystems Limited on 4 January 2001,

. KPIT Cummins Infosystems Limited on 8 January 2003; and

. KPIT Technologies Limited on 25 July 2013.

There has been no further change in the name of the Transferee Company in the last five (5) years.
b) Corporate identity number (CIN): L72200PN1990PLC059594
C) Permanent Account Number (PAN): AAACK7308N
d) Registered office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057
e) E-mail address: connectwithus@kpit.com
f) The equity shares of the Demerged Company are listed on BSE and NSE.

9) The relevant main objects of the Demerged Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association
are as follows:

“II1(A) THE MAIN OBJECTS OF THE COMPANY TO BE PURSUED ON ITS INCORPORATION ARE:

1. To establish, provide, perform consultancy services in the field of information technology,
systems engineering, related technical and commercial consultancy services, import and
export of know-how in the field of computers, artificial intelligence and other related fields and
to develop technical expertise for providing technology and technical know-how in the field of
computers and information technology.

1A.  To carry on, conduct, perform or engage in assembling, integration, fabrication, processing,
conversion, manufacture, production, inspection, testing or similar operation of electronic
and/or mechanical goods, parts, circuits, boards, assemblies (including PCB assembly), sub-
assemblies, components, electronic control units, instrument casting, wiring harnesses, spares
and other similar goods”

h) There has been no change in the name and registered office of the Demerged Company in the
last 5 (five) years. There have been changes in the objects of the Demerged Company in the last 5
(five) years. The said changes are highlighted in the Memorandum of Association of the Demerged
Company, the copies of which are available for inspection.

i) The Demerged Company has two business divisions (i) the enterprise resource planning business
of Oracle and SAP, digital business (as comprised under digital technology SBU) along with
infrastructure management systems and extended product lifecycle management business; and (ii)
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k)

engineering business of solutions of electronic or mechanical engineering and usage of this data for
diagnostics, maintenance and tracking of assets and related connectivity solutions including data
and analytics beyond embedded or mechanical engineering and their connectivity and integration
with backend IT systems and platforms (“Engineering Business”).

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company as on 31

March 2018 is as under:

Particulars INR
Authorised Share Capital
62,50,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 each 1,25,00,00,000

Total

1,25,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

19,74,98,742 equity shares of INR 2 each

39,49,97,484

Total

39,49,97,484

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital of the Demerged Company.

Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses:

Details of Promoters

Name of the Promoter

Address

Mr. Shashishekhar Pandit

“Pracheeti”, S-42/4, Behind Hotel Surabhi, Paud Road,
Bavdhan Khurd, Pune - 411021.

Ms. Nirmala Pandit

“Pracheeti”, S-42/4, Behind Hotel Surabhi, Paud Road,
Bavdhan Khurd, Pune - 411021.

Mr. Chinmay Pandit

“Pracheeti”, S-42/4, Behind Hotel Surabhi, Paud Road,
Bavdhan Khurd, Pune - 411021.

Mr. Kishor Patil

“Dwarka”, Plot No. 15, Tejas Co-op. Hsg. Soc., Kothrud,
Pune - 411038.

Mr. Anupama Patil

“Dwarka”, Plot No. 15, Tejas Co-op. Hsg. Soc., Kothrud,
Pune — 411038.

Mr. Shrikrishna Patwardhan

D-1, Shree Chintaman, S. No. 135, Mayur Colony,
Kothrud, Pune — 411029.

Mr. Ajay Bhagwat

A1001, Rohan Tapovan, Gokhale nagar, Pune — 411016.

Ms. Ashwini Bhagwat

A1001, Rohan Tapovan, Gokhale nagar, Pune — 411016.

Mr. Sachin Tikekar

66/7, Erandwane, Pune — 411004.

Ms. Hemlata Shende

101, Old Oak LN, Santa Rosa, CA - 95409, USA.

Proficient Finstock LLP

35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase — 1, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pune - 411057.

K and P Management Services Pvt. Ltd

Preetkamal, S. No. 256/254, Bunglow No. 2, Green Park
Society, Behind Anand Park, Baner, Pune — 411007.

National Engineering Industries Limited

9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road, Kolkata 700001, India.

Central India Industries Limited

Birla Building - 11th Floor 9/1, R.N. Mukherjee Road,
Kolkata-700001
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6.2

Details of Directors

Name of the Director Designation Address
Mr. S. B. (Ravi) Pandit Chairman & Group “Pracheeti”, S-42/4, Behind Hotel Surabhi,
CEO Paud Road, Bavdhan Khurd, Pune - 411021
Mr. Kishor Patil CEO & Managing “Dwarka”, Plot 15, Tejas Co-operative Hsg.
Director Society, Kothrud, Pune - 411038.
Mr. Sachin Tikekar Whole-time Director |66/7, Erandwane, Pune — 411004
Ms. Lila Poonawalla Director Fili Villa, S. No. 23, Baner Road, Balewadi, Pune
- 411045
Mr. B V R Subbu Director 1/23, Shanti Niketan, Tyabji House, Off Rao
Tula Ram Marg, New Delhi 110 021.
Prof. Alberto Sangiovanni | Director 200 Tunnel Road, Berkeley, 94705, USA.
Vincentelli
Mr. Adi Engineer Director A-8, Salisbury Apartments, 55/2, Salisbury

Park, Ahura Co-op Society, Close to Poonawalla
Garden, Gultekdi, Pune — 411037.

Mr. Anant Talaulicar Director 1901, Floor-19, Sterling Tower, Harishchandra
Goregaonkar Marg, Ramdevi Lane, Grant
Road, Mumbai — 400007,

Dr. Klaus Blickle Director Heidelsteinstrasse 2 36093 Kuenzell Germany

Mr. Nickhil Jakatdar Director 25252 W, Fremont Road, Los Altos HLS, CA
94022, USA,

Mr. Anjan Lahiri Director 8 Shady Brook Lane, Cranbury, NJ 08512, USA

Ms. Alka Bharucha Director 7E, Harbour Heights, “A”, N.A. Sawant Marg,

Colaba, Mumbai - 400005, Maharashtra, India

Details of the Resulting Company:

a)

b)

c)
d)

Resulting Company is an unlisted public company incorporated on 8 January 2018 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U74999PN2018PLC174192
Permanent Account Number (PAN): AAGCK9140C

Registered Office; Plot No.17, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, MIDC-SEZ, Phase-Ill, Maan, Taluka -
Mulshi, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057

E-mail address: connectwithus@kpit.com
The shares of the Resulting Company are not listed on any stock exchange.

The relevant main objects of the Resulting Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association
are as follows:

“3(a) THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS INCORPORATION ARE:

To manufacture, establish, provide, assemble, integrate, undertake, design, research, develop,
improve, process, make, prepare, carry, plan, maintain, service, import, export all kinds of innovative
technological and engineering solutions for engineering goods, machine components, machining
activities, accessories and deal in all types of engineering goods, products, machinery, equipments,
instruments, spare parts, gadgets, components, perform consultancy services and solutions of
electronic or mechanical engineering, application lifecycle management and usage of this data for
diagnostics, maintenance and tracking of assets and related connectivity solutions including data and
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6.3

h)

k)

analytics beyond embedded or mechanical engineering and their connectivity and integration with
backend IT systems and platforms, related technical and commercial consultancy services, import and
export of know-how in the field of Engineering”

The Resulting Company is inter alia engaged in the Engineering Business.

The Resulting Company has been incorporated on 8 January 2018. There has been no change
in the name and objects of the Resulting Company since incorporation. The registered office of
the Resulting Company was shifted from 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057 to Plot No.17, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, MIDC-SEZ, Phase-Ill, Maan,
Taluka - Mulshi, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057 with effect from 3 April 2018.

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company as on 31
March 2018 is as under:

Particulars INR
Authorised Share Capital

2,50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 25,00,00,000
Total 25,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

1,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 10,00,000
Total 10,00,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital of the Resulting Company.

The Resulting Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.
Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses:

Details of Promoters

Name of the Promoter Address

KPIT Technologies Limited 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057.

Details of Directors

Name of the Director Designation Address

Mr. Shashishekhar Balkrishna | Director “Pracheeti”, S-42/4, Behind Hotel Surabhi,

Pandit Paud Road, Bavdhan Khurd, Pune - 411021.

Mr. Kishor Patil Director “Dwarka”, Plot 15, Tejas Co-operative Hsg.
Society, Kothrud, Pune - 411038.

Mr. Sachin Dattatraya Tikekar | Director 66/7, Erandwane, Pune — 411004

Details of the Transferor Company:

a)

Transferor Company is an unlisted public company. It was originally incorporated under the name
Birla Horizon International Limited on 20 January 1995 under the provisions of Companies Act,
1956. The name of the Transferor Company was subsequently changed to Birlasoft Limited on
6 May 1999 and to Birlasoft (India) Limited on 7 May 2007.

Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U74899MH1995PLC308512
Permanent Account Number (PAN): AAACB2769E

Registered Office: Unit-216, C-Wing, 2nd Floor, 215-Atrium, Chakala, Near Acme Plaza, AK. Road,
Andheri-East, Mumbai — 400093

E-mail address: compliance@birlasoft.com

The shares of the Transferor Company are not listed on any stock exchange.
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g)

The relevant main objects of the Transferor Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association
are as follows:

“(A) THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS INCORPORATION ARE:

1

To develop and maintain an infrastructure in India for the recruitment, training and sourcing
of highly qualified data processing professionals on all levels of expertise dedicated to on-site
projects in the United States and other countries internationally.

To develop and maintain in India a “Software Factory” and facilities to service offsite and
offshore outsourcing of data processing projects.

To market and provide to clients in India and abroad a wide range of facilities management,
Information systems consulting, software professional services consultancy and data processing,
outsourcing services within India and throughout the world.

To provide turnkey systems development system/ network integration and conversion/
migration on various software/ hardware platforms.

To carry out research and development on state-of-the-art technology in software development
and methodologies.

To carry on the business of providing all kinds of services including Information technology based
and enabled service, electronic remote processing, e-services, including all types of Internet based/
web enabled services, software and application development and maintenance, consulting and
enterprise business solutions, back-office transaction processing, customer care, product support
and technical help desk, and, transaction processing, fulfillment services, business support including
but not limited to providing related services of all kinds and description to establish and operate
service processing centers for providing services for back office and processing requirements,
contracting and communicating to and on behalf of customers by voice, data image, letters using
dedicated domestic and/ or international private lines; and to handle business process management,
remote help desk management, remote management; remote customer interaction, customer
relationship management and customer servicing through call centers, email based activities and
letter/ facsimile based communication, knowledge storage and management, data management,
warehousing search, Integration and analysis for financial and non-financial data.

To carry on the business of providing and supply of end-to-end Technology Solutions including
information technology based and enabled solutions, turnkey solutions, systems Integration of
software, computers, peripherals networking and communication components, cabling, power
supply equipment, appropriate fixtures, metering and monitoring devices, conventional and
broad band wireless, wireline and optical communications equipment, telecommunication
infrastructure development and support services and other solutions to all Government
authorities and other private entrepreneurs.

To conceive, design, develop, set up and maintain integrated techno townships, technology
parks, software parks, electronic and hardware technology parks, cybercities, Special Economic
Zones/ STP/ EHTP and to carry on business of all allied activities relating thereto including
services arid to be part of any software and/ or information Technology parks in India and
overseas and to acquire or hold any estates, or interest and to let, sub-let in whole or in
part, develop, manage and exploit any lands and buildings and assets, rights, privileges and
property of any kind, necessary or convenient for all or any business of the Company.

To carry on the business of designers, manufacturers, processors, assemblers, dealers, retailers,
traders, distributors, importers, exporters, promoter, repairers or otherwise deal in all types,
varieties and kinds of software and computer hardware, information technology based products
and services, product components, accessories spares, hardware relating to communication
network and multi-media or that may invented in future, and to acquire, develop, install,
maintain and run all types of services in the software and computer hardware, information
technology based products and services, communication, and multi-media.
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h)

K)

10.

11.

To own, run, manage, administer or otherwise acquire schools, colleges, education institutions
or training centres for imparting training in the design, development, architecture, assemble,
operation, support, implement, administer, configure, install, maintain, diagnose and repair of
the computers hardware and training in information technology, software solutions, information
and data banks, networking, server technology, data processing, telecommunication and other
allied activities.

To manufacture, design, develop, assemble, buy, sell, distribute, export, import, assemble,
remodel, install, repair, convert, overhaul, maintain and improve and otherwise deal in all types
of goods, things, articles, merchandise including but not limited to electronic, electric, digital,
multi-media, consumer durables and domestic appliances, equipment, components, devices,
apparatus and all types of machines, machineries, appliances, apparatus, devices, materials,
substances and component parts thereof and other materials used in or in connection with
electronic, electric, digital, multi-media, consumer durables and domestic appliances industries”

There has been no change in the name and objects of the Transferor Company in the last 5 (five)
years. There has been change in the registered office of the Transferor Company from Delhi to
Mumbai in the last 5 (five) years. The said change is highlighted in the Memorandum of Association
of the Transferor Company, the copies of which are available for inspection. In the year 2014, Birlasoft
Technologies Limited and Birlasoft Enterprises Limited were merged into Birlasoft (India) Limited.

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Transferor Company as on 31
March 2018 is as under:

Particulars INR
Authorised Share Capital

4,90,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 49,00,00,000
Total 49,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

3,13,54,800 equity shares of INR 10 each 31,35,48,000
Total 31,35,48,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorized, issued, subscribed and
paid up share capital of the Transferor Company.

The Transferor Company is inter alia engaged in the business of providing information technology
and information technology enabled services.

Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses:

Details of Promoters

Name of the Promoter Address

National Engineering Industries Limited | 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road Kolkata 700001

Central India Industries Limited Birla Building’, 11th Floor, 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road
Kolkata 700001

Details of Directors

Name of the Director | Designation Address
Mrs. Amita Birla Chairman and Non- Sundaram 24, Dr. APJ. Abdul Kalam Road,
Executive Director Udyog Bhawan Delhi-110011

Mr. Chandra Kant Birla | Non-Executive Director | Sundaram 24, Dr. A.PJ. Abdul Kalam Road,

Udyog Bhawan Delhi-110011

Mr. Anjan Labhiri Managing Director and | 8 Shady Brook Lane Cranbury, NJ 08512 USA

Chief Executive Officer
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Name of the Director | Designation Address

Mr. Pramod Chandra Non-Executive Director | 233 Lower Circular Road, Flat No 7, Kolkata,

Agarwala 700020, West Bengal

Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha | Non-Executive Director | W-51, Greater Kailash, Part-Il, New Delhi,
110048, Delhi

Mr. Ananthanarayanan | Non-Executive Director | Old No. 10 / New 12, First Avenue, Harrington

Sankaranarayanan Road, Chetpet, Chennai-600031, Tamil Nadu

Mr. Rajat Mukherjee Independent Director | B1/1, B-Block Vasant Vihar, Delhi 110057

Mr. Manohar Lal Independent Director | 3rd Floor, 4, Alipore Park Place, Kolkata,

Pachisia 700027, West Bengal

Corporate Approvals

The proposed Scheme, was placed before the Audit Committee of the Demerged Company at its meeting held
on 29 January 2018. The Audit Committee of the Demerged Company took into account the Valuation Report
dated 29 January 2018 issued by S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Independent Chartered Accountants, and Fairness
Opinion dated 29 January 2018 issued by Equirus Capital Private Limited. The Audit Committee of the Demerged
Company based on the aforesaid, inter alia, recommended the Scheme to the Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company (after taking on record the recommendation of the Audit
Committee), the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company at their respective Board Meetings held on 29
January 2018 approved the proposed Scheme, after taking on record Valuation Report dated 29 January 2018
issued by S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Independent Chartered Accountants, and Fairness Opinion dated 29 January
2018 issued by Equirus Capital Private Limited. The same are annexed to this Notice as Annexure B-I and B-IlI
respectively to the Notice.

A copy of the Scheme setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the arrangement has been approved
by Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company at their
respective Board Meetings is annexed to this Notice as Annexure A and forms part of this Statement.

Names of the directors who voted in favor of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not
vote or participate in such resolution:

(@) Demerged Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favor Against | from voting

Mr. S. B. (Ravi) Pandit Chairman & Group CEO Yes - -

Mr. Kishor Patil CEO & Managing Director Yes

Mr. Sachin Tikekar Whole-time Director Yes

Ms. Lila Poonawalla Director Yes

Mr. BV R Subbu Director NA NA NA

Prof. Alberto Sangiovanni Vincentelli | Director Yes

Mr. Adi Engineer Director Yes - -

Mr. Anant J. Talaulicar Director Yes - -

Dr. Klaus Blickle Director NA NA NA

Mr. Nickhil Jakatdar Director NA NA NA

Mr. B V R Subbu, Dr. Klaus Blickle and Mr. Nickhil Jakatdar were unable to attend the board meeting on 29
January 2018 at which the Scheme was approved. Mr. Anjan Lahiri and Ms. Alka Bharucha were appointed
as directors of the Demerged Company with effect from 23 May 2018.
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(b)

Resulting Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favor Against | from voting

Mr. Shashishekhar Balkrishna Pandit | Director Yes - -

Mr. Kishor Patil Director Yes - -

Mr. Sachin Dattatraya Tikekar Director Yes - -

(o Transferor Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favor Against | from voting

Mrs. Amita Birla Chairman and Yes - -

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chandra Kant Birla Non-Executive Director Yes - -

Mr. Anjan Lahiri Non-Executive Director Yes

Mr. Pramod Chandra Agarwala Non-Executive Director NA NA NA

Mr. Ashok Kumar Ladha Non-Executive Director Yes

Mr. Ananthanarayanan Non-Executive Director NA NA NA

Sankaranarayanan

Mr. Rajat Mukherjee Independent Director NA NA NA

Mr. Manohar Lal Pachisia Independent Director Yes - -

Rationale of the Scheme

The Demerged Company/ Transferee Company is a well-established technology company with deep expertise in
Auto Engineering and Mobility Solutions, and strong presence in Business IT with significant ERP expertise and
niche digital competency. The Transferor Company is a Business IT Solutions company with some ERP expertise
but deep and wide expertise in Digital Solutions in multiple industries.

Merger of these two companies and subsequent demerger into two companies will create two specialized
companies focused on:

(1) Business IT and consulting with strong expertise into ERP, Digital solutions and Consulting with wider
industry coverage; and

(i) Deep domain expertise in Auto Engineering and Mobility Solutions.

This will enable both companies to have sharp focus, retain and attract best talent, bring better value to customers
and make necessary investments in building technologies and solutions. This will accelerate profitable growth
and industry recognition in respective areas.

Each shareowner of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company will get additional share of the Resulting
Company that will be engaged in the Engineering Business. This demerger and ability to participate equally in
both businesses will accelerate value creation for each share owner in both the companies.

Description of the Scheme
A The Scheme provides for:

a) the amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company and the consequent
issue of shares by the Transferee Company in the manner set out in this Scheme;

b) immediately upon implementation of the above-mentioned amalgamation, the demerger, transfer
and vesting of the Engineering Business from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company
on a going concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by the Resulting Company in the
manner set out in this Scheme;

c) the reduction of the share capital of the Transferee Company to the extent held by the Transferor
Company in the manner set out in this Scheme; and
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d) the reduction of the existing share capital of the Resulting Company in the manner set out in this
Scheme.

B. “Appointed Date” of the Scheme is the Effective Date. “Effective Date” means the day on which last of the
conditions specified in Clause 32 (Conditions Precedent) of this Scheme are complied with or otherwise
duly waived.

C. Share Exchange Ratio
a) For the amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company

22 (Twenty-Two) equity shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two) each fully paid up of the Transferee
Company for every 9 (Nine) equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each fully paid up of the
Transferor Company.

b) For the demerger of the Engineering Business from the Demerged Company to the Resulting
Company

1 (One) equity share of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each fully paid up of the Resulting Company for
1 (One) equity share of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two) each fully paid up of the Demerged Company.

The equity shares issued on demerger shall be listed on BSE and NSE.

NOTE: THE FEATURES/ DETAILS SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME, THE
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE TEXT OF THE SCHEME TO
GET THEMSELVES FULLY AQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.
16.

17.

Observation Letters dated 4 June 2018 from BSE and dated 7 June 2018 from NSE conveying no objection to the
Scheme are enclosed herewith as Annexure C. Complaints Report dated 14 March submitted by the Company to
BSE, NSE are enclosed herewith as Annexure D.

The audited Financial Results of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company for
the year ended 31 March 2018 are enclosed as Annexure F — | to F — Il respectively;

Pre and post-shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferor
Company are enclosed as Annexure G.

The applicable information of the Resulting Company in the format specified for the abridged prospectus as
provided in Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 is enclosed herewith as Annexure H — 1.

The applicable information of the Transferor Company in the format specified for the abridged prospectus as
provided in Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009 is enclosed herewith as Annexure H —11.

Summary of Valuation Report including basis of valuation and Fairness opinions is enclosed herewith as Annexure I.

Amounts due to unsecured creditors as on 30 June 2018

Demerged Company Resulting Company Transferor Company
Number Amount (INR) Number Amount (INR) Number Amount (INR)
422 660,610,199 1 2275 231 70,013,226

Effect of the Scheme on various parties
A. Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and Directors

None of the Directors, the Key Managerial Personnel (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder)
of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company and their respective
relatives (as defined under the Act and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except
to the extent of the equity shares held by them in the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and
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the Transferor Company and/or to the extent that the said Director(s) are common director(s) of the said
companies and/or to the extent that the Key Managerial Personnel is holding shares in said companies as
a nominee and/or to the extent that the said Director(s), Key Managerial Personnel and their respective
relatives are the directors, members of the companies that hold shares in the respective companies. Save
as aforesaid, none of the said Directors or the Key Managerial Personnel has any material interest in the
Scheme.

Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs pursuant to Amalgamation

The KMPs, if any, of the Transferor Company shall become employees of the Transferee Company on
effectiveness of the Scheme.

Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs pursuant to Demerger

The KMPs, if any, forming part of the Engineering Business shall become employees of the Resulting
Company on effectiveness of the Scheme.

Details of shares held by the present Directors and KMPs of the Demerged Company, the Resulting
Company and the Transferor Company either individually or jointly as a first holder or second holder or as

a nominee and by their relatives, in the respective companies are as under:

Demerged Company

Sr. | Name of the Director/ KMPs and Designation Number of equity shares
No. | relatives of directors and KMPs held as on 13 July 2018
1 S. B. (Ravi) Pandit Chairman & Group CEO 430500
2 Nirmala S. Pandit Relative of Director 239000
3 Chinmay S. Pandit Relative of Director 38620
4 Hemlata Shende Relative of Director 40000
5 Kishor Patil CEO & Managing Director 2989080
6 Anupama K Patil Relative of Director 122330
7 Manasi Patil Relative of Director 3034
8 Sachin Tikekar Whole-time Director 840800
9 Lila Poonawalla Independent Director 100000
10 | Firoz Poonawalla Relative of Director 17000
11 | Sneha Padve Company Secretary 60
12 | Asha Anil Khandkar Relative of Director 250
Resulting Company
Sr. | Name of the Director/ KMPs and Designation Number of equity shares
No. | relatives of directors and KMPs held as on 13 July 2018
1. | S.B. (Ravi) Pandit* Director 1
2. | Sachin Tikekar* Director 1
3.. | Chinmay S. Pandit* Relative of Director 1

* As Nominees of KPIT Technologies Limited (Parent Company)

The shareholding of the directors/ KMPs and their relatives in the Demerged Company is mentioned in the

table dealing with the Demerged Company.

Transferor Company

Sr. | Name of the Director/ KMPs and
No. | relatives of directors and KMPs

Designation

Number of equity shares
held as on 13 July 2018

NIL

20




B. Promoter and Non-Promoter Equity Shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company
and the Transferor Company

In compliance with the provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company, in their meetings held on 29 January 2018
have adopted a report, inter alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key
managerial personnel, promoter and non-promoter shareholders amongst others. Copy of the reports
adopted by the respective Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the
Transferor Company are enclosed as Annexure E— 1 to E - 1l

C. Depositors

Neither the Transferor Company nor the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company have accepted
any deposits.

D. Creditors & Debenture-Holders

The proposed Scheme does not involve any compromise or arrangement with the creditors, debenture
holders or debenture trustee. The rights of the creditors, debenture holders or debenture trustee shall
not be affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction in their claims on account of the Scheme.
The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of business as and when their dues are payable. There
is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as a result of the Scheme being
sanctioned.

Neither the Transferor Company nor the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company have issued any
debentures.

E. Employees
a) Demerger and Vesting of the Engineering Undertaking

With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall engage, without any interruption
in service, all employees of the Demerged Company, engaged in or in relation to the Engineering
Business, on the terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which they are engaged
by the Demerged Company. The Resulting Company undertakes to continue to abide by any
agreement/settlement or arrangement, if any, entered into or deemed to have been entered into
by the Demerged Company with any of the aforesaid employees or union representing them. The
resulting company agrees that the services of all such employees with the Demerged Company
prior to the demerger shall be taken into account for the purposes of all existing benefits to which
the said employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment
compensation, gratuity and other retiral/terminal benefits.

b) Amalgamation of Transferor Company with Transferee Company

The Transferee Company shall engage all the employees of the Transferor Company on the terms and
conditions not less favourable than those on which they are engaged by the Transferor Company
without any interruption of service as a result of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company
with the Transferee Company and services of all such employees with the Transferor Company
prior to the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company shall be taken
into account for the purposes of all existing benefits to which the said employees may be eligible,
including for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other retiral/
terminal benefits.

18. Capital Structure pre and post amalgamation

The Pre-Scheme capital structure of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company
are detailed in clause 5 above.
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19.

20.

The Post-Scheme capital structure is as follows:

Demerged Company

Particulars INR
Authorised Share Capital

87,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 each 1,74,00,00,000
Total 1,74,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

27,41,43,809 equity shares of INR 2 each 54,82,87,618
Total 54,82,87,618

The existing authorized share capital of the Demerged Company is INR 1,25,00,00,000 divided into 62,50,00,000
equity shares of INR 2 each. The authorized share capital of the Demerged Company shall be increased to INR
1,74,00,00,000 divided into 87,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 2 each on combination of the authorized share
capital of the Transferor Company.

Resulting Company

Particulars INR
Authorised Share Capital

30,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 3,00,00,00,000
Total 3,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

27,41,43,809 equity shares of INR 10 each 2,74,14,38,090
Total 2,74,14,38,090

The existing authorized share capital of the Resulting Company is INR 25,00,00,000 divided into 2,50,00,000
equity shares of INR 10 each. The authorized share capital of the Resulting Company shall be increased to INR
3,00,00,00,000 divided into 30,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each to facilitate the issuance of shares pursuant
to the Scheme.

Transferor Company
Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the Transferor Company shall be dissolved without being wound up.
Investigation or proceedings, if any, pending against the Company under the Companies Act, 2013

No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are pending in relation to the Demerged Company, the
Resulting Company and the Transferor Company under Sections 210 to 229 of Chapter XIV of the Act or under
the corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956. Further, No proceedings are pending under the Act or under the
corresponding provisions of the Act of 1956 against any of the aforementioned companies.

To the knowledge of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and the Transferor Company, no winding
up proceedings have been filed or are pending against them under the Act or the corresponding provisions of
the Act of 1956.

Approvals/Sanctions/ No-Objections from Regulatory or any Governmental Authorities

Unless otherwise decided (or waived) by the relevant Parties, the Scheme is conditional upon and subject to the
following conditions precedent:

i. CCI (or any appellate authority in India which has appropriate jurisdiction) having granted approval (or
being deemed, under Applicable Law, to have granted approval) for the transactions set out in this Scheme,
such approval to be in form and substance acceptable to the Parties, acting reasonably; and any conditions
contained in such approval (or deemed approval) that are required to be satisfied at any time prior to the
Effective Date having been so satisfied (or, where applicable, waived);

. obtaining no-objection/ observation letter from the Stock Exchanges in relation to the Scheme under
Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015;
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Vi.

vii.

approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of each class of shareholders of the Transferor Company,
the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and such other classes of
persons of the said Companies, if any, as applicable or as may be required under the Act and as may be
directed by the Tribunal;

the Parties, as the case may be, complying with other provisions of the SEBI Circular, including seeking
approval of the shareholders of the Transferor Company/ Demerged Company through e-voting, as
applicable. The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the votes cast by the public shareholders in favour
of the proposal are more than the number of votes cast by the public shareholders, of the Demerged
Company, against it as required under the SEBI Circular. The term ‘public’ shall carry the same meaning as
defined under Rule 2 of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

the sanctions and orders of the Tribunals, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act for approving the Scheme,
being obtained by the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company, the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company;

certified/ authenticated copies of the orders of the Tribunal, sanctioning the Scheme, being filed with the
concerned RoC having jurisdiction over the Parties by all the Parties; and

any other matters expressly agreed as conditions precedent to the effectiveness of the Scheme as amongst
the Parties in writing.

21. Inspection

The following documents will be open for inspection by the shareholders of the Demerged Company at its
registered office at 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057, between 11.00
a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working days (except Saturdays) upto the date of the meeting:

V.

Copy of the order passed by NCLT in Company Application 618 of 2018, dated 12 July 2018 directing the
Transferee Company to, inter alia, convene the meetings of its equity shareholders, secured creditors and
unsecured creditors;

Copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of all the companies;
Copy of the audited financial results of all the companies for the financial years ended 31 March 2018;

Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificate dated 29 January 2018 issued by BSR & Co. LLP, to the effect that
the accounting treatment, if any, proposed in the scheme of compromise or arrangement is in conformity
with the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013; and

Copy of the Scheme.

22.  This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of
the Act read with Rule 6 of the Rules. A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement and Form of Proxy shall be
furnished by the Demerged Company to its shareholders, free of charge, within one (1) working day (except
Saturdays) on a requisition being so made for the same by the shareholders of the Demerged Company.

23.  After the Scheme is approved by the equity shareholders, of the Transferee Company, it will be subject to the
approval/sanction by NCLT.

Dated this 25 July 2018

s/d

S. B. (Ravi) Pandit

Chairman appointed for the Meeting
(DIN:00075861)

Registered office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057.
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COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AMONGST
BIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED
AND
KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
AND
KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED
AND

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS
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A.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

() Birlasoft (India) Limited, the “Transferor Company”, is a public company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Transferor Company is engaged,
inter alia, in the business of providing information technology and information technology
enabled services.

(i) KPIT Technologies Limited, the “Transferee Company” or the “Demerged Company”, as
the case may be, is a public listed company incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Transferee Company/ Demerged Company has two business
divisions (i) the enterprise resource planning business of Oracle and SAP, digital business
(as comprised under digital technology SBU) along with infrastructure management
systems and extended product lifecycle management business; and (ii) engineering
business of solutions of electronic or mechanical engineering and usage of this data for
diagnostics, maintenance and tracking of assets and related connectivity solutions
including data and analytics beyond embedded or mechanical engineering and their
connectivity and integration with backend IT systems and platforms (“Engineering
Business”).

(iii) KPIT Engineering Limited, the “Resulting Company”, is a public company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Resulting Company has been
incorporated with an objective to engage in the Engineering Business. The Resulting
Company is, at present, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

RATIONALE OF THIS SCHEME

The Demerged Company/ Transferee Company is a well-established technology company with
deep expertise in Auto Engineering and Mobility Solutions, and strong presence in Business IT
with significant ERP expertise and niche digital competency. The Transferor Company is a Business
IT Solutions company with some ERP expertise but deep and wide expertise in Digital Solutions in
multiple industries.

Merger of these two companies and subsequent demerger into two companies will create two
specialized companies focused on:

() Business IT and consulting with strong expertise into ERP, Digital solutions and Consulting
with wider industry coverage; and

(i) Deep domain expertise in Auto Engineering and Mobility Solutions.

This will enable both companies to have sharp focus, retain and attract best talent, bring better
value to customers and make necessary investments in building technologies and solutions. This
will accelerate profitable growth and industry recognition in respective areas.

Each shareowner of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company will get additional share of the
Resulting Company that will be engaged in the Engineering Business. This demerger and ability to
participate equally in both businesses will accelerate value creation for each share owner in both
the companies.

OVERVIEW AND OPERATION OF THIS SCHEME

This Scheme provides for:

(i) the amalgamation of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company and the
consequent issue of shares by the Transferee Company in the manner set out in this
Scheme;

(i) immediately upon implementation of (i) above, the demerger, transfer and vesting of the

Demerged Undertaking (as defined hereinafter) from the Demerged Company to the
Resulting Company on a going concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by the
Resulting Company in the manner set out in this Scheme;

(iii) the reduction of the share capital of the Transferee Company in the manner set out in this
Scheme; and

(iv) the reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company in the manner set out in this
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Scheme.
PARTS OF THIS SCHEME
This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

() PART | deals with the definitions of capitalized terms used in this Scheme and existing
share capital of the Transferor Company, the Demerged Company/ the Transferee
Company and the Resulting Company;

(i) PART Il deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company and the consideration thereof;

(iii) PART Il deals with the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company and the consideration thereof;

(iv) PART IV deals with the reduction and cancellation of the equity share capital of the
Transferee Company, held by the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company;

(v) PART V deals with the reduction and cancellation of the existing equity share capital of
the Resulting Company; and

(vi) PART VI deals with the general terms and conditions that would be applicable to this
Scheme.

The Demerged Company will continue to pursue its interests in and carry on the Remaining
Business (as defined hereinafter) as is presently being carried on.

PART |
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless inconsistent with the subject or context thereof, (i) capitalised terms
defined by inclusion in quotations and/ or parenthesis have the meanings so ascribed; (ii) subject
to (iii) below, all terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall have the same meaning
ascribed to them under Applicable Laws; and (iv) the following expressions shall have the
following meanings:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent of the provisions notified and the Companies
Act, 1956 to the extent of its provisions in force and shall include any other statutory amendment
or re-enactment or restatement and the rules and/or regulations and/or other guidelines or
notifications under law, made thereunder from time to time;

“Appointed Date” means the Effective Date;

“Applicable Law” means any applicable national, foreign, provincial, local or other law including
all applicable provisions of all (a) constitutions, decrees, treaties, statutes, laws (including the
common law), codes, notifications, rules, regulations, policies, guidelines, circulars, directions,
directives, ordinances or orders of any Appropriate Authority, statutory authority, court, tribunal
having jurisdiction over the Parties; (b) Permits; and (c) orders, decisions, injunctions, judgments,
awards and decrees of or agreements with any Appropriate Authority having jurisdiction over the
Parties and shall include, without limitation, the listing agreement executed with the Stock
Exchanges in the case of Demerged Company/ Transferee Company;

“Appropriate Authority” means:
(@) the government of any jurisdiction (including any national, state, municipal or local
government or any political or administrative subdivision thereof) and any department,

ministry, agency, instrumentality, court, central bank, commission or other authority
thereof;

(b) any public international organisation or supranational body and its institutions,
departments, agencies and instrumentalities;
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(c) any governmental, quasi-governmental or private body or agency lawfully exercising, or
entitled to exercise, any administrative, executive, judicial, legislative, regulatory,
licensing, competition, tax, importing or other governmental or quasi- governmental
authority including (without limitation) the Competition Commission of India, SEBI (as
defined hereinafter) and the Tribunal (as defined hereinafter); and

(d) any Stock Exchange.
“Birlasoft ESOP” means the Employee Stock Option Plan — 2015 of the Transferor Company;

“Board” in relation to the Transferor Company, Demerged Company/ Transferee Company and
the Resulting Company as the case may be, means the board of directors of such company, and
shall include a committee of directors or any person authorized by the board of directors or such
committee of directors duly constituted and authorized for the purposes of matters pertaining to
the amalgamation, transfer and demerger under this Scheme or any other matter relating
thereto;

“Business Day” means a day (other than a Saturday, a Sunday or a public holiday) when
commercial banks are open for ordinary banking business in Mumbai, India;

“CCI” means Competition Commission of India established under Competition Act, 2002;

“Demerged Company” or “Transferee Company” means KPIT Technologies Limited, a public listed
company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with the corporate
identity number L72200PN1990PLC059594 and having its registered office at 35 & 36, Rajiv
Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057,

“Demerged Undertaking” means all of the Engineering Business and ancillary and support
services together with all the undertakings, assets, properties, investments (direct and indirect),
branches (direct and indirect) and liabilities of whatsoever nature and kind, and wheresoever
situated, of the Demerged Company, in relation to and pertaining to the Engineering Business and
shall include (without limitation):

@ investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, associates, branches, etc. in India, United
Kingdom, China, Korea, Japan, United States of America, Brazil, Netherlands, Germany,
Italy, Sweden or any such jurisdiction whether existing or which would come into
existence either prior to or after the Effective Date for carrying on the Engineering
Business whether in India or outside. The investments pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking are more particularly set out in Schedule I hereto;

(b) all movable and immovable properties (list of such immovable properties pertaining to
the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company is more particularly set out in
Schedule Il hereto), tangible or intangible, including all computers and accessories,
software, applications and related data, plant and machinery, equipment, furniture,
fixtures, vehicles, stocks and inventory, cables, leasehold assets and other properties,
real, corporeal and incorporeal, in possession or reversion, present and contingent assets
(whether tangible or intangible) of whatsoever nature, inverters, electrical fittings,
electrical erections, cash in hand, amounts lying in the banks, investments, escrow
accounts, claims, powers, authorities, allotments, approvals, consents, letters of intent,
registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements, rights, credits, titles, interests,
benefits, advantages, freehold/ leasehold rights, brands, sub-letting tenancy rights, leave
and license permissions, goodwill, other intangibles, industrial and other licenses,
approvals, permits, authorisations, trademarks, trade names, patents, patent rights,
copyrights, and other industrial and intellectual properties (more particularly set out in
Schedule Il hereto) and rights of any nature whatsoever including know-how, websites,
portals, domain names, or any applications for the above, assignments and grants in
respect thereof, import quotas and other quota rights, right to use and avail of
telephones, telex, facsimile, email, internet, leased lines and other communication
facilities, connections, installations and equipment, electricity and electronic and all other
services of every kind, nature and description whatsoever, provisions, funds, and benefits
(including all work-in progress), of all agreements, arrangements, deposits, advances,
recoverable and receivables, whether from government, semi-government, local
authorities or any other Person including customers, contractors or other counter parties,
etc., all earnest monies and/ or deposits, privileges, liberties, easements, advantages,
benefits, exemptions, licenses, privileges and approvals of whatsoever nature and
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wheresoever situated, belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession or control
of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company in relation
to and pertaining to the Engineering Business (including the above, to the extent,
pertaining to the SEZ, STPI and R&D units identified in Schedule 1V) as forming part of the
Engineering Business);

() all receivables, loans and advances, including accrued interest thereon, all advance
payments, earnest monies and/ or security deposits, payment against warrants, if any, or
other entitlements of the Demerged Company in relation to and pertaining to the
Engineering Business;

(d) all contracts, agreements, purchase orders/ service orders, operation and maintenance
contracts, memoranda of understanding, memoranda of undertaking, memoranda of
agreements, memoranda of agreed points, bids, tenders, tariff orders, expression of
interest, letter of intent, hire purchase agreements, lease/ licence agreements, tenancy
rights, agreements/ panchnamas for right of way, equipment purchase agreements,
agreement with customers, purchase and other agreements with the supplier/
manufacturer of goods/ service providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds,
bonds, schemes, insurance covers and claims and clearances and other instruments of
whatsoever nature and description, whether written, oral or otherwise and all rights, title,
interests, claims and benefits thereunder in relation to and pertaining to the Engineering
Business;

(e) all the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations including contingent liabilities of the
Demerged Company in relation to and pertaining to the Engineering Business;

® all books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, records of standard
operating procedures, computer programs along with their licenses, drawings, manuals,
data, catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials, lists of present and former
customers and suppliers, customer credit information, customer pricing information and
other records whether in physical or electronic form, in connection with or relating to the
Engineering Business of the Demerged Company; and

(9) all employees of the Demerged Company engaged in the Engineering Business.

Any question that may arise as to whether a specific asset (tangible or intangible) or liability
pertains or does not pertain to the Demerged Undertaking, shall be mutually decided by the
Boards of the respective Parties in consultation with the Board of the Transferor Company.

“Effective Date” means the day on which last of the conditions specified in Clause 32 (Conditions
Precedent) of this Scheme are complied with or otherwise duly waived. Reference in this Scheme
to the date of “coming into effect of this Scheme” or “effectiveness of this Scheme” shall mean
the Effective Date;

“Employee Trust” means a trust established under deed dated 7 October 2015 under the
provisions of Indian Trusts Act, 1882 including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof, inter alia for implementation and administration of the KPIT ESOPs, financing and holding
the equity shares of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company for the benefit of its eligible
employees in accordance with the terms and conditions of the KPIT ESOPs;

“Encumbrance” means (i) any charge, lien (statutory or other), or mortgage, any easement,
encroachment, right of way, right of first refusal or other encumbrance or security interest
securing any obligation of any Person; (ii) pre-emption right, option, right to acquire, right to set
off or other third party right or claim of any kind, including any restriction on use, voting, selling,
assigning, pledging, hypothecating, or creating a security interest in, place in trust (voting or
otherwise), receipt of income or exercise; or (iii) any equity, assignments hypothecation, title
retention, restriction, power of sale or other type of preferential arrangements; or (iv) any
agreement to create any of the above; the term “Encumber” shall be construed accordingly;

“INR” means Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of the Republic of India;
“KPIT ESOP 2004” means the Employee Stock Option Plan 2004 issued by the Demerged Company

under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Options Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
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“KPIT ESOP 2006” means the Employee Stock Option Plan 2006 issued by the Demerged Company
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Options Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

“KPIT ESOP 2014” means the Employee Stock Option Plan 2014 issued by the Demerged Company
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Options Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

“KPIT ESOP 2015” means the Employee Stock Option Plan 2015 issued by the Demerged Company
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014,

“KPIT ESOPs” means collectively, the KPIT ESOP 2004, the KPIT ESOP 2006, the KPIT ESOP 2014
and the KPIT ESOP 2015;

“Parties” shall mean collectively the Resulting Company, the Transferor Company, and the
Transferee Company/ Demerged Company and “Party” shall mean each of them, individually;

“Permits” means all consents, licences, permits, permissions, authorisations, rights, clarifications,
approvals, clearances, confirmations, declarations, waivers, exemptions, registrations or filings
from any Appropriate Authority;

“Person” shall mean any natural person, limited or unlimited liability company, corporation,
partnership (whether limited or unlimited), proprietorship, Hindu undivided family, trust, union,
association, any Appropriate Authority or any agency or political subdivision thereof or any other
entity that may be treated as a person under Applicable Law;

“Record Date 1” in relation to Part |l means a date, which is no later than 7 (Seven) Business Days
from the Effective Date, fixed by the Board of the Transferee Company for the purpose of
determining the shareholders of the Transferor Company for issue of the new equity shares of
Transferee Company pursuant to this Scheme;

“Record Date 2” in relation to Part Ill means a date, which is atleast 3 (Three) Business Days after,
but shall be no later than 7 (Seven) Business Days from, the date on which the New Equity Shares
— Merger have been allotted under Part Il, fixed by the Board of the Demerged Company in
consultation with the Resulting Company for the purpose of determining the shareholders of the
Demerged Company for issue of the new equity shares of the Resulting Company pursuant to this
Scheme;

“Remaining Business” means all the business, units, divisions, undertakings and assets and
liabilities of the Demerged Company other than those forming part of the Demerged Undertaking.
It is clarified that the information technology business of the Demerged Company (including the
business of the Transferor Company acquired pursuant to amalgamation under Part Il of this
Scheme) together with all its assets and liabilities shall form part of its Remaining Business;

“Resulting Company” means KPIT Engineering Limited, a public company incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with the corporate identity number
U74999PN2018PLC174192 and having its registered office 35 & 36, Phase-1, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech
Park, MIDC, Hinjewadi, Pune - 411057. The Resulting Company is, at present, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company;

“RoC” means the relevant Registrar of Companies having jurisdiction over the Transferor
Company, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company as the case may be;

“Scheme” means this composite scheme of arrangement, with or without any modification
approved or imposed or directed by the Tribunal;

“SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India, constituted under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992;

“SEBI Circular” means the circular issued by the SEBI, being Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated

March 10, 2017, and any amendments thereof, modifications issued pursuant to regulations 11,
37 and 94 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015;
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“Stock Exchanges” means BSE Limited (“BSE”), National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”)
and any other recognised stock exchange, as the case may be;

“Taxation” or “Tax” or “Taxes” means all forms of direct or indirect taxes and statutory,
governmental, state, provincial, local governmental or municipal impositions, duties,
contributions and levies and whether levied by reference to income, profits, book profits, gains,
net wealth, asset values, turnover, added value or otherwise and shall further include payments
in respect of or on account of Tax, whether by way of deduction at source, advance tax, minimum
alternate tax or otherwise or attributable directly or primarily to the Resulting Company, the
Transferor Company or the Demerged Company /Transferee Company or any other Person and
all surcharges, education cess, penalties, charges, costs and interest relating thereto;

“Tax Laws” means all Applicable Laws, acts, rules and regulations dealing with Taxes including but
not limited to the income-tax, wealth tax, sales tax / value added tax, service tax, goods and
services tax, excise duty, customs duty or any other levy of similar nature;

“Transferor Company” means Birlasoft (India) Limited, a public company, incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act 1956, with corporate identity —number
U74899MH1995PLC308512 and having its registered office at Unit-216 C-Wing, 2" Floor, 215-
Atrium, Chakala, NR. Acme Plaza, A.K. Road, Andheri — East, Mumbai — 400093; and

“Tribunal” means the National Company Law Tribunal having jurisdiction over the Transferee
Company/ Demerged Company, Transferor Company, and the Resulting Company, as the case
may be.

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context
or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the agreements executed
between the Parties in relation this Scheme, Act, the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956,
the Depositories Act, 1996, Income-tax Act, 1961 and other Applicable Laws, rules, regulations,
bye laws, as the case may be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof from
time to time.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

1.2.1 words denoting the singular shall include the plural and words denoting any gender shall
include all genders;

1.2.2 headings, subheadings, titles, subtitles to Clauses, sub-Clauses and paragraphs are for
information only and shall not form part of the operative provisions of this Scheme or the
annexures hereto and shall be ignored in construing the same;

1.2.3 the words “include” and “including” are to be construed without limitation;

1.2.4 areference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or schedule is, unless indicated to the
contrary, a reference to an article, clause, section, paragraph or schedule of this Scheme;

1.2.5 references to days, months and years are to calendar days, calendar months and calendar
years, respectively;

1.2.6 reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or replacement or
novation of, that document; and

1.2.7 word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in this Scheme will have the meaning(s)
respectively ascribed to them. In the event of conflict between the terms of this Scheme
and the provisions of the definitive documents entered into amongst the Parties, the
provisions of such definitive documents shall prevail.

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Transferor Company as on 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Particulars | INR
Authorised Share Capital
49,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 490,000,000
Total 490,000,000
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Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
31,354,800 equity shares of INR 10 each 313,548,000
Total 313,548,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed
and paid up share capital of the Transferor Company till the date of approval of the Scheme by
the Board of the Transferor Company.

The Transferor Company has outstanding employee stock options under its existing stock option
schemes, the exercise of which may result in an increase in the issued and paid-up share capital
of the Transferor Company.

The share capital structure of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company as on 31 December
2017 is as follows:

Particulars \ INR

Authorised Share Capital
6,25,000,000 equity shares of INR 2 each 1250,000,000
Total 1250,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
197,498,742 equity shares of INR 2 each 394,997,484
Total 394,997,484

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed
and paid up share capital of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company till the date of
approval of the Scheme by the Board of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company.

The equity shares of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company are listed on the Stock
Exchanges.

The Transferee Company/ Demerged Company has outstanding employee stock options under its
existing stock option schemes, pursuant to which the Employee Trust holds 8,484,980 equity
shares of Rs 2 each as on December 31, 2017.

The share capital structure of the Resulting Company as on 15 January 2018 is as follows:

Particulars | INR
Authorised Share Capital
25,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 250,000,000
Total 250,000,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
100,000 equity shares of INR 10 each 1,000,000
Total 1,000,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed
and paid up share capital of the Resulting Company till the date of approval of the Scheme by the
Board of the Resulting Company.

The Resulting Company is, at present, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company/
Transferee Company.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF THIS SCHEME
This Scheme as set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s), as may be approved
or imposed or directed by the Tribunal or made as per Clause 31 of this Scheme, shall become
effective and operative from the Appointed Date.
PARTII
AMALGAMATION OF TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITH TRANSFEREE COMPANY

TRANSFER OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
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With effect from the opening of business hours of Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions
of this Scheme and pursuant to Section 232 of the Act and Section 2(1B) of the Income-tax Act,
1961, the Transferor Company shall stand amalgamated with the Transferee Company as a going
concern and all assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements, employees, Permits, licences, records,
approvals, etc. of the Transferor Company shall, without any further act, instrument or deed,
stand transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company, so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets, liabilities,
contracts, arrangements, employees, Permits, licences, records, approvals, etc. of the Transferee
Company by virtue of, and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above and to the extent applicable, unless otherwise
stated herein, with effect from the Appointed Date:

4.2.1 all assets of the Transferor Company that are movable in nature or are otherwise capable
of being transferred by manual delivery or actual and/ or constructive delivery or by
paying over or endorsement and/ or delivery, the same may be so transferred and
delivered by the Transferor Company by operation of law without any further act or
execution of an instrument with the intent of vesting such assets with the Transferee
Company as on the Appointed Date;

4.2.2 subject to Clause 4.2.3 below, with respect to the assets of the Transferor Company, other
than those referred to in Clause 4.2.1 above, including all rights, title and interests in the
agreements (including agreements for lease or license of the properties) investments in
shares, mutual funds, bonds and any other securities, sundry debtors, outstanding loans
and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank
balances and deposits, if any, with Government, semi-Government, local and other
authorities and bodies, customers and other Persons, whether or not the same is held in
the name of the Transferor Company, shall, without any further act, instrument or deed,
be transferred to and vested in and/ or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company, with effect from the Appointed Date by operation of law as
transmission, as the case may be, in favour of Transferee Company;

4.2.3 without prejudice to the aforesaid, all the immovable property (including but not limited
to the land, buildings, offices, tenancy rights related thereto, and other immovable
property, including accretions and appurtenances), whether or not included in the books
of the Transferor Company, whether freehold or leasehold or under a license or
permission to use (including but not limited to any other document of title, rights, interest
and easements in relation thereto, and any shares in cooperative housing societies
associated with such immoveable property) shall stand transferred to and be vested in
the Transferee Company, as successor to the Transferor Company, without any act or
deed to be done or executed by the Transferor Company, as the case may be and/ or the
Transferee Company. It is clarified that with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Transferee Company shall be liable to pay the rent and taxes and fulfil all obligations in
relation to the immovable properties and the relevant owners, licensors and lessors in
accordance with the terms of the relevant lease/ license or rent agreements. Further, any
security deposits and advance/ prepaid lease/ license fee paid with respect to the
immovable property shall accrue to the Transferee Company;

4.2.4 all the brands, trademarks of the Transferor Company including registered (more
particularly set out in Schedule V hereto) and unregistered trademarks along with all
rights of commercial nature including attached goodwill, title, interest, labels and brand
registrations, copyrights trademarks and all such other industrial and intellectual property
rights of whatsoever nature shall stand transferred to the Transferee Company by
operation of law. The Transferee Company shall take such actions as may be necessary
and permissible to get the same transferred and/ or registered in the name of the
Transferee Company;

425 all debts, liabilities, duties and obligations (debentures, bonds, notes or other debt
securities) of the Transferor Company shall, without any further act, instrument or deed
be transferred to, and vested in, and/ or deemed to have been transferred to, and vested
in, the Transferee Company, so as to become on and from the Appointed Date, the debts,
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company on the same terms and
conditions as were applicable to the Transferor Company, and it shall not be necessary to
obtain the consent of any Person who is a party to contract or arrangement by virtue of
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which such liabilities have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause 4;

426 Unless otherwise agreed to between the Parties, the vesting of all the assets of the
Transferor Company, as aforesaid, shall be subject to the Encumbrances, if any, over or
in respect of any of the assets or any part thereof, provided however that such
Encumbrances shall be confined only to the relevant assets of Transferor Company or part
thereof on or over which they are subsisting on and no such Encumbrances shall extend
over or apply to any other asset(s) of Transferee Company. Any reference in any security
documents or arrangements (to which Transferor Company is a party) related to any
assets of Transferor Company shall be so construed to the end and intent that such
security shall not extend, nor be deemed to extend, to any of the other asset(s) of
Transferee Company. Similarly, Transferee Company shall not be required to create any
additional security over assets vested under this Scheme for any loans, debentures,
deposits or other financial assistance already availed of /to be availed of by it, and the
Encumbrances in respect of such indebtedness of Transferee Company shall not extend
or be deemed to extend or apply to the assets so vested;

4.2.7 onand from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank accounts of
the Transferor Company has been replaced with that of the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall be entitled to maintain and operate the bank accounts of the
Transferor Company in the name of the Transferor Company and for such time as may be
determined to be necessary by the Transferee Company. All cheques and other
negotiable instruments, payment orders received or presented for encashment which are
in the name of the Transferor Company after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the
bankers of the Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee
Company, if presented by the Transferee Company; and

4.2.8 without prejudice to the foregoing provisions of Clause 4.2 the Transferor Company, and
the Transferee Company shall be entitled to execute any and all instruments or
documents and do all the acts and deeds as may be required, including filing of necessary
particulars and/ or modification(s) of charge, with the concerned RoC or filing of
necessary applications, notices, intimations or letters with any Appropriate Authority or
Person, to give effect to the above provisions.

PERMITS

With effect from the Appointed Date, all the Permits (including the licenses granted by any
Governmental, statutory or regulatory bodies like SEZ or STPI) held or availed of by, and all rights
and benefits that have accrued to, the Transferor Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section
232 of the Act, shall without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to, and vest in,
or be deemed to have been transferred to, and vested in, and be available to, the Transferee
Company so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the Permits, estates, assets, rights,
title, interests and authorities of the Transferee Company and shall remain valid, effective and
enforceable on the same terms and conditions to the extent permissible in Applicable Laws. Upon
the Effective Date and until the Permits are transferred, vested, recorded, effected, and/ or
perfected, in the record of the Appropriate Authority, in favour of the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company is authorized to carry on business in the name and style of the Transferor
Company, and under the relevant license and/ or Permit and/ or approval, as the case may be,
and the Transferee Company shall keep a record and/ or account of such transactions.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS ETC.

All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, indemnities, guarantees or other similar rights or
entitlements whatsoever, schemes, arrangements and other instruments, Permits, rights,
entitlements, licenses (including the licenses granted by any Appropriate Authority) for the
purpose of carrying on the business of the Transferor Company, and in relation thereto, and those
relating to tenancies, privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and description of whatsoever
nature in relation to the Transferor Company, or to the benefit of which the Transferor Company
may be eligible and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before this Scheme coming
into effect, shall by endorsement, delivery or recordal or by operation of law pursuant to the order
of the Appropriate Authority sanctioning the Scheme, and on this Scheme becoming effective be
deemed to be contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, indemnities, guarantees or other similar
rights or entitlements whatsoever, schemes, arrangements and other instruments, Permits,
rights, entitlements, licenses (including the licenses granted by any Appropriate Authority) of the
Transferee Company. Such properties and rights described hereinabove shall stand vested in the

33



6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Transferee Company and shall be deemed to be the property and become the property by
operation of law as an integral part of the Transferee Company. Such contracts and properties
described above shall continue to be in full force and continue as effective as hitherto in favour
of or against the Transferee Company and shall be the legal and enforceable rights and interests
of the Transferee Company, which can be enforced and acted upon as fully and effectually as if it
were the Transferor Company. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the rights, benefits,
privileges, duties, liabilities, obligations and interest whatsoever, arising from or pertaining to
contracts and properties, shall be deemed to have been entered into and stand assigned, vested
and novated to the Transferee Company by operation of law and the Transferee Company shall
be deemed to be the Transferor Company’s substituted party or beneficiary or obligor thereto. It
being always understood that the Transferee Company shall be the successor in the interest of
the Transferor Company. In relation to the same, any procedural requirements required to be
fulfilled solely by the Transferor Company (and not by any of its successors), shall be fulfilled by
the Transferee Company as if it were the duly constituted attorney of the Transferor Company.

The Transferee Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, enter into, or
issue or execute deeds, writings, confirmations, novations, declarations, or other documents with,
or in favour of any party to any contract or arrangement to which the Transferor Company is a
party or any writings as may be necessary to be executed in order to give formal effect to the
above provisions. The Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorised to execute any such
writings on behalf and in the name of the Transferor Company and to carry out or perform all
such formalities or compliances required for the purposes referred to above on the part of the
Transferor Company.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled to the benefit of all insurance policies which have been
issued in respect of the Transferor Company and the name of the Transferee Company shall be
substituted as “Insured” in the policies as if the Transferee Company was initially a party thereto.

EMPLOYEES

On the Scheme becoming effective, all employees, whether temporary or permanent employees
and including all employees on probation, trainees and interns of the Transferor Company in
service on the Effective Date, shall be deemed to have become employees of the Transferee
Company with effect from the Appointed Date or their respective joining date, whichever is later,
without any break in their service and on the basis of continuity of service, and the terms and
conditions of their employment with the Transferee Company shall not be less favorable than
those applicable to them with reference to the Transferor Company on the Effective Date. The
Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide by any agreement/settlement, if any, validly
entered into by the Transferor Company with any union/employee of the Transferor Company
recognized by the Transferor Company. It is hereby clarified that the accumulated balances, if any,
standing to the credit of the employees in the existing provident fund, gratuity fund and
superannuation fund of which the employees of the Transferor Company are members shall be
transferred to such provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund of the Transferee
Company or to be established and caused to be recognized by the Appropriate Authorities, by the
Transferee Company.

Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund
dues of the employees of the Transferor Company would be continued to be deposited in the
existing provident fund, gratuity fund and superannuation fund respectively of the Transferor
Company.

Upon transfer of the aforesaid funds to the respective funds of the Transferee Company, the
existing trusts created for such funds by the Transferor Company shall stand dissolved and no
further act or deed shall be required to this effect. It is further clarified that the services of the
employees of the Transferor Company will be treated as having been continuous, uninterrupted
and taken into account for the purpose of the said fund or funds.

Without prejudice to the aforesaid, the Board of the Transferee Company, if it deems fit and
subject to Applicable Laws, shall be entitled to retain separate trusts or funds within the
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Transferee Company for the erstwhile fund(s) of the Transferor Company.

The Transferee Company shall assume all rights, obligations and liabilities of the Transferor
Company, in relation and in connection with any immigration matters, including any programmes,
filings, sponsorships, etc.

Employee stock options

7.6.1 upon the effectiveness of Part Il of this Scheme, the Birlasoft ESOP shall automatically
stand cancelled. Further and simultaneously with the cancellation of Birlasoft ESOP, the
Transferee Company shall issue such number of stock options not exceeding 2.08% of
paid up share capital of the Transferee Company, on post amalgamation fully diluted
basis, to such employees, holding options under the Birlasoft ESOP, stock options, on the
terms and conditions not less favourable under a distinct and separate employee
incentive plan of the Transferee Company formed and organized for granting incentives
to such employees (“Birlasoft ESOP - New”);

7.6.2 to implement the above provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall issue
stock options, to such employees of the Transferor Company, on such basis as the Board
of the Transferee Company may decide. Fractional entitlements, if any, arising pursuant
to the applicability of the issuance of options under Birlasoft ESOP - New shall be rounded
off to the nearest lower integer;

7.6.3 the grant of options to the eligible employees of the Transferor Company pursuant to
Clause 7.6.2 of this Scheme shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme and the
consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to this Scheme shall be deemed
to be their consent in relation to all matters pertaining to Birlasoft ESOP- New including
without limitation for the purposes of creating the Birlasoft ESOP - New and all related
matters including formation of a new employee welfare trust for administering the
issuance of Birlasoft ESOP - New. No further approval of the shareholders of the
Transferee Company would be required in this connection under any Applicable Law,
including, without limitation, Section 62 of the Act or the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014;

7.6.4 itis hereby clarified that in relation to the options granted by the Transferee Company to
the eligible employees of the Transferor Company, the period during which the options
granted by the Transferor Company were held by or deemed to have been held by such
eligible employees in the Transferor Company shall be taken into account for determining
the minimum vesting period required under the Applicable Law or agreement or deed for
stock options granted under the Birlasoft ESOP — New; and

7.6.5 the Boards of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company or any of the
committee(s) thereof, if any, shall take such actions and execute such further documents
as may be necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to the provisions of this
Clause 7.6 of the Scheme, which shall not be detrimental to the interests of the employees
holding options under the Birlasoft ESOP.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

If any suit, cause of actions, appeal or other legal, quasi-judicial, arbitral or other administrative
proceedings of whatever nature (hereinafter called the “Proceedings”) by or against the
Transferor Company is pending on the Effective Date, the same shall not abate, be discontinued
or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation or of anything contained in
this Scheme, but the Proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the
Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been
continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company as if this Scheme had
not been made. On and from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company may initiate any legal
proceeding for and on behalf of the Transferor Company.

TAXES/ DUTIES/ CESS ETC.
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, by operation of law pursuant to the order of the Tribunal:

The unutilized credits relating to excise duties, sales tax, service tax, VAT, goods and services tax
as applicable which remain unutilised in the electronic ledger of the Transferor Company shall be
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transferred to the Transferee Company upon filing of requisite forms. Thereafter the unutilized
credit so specified shall be credited to the electronic credit ledger of the Transferor Company and
the input and capital goods shall be duly adjusted by the Transferee Company in its books of
account.

Taxes of whatsoever nature including advance tax, self-assessment tax, regular assessment taxes,
tax deducted at source, dividend distribution tax, minimum alternative tax, wealth tax, if any, paid
by the Transferor Company shall be treated as paid by the Transferee Company and it shall be
entitled to claim the credit, refund, adjustment for the same as may be applicable. Minimum
alternative tax credit available to the Transferor Company under the Income-tax Act, 1961, if any,
shall be available to the Transferee Company.

If the Transferor Company is entitled to any benefits under incentive schemes and policies under
Tax Laws, all such benefits under all such incentive schemes and policies shall be and stand vested
in the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company is expressly permitted to revise and file its income tax returns and other
statutory returns, including tax deducted / collected at source returns, service tax returns, excise
tax returns, sales tax / VAT / GST returns, as may be applicable and has expressly reserved the
right to make such provision in its returns and to claim refunds, advance tax credits, credit of tax
under Section 115JB of the Income-tax Act, 1961, credit of dividend distribution tax, credit of tax
deducted at source, credit of foreign taxes paid/withheld, etc. if any, as may be required for the
purposes of/consequent to implementation of the Scheme.

It is hereby clarified that in case of any refunds, benefits, incentives, grants, subsidies, etc., the
Transferor Company, shall, if so required by the Transferee Company, issue notices in such form
as the Transferee Company may deem fit and proper stating that pursuant to the Tribunal having
sanctioned this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the relevant refund, benefit,
incentive, grant, subsidies, be paid or made good or held on account of the Transferee Company,
as the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of the Transferor Company, to
recover or realise the same, stands transferred to the Transferee Company and that appropriate
entries should be passed in their respective books to record the aforesaid changes.

CONSIDERATION

Upon the effectiveness of Part Il of this Scheme and in consideration of the amalgamation of the
Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, including the transfer and vesting of the
assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company pursuant to provisions
of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall, without any further act or deed, issue and allot to
each member of the Transferor Company, whose name is recorded in the register of members
and the records of the depository as members of the Transferor Company on the Record Date 1,
22 (Twenty Two) equity shares of INR 2 (Indian Rupees Two) each of the Transferee Company
credited as fully paid up for every 9 (Nine) equity shares of INR 10 (Rupees Ten) each held by such
shareholder (“New Equity Shares - Merger”). No shares shall be issued by the Transferee
Company in respect of the shares held by the Transferor Company in the Transferee Company.

The ratio in which the New Equity Shares - Merger of the Transferee Company are to be issued
and allotted to the shareholders of the Transferor Company pursuant to Part Il of this Scheme is
referred to as the “Share Exchange Ratio”.

The New Equity Shares - Merger to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 10.1 above shall
be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Transferee
Company and shall rank pari-passu in all respects with the then existing equity shares of the
Transferee Company after the Record Date 1 including with respect to dividend, bonus
entitlement, rights’ shares’ entitlement, voting rights and other corporate and distribution
benefits.

The Transferee Company shall apply for listing of the New Equity Shares - Merger on the Stock
Exchanges in terms of the SEBI Circular and Applicable Laws. The New Equity Shares - Merger shall
be listed and/or admitted to trading on the Stock Exchanges in India where the equity shares of
the Transferee Company are listed and admitted to trading, as per the Applicable Law. The
Transferee Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/or
undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with Applicable Law for complying with the
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formalities of the Stock Exchanges. The New Equity Shares - Merger allotted pursuant to this
Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system till relevant directions in relation to
listing/trading are provided by the relevant Stock Exchange(s).

In case any shareholder holding shares in the Transferor Company is such that the shareholder
becomes entitled to a fraction of an equity share of the Transferee Company, the Transferee
Company shall not issue any fractional shares to such shareholder but shall round off the fraction
to the nearest lower integer and issue the New Equity Shares — Merger accordingly.

In the event that the Parties restructure their equity share capital by way of share split /
consolidation / issue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Scheme, the Share Exchange
Ratio and the stock options, shall be adjusted accordingly to take into account the effect of any
such corporate actions.

The issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares - Merger to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company as provided in this Scheme, is an integral part thereof and shall be deemed to have been
carried out without requiring any further act on the part of the Transferee Company or its
shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under Section 62 of the Act and any other
applicable provisions of the Act, as may be applicable, and such other statutes and regulations as
may be applicable were duly complied with.

The New Equity Shares - Merger shall be issued in dematerialized form to those equity
shareholders who hold shares of the Transferor Company, provided all details relating to their
accounts with the depository participants are available with the Transferee Company.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT BY THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY IN RESPECT OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

Upon the scheme becoming effective, Transferee Company shall consider the amalgamation of
Transferor Company as formation of a joint venture and shall account for the same in its books as
per the applicable accounting principles prescribed under relevant Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”). It would inter alia include the following:

assets, liabilities and reserves and surplus of the Transferor Company transferred to and vested
in the Transferee Company shall be recorded at their book values and in accordance with
requirements of applicable Ind AS.

the Transferee Company shall credit its share capital account with the face value of New Equity
Shares - Merger issued pursuant to Clause 10 of this Scheme to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company.

subsequent to the transfer, the shares of the Transferee Company held by the Transferor
Company shall be cancelled (as per Part Il and Part IV of the Scheme) and appropriately adjusted
with share capital/share premium or capital reserves if any, then to general reserves account and
then to the retained earnings of the Transferee Company (pursuant to provisions of sections 230
to 232 read with section 52 and section 66 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013). Such cancellation shall be effected as an integral part of the Scheme. The
order of NCLT sanctioning the Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under Section 66 of the Act
confirming the reduction of share capital and no further act, deed or thing as required under the
provisions of the Act would be required.

the inter-company balances between Transferor Company and Transferee Company, if any, shall
stand cancelled in their respective books of accounts.

the book value of the assets and liabilities of the Transferor Company will be adjusted for
alignment with accounting policies of the Transferee Company and the impact of this will be
adjusted with capital reserves of the Transferee Company.

The difference, if any, between the amounts of assets, liabilities and reserves transferred and the
value of the New Equity Shares - Merger issued by the Transferee Company shall be adjusted in
capital reserves of Transferee Company.

COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED CAPITAL

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Transferor Company
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amounting to INR 49,00,00,000 comprising of 4,90,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each will get
amalgamated with that of the Transferee Company without payment of any additional fees,
duties and Taxes as though the same have already been paid. The authorised share capital of the
Transferee Company will automatically stand increased to that effect by simply filing the requisite
forms with the RoC and no separate procedure or instrument or deed shall be required to be
followed under the Act. The stamp duty and fees paid on the authorized capital of the Transferor
Company shall be utilized and applied to the increased authorized share capital of the Transferee
Company and there would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty and/or fee
and/or Taxes by the Transferee Company for increase in the authorised share capital to that
extent.

The existing capital clause contained in the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee
Company shall without any act, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended
pursuant to Sections 13, 61 and 64 of the Act and Section 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Act, as set out below:

Memorandum of Association

“V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1740,000,000 (Rupees One Hundred
and Seventy Four Crore) divided into 870,000,000 (Eighty Seven Crore) equity shares of Rs
2 (Rupees Two) each with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company or to
divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto
respectively any preferential, deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or condition
as may be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of the Company and to vary,
modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be for
the time being provided by the Articles of the Company and the legislative provisions for
the time being in force”

Itis clarified that the approval of the members of the Transferee Company to the Scheme shall be
deemed to be their consent / approval also to the alteration of the Memorandum of Association
of the Transferee Company and the Transferee Company shall not be required to seek separate
consent / approval of its shareholders for the alteration of the Memorandum of Association of
the Transferee Company as required under Sections 13, 61 and 64 of the Act and other applicable
provisions of the Act.

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND VALIDITY OF RESOLUTIONS

Upon the effectiveness of this Scheme, the Transferor Company shall be dissolved without
winding up, and the Board and any committees thereof of the Transferor Company shall without
any further act, instrument or deed be and stand discharged. The name of the Transferor
Company shall be struck off from the records of the RoC and the Transferee Company shall make
necessary filings in this regard.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the resolutions, if any, of the Transferor Company,
which are valid and subsisting on the Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting and
be considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have any
monetary limits approved under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory
provisions, then the said limits shall be added to the limits, if any, under like resolutions passed
by the Transferee Company and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee
Company.

CHANGE OF NAME OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the name of the Transferee Company shall stand changed
to “Birlasoft (India) Limited” or such other name which is available and approved by the RoC, by
simply filing the requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority and no separate act, procedure,
instrument, or deed and registration fees shall be required to be followed under the Act.

Consequently, subject to Clause 14.1 above:
14.2.1 Clause | of the memorandum of association of the Transferee Company shall without any
act, procedure, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended

pursuant to Sections 13, 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, and be replaced
by the following clause:
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“The name of the Company is Birlasoft (India) Limited.”

It is hereby clarified that, for the purposes of acts and events as mentioned in Clause 14.1 and
14.2, the consent of the shareholders of the Transferee Company to this Scheme shall be deemed
to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the aforementioned amendment and that no further
resolution under Section 13, Section 14 or any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be
required to be separately passed, nor any additional fees (including fees and charges to the
relevant RoC) or stamp duty, shall be payable by the Transferee Company.

PART IlI
DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING
DEMERGER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the opening business hours of
Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions of this Scheme and pursuant to Sections 230 to 232
of the Act and Section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961, the Demerged Undertaking along
with all its assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements, employees, Permits, licences, records,
approvals, etc. shall, without any further act, instrument or deed, be demerged from Demerged
Company and transferred to and be vested in or be deemed to have been vested in the Resulting
Company as a going concern so as to become as and from the Appointed Date, the assets,
liabilities, contracts, arrangements, employees, Permits, licences, records, approvals, etc. of the
Resulting Company by virtue of, and in the manner provided in this Scheme. It is clarified that any
question that may arise as to whether a specific asset (tangible or intangible) or liability pertains
or does not pertain to the Demerged Undertaking or not, shall be mutually decided by the Boards
of the respective Parties in consultation with the Board of the Transferor Company.

In respect of such of the assets and properties forming part of the Demerged Undertaking as are
movable in nature or are otherwise capable of transfer by delivery or possession, or by
endorsement and/ or delivery, the same shall stand transferred and delivered by the Demerged
Company upon coming into effect of this Scheme and shall, ipso facto and without any other order
to this effect, become the assets and properties of the Resulting Company.

Subject to Clause 15.4 below, with respect to the assets of the Demerged Undertaking, other than
those referred to in Clause 15.2 above, including all rights, title and interests in the agreements
(including agreements for lease or license of the properties), investments in shares, mutual funds,
bonds and any other securities, sundry debtors, claims from customers or otherwise, outstanding
loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances
and deposits, if any, with any Appropriate Authority, customers and other persons, whether or
not the same is held in the name of the Demerged Company, shall, without any further act,
instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and/ or be deemed to be transferred to and
vested in the Resulting Company, with effect from the Appointed Date by operation of law as
transmission or as the case may be in favour of Resulting Company. With regard to the licenses of
the properties, the Resulting Company will enter into novation agreements, if it is so required.

With respect to the investments (both direct and indirect) of the Demerged Company in the
subsidiaries or joint ventures or branches or associates more particularly set out in Schedule |
hereto, where such subsidiaries or branches or joint ventures or associates (including but not
limited to subsidiaries and branches in India, United Kingdom, United States of America, Germany,
China, Netherlands, Brazil, Korea, Japan, Italy and Sweden) are carrying on either both the
Remaining Business and the Engineering Business or only the Engineering Business as of the
Appointed Date, the said subsidiaries or branches or joint ventures or associates will remain with
the Demerged Company, until, the business and undertaking of such subsidiaries or branches or
joint ventures or associates appertaining to the Engineering Business are restructured/
segregated as agreed between the Parties, as per the Applicable Laws and regulations and the
portion of investments appertaining to the Engineering Business after such restructuring/
segregation will be transferred to the Resulting Company as if such investment (both direct and
indirect) formed part of the Demerged Undertaking.

Without prejudice to the aforesaid, the Demerged Undertaking, including all immoveable
property, whether or not included in the books of the Demerged Company, whether freehold or
leasehold or under a license or permission to use (including but not limited to land, buildings,
sites, tenancy rights related thereto, and immovable properties and any other document of title,
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rights, interest and easements in relation thereto) of the Demerged Undertaking shall stand
transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, without any act or deed to be done or
executed by the Demerged Company and/ or the Resulting Company.

The Demerged Company shall, at its sole discretion but without being obliged, give notice in such
form as it may deem fit and proper, to such Persons, as the case may be, that the said debt,
receivable, bill, credit, loan, advance or deposit stands transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company and that appropriate modification should be made in their respective books/ records to
reflect the aforesaid changes.

Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, all debts, liabilities, loans, obligations and duties of the
Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date and relatable to the Demerged Undertaking
(“Demerged Liabilities™) shall, without any further act or deed, be and stand transferred to and
be deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company to the extent that they are outstanding
as on the Appointed Date and the Resulting Company shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same.
The term “Demerged Liabilities” shall include:

15.6.1 the debts, liabilities obligations incurred and duties of any kind, nature or description
(including contingent liabilities) which arise out of the activities or operations of the
Demerged Undertaking;

15.6.2 the specific loans or borrowings (including debentures bonds, notes and other debt
securities raised, incurred and utilized solely for the activities or operations of the
Demerged Undertaking); and

15.6.3 in cases other than those referred to in Clauses 15.6.1 or 15.6.2 above, so much of the
amounts of general or multipurpose borrowings, if any, of the Demerged Company, as
stand in the same proportion which the value of the assets transferred pursuant to the
demerger of the Demerged Undertaking bear to the total value of the assets of the
Demerged Company immediately prior to the Appointed Date.

However, the tax liabilities and tax demands or refunds received or to be received by the
Demerged Company for a period prior to the Appointed Date in relation to the Demerged
Company shall not be transferred as part of the Demerged Undertaking to Resulting Company.

In so far as any Encumbrance in respect of Demerged Liabilities is concerned, such Encumbrance
shall, without any further act, instrument or deed being required to be modified and, if so agreed,
shall be extended to and shall operate over the assets of the Resulting Company. For the
avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets comprising the Remaining
Business are concerned, the Encumbrance, if any, over such assets relating to the Demerged
Liabilities, without any further act, instrument or deed being required, be released and discharged
from the obligations and Encumbrances relating to the same. Further, in so far as the assets
comprised in the Demerged Undertaking are concerned, the Encumbrance over such assets
relating to any loans, borrowings or other debts which are not transferred to the Resulting
Company pursuant to this Scheme and which shall continue with the Demerged Company, shall
without any further act or deed be released from such Encumbrance and shall no longer be
available as security in relation to such liabilities. All costs, fines, penalties or other payables
arising on account of such release of Encumbrances shall be to the account and sole liability of
the Resulting Company.

Taxes, if any, paid or payable by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and specifically
pertaining to Demerged Undertaking shall be treated as paid or payable by the Resulting Company
and the Resulting Company shall be entitled to claim the credit, refund or adjustment for the same
as may be applicable.

If the Demerged Company is entitled to any unutilized credits (including balances or advances),
benefits under the incentive schemes and policies including tax holiday under section 10AA of the
Income-tax Act, 1961 or deduction under section 35(2AB) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 or
concessions relating to the Demerged Undertaking under any Tax Laws or Applicable Laws, the
Resulting Company shall be entitled as an integral part of the Scheme to claim such benefit or
incentives or unutilised credits as the case may be without any specific approval or permission.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall

have the right to revise their respective financial statements and returns along with prescribed
forms, filings and annexures under the Tax Laws and to claim refunds and/or credit for Taxes paid
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and for matters incidental thereto, if required, to give effect to the provisions of the Scheme.

Subject to Clause 19.2 and any other provisions of the Scheme, any refunds, benefits, incentives,
grants, subsidies in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, the Demerged
Company shall, if so required by the Resulting Company, issue notices in such form as the
Resulting Company may deem fit and proper stating that pursuant to the Tribunal having
sanctioned this Scheme, the relevant refund, benefit, incentive, grant, subsidies, be paid or made
good or held on account of the Resulting Company, as the person entitled thereto, to the end and
intent that the right of the Demerged Company to recover or realise the same, stands transferred
to the Resulting Company and that appropriate entries should be passed in their respective books
to record the aforesaid changes.

On and from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank accounts of the
Demerged Company, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, have been
replaced with that of the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to maintain
and operate the bank accounts of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking, in the name of the Demerged Company for such time as may be determined to be
necessary by the Resulting Company. All cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment
orders received or presented for encashment which are in the name of the Demerged Company,
in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, after the Effective Date shall be
accepted by the bankers of the Resulting Company and credited to the account of the Resulting
Company, if presented by the Resulting Company.

Without prejudice to the provisions of the foregoing sub clauses of this Clause 15, and upon the
effectiveness of this Scheme, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company may execute
any and all instruments or documents and do all the acts and deeds as may be required, including
filing of necessary particulars and/ or modification(s) of charge, with the concerned RoC or filing
of necessary applications, notices, intimations or letters with any authority or Person to give effect
to the Scheme.

PERMITS

With effect from the Appointed Date, Permits (including the licenses granted by any Appropriate
Authority like SEZ or STPI or DSIR authorities, more particularly set out in Schedule 1V) relating to
the Demerged Undertaking shall be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company and the
concerned licensor and grantors of such Permits shall endorse where necessary, and record the
Resulting Company on such Permits so as to empower and facilitate the approval and vesting of
the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company and continuation of operations pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking in the Resulting Company without any hindrance, and shall stand
transferred to and vested in and shall be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company without any further act or deed and shall be appropriately mutated by the Appropriate
Authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Resulting Company as if the same were originally
given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company
shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder and the rights and
benefits under the same shall be available to the Resulting Company.

The benefit of all Permits pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall without any other order
to this effect, transfer and vest into and become available to the Resulting Company pursuant to
the sanction of this Scheme.

CONTRACTS

All contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, indemnities, guarantees or other similar rights or
entitlements whatsoever, schemes, arrangements and other instruments, Permits, rights,
entitlements, licenses (including the licenses granted by any Appropriate Authority like SEZ or STPI
or DSIR authorities, more particularly set out in Schedule IV) for the purpose of carrying on the
business of the Demerged Undertaking, and in relation thereto, and those relating to tenancies,
privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and description of whatsoever nature in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, or to the benefit of which the Demerged Undertaking may be eligible and
which are subsisting or having effect immediately before this Scheme coming into effect, shall by
endorsement, delivery or recordal or by operation of law pursuant to the order of the Authority
sanctioning the Scheme, and on this Scheme becoming effective be deemed to be contracts,
deeds, bonds, Agreements, indemnities, guarantees or other similar rights or entitlements
whatsoever, schemes, arrangements and other instruments, Permits,
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rights, entitlements, licenses (including the licenses granted by any Appropriate Authority) of the
Resulting Company. Such properties and rights described hereinabove shall stand vested in the
Resulting Company and shall be deemed to be the property and become the property by
operation of law as an integral part of the Resulting Company. Such contracts and properties
described above shall continue to be in full force and continue as effective as hitherto in favour
of or against the Resulting Company and shall be the legal and enforceable rights and interests of
the Resulting Company, which can be enforced and acted upon as fully and effectually as if it were
the Demerged Company. Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the rights, benefits, privileges,
duties, liabilities, obligations and interest whatsoever, arising from or pertaining to contracts and
properties in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, shall be deemed to have been entered into
and stand assigned, vested and novated to the Resulting Company by operation of law and the
Resulting Company shall be deemed to be the Demerged Company’s substituted party or
beneficiary or obligor thereto. It being always understood that the Resultant Company shall be
the successor in the interest of the Demerged Company in relation to the properties or rights of
the Demerged Undertaking mentioned hereinabove.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding the fact that
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking occurs by virtue of this Scheme, the Resulting Company
may, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance with the provisions
hereof, if so required under any Applicable Law or otherwise, take such actions and execute such
deeds (including deeds of adherence), confirmations, other writings or tripartite arrangements
with any party to any contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any
writings as may be necessary in order to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme. With effect
from the Appointed Date, the Resulting Company shall under the provisions of this Scheme, be
deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Demerged Company to
carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on the part of the
Demerged Company specifically in relation to the Demerged Undertaking.

On and from the Effective Date, and thereafter, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to enforce
all pending contracts and transactions and issue credit notes in respect of the Demerged
Company, in relation to or in connection with the Demerged Undertaking, in the name of the
Resulting Company in so far as may be necessary until the transfer of rights and obligations of the
Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company under this Scheme have been given effect to
under such contracts and transactions.

EMPLOYEES

With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company undertakes to engage, without any
interruption in service, all employees of the Demerged Company, engaged in or in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking, on the terms and conditions not less favourable than those on which they
are engaged by the Demerged Company. The Resulting Company undertakes to continue to abide
by any agreement/ settlement or arrangement, if any, entered into or deemed to have been
entered into by the Demerged Company with any of the aforesaid employees or union
representing them. The Resulting Company agrees that the services of all such employees with
the Demerged Company prior to the demerger shall be taken into account for the purposes of all
existing benefits to which the said employees may be eligible, including for the purpose of
payment of any retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other retiral/ terminal benefits. The
decision on whether or not an employee is part of the Demerged Undertaking shall be decided by
the Board of the Demerged Company in consultation with the Board of the Transferor Company,
and shall be final and binding on all concerned.

The accumulated balances, if any, standing to the credit of the aforesaid employees in the existing
gratuity fund and superannuation fund of which they are members, as the case may be, will be
transferred respectively to such gratuity fund and superannuation funds nominated by the
Resulting Company and/ or such new gratuity fund and superannuation fund to be established in
accordance with Applicable Law and caused to be recognized by the Appropriate Authorities, by
the Resulting Company. Pending the transfer as aforesaid, the gratuity fund and superannuation
fund dues of the said employees would be continued to be deposited in the existing gratuity fund
and superannuation fund respectively of the Demerged Company.

In so far as, provident fund is concerned, the balances standing to the credit of the said employees
in the existing provident fund of the Demerged Company shall be retained in such provident fund
and such provident fund shall be continued for the benefit of: (a) the said employees who are
transferred to the Resulting Company, as aforesaid, and (b) other employees of the Demerged
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Company. In relation to said employees being transferred, the Resulting Company shall stand
substituted for the Demerged Company, for all purposes whatsoever, including relating to the
obligation to make contributions to the said fund in accordance with the provisions thereof. The
rules of such existing provident fund shall stand amended accordingly. The employees of the
Demerged Company engaged in or in relation to the Demerged Undertaking who are transferred
to the Resulting Company, as aforesaid, shall be deemed to constitute a separate class of
employees of the Resulting Company for the purpose of compliance with the provisions of the
Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

The Resulting Company shall assume all rights, obligations and liabilities of the Demerged
Company, in relation and in connection with any immigration matters, including any programmes,
filings, sponsorships, etc.

Employee stock options

18.5.1 Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall formulate new
employee stock option scheme/(s) by adopting the KPIT ESOPS of the Demerged
Company, as modified in accordance with the variations mentioned in this Clause 18.5;

18.5.2 With respect to the stock options granted by the Demerged Company to the employees
of the Demerged Company or its subsidiaries (irrespective of whether they continue to
be employees of the Demerged Company or its subsidiaries or become employees of the
Resulting Company or its subsidiaries pursuant to this Scheme) under the KPIT ESOPS; and
upon the Scheme becoming effective, the said employees shall be issued 1 (One) stock
option by the Resulting Company under the new scheme(s) for every 1 (One) stock option
held in the Demerged Company, whether the same are vested or not on terms and
conditions similar to the KPIT ESOPS;

18.5.3 The stock options granted by the Demerged Company under the KPIT ESOPS would
continue to be held by the eligible employees (irrespective of whether they continue to
be employees of the Demerged Company or its subsidiaries or become employees of the
Resulting Company or its subsidiaries). Upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the
Demerged Company shall, if required, take necessary steps to modify the KPIT ESOPS in a
manner considered appropriate and in accordance with the applicable laws, in order to
enable the continuance of the same in the hands of the employees who become
employees of the Resulting Company or its subsidiaries, subject to the approval of the
Stock Exchange and the relevant regulatory authorities, if any under applicable law;

18.5.4 The existing exercise price of the stock options of the Demerged Company shall be
modified consequent to which the exercise price of the stock options of the Demerged
Company shall stand adjusted and the balance of the exercise price shall become the
exercise price of the stock options issued by the Resulting Company;

18.5.5 While granting stock options, the Resulting Company shall take into account the period
during which the employees held stock options granted by the Demerged Company prior
to the issuance of the stock options by the Resulting Company, for determining of
minimum vesting period required for stock options granted by the Resulting Company,
subject to applicable laws;

18.5.6 Approval granted to the Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company shall also be deemed to be approval granted to any modifications
made to the KPIT ESOPS of the Demerged Company and approval granted to the new
employee stock option scheme to be adopted by the Resulting Company, respectively;
and

18.5.7 Immediately upon implementation of Part Ill of the Scheme, the trust deed dated 7
October 2015, governing the Employee Trust, shall without any further act or deed, stand
modified to include the following provisions:

(@) authorising the trust to hold and deal with the shares issued pursuant to Clause
20.1 below and give effect to the aforesaid provisions;

(b) the expression “Employee” to also include the employees of the Resulting
Company;
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(c) the expression “Beneficiaries” to also include the employees of the Resulting
Company as defined under the employee stock option plan adopted by the
Resulting Company;

(d) the Board of the Resulting Company shall solely have the ability to appoint and/
or remove the trustees and shall solely be liable for all acts and omissions in
relation thereto; and

(e) such other amendments and modifications to give effect to this Scheme and
provisions of any agreement or arrangement entered between the Parties.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all suits, actions, administrative proceedings,
tribunals proceedings, show cause cases, demands and legal proceedings of whatsoever nature
by or against the Demerged Company pending and/or arising on or before the Appointed Date or
which may be instituted any time thereafter and in each case relating to the Demerged
Undertaking shall not abate or be discontinued or be in any way prejudicially affected by reason
of the Scheme or by anything contained in this Scheme but shall be continued and be enforced
by or against the Resulting Company with effect from the Appointed Date in the same manner
and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against the
Demerged Company. Except, as otherwise provided herein, the Demerged Company shall in no
event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal or other proceedings that stand
transferred to the Resulting Company. The Resulting Company shall be replaced/added as party
to such proceedings and shall prosecute or defend such proceedings at its own cost, in
cooperation with the Demerged Company and the liability of the Demerged Company shall
consequently stand nullified. The Demerged Company shall in no event be responsible or liable in
relation to any such legal or other proceedings in relation to the Demerged Undertaking.

The Resulting Company undertakes to have all legal, taxation or other proceedings initiated by or
against the Demerged Company referred to in Clause 19.1 above transferred to its name as soon
as is reasonably practicable after the Effective Date and to have the same continued, prosecuted
and enforced by or against the Resulting Company to the exclusion of the Demerged Company on
priority. Both Parties shall make relevant applications and take steps as may be required in this
regard and all costs thereto shall be borne by the Resulting Company.

Notwithstanding anything contained above, in the event any time after the Effective Date, if the
Demerged Company in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, is in receipt of any demand, claim,
notice and/ or impleaded as a party in any of the proceedings before Appropriate Authority, the
Demerged Company in view of the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
pursuant to this Scheme, shall take all such steps in the proceedings before the Appropriate
Authority to replace the Demerged Company with the Resulting Company. The Resulting
Company shall provide all necessary support, cooperation and assistance including execution of
any documents to enable the Demerged Company to give effect to such replacement. However,
if Demerged Company is not able to get the Resulting Company replaced in such proceedings for
any reason whatsoever, the Demerged Company shall defend the same or deal with such demand
in accordance with the advice of the Resulting Company and at the cost of the Resulting Company
and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify the Demerged Company against all liabilities and
obligations incurred by or against the Demerged Company in respect thereof.

CONSIDERATION

Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of and subject to the provisions of this
Scheme, the Resulting Company shall, without any further application, act, deed, consent, acts,
instrument or deed, issue and allot, on a proportionate basis to each shareholder of the Demerged
Company, 1 (One) fully paid up equity share of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten) each of the Resulting
Company (“New Equity Shares - Demerger”) for every 1 (One) equity share of INR 2 (Indian
Rupees Two) of the Demerged Company held by such shareholder whose name is recorded in the
register of members and records of the depository as members of the Demerged Company as on
the Record Date 2.

The New Equity Shares - Demerger shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum of
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association and articles of association of Resulting Company, as the case may be, and shall rank
pari passu in all respects with any existing equity shares of Resulting Company, as the case may
be, after the Effective Date including with respect to dividend, bonus, right shares, voting rights
and other corporate benefits attached to the equity shares of Resulting Company.

The issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares - Demerger is an integral part hereof and shall
be deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without requiring
any further act on the part of the Resulting Company or the Demerged Company or their
shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under the Act and such other Applicable Laws as
may be applicable were duly complied with. It is clarified that the approval of the members and
creditors of the Resulting Company and/ or the Demerged Company to this Scheme, shall be
deemed to be their consent/ approval for the issue and allotment of the New Equity Shares -
Demerger.

The New Equity Shares - Demerger shall be issued in dematerialized form unless otherwise
notified in writing by a shareholder of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company on or
before such date as may be determined by the Board of Demerged Company. In the event that
such notice has not been received by Resulting Company in respect of any of the shareholders of
Demerged Company, the equity shares, shall be issued to such shareholders in dematerialized
form provided that the shareholders of Demerged Company shall be required to have an account
with a depository participant and shall be required to provide details thereof and such other
confirmations as may be required. In the event that Resulting Company has received notice from
any shareholder that the equity shares are to be issued in physical form or if any shareholder has
not provided the requisite details relating to his/ her/ its account with a depository participant or
other confirmations as may be required or if the details furnished by any shareholder do not
permit electronic credit of the shares of Resulting Company, then Resulting Company shall issue
the equity shares in physical form to such shareholder or shareholders.

In the event that the Parties restructure their equity share capital by way of share split /
consolidation / issue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Scheme, the share exchange
ratio per Clause 20.1 shall be adjusted accordingly to take into account the effect of any such
corporate actions.

The Resulting Company shall apply for listing of the New Equity Shares - Demerger on the Stock
Exchanges in terms of and in compliance of SEBI Circular and other relevant provisions as may be
applicable. The New Equity Shares - Demerger shall remain frozen in the depository system till
listing/ trading permission is given by the designated Stock Exchange. Further, there shall be no
change in the shareholding pattern of the Resulting Company between the Record Date 2 and the
listing of its equity shares which may affect the status of approval of the Stock Exchanges. It is
further clarified that the Resulting Company will not issue/ reissue any shares, not covered under
the Scheme.

The Resulting Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such confirmations and/ or
undertakings as may be necessary in accordance with Applicable Law for complying with the
formalities of the Stock Exchanges.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT BY THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND THE RESULTING COMPANY IN
RESPECT OF THEIR RESPECTIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

In the books of Demerged Company:

Pursuant to Part Il of the Scheme coming into effect, the Demerged Company shall account for
demerger of Demerged undertaking in its books as per the applicable accounting principles
prescribed under relevant Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”). It would inter alia include the
following:

21.1.1 the carrying values of the assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking transferred
to the Resulting Company shall be adjusted with capital reserves, if any, then to general
reserve account and then to retained earnings of the Demerged Company. (pursuant to
provisions of sections 230 to 232 read with section 52 and section 66 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Act); and

21.1.2 the carrying value of the investments in equity shares of the Resulting Company to the
extent held by the Demerged Company, shall stand cancelled pursuant to Clause 25 of
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this Scheme.
In the books of Resulting Company:

Pursuant to Part Ill of the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall account for demerger of
Demerged undertaking in its books as per the applicable accounting principles prescribed under
relevant Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”). It would inter alia include the following:

21.2.1 assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking transferred to and vested in the
Resulting Company shall be recorded at their carrying values as appearing in books of the
Demerged Company at the time of the demerger effective date and in accordance with
requirements of relevant Ind AS;

21.2.2 the Resulting Company shall credit its share capital account in its books of account with
the New Equity Shares - Demerger issued pursuant to Clause 20 of this Scheme to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company;

21.2.3 subsequent to the demerger, the pre demerger shares of Resulting Company held by the
Demerged Company shall be cancelled (as per Part V of the Scheme) and appropriately
adjusted with share capital/share premium or capital reserves of the Resulting Company
(pursuant to provisions of sections 230 to 232 read with section 52 and section 66 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013). Such cancellation shall
be effected as an integral part of the Scheme. The order of NCLT sanctioning the Scheme
shall be deemed to be an order under Section 66 of the Act confirming the reduction of
share capital and no further act, deed or thing as required under the provisions of the Act
would be required;

21.2.4 the inter-company balances between Demerged Company and Resulting Company
relating to Demerged Undertaking, if any, in the books of accounts of Resulting Company
shall stand cancelled; and

21.2.5 the difference, if any, between the amounts of assets and liabilities transferred and the
value of the New Equity Shares - Demerger issued by the Resultant Company shall be
adjusted in capital reserves of Resulting Company.

INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the authorised share capital of the Resulting Company will
automatically stand increased to INR 3,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees Three Hundred Crore) by
simply filing the requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority and no separate procedure or
instrument or deed or payment of any stamp duty and registration fees shall be required to be
followed under the Act.

Consequently, the Memorandum of Association of the Resulting Company shall without any act,
instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13 and 61
of the Companies Act 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as the
case may be, and be replaced by the following clause:

“V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs 3,000,000,000 (Rupees Three Hundred
Crore) divided into 300,000,000 (Thirty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs 10 (Rupee Ten) each
with power to increase and reduce the capital of the Company or to divide the shares in
the capital for the time being into several classes and to attach thereto respectively any
preferential, deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or condition as may be
determined by or in accordance with the Articles of the Company and to vary, modify or
abrogate any such rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be for the time
being provided by the Articles of the Company and the legislative provisions for the time
being in force.”.

It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Resulting Company to this Scheme shall be
deemed to be their consent/ approval also to the consequential alteration of the Memorandum
of Association of the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company shall not be required to seek
separate consent/ approval of its shareholders for such alteration of the Memorandum of
Association as required under Sections 13, 14, 61, 62 and 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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CHANGE OF NAME OF RESULTING COMPANY

Upon this Scheme becoming effective, the name of the Resulting Company shall stand changed
to ‘KPIT Technologies Limited’ or such other name which is available and approved by the RoC, by
simply filing the requisite forms with the Appropriate Authority and no separate act, procedure,
instrument, or deed and registration fees shall be required to be followed under the Act.

Consequently, subject to Clause 23.1 above:

23.2.1 Clause | of the memorandum of association of the Resulting Company shall without any
act, act, procedure, instrument or deed be and stand altered, modified and amended
pursuant to Sections 13, 232 and other applicable provisions of the Act, and be replaced
by the following clause:

“The name of the Company is KPIT Technologies Limited.”

It is hereby clarified that, for the purposes of acts and events as mentioned in Clause 23.1 and
23.2, the consent of the shareholders of the Resulting Company to this Scheme shall be deemed
to be sufficient for the purposes of effecting the aforementioned amendment and that no further
resolution under Section 13, Section 14 or any other applicable provisions of the Act, would be
required to be separately passed, nor any additional fees (including fees and charges to the
relevant RoC) or stamp duty, shall be payable by the Resulting Company.

PART IV

REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY HELD BY THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY
HELD BY THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

Immediately upon implementation of Part Il of the Scheme and with effect from the Effective
Date, the paid up equity share capital of the Transferee Company held by the Transferor Company
(“Transferee Company Cancelled Shares”) shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on
and from the Effective Date and the paid up equity capital of the Transferee Company to that
effect shall stand cancelled and reduced, which shall be regarded as reduction of share capital of
the Transferee Company, pursuant to Section 66 of the Act as also any other applicable provisions
of the Act.

The reduction of the share capital of the Transferee Company shall be effected as an integral part
of this Scheme itself, without having to follow the process under Sections 66 of the Act separately
and the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under
Section 66 of the Act confirming the reduction.

On effecting the reduction of the share capital as stated in Clause 24.1 above, the share
certificates in respect of the Transferee Company Cancelled Shares held by the Transferor
Company shall also be deemed to have been cancelled.

The Transferee Company Cancelled Shares shall be cancelled and appropriately adjusted with
share capital/share premium or capital reserves, if any, then to general reserves account and then
to retained earnings account of the Transferee Company (pursuant to provisions of sections 230
to 232 read with section 52 and section 66 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act).

Notwithstanding the reduction in the equity share capital of the Transferee Company, the
Transferee Company shall not be required to add “And Reduced” as suffix to its name.

PART V

REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF THE EXISTING EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE RESULTING COMPANY

REDUCTION AND CANCELLATION OF EXISTING EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF THE RESULTING
COMPANY
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Immediately upon implementation of Part Ill of the Scheme and with effect from the Effective
Date and upon allotment of the New Equity Shares - Demerger by the Resulting Company, the
entire pre-demerger paid up equity share capital of the Resulting Company (“Resulting Company
Cancelled Shares”) shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on and from the Effective
Date and the paid up equity capital of the Resulting Company to that effect shall stand cancelled
and reduced, which shall be regarded as reduction of share capital of the Resulting Company,
pursuant to Section 66 of the Act as also any other applicable provisions of the Act.

The reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company shall be effected as an integral part
of this Scheme itself, without having to follow the process under Sections 66 of the Act separately
and the order of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order under
Section 66 of the Act confirming the reduction.

On effecting the reduction of the share capital as stated in Clause 25.1 above, the share
certificates in respect of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares held by their respective holders
shall also be deemed to have been cancelled.

Subsequent to the demerger, the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares of Resulting Company held
by the Demerged Company shall be cancelled and appropriately adjusted with share capital/share
premium or capital reserves of the Resulting company (pursuant to provisions of sections 230 to
232 read with section 52 and section 66 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act).

On the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall debit its share capital account in its books of
account with the aggregate face value of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares.

The capital reserve in the books of the Resulting Company shall be increased to the extent of the
amount of the Resulting Company Cancelled Shares.

Notwithstanding the reduction in the equity share capital of the Resulting Company, the Resulting
Company shall not be required to add “And Reduced” as suffix to its name.

PART VI
GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS
REMAINING BUSINESS

The Remaining Business and all the assets, investments, liabilities and obligations of the
Demerged Company relating thereto, shall continue to belong to and be vested in and be
managed by the Demerged Company.

All legal, Taxation and/ or other proceedings by or against the Demerged Company under any
statute, whether pending on the Effective Date or which may be instituted at any time thereafter,
and relating to the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company (including those relating to any
property, right, power, liability, obligation or duties of the Demerged Company in respect of the
Remaining Business) shall be continued and enforced against the Demerged Company. The
Resulting Company shall in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal or other
proceedings in relation to the Remaining Business.

If the Resulting Company in relation to the Remaining Business, is in receipt of any demand, claim,
notice and/ or impleaded as a party in any of the proceedings before Appropriate Authority, the
Resulting Company in view of the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
pursuant to this Scheme, shall take all such steps in the proceedings before the Appropriate
Authority to replace the Resulting Company with the Demerged Company. However, if the
Resulting Company is not able to get Demerged Company replaced in such proceedings for any
reason whatsoever, it shall defend the same or deal with such demand in accordance with the
advice of the Demerged Company and at the cost of the Demerged Company and the latter shall
reimburse and indemnify the Resulting Company against all liabilities and obligations incurred by
or against the Resulting Company in respect thereof.

DIVIDENDS

Any declaration or payment of dividend or other distribution of capital or income by the
Transferee Company/ Demerged Company shall be consistent with the past practice of the
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Transferee Company/ Demerged Company in this context.

if the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company declares, makes or pays any dividend or other
distribution of capital or income in a particular financial year, then the Transferor Company shall
be entitled to declare, make or pay such dividend or other distribution of capital or income in such
financial year to the extent of the proportion of the equity value of the Transferor Company vis-
a-vis the equity value of the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company as on the date on which
the board of the Parties approves the Scheme.

It is clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends (whether interim
or final) are enabling provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any
shareholder of the Transferor Company and/ or Transferee Company/ Demerged Company to
demand or claim or be entitled to any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the said Act,
shall be entirely at the discretion of the respective Boards of the Transferor Company and/ or
Transferee Company/ Demerged Company as the case may be, and subject to approval, if
required, of the shareholders of the Transferor Company and/ or Transferee Company/ Demerged
Company as the case may be.

BUSINESS UNTIL EFFECTIVE DATE

With effect from date when the Board of the Demerged Company approves this Scheme and up
to and including the Effective Date, the Demerged Company shall carry on its business other than
that forming part of the Demerged Undertaking in ordinary course consistent with past practice.

With effect from the date when the Board of the Transferor Company approves this Scheme and
up to and including the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall carry on its business in
ordinary course consistent with past practice.

PROPERTY IN TRUST

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, until any property, asset, license, approval,
permission, contract, agreement and rights and benefits arising therefrom pertaining to the
Demerged Undertaking are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and/ or perfected, in the
records of the Appropriate Authority(ies), regulatory bodies or otherwise, in favour of the
Resulting Company, the Resulting Company is deemed to be authorized to enjoy the property,
asset or the rights and benefits arising from the license, approval, permission, contract or
agreement as if it were the owner of the property or asset or as if it were the original party to the
license, approval, permission, contract or agreement. It is clarified that till entry is made in the
records of the Appropriate Authority(ies) and till such time as may be mutually agreed by the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, the Demerged Company will continue to hold
the property and / or the asset, license, permission, approval, contract or agreement and rights
and benefits arising therefrom, as the case may be, in trust for and on behalf of the Resulting
Company. It is further clarified that on the Effective Date, notwithstanding the Scheme being
made effective, any asset/ liability identified as part of the Demerged Undertaking and pending
transfer due to the pendency of any approval/ consent and/ or sanction shall be held in trust by
the Demerged Company for the Resulting Company. Immediately upon receipt of such approval/
consent and/ or sanction such asset and/ or liability forming part of the Demerged Undertaking
shall without any further act/ deed or consideration be transferred/ vested in the Resulting
Company, with all such benefits, obligations and rights with effect from the Effective Date. All
costs, payments and other liabilities that the Demerged Company shall be required to bear to give
effect to this Clause 29 shall be borne solely by the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company
shall reimburse and indemnify the Demerged Company against all liabilities and obligations
incurred by the Demerged Company in respect thereof.

APPLICATIONS/ PETITIONS TO THE TRIBUNAL

The Parties shall dispatch, make and file all applications and petitions under Sections 230 to 232
and other applicable provisions of the Act before the Tribunal, under whose jurisdiction, the
registered offices of the respective Parties are situated, for sanction of this Scheme under the
provisions of Applicable Law, and shall apply for such approvals as may be required under
Applicable Law and for dissolution of the Transferor Company without being wound up.

The Parties shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to any Appropriate
Authority, if required, under any Applicable Law for such consents and approvals which the
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Demerged Company/ Transferee Company, Transferor Company and Resulting Company may
require to own the assets and/ or liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking or the Transferor
Company, as the case may be, and to carry on the business of the Demerged Undertaking or
Transferor Company, as the case may be.

MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THIS SCHEME

On behalf of each of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company, Transferor Company and
Resulting Company, the Board of the respective companies acting themselves or through
authorized persons, may consent jointly but not individually, on behalf of all persons concerned,
to any modifications or amendments of this Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever,
or to any conditions or limitations that the Tribunal or any other Appropriate Authority may deem
fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate
by all of them (i.e. the Boards of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company, Transferor
Company and Resulting Company) and solve all difficulties that may arise for carrying out this
Scheme and do all acts, deeds and things necessary for putting this Scheme into effect.

For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any modification thereof the Boards of the
Demerged Company/ Transferee Company, Transferor Company and Resulting Company acting
themselves or through authorized persons may jointly but not individually, give and are jointly
authorised to give such directions including directions for settling any question of doubt or
difficulty that may arise and such determination or directions, as the case may be, shall be binding
on all parties, in the same manner as if the same were specifically incorporated in this Scheme.

CONDITIONS PRECEDENT

Unless otherwise decided (or waived) by the relevant Parties, the Scheme is conditional upon and
subject to the following conditions precedent:

32.1.1 CCl (or any appellate authority in India which has appropriate jurisdiction) having granted
approval (or being deemed, under Applicable Law, to have granted approval) for the
transactions set out in this Scheme, such approval to be in form and substance acceptable
to the Parties, acting reasonably; and any conditions contained in such approval (or
deemed approval) that are required to be satisfied at any time prior to the Effective Date
having been so satisfied (or, where applicable, waived);

32.1.2 obtaining no-objection/ observation letter from the Stock Exchanges in relation to the
Scheme under Regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015;

32.1.3 approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of each class of shareholders of the
Transferor Company, the Transferee Company/ Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company and such other classes of persons of the said Companies, if any, as applicable
or as may be required under the Act and as may be directed by the Tribunal,

32.1.4 the Parties, as the case may be, complying with other provisions of the SEBI Circular,
including seeking approval of the shareholders of the Transferor Company/ Demerged
Company through e-voting, as applicable. The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the
votes cast by the public shareholders in favour of the proposal are more than the number
of votes cast by the public shareholders, of the Demerged Company, against it as required
under the SEBI Circular. The term "public’ shall carry the same meaning as defined under
Rule 2 of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

32.1.5 the sanctions and orders of the Tribunals, under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act for
approving the Scheme, being obtained by the Transferor Company, the Transferee
Company, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company;

32.1.6 certified/ authenticated copies of the orders of the Tribunal, sanctioning the Scheme,
being filed with the concerned RoC having jurisdiction over the Parties by all the Parties;
and

32.1.7 any other matters expressly agreed as conditions precedent to the effectiveness of the
Scheme as amongst the Parties in writing.
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It is hereby clarified that submission of this Scheme to the Tribunals and to the Appropriate
Authorities for their respective approvals is without prejudice to all rights, interests, titles or
defences that the Demerged Company, the Transferor Company, the Resulting Company and/ or
the Transferee Company may have under or pursuant to all Applicable Laws.

On the approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Transferor
Company and the Resulting Company and such other classes of Persons of the said companies, if
any, pursuant to Clause 32.1, such shareholders and classes of Persons shall also be deemed to
have resolved and accorded all relevant consents under the Act or otherwise to the same extent
applicable in relation to the demerger, amalgamation, capital reduction set out in this Scheme,
related matters and this Scheme itself.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS AND MATTERS RELATING TO REVOCATION/
WITHDRAWAL OF THIS SCHEME

The Demerged Company/ Transferee Company, Transferor Company and Resulting Company
acting jointly through their respective Boards shall each be at liberty to withdraw from this
Scheme

The Demerged Company/ Transferee Company and/ or Transferor Company and/ or Resulting
Company acting through their respective Boards shall each be at liberty to withdraw from this
Scheme in case any of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company, Transferor Company and
Resulting Company is declared insolvent.

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals not being obtained and/or the Scheme not
being sanctioned by the Tribunal, and/or the order or orders not being passed as aforesaid on or
before 18 months from the date of approval of the Scheme by the Boards of the Parties or within
such period as may be mutually agreed upon, between the Demerged Company/ Transferee
Company, Transferor Company and Resulting Company through their respective Boards or their
authorised representative, this Scheme shall become null and void and each Party shall bear and
pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for and/ or in connection with this Scheme.

In the event of revocation/ withdrawal under Clause 33.1 or above, no rights and liabilities
whatsoever shall accrue to or be incurred inter se the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company,
Transferor Company and Resulting Company or their respective shareholders or creditors or
employees or any other Person, save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto
as is contemplated hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued
pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically
provided in the Scheme or in accordance with the Applicable Law and in such case, each Party
shall bear its own costs, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same shall
not, subject to the decision of the Demerged Company/ Transferee Company, Transferor
Company and Resulting Company through their respective Boards, affect the validity or
implementation of the other parts and/ or provisions of this Scheme.

COSTS AND TAXES

Parties have agreed to bear the costs, charges and expenses (including, but not limited to, any
taxes and duties, registration charges, etc.) in relation to carrying out, implementing and
completing the terms and provisions of this Scheme and/ or incidental to the completion of this
Scheme in the following manner:

34.1.1 the Transferor Company and its shareholders shall bear the stamp duty costs in
connection with Part Il of the Scheme;

34.1.2 the Resulting Company shall bear the stamp duty costs in connection with Part Il of the
Scheme; and

34.1.3 all other costs, charges and expenses (including, but not limited to, any taxes and duties,
registration charges, etc.) in relation to carrying out, implementing and completing the
terms and provisions of this Scheme and/ or incidental to the completion of this Scheme
shall be borne by the respective Parties.
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SCHEDULE |

The subsidiaries (direct and indirect), joint ventures and branches (direct and indirect) of the Demerged
Company pertaining to/ proposed to be set up by the Demerged Undertaking as on/ post 30 September
2017 includes the following:

A. Direct Subsidiaries

Sr. No Name of the subsidiary Country

1. Impact Automotive Solutions Limited India

2. KPIT (Shanghai) Software Technology Co. Limited China

3. KPIT Technologies Netherlands B.V Netherlands

4. New US Co. United States of America

5. KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited United Kingdom

6. MicroFuzzy KPIT Technologia Ltda Brazil

7. New Japan Co. Japan
B. Step down subsidiaries

Sr. No Name of the subsidiary Country

1. KPIT Technologies Gmbh Germany

2. MicroFuzzy Industrie-Elektronic GmbH Germany

3. New US LLC United States of America
C. Branches

Sr.No | Particulars of the Branch Country Head Office

1. New Korea Branch Korea New Japan Co.

2. Sweden Branch Sweden KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited

3. Italy Branch Italy KPIT Technologies (UK) Limited
D. Any subsidiary (direct and indirect), joint venture and branch (direct and indirect) incorporated/

acquired/ set up by the Demerged Company or its subsidiaries post 31 December 2017 till the
Appointed Date, pertaining to the Engineering Business shall be a part of the Demerged
Undertaking.
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SCHEDULE II

List of immovable properties of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking as on
30 September 2017 includes the following:

A. Immovable properties
Sr. No Class of assets Description Area Location/ Address
1. Leasehold Land Land for R & D facility 3,609 SQM Plot No. 45, MIDC,
Phase-I, Rajiv Gandhi
Infotech Park,
Hinjewadi, Pune,
Maharashtra -
411057
2. Leasehold Land Plot 17 (SEZ unit) 93,061 SQM SEZ Unit-ll, Plot No.
17, MIDC-SEZ, PHASE
I, Rajiv Gandhi
Infotech Park,
Hinjewadi, Pune,
Maharashtra -
411057
3. Building R & D building (approved Plot No. 45, MIDC,
by the Department of Phase-l, Rajiv Gandhi
Scientific & Industrial Infotech Park,
Research) Hinjewadi, Pune,
Maharashtra -
411057
4. Building Adarsh Bangalore (SEZ | 11,225 SQM 20 & 21 RMZ
unit) Ecoworld
Infrastructure Private
Limited, SEZ, Sarjapur
Outer Ring Road,
Devarabisanahalli,
Bengaluru, Karnataka
-560103
5. Building Japan office 374.68 SQM 5th floor, Seni Kaikan
Bldg.,
3-1-11  Nihonbashi-
Honcho, Chuo-ku,
Tokyo 1030023,
Japan
Tel: 03-6913-
8501/Fax:  03-5205-
2434
6. Leasehold RMZ Bangalore (SEZ unit) | 6,410 SQM Unit-Il,  Plot B,
improvements Campus 5B, 9th Floor,
RMZ Ecoworld
Infrastructure Pvt
Ltd., SEZ,
Devarabeesanahalli
Village, Sarjapur
Outer Ring Road,
Bengaluru, Karnataka
-560103
7. Leasehold IT-9 Pune (SEZ unit) 8,454 SQM SEZ  Unit-lll, IT-9,
improvements Ground & 1st floor,
Plot No. 2, Blueridge
Township, MIDC,
Phase-l, Hinjewadi,
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Sr. No Class of assets Description Area Location/ Address

Pune — 411057

B. Any immovable property acquired by the Demerged Company post 30 September 2017 till the
Appointed Date, pertaining to the Engineering Business shall be a part of the Demerged
Undertaking.
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List of registered intellectual properties of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged

SCHEDULE Il

Undertaking as on 30 September 2017 includes the following:

A.

Trademarks
Sr. No. Trademarks Class registered
1. Kpl T o
2. KPIT 9, 16, 35, 42

International class — 35, 42

- KPRPI'T

International class — 35, 42

PATENTS
Application Patent Title/Description Country Application/Patent
Number Number
1814/MUM/2 | Mechanism to enable Plug India 1814/MUM/2007
007 & and Play Hardware
PCT WO0/2 7
PCT/IB2008/0 | Components for Semi- ¢ 0/2009/037668
53816 automatic Migration us. 20100205599
Europe EP2203814
China CN101855617
Japan JP2011512566
South Korea KR20100069695
986/MUM/20 | Method and System for India 986/MUM/2008
08 & Open Loop Compensation PCT PCT/IN2 57
PCT/IN2009/0 | of Delay Variations in a ¢ CT/IN2009/000273
00273 Delay Line us. US 8,390,356
PCT/IB2008/0 | Sensor System for Vehicle PCT W0/2010/001195
52646 | Safety China CN102160099
Europe EP08763436.6
Hong Kong HK1152407
2513/MUM/2 | Method and System for India 2513/MUM/2008
008 & Parallelization of PCT PCT/IN2009/000697
PCT/IN2009/0 | Sequential Computer
00697 Program Codes /Method us. US 8,949,786
for speeding execution of US 14/606,924
computer programs (diViSiOnaI' granted us
9,880,822)
Europe EP2361408
Japan JP2012510661
JP 2015-154050
(divisional)
2559/MUM/2 | Method for Reorganizing India 2559/MUM/2008
008 & Tasks for Optimization of
PCT PCT/IN2009/000701
PCT/IN2009/0 | Resources
00701 Europe EP2356567
u.s. US 8,732,714
Japan JP2012511204
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Application Patent Title/Description Country Application/Patent
Number Number
2108/MUM/2 | A Power Assisting System India IN 275186
009 & PCT/IN
PCT WO02011l 21
2009/000656 ¢ 020110335
u.S. US 8,560,156
Australia AU2009352905
AU 2016203887
(divisional)
Canada CA2770401
China 200980161418.8
South Africa 2012/01889
Indonesia W00201201278
Malaysia MY-156883
South Korea 10-2012-7009570
Japan JP2012-529402
JP2015134602
(divisional which was
dropped)
Brazil BR 112012 005368 0
Mexico MX/a/2012/003059
Europe EP2477840
France NA
Germany NA
2988/MUM/2 | A Motor Mounting and India 2988/MUM/2009
009 Transmission Means
2886/MUM/2 | A Semiconductor Unit with India 2886/MUM/2009
009 Precise Control over
Output Parameters
1382/MUM/2 | Method and System for India 1382/MUM/2010
010 pedestrian detection using
Wigner Distribution
1383/MUM/2 | Method and system for India 1383/MUM/2010
010 image enhancement using
Wigner distribution
1385/MUM/2 | Method for Implementing India 1385/MUM/2010
010 Hybrid Lock-Free
Synchronization
Mechanism
PCT/IN2010/0 | Method of Converting India 1386/MUM/2010
02:?89 Vehicle into Hybrid Vehicle PCT WO2011039770A3
1386/MUM/2 u.s. US 8,596,391
010 China 201080040724.9
South Korea 10-2012-7009598
Japan JP 2012-529404
Brazil BR 11 2012 005361 2
Mexico MX/a/2012/003114
Europe EP 10801712.0
France NA
Germany NA
PCT/IN2010/0 | Hybrid Drive System with India 1387/MUM/2010
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Application Patent Title/Description Country Application/Patent
Number Number
00608 Reduced Power PCT PCT/IN2010/000608
1387?&%M/2 Requirement for Vehicle Us. US 20110083919
010 China CN 102483021 B
South Korea 10-2012-7009588
Japan JP20110562408
Brazil BR 11 2012 005354 0
Mexico MX/a/2012/002959
Europe EP 10803514.8
France NA
Germany NA
PCT/IN2010/0 | Hybrid Drive System for India 1388/MUM/2010
00616 Ve_hicle Having Engine as PCT PCT/IN2010/000616
and Prime Mover
1388/MUM/2 us. US 20110083918
010 China 201080040685.2
South Korea 10-2012-7009615
Japan 2012-
529406/JP2013504491
JP20110562418
Brazil 11 2012 005365 5
Mexico MX/a/2012/002960
Europe EP 10803272.3
France NA
Germany NA
PCT/IN2010/0 | Motor Assistance for a India 1389/MUM/2010
00619 Hybrid Vehicle Based on PCT WO 2011033529
and User Input
1389/MUM/2 u.s. US 8,606,443
010 China 201080040729.1
South Korea 10-2012-7009622
Japan JP 2012-529407
Brazil BR1120120053663
Mexico MX/a/2012/003116
Europe EP 10803273.1
France NA
Germany NA
PCT/IN2010/0 | Motor Assistance for a India 1390/MUM/2010
OggéS Hybrid Vehicle Us. US 8423214
1390/MUM/2 PCT PCT/IN2010/000615
010
PCT/IN2010/0 | Motor Assistance for a India 1391/MUM/2010
00614 Hybr_id Vehic_lg Based on PCT WO02011039771
and Predicted Driving Range
1391/MUM/2 u.s. US 9,227,626
010 Continuation -
14/986,423
China 201080040684.8

South Korea

10-2012-7009608

57




Application Patent Title/Description Country Application/Patent
Number Number
Japan JP 2012529405
Brazil BR1120120053620
Mexico MX/a/2012/003115
Europe EP2477833
France 2477833
Germany 602010011638.7
2015/MUM/2 | Motor Differential India 2015/MUM/2010
010
2016/MUM/2 | Torque Assist for Motor India 2016/MUM/2010
010
3182/MUM/2 | Balancing Energy and India 3182/MUM/2010
010 Power in a System/An
Efficient Energy
Management System
3180/MUM/2 | Security Device (A system India 3180/MUM/2010
010 for protection of
PCT PCT/IN2012/000527
PCT/IN2012/0 | embedded software codes
00527 ) u.s. US 14/236,578
Germany 112012004661.7
Japan JP 2014-531379
South Korea 10-2014-7005499
1665/MUM/2 | The Method of Using India 1665/MUM/2011
011 Hydrogen Fuel for IC
Engine
1666/MUM/2 | Fuel Injection System for India 1666/MUM/2011
011 Gaseous Fuel
1743/MUM/2 | A System For Detecting, India 1743/MUM/2011
011 Locating And Tracking A
Vehicle
2779/MUM/2 | System and Method for India 2779/MUM/2011
011 Battery Monitoring
PCT/IN2012/0 PCT W02013072927
00626 u.s. US 14/348,540
Europe EP 12829188.7
South Korea 10-2014-7011278
Japan 2014-532553
China 201280042201.7
2780/MUM/2 | A System and Method for India 2780/MUM/2011
011 Determining State of
PCT PCT/IN2012/000627
PCT/IN2012/0 | Charge of a Battery
00627 u.s. US 14/348,546
Europe EP 12829189.5
South Korea 10-2014-7011286
Japan 2014-532554
China CH 201280044057.0
1986/MUM/2 | Method and Apparatus for India 1986/MUM/2012
012 Selectively Enhancing an
PCT W02014033732
PCT/IN2013/0 | Image
00422 u.s. US 9,734,560
1987/MUM/2 | System and Method for India 1987/MUM/2012
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Application Patent Title/Description Country Application/Patent
Number Number
012 Depth Estimation PCT PCT/IN2013/000421
PCT/IN2013/0
00421
2620/MUM/2 | A System and Method for India 2620/MUM/2012
012 Performance PCT WO 2014045304
PCT/IN2013/0 | Characterization/METHOD
00548 AND APPARATUS FOR us. US 14/426,976
DESIGNING VISION BASED US 9,858,165
SOFTWARE APPLICATIONS
3601/MUM/2 | Hydraulic oil monitoring for India 3601/MUM/2012
012 an off-road vehicle
2328/MUM/2 | High Efficiency Hybrid India 2328/MUM/2013
013 Electric Vehicle/Retrofit
PCT W02015029075
PCT/IN2014/0 | system for converting a
00569 vehicle into one of a hybrid Europe 14812305.2
electric vehicle (HEV) and us. US 2016/0207522
electric vehicle (EV)
Iran 139450140003012537
Indonesia P00201506171
Japan JP 2016-533960
Malaysia P12015704403
South Africa ZA 2015/08063
Brazil BR 11 2015 029439-1
China CN201480029561.2
Columbia 16.037.748
South Korea 10-2015-7033158
2338/MUM/2 | Spring Suspension (A India 2338/MUM/2013
013 DYNAMICALLY ADJUSTABLE PCT PCT/IN2014/000379
PCT/IN2014/0 | SUSPENSION DEVICE)
00379 u.s. US 14/904,019
Europe 14767149.9
Japan JP 2016-524942
China CN201480039425.1
South Korea 10-2016-7002842
2368/MUM/2 | Improved Fluid Level India 2368/MUM/2013
013 Measurement Unit
PCT/IN/20140 PCT PCT/IN/2014000466
00466
2484/MUM/2 | Method and System of India 2484/MUM/2013
013 Augmenting Gaming Us. US 14494617
US 14494617 | Experience within an in- US-2015-0087428
US-2015- vehicle Infotainment
0087428
2559/MUM/2 | Straight Line Detection India 2559/MUM/2013
013 Apparatus and Method
159/MUM/20 | Vehicle detection system India 159/MUM/2014
14 and method
PCT/IN2015/0 PCT PCT/IN2015/000028
00028 u.s. US 20160335508
Europe EP 15721342.2
Japan JP 2017-505946
China Not yet received
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Application Patent Title/Description Country Application/Patent
Number Number
South Korea Not yet received
586/MUM/20 | Head Restraint System India 586/MUM/2014
14 PCT PCT/IN2015/000097
PCT/IN2015/0
00097 u.s. US 15/120,417
Europe EP 3107754
Japan JP 2017-506189
China 201580007762.7
South Korea KR 10-2016-7024940
3302/MUM/2 | A SYSTEM AND METHOD India 3302/MUM/2014
014 FOR PEDESTRIAN PCT PCT/IN2015/00300
PCT/IN2015/0 | DETECTION
0300
3607/MUM/2 | Method for manufacturing India 3607/MUM/2014
014 a modular structure
PCT PCT/IN201 411
PCT/IN2015/0 ¢ CT/IN2015/000
00411 u.s. US 15/596,980
Europe EP 3221108
Malaysia P12017701284
Australia 2015348933
727/MUM/20 | A System and Method for India 727/MUM/2015
15 Ambient Light Detection PCT PCT/IN2016/000051
China CH 201680013346.2
Japan JP 2017-543963
Korea KR 10-2017-0120149
1824/MUM/2 | Guidance Control System India 1824/MUM/2015
015 for an Autonomous Vehicle PCT WO02016178294
PCT/JP2015/8
4338 Japan JP 2017- 516546
0443/DEL/201 | MODULAR MICRO- India 0443/DEL/2015
5 CONCENTRATOR ARRAY PCT WO2016132384A1
BASED MULTI-
DIRECTIONAL SUN
TRACKING SYSTEM FOR
PHOTOVOLTAIC AND
THERMAL ENERGY
HARVESTING
201621012575 | AMETHOD FOR India 201621012575
GENERATING A GRAPH PCT PCT/IB2017/050466
MODEL FOR MONITORING
MACHINERY HEALTH
201621032471 | Autonomous System India 201621032471
Validation Us. US 15713622
Japan JP 2017-182244
Europe EP 17 192 335.2
201621040435 | Bi-directional Actuator India 201621040435
PCT PCT/IB2017/057157
201621041900 | Model Predictive Based India 201621041900
Control for Automobiles PCT PCT/IB2017/057636
201721006580 | System and Method for India 201741006185
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Application Patent Title/Description Country Application/Patent
Number Number

Target Track Management PCT PCT/1B2017/054530
of an Autonomous Vehicle

201721009836 | Feature Extraction India 201721009836
Gateway Module

201721012075 | SOC Based Gateway India 201721012075
Module

201721014992 | Adaptive Braking System India 201721014992

201721018168 | System and Method for India 201721018168
Pedestrian Detection

201721020722 | A Metal Bipolar Plate India 201721020722
Design

201821002009 | Adaptive Throttle System India 201821002009

Any brand/ trademark/ patent and any other intellectual property right acquired/ created by the
Demerged Company post 30 September 2017 till the Appointed Date, pertaining to the
Engineering Business shall be a part of the Demerged Undertaking.
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SCHEDULE IV

List of SEZ, STPI and DSIR approved R&D units of the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking as on 30 September 2017 includes the following:

(STPI unit)

22 October 1994

Sr. No Description Approval/ Reference No Location/ Address
1. R&D Centre (approved by TU/IV-RD/3193/2014 dated | Plot No. 45, MIDC, Phase-I, Rajiv
the Department of 4 June 2015 Gandhi Infotech Park,
Scientific & Industrial Hinjewadi, Pune, Maharashtra
Research) — 411057
2. Plot 17 (SEZ unit) SEEPZ-SEZ/MIDC- SEZ Unit-Il, Plot No. 17, MIDC-
SEZ/KCIL/24/2011-12/10156 | SEZ, PHASE Ill, Rajiv Gandhi
dated 29 June 2011 Infotech Park, Hinjewadi, Pune,
Maharashtra — 411057
3. IT-9 Pune (SEZ unit) SEEPZ/NTPL- SEZ Unit-Ill, IT-9, Ground & 1st
SEZ/KTL/43/2015-16/5392 floor, Plot No. 2, Blueridge
dated 25 March 2015 Township, MIDC, Phase-l,
Hinjewadi, Pune — 411057
4. Adarsh Bangalore (SEZ unit) | 10/9/2008: ADARSH 20 & 21 RMZ Ecoworld
SEZ/CUMMINS dated 20 | Infrastructure Private Limited,
May 2008 SEZ, Sarjapur Outer Ring Road,
Devarabisanahalli, Bengaluru,
Karnataka — 560103
5. RMZ Bangalore (SEZ unit) KA:06:06:RMZSEZ:01:2A:30/ | Unit-Il, Plot B, Campus 5B, 9th
996 dated 23 February 2015 | Floor, RMzZ Ecoworld
Infrastructure Pvt Ltd., SEZ,
Devarabeesanahalli Village,
Sarjapur Outer Ring Road,
Bengaluru, Karnataka — 560103
6. GGR Towers — “Right Wing” | EIG/KPIT/GEN/7140 dated 4 | GGR Towers, Unit — Il, Ground
(STPI unit) June 2004 Floor, “Right Wing”, S. No.
18/2B, Ambalipura Village,
Sarjapur  Road, Bellandur,
Bangalore — 560103
7. GGR Towers — “Right Wing” | STPIB/IMSC/94/1508 dated | GGR Towers, Unit — II, Ground

Floor, “Left Wing”, S. No. 18/2B,
Ambalipura Village, Sarjapur
Road, Bellandur, Bangalore -
560103
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SCHEDULE V

List of registered intellectual properties of the Transferor Company as on 30 September 2017 includes the
following:

A. Trademarks
Sr. No. Trademarks Application No | Class registered
1. BIRLASOFT, DEVICE MARK 1263448 42
2. EMEDICARE (DEVICE OF GLOBE) 1263450 42
3. LOGO 1179453 16
4. EMEDICARE REDEFINING HEALTHCARE 1179454 16
(WORD)
5. EMEDICARE REDEFINING HEALTHCARE 1179455 16
(LOGO BLACK)
6. BIRLASOFT (LOGO) 1179456 9
7. DEVICE MARKS 1179457 9
8. EMEDICARE REDEFINING HEALTHCARE 1179458 16
(LOGO COLOUR)
9. BIRLASOFT (LOGO) 1179459 16
10. LOGO 1179460 16
B. Any brand/ trademark/ patent and any other intellectual property right acquired/ created by the

Transferor Company post 30 September 2017 till the Appointed Date.

63



S.R. BatLisoi & Co. LLP Stk Fiser, Block B2

Mitloi Bnowlsdoe Park
Chartered Actountants Ol Western Express Highway
Goregson (East), Mumini-400 041, inala
Tel ;#9122 6192 O000
Fap ; 31 22 6192 J000

29 Janvary 2018
To,

The Board of Direetors

KPIT Technologies Limited

Plot no. 35 & 36,

Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park Phase 1, MIDC,
Hinjawadi,

Pune 411057,

Maharashira, India.

The Board of Directors

Birlasoft (India) Limited CERTIFIEE TRUE COPY
Sth Floor, Birla Tower,

i * fatiyemciey
25 Barakhnmba Road,
New Delhi 110001 ﬁ’ S

of BIL with KPIT] inta K_F]'l Engineering Limited *KEL)
Dear Sirs ! Madams,

KPIT Technologies Limited (bercinafter referred to as “KPIT™) and Birlasoft (India) Limited
(hereinafter referred to as *BIL") (hereinafter KPIT and BIL both referred to as ‘Clients® or the
‘Companics’) have appointed S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP (hereinafter referred to as “SRBC”, ‘we',
‘our’, or *us’) 1o recommend
1. fair share exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL with KPIT
2. fair entitlement ratio of equity shares for the proposed demerger of the Engincering
division of KPIT (*Engineering Division”) into KPIT Engineering Limited ("KEL') post
merger of BIL with KPIT.

SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

The equity shares of KPIT is listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange. It
has two busingss divisions: IT and Engineering,

Under IT division, KPIT provides the enterprise resource planning business of Oracle and SAP,
digital business (as comptised under digital technology strategic business unit) along with
infrastructure management services and extended produet lifeeyele management business.
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S.R. Bariipoi & Co. LLP

Chartersd Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

Under Engineering division, KPIT offers solutions of electronic or mechanical engineering and
usage of this data for diagnostics, maintenance and tracking of assets and related connectivity
solutions including data and analytics bevond embedded or mechanical engincering and their
connectivity and integration with backend IT systems and platforms.

BILis engaged in the business of providing information technology services, BIL was founded in
1993 and is headquartered in Noida, India. BIL only has I'T business. The equity shares of BIL
are not listed on any stock exchange.

KEL is a recently incorporated company (incorporated on 8 January 2018) and does not have any
business operation as of now. The equity shares of KEL are not listed on any stock exchange.

We understand that the management of KPIT and BIL (*Management’) are contemplating an
amalgamation of BIL with KPIT, post which the Engineering Division of KPIT shall be demerged
into KEL (*the Transaction”) through a scheme of arangement pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Scheme).

For the aforesaid purpose, KPIT and BIL have appointed SRBC to submit & valuation report
recommending
I, afair share exchange ratio. for issue of KPIT s equity shares to the shareholders of BIL
2. a fair entitlement ratio, for issuc of equity shares of KEL 1o the shareholders of KPIT for
demerging the Engineering Division of KPIT into KEL

This report is our deliverable for the above engagement,
This report is subject to the scope, assumplions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers detailed

hereinafter. As such, the report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the
relevant documents referred to therein.
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S.R.Batusoir & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity sharcs of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with this exercise, we have used the following information received from the
Management and / or gathered from public domain:
s With respect to KPIT
o Consolidated aydited financial statements upto 31 March 2017
o Sharcholding details of KPIT including details of Employee Stock Options
outstanding as at 31 December 2017
o Unaudited consolidated financial statement for the nine months period ended
31 December 2017
o Quarterly Profit & Loss statement for last eight quarters ended upto 31
December 2017
o Assets and liabilities of Engineering Division
*  With respect 1o BIL
o Consolidated audited financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2016,
31 March 2017 and six months ended 30 September 2017
o Consolidated unaudited balance sheet as at 31 March 2015
o Shareholding details of BIL including details of Employee Stock Options
oulstanding
o Consolidated quarterly unaudited Profit and Loss statement (including
information about one time expenses and exceptional items) from Q1FY17 to
Q2FY18 excluding financials for a particular client account that is not now
being serviced by BIL.
o Revenue numbers for FY14, FY15, FY16, FY17 and HIFY18 excluding
revenue from a particular client account that is not now being serviced by BIL.
o Details of consideration paid (in USD) for acquisition of balance stake in BIL's
LIS subsidiary
*  With respect to KEL
o Unaudited balance sheet of KEL as of 23 January 2018
= Drafi Scheme of Arrangement

Besides the above listing, there may be other information provided by the Management which
may not have been perused by us in any detail, if not considered relevant for our defined scope.

During the discussions with Management, we have also obtained explanations and information
considered reasonably necessary for our exercise. The Management of KPIT and BIL have been
provided with the opportunity to review the draft report (without value recommendations) as part
of our standard practice to make sure that factual inaccuracy / omissions are avoided in our final
report,
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S.R. Barusoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

PROCEDURES ADOPTED

o Discussions with the management for understanding the business and fundamental factors
that affect the carning-generating capability of the Companies.

= Requested and received financial and qualitative information on both the Companies,

» Within the irmmework of valuauon approaches and SEB] guidelines. finalizing valuation
methods for valuing the Companies

¢ ldentified sultable comparable companies

* Amived valuation of the Companies using methods considered appropriate.
Determined fair share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of BIL with KPIT.
Determined the fuir entitlement ratio in discussions with the Management, for issue of

equity shares of KEL to the sharcholders of KPIT for demerging the Engineering Division
of KPIT into KEL

67



S.R. Barusoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engincering division of KPIT

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND
DISCLAIMERS

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas of our
regular practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance, accounting / tax due
diligence, consulling ar tax related services that may otherwisc be provided by us or our affiliates.

The recommendation contained herein is not intended to represent value at any time other than
valuation date of 29 January 201% (*Valuation Date’).

This report, its contents and the results herein (i) are specific to the purpose of valuation agreed
as per the terms of our Engagement Letter; (ii) the Valuation Date and (iii) are based on the data
detailed in the section — Sources of Information. A valuation of this nature is necessarily based on
the prevailing stock market, financial, economic and other condition in general and indusiry trends
in particular as in effect on, and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof. Events
occurting after this date may affect this report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we
do not assume any obligation (o update, revise or reaffirm this report,

The recommendation(s) rendered in this report only represent our recommendation(s) based upon
information furnished by the Companies (or their represemtatives) and publicly available
information and the said recommendation(s) shall be considered to be in the nature of non-binding
advice, In addition, we express no opinion or recommendation as to how the sharcholders of the
Companies should vote at any shareholders’ meeting(s) to be held in connection with the
Transaction.

In accordance with our terms of our engagement and in accordance with the customary approach
adopted in valuation ex¢rcises, we have not audited, reviewed or otherwise investigated the
financial information provided to us. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion or offer any form
of assurance regarding the truth and fairness of the finaneial position as indicated in the financial
statements. Also, with respect to explanations and information sought from the Companies, we
have been given to understand by the Companies that they have not omitted any relevant and
material factors and that they have checked the relevance or materiality of any specific information
io the present exercise with us in case of any doubt. Our conclusions are based on the assumptions
and information given on behalf of the Companies,

The report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations applicable
in all its areas of operations unless otherwise stated, and that the Companics will be managed in a
competent and respensible manner. Further, except as specifically stated to the contrary, this
valuation report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal
title and compliance with local laws, and litigation and other contingent liabilities that are not
disclosed in the audited financial statements of the Companies.

This report does not look into the business! commercial reasons behind the Transaction nor the
likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, it does not address the relative merits of the
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S.R.BatLiBo1 & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or are available. This report is restricied to
caleulntion of fairexchange ratio only.

We owe responsibility to only the Board of Directors of the Companies who have appointed us
under the terms of our engagement letters and nobody else, We do not accept any liability (o any
third party in relation to the issue of this report. The fee for the Engagement is not contingent upon
the results reported.

This valuation report is subject 1o the laws of [ndia.
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S.R. Batusoi & Co. LLP

Chariered Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES
1. KPIT Technologics Limited (KPIT)

KPIT Technologies Limited (*KPIT") is listed on National Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock
Exchange. It has two business divisions: IT and Engincering.

Under IT division, KPIT provides the enterprise resource planning business of Oracle and SAP,
digital business (as comprised under digital technology strategic business unit) along with
infrastructure management services and extended product lifecyele mansgement business.

Under Engineering division, KPIT offers solutions of electronic or mechanical engineering and
usage of this data for diagnostics, maintenance and tracking of assets and related connectivity
solutions including data and analytics beyond e¢mbedded or mechanical engineering and their
connectivity and imegration with backend IT systems and platforms.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, KPIT reported consolidated revenues from operation of INE
33.234 mn and Profit After Tax (PAT) of INR 2,385 mn.

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of KPIT as at 31 December 2017 consists af
19.74.98,742 equity shares of face value of INR 2 each fully paid up, The shareholding pattern
of KPIT as on 3] December 2017 is as follows:

Sharcholder Number of Y% of
= _ shares sharcholding
Promoters 3. 7391122 19%
Non Promoters 15.16.22,640 1%
Emplovee Trust 84,584,980 4%
Total 19,74,98,742 100%
Source: BSE filings

KPIT has outstanding employee stock options under its existing stock option schemes, pursuant
to which the Fmplovee Welfare Trust holds 84,84 980 equity shares of Re 2 each as on December
31,2017,

2. Birlasoft (India) Limited
Birlasoft (India) Limited ("BIL") provides is engaged in the business of providing information

technology services. BIL was founded in 1995 and is headquartered in Noida, India. BIL only has
[T business. The equity shares of BIL are not listed on any stock exchange.

The issued and subscribed equity share eapital of BIL as at 30 September 2017 is INR 314 mn
T consisting of 31,354,800 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up. The
mﬂlﬂ:ﬂld}ng pattern of BIL as a1 31 December 2017 is os follows:

'4'3' = [
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S.R. Batusoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange mtio of equity shares {or the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair enritlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger

of Engineering division of KPIT
Sharcholder Number of % of
shares sharcholding
Promoters 3,13.54.800 100%, |
- Mational Engineering Industries Limited 2,92 40,000 93%
- Central India Industrics Limited 21,14.800 T%
Total | 31354800 10%%

Sonwrce: Munagement

In addition, BIL has issued 1,496,885 stock options to its employees that are owtstanding (ie

vested and exercisable or unvested),

3. KPIT Engineering Limited

KEL is a recently incorporated company (incorporated on 8 January 2018) and does not have any
business operation as of now. The equity shares of KEL are not listed on any stock exchange,

The issued and subscribed equity share capital of KEL is INR 1.0 mn consisting of 100,000 equity
shares of face value of INR 10 each fully paid up. The sharcholding pattern of KEL is as follows;

Shareholders Number of % of
shares “shareholding
KPIT Technologies Limited (through Mr. 99,904 00.994%;
Kishor Patil)
Mr. Chinmay Shashishekhar Pandit | 0,001 %
Mr. Sunil Shnkant Phansalkar 1 0.001%
Mr. Anup Vitthal Sable 1 0.001%
Mr. Shashishekhar Balkrishna Pandit 1 0.001%
Mr. Sachin Dattatrays Tikekar | 0.001%
Mr. Anil Kashinath Patwardhan | 001 %
Tatal 100,000 100.000%

Sonrce: Management of KPIT

We understand that the sharcholders as mentioned aboye are holding equity shares in KEL as
nominee of KPIT. We have been informed that the existing equity shares of KEL as mentioned
above will be cancelled pursuant 1o the Scheme,

The Management has informed us that there would not be any capital variation in the Companies
till the Transaction becomes effective
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S.R.Batuisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

APPROACH - BASIS OF AMALGAMATION

Arriving at the fair share exchange ratio for the proposed amalgamation of BIL with KPIT would
require determining the fair value of the equity shares of KPIT in terms of the fair value of the
equity shares of BIL. These values are to be determined independently but on a relative basis, and
without considering the current Transaction.

For the proposed amalgamation, we have considered the following commonly used and accepted
methods for determining the fair exchange ratio, 1o the extent relevant and applicable:

1. Market Price method (Market approach)

2. Comparable Companies” Multiples method / Guideline Company method (Income approach)
3. Discounted Cash Flows method (Income approach)

4. Net Asset Value method (Asset approach)

The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which the
valuation is done. Although different values may exist for different purposes, it cannot be oo
strongly emphasized that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one purpose. Our choice of
methodology of valuation has been arrived at using internationally accepted valuation approaches
adopted for transactions of a similar nature and our reasonable judgment, in an independent and
bona fide manner based on our previous experience of assignments of a similar nature.

Market Price Method

The value of an equity share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered as the value
of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares being
regularly and freely traded in. subject to the element of speculative support that may be inbuilt in
the value of the shares. But there could be situations where the value of the share as quoted on the
stock market would not be regarded as a proper index of the fair value of the share especially
where the market values are fluctuating in a volatile capital market. Further, in the case of a
merger, where there is a question of evaluating the shares of one company against those of another,
the volume of transactions and the number of shares available for trading on the stock exchange
over a reasonable period would have to be of a comparable standard.

For determining the prices of shares of KPIT, we have considered SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated
March 23, 2017 and SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, which
prescribes using Market prices being higher of the following:

(a) The average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average price of the
related equity shares quoted on the recognised stock exchange during the twenty six weeks
preceding the relevant date; or

(b) The average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average prices of the

related equity shares quoted on a recognised stock exchange during the two weeks
preceding the relevant date,
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Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

Considering the above mentioned preseription, we arrived at a value of INR 202 per equity share
for KPIT.

Further, since BIL is not listed on any recognized exchange, we have not considered the Market
price method for the valuation of BIL.

Comparable Companies” Multiple (CCM) / Guideline Company method

Under this method, value of the equity shares of a company is arrived at by applying a suitable
multiple (derived from valuations of comparable companies , as manifest through stock market
valuations of listed companies) to the income of the Company. This valuation is based on the
principle that market valuations, taking place between informed buvers and informed sellers,
incorporate all factors relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need o be chosen carefully and
adjusted for differences between the circumstances. This method is categorized both under market
approach (as it derives the multiples from the stock market) and under income approach (as it is
based on applving a capitalization factor (or multiple) to the income of the Company).

Different companies use different depreciation methods which can inflate or deflate its eamings.
On a similar note. high levels of debt will enable a company to drive up the Eamings per Share,
however it increase the risk of the company due to high leverage. Therefore, the carnings of the
company can be impacted due to the level of leverage and usage of different depreciation method.
Since Enterprise Value (EV)Eamings Before Interest. Tax, Depreciation & Amoritsation
(EBITDA) multiple is not impacted due to differences in depreciation policy or dug to the level
of leverage, we have considered it as an appropriate multiple for valuation of the Companies.

We identified listed companies that are comparable to BIL in terms of business profile and growth
and have considered their EV/EBITDA multiple to compute the enterprise value of BIL. We have
considered the sustainable EBITDA of BIL (adjusted for one time expenses, exceptional items
and excluding EBITDA from a particular client account that is not now being serviced by BIL as
provided to us by the management) to compute the enterprise value of BIL under CCM method.

Since KPIT is a listed company, we have computed average daily EV/EBITDA multiple implied
from the daily Market Capitlization for KPIT during the period 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017,
The average implied multiple is then multiplied by EBITDA for the twelve months ended 31
December 2017 for KPIT to armrive at enterprise value of KPIT,

To arrive at the 1otal value available to the equity sharcholders of cach of the Companies, the
enterprise values arrived above under the CCM method for the Companies are adjusted for, inter-
alia, the value of loans, cash, surplus / non-operating assets/liabilities as deemed appropriate for
the purpose of our valuation analysis.

The total value for cquity sharcholders is then divided by the number of equity shares of the
spective companies in order to work out the value per equity share of the Companies.
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Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitiement ratio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

Under CCM method, we arrived at a value of INR 492 per equity share of BIL and INR 184 per
equity share of KPIT.

Discounted Cash Flows (DCF) Method

Under the DCF method, the projected tree cash flows to the firm are discounted at the weighted
average cosl of capital. The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows is the value of
the firm.

We were not provided with the financial projections of the Companies, Hence. this method has
not been used.

Net Asset Value (NAV) Meth odology

The asset based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlving net assets of the
business, either on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis. This
valuation approach is mainly used in case where the firm is to be liquidated i.e. it does not meet
the “going concem” criteria or in case where the assets base dominate earnings capability.

We have computed the Net Asset Value of cquity shares of the Companies. The total value for
equity shareholders is then divided by the estimated total number of equity shares of the respective
companies as on the appointed date of the proposed merger in order to work out the value per
equity share of the Companies, We arrived at a value of INR 93 per equity share for KPIT and
INR 156 per equity share for BIL,

Relative Weights to different methods

Considering that KPIT is well traded and considering SEBI Circular No. CFDVDIL3/CIR/2017/21
dated March 10, 2017, Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated March 23, 2017 and SEBI
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, we have given 100% weight to the
value of equity share of KPIT as computed under Market Price method,

We have given 100% weight to the equity value of BIL as computed using CCM method as the
value computed under NAV method does not capture the eaming capacity of the business and
hence NAV would not be representative of fair value.

Conclusion for Amalgamation

The fair share exchange ratio has been amived at on the basis of a relative equity valuation of the
Companies for the proposed amalgamation based on the various methodologies explained herein
ﬁwsm ¢ sarlicr. The values as per different methods is presented below
:'?!I' LA 5 "‘I

il

74
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Recommendation of fair exchange ratio of equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of BIL
with KPIT and fair entitlement mtio for issue of equity shares of KEL for the proposed demerger
of Engineering division of KPIT

KEIT (A) BIL (B)

Valuation Approach Value pe Vi Weight

J alue per Weight __n_[:m:_ per r

Share (INR) Share (INR)

Asset Approach 1 93 0% 136 0%
Income Approach 184 % 492 100%
Market Approach 202 100%% NA MNA
Relative Value per Share 202 492
Exchange Ratio (rounded off) (B/A) 2.44

In the light of the above, and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as
discussed and outlined hereinabove, we consider that the fair exchange ratio is as represented
below:

Fair share exchange ratio: 22 equity shares of KPIT of INR 2 each fully paid up for every 9 equity
shiares of BIL of INR 10 each fully paid up.

Approach — Basis of Demerger

We understand that, as part of the Scheme, post the merger of BIL into KPIT, the Engineering
Division of KPIT is proposed to be demerged into KEL. KPIT has identified all the assets and
liabilities of the Engineering Division (hereinafier referred 1o as “the Demerged Undertakings'),
which are to be taken over by and transferred to KEL. Once the Scheme is implemented, afl the
sharcholders of KPIT {including the sharcholders of BIL being allotted shares pursuant 1o the
merger with KPIT) would also become the shareholders of KEL, and their sharcholding in KEL
would mirror their sharcholding in KPIT.

The efTect of the demerger is that each sharcholder of KPIT {(post merger of BIL) becomes the
owner of shares in two companies instead of one. No sharcholder is, under the Scheme, required
to dispose off any part of his shareholding either to any of the other shareholders or in the market
or otherwise. The Scheme does not envisage the dilution of the holding of any one or more
sharcholders as a result of the operation of the Scheme. Post Demerger, the percentage holding of
a sharcholder in KEL and in KPIT would remain unchanged from the proportion of capital held
by such sharcholder (post merger of BIL) in KPIT,

Considening the above, any entitlement ratio can be considered for the above demerger as the
proportionate sharcholding of any shareholder would not vary, The management has proposed o
share entitlement mtio of 1 equity share of KEL of INR. 10/- each fully paid up for, not in exchange
- of, every| equity share of KPIT (post merger of BIL) of INR 2 cach fully paid up.
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Conclusion for Demerger

In the light of the above and on o consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances, we
recommend a ratio of 1 equity share of KEL of INR 10/~ each fully paid up for, not in exchange
of, every | equity share of KPIT (post merger of BIL) of INR 2 each fully paid up,

It should be noted that we have examined the fair and equitable share exchange ratio / entitlement
ratio for the proposed amalgamation / demerger and not examined any other mattér including
economic rationale for the proposed amalgamalion per s¢ or accounting. legal or tax matters
invelved in the proposed transaction.

Respectfully submitted,

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership No.:49365

Place: Mumbai
Diate: 29 January 2018
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Equirus
Equirus Capital Private Limited
12" Floor, C Wing, Marathon Futurex,
N. M. Joshi Marg, Lower Parel,
Mumbai - 400 013
Tel: +91-22- 4332-0600
Fax: +91-22-4332-0601

STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL
January 29, 2018

The Audit Committee

KPIT Technologies Limited

Plot no. 35 & 36,

Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park Phase I, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pune 411057

And

The Board of Direciors CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

KPIT Technologies Limited

Plot no. 35 & 36, m’)&my\aﬁmﬁ
Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park Phase I, MIDC,

Hinjawadi, Pune 411057
Dear Sirs,

We refer to the engagement letter dated January 23, 2018 (“Engagement Letter”) whereby KPIT
Technologies Limited (“Company™) has requested Equirus Capital private Limited (“Equirus™), a
SEBI registered merchant banker, 1o provide a faimess opinion to the Company based on the
valuation report dated January 29, 2018 (“Valuation Report™) issued by S, R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
(“Valuer™) for the fair exchange ratio of the equity shares for the proposed amalgamation of Birlasoft
{India) Limited (*Transferor”™) with the Company pursuant to a scheme of arrangement under the
provisions of Section 230 to Section 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(“Proposcd Scheme™), We understand that the Proposed Scheme simultaneously contemplates a
demerger of the Engineering division of the Company, post the amalgamation, inte a new company,
We further understand that the Proposed Scheme will be considered by the Audit Committee and the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Background of the Company

The Company is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 and having
its registered office at Plot no. 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park Phase 1, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune
411057, The Company has two business divisions (i) the ERP business of Oracle and SAP and the
digital business along with IMS and EPLM business; and (ii) engincering business which includes
solutions of electranic or mechanical engineering and usage of this data for diagnostics, maintenance
and tracking of assets and related connectivity solutions including data and analytics beyond
embedded or mechanical engineering and their connectivity and integration with backend IT systems
and platforms is engaged in the business of steel manufacturing. The equity shares of the Company
are listed on BSE Limited and the National Siock Exchange of India Limited (referred to as “BSE"
and “NSE”, respectively, and the together as “Stoek Exchanges™).

SEBI Reglstration No.: Category | Merchant Banker INMOODO1 1 286; CIN: UaS910MH200TPTCI72599
Website; www equirus.com | Emaif: contact i equins.com
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Equirus Capital Private Limited
12® Floor, C Wing, Marathon Futurex,
M, M, Jashi Marg, Lower Parel,

Mumbai - 400 013

Tel: +91-22- 4332-D600

Fitx: +91-22-4332-0601

Background of the Transferor

The Transferar is a public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 195 and having its
registered office st H-9, Sector 63, Noida — 201 306, The Transferor is primarily engaged in the
business of engaged in the business of providing intormation technology services,

Purpose of this certificate

The Company has appointed the Valuer to carry out a fair valuation of the Company and the
Transferor and recommend a fair ratio of allotment of equity shares of the Company to the equity
sharcholders of the Transferor on the proposed amalgamation of the Transferor into to the Company
and fair entitlement ratio of equity shares for the proposed demerger of the engineering division of the
Company into the new company post amalgamation of the Transferor with the Company
{*“Valuation™). In terms of the Engagement Letter, the Company has requested us to examine the
Valuation Report issued by the Valver and such other information provided by the Company and issue
our independent opinion as o the fairmess of the Valuation (“Fairness Opinion™) in terms of the
requirements of SEBI circular no. CIR/CFIVCMD/15/2015 dated Movember 30, 2015, SEBI
gircular no. CTR/DTL3I/C IR/201772 | dated March 10, 2017 and SEBI circular no,
CFLYDIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 3, 2018, as applicable,

Source of information
For the said examination and for arriving at the opinion set forth below, we have received:

I. Annual aceounts of the Company and Transferor for the last three financial years;

2. Latest interim financial statements of the Transferor and the Company;

3, Valuation Report issued by the Valuer; and

4. Drafi of the Proposed Scheme of arrangement between the Transferor and the Company.

We have also abtained necessary explanations and information, which we believed were relevant
to the present exercise, from the representatives of the Company.

Coneclusion

Based on the facts, information and explanations relevant in the present case, our examination of
the Valuation Report and our independent analysis and evaluation of such information and
subject to the scope limitations as mentioned herein below and to the best of our knowledge
and belief we are of the opinion that the share entitlement ratio of equity shares of the Company
to be issued to the sharehalders of the Transferor on account of amalgamation pursuant to the
Praposed Scheme, is fair,

As per the Proposed Scheme, Valvation Report and the representations made to us by the
Company, we understand that the demerger of the Engineering division of the Company as per the
Proposed Scheme does not envisage the dilution of the holding of any one or more shareholders.
The Valuation Report assumes that any entitlement ratio can be considered for the above
demerger as the proportionate sharcholding of any sharcholder would not vary. Basis the

SEBI Registration Neot Catepory [ Merchont Bankes INMOG0011286; CIN: U639 10MIZOOTETCT 72599
Website: www,cquirus.com | Email: contactifoquinis.com
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Equirus Capital Private Limited
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Mumbai - 400 013
Tel: +91-23- 43320600
Fax: +91-22-4332-0601

aforementioned, the entitlement ratio for issue of equity shares of the new company for the
proposed demerger of Engineering division of the Company, is fair.

Scope Limitations

We have assumed and relied wpon, without independent verification, the accuracy and
completeness of all information that was publicly available or provided or otherwise made
available to us by the Company for the purposes of this Faimess Opinion.

We express no opinion and accordingly accept no responsibility with respect to or for such
information, or the assumptions on which it is based.

We have not assumed any abligation to conduct, nor have we conducted any physical inspection
or title verification of the properties or facilities of Company and neither express any opinion
with respect thereto nor accept any responsibility therefore.

We have not made any independent valuation or appraisal of the assets or liabilities of
Company, nor have we been furnished with any such appraisals.

We have not reviewed any internal management information statements or any non public
reports, and instead, with your consent. have relied upon information that was publicly available
or provided or otherwise made available to us by Company for the purposes of this Fairness
Opinion,

We are not experts in the evaluation of litigation or other actual or threatened claims and
accordingly we have not evaluated any litigation or other actual or threatened claims,

We have assumed that the Proposed Scheme will be approved by regulatory authorities and that
the Proposed Scheme will be consummated substantially in accordance with the terms set forth
in the Proposed Scheme.

We have assumed that there are no other contingent liabilities or circumstances that could
materially affect the business or financial prospects of Company. other than those disclosed in
the information provided or considered in the Proposed Scheme.

We understand that the management of Company and, during our discussion with them, would
have drawn our attention to all such information and matters which may have an impagt on our
analysis and opinion.

We have assumed that in the course of obtaining necessary regulatory or other consents or
approval for the Proposed Scheme, no restrictions will be imposed or there will be no delays
that will have a material adverse effect on the benefits of the Proposed Scheme that may have
been contemplated.

Our opinion is necessarily based on financial, economic, market and other conditions as they
currently exist and on the information made available to us as of the date hereof. It should be
understood that although subsequent developments may affect this opinion, we do not have an
obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this opinion. In arriving at our opinion, we were not
authorized to solicit, and did not salicit, interest from any party with respect to the acquisition,
business combination or other extraordinary transaction involving Company or any of its assets,
nor did we negotiate with any other party in this regard,

In the ordinary course of business, Equirus is engaged in securitics trading, securities brokerage
and investment activities, as well as providing investment banking and investment advisory
services, by itself or through its affiliates. In the ordinary course of its trading, brokerage and
financing activities, any member of the Equirus proup may at any time hold long or short
positions, and may trade or otherwise effect transactions, for its own account or the accounts of

SEBI Registration No.: Caiegory | Merchont Banker INMOOM 1286 CIN: U659 10MH2Z00TPTC 172399
Website: www equinss.comn - Email: contactequines. com
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Tel: +91-22- 43320600

Fax: +91-22-4332-0601

customers, in debt or equity securities or loans of any company that may be involved in the
Proposed Scheme.

s We express no opinion whatever and make no recommendation at all as to Company’s
underlying decision to effect the Proposed Scheme or a3 to how the holders of equity shares or
secured of unsecured creditons of Company should vote ai their réspective meetings hield (o
connection with the Proposed Scheme. We do not express and should not be deemed to have
expressed any views on any other terms of the Proposed Scheme. We also express no opinion
and accordingly accept no responsibility for or as to the price at which the equity shares of
Company will trade following the announcement of the Proposed Scheme or as to the financial
performance of Company following the consummation of the Propoesed Scheme.

. This Fairness Opinion is addressed to the Audit Commintee and the Board of Directors of the
Company solely for the purpose of providing them with an independent opinion on the faimess
of the Valuation as determined by the Valuer, The Fairness Opinion shall not be disclosed or
referred to publicly or to any other third party, other than as required by Indian law (in which
case you would provide us a prior wrillen intimation) without our prior written consent. The
Faimess Opinion should be read in totality and not in parts. Further this Fairmess Opinion
should not be used or quoted for any purpose. If this Fairness Opinion is used by any person
other than to whom it is addressed or for any purpose other than the purpose stated hereinabove,
then we will not be liable for any consequences thercof, Neither this Faimess Opinion nor its
contents may be réferred to or quoted by any third party, in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or any other agreement or
documents given to third parties.

Yours truly,
For Equirus Capital Private Limited
O
: Munish Apggarwal
Diirector

SEBI Registration No.: Catepory | Merchant Banker INMOO011286; CIN: UbS2H0ME2ODTPTCI 72559
Website: wows.egiims.com | Email: contactwequirus.com
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EXPE
DCS/IAMAL/AJIR3THM163/2018-19 June 04, 2018

The Company Secretary

KPIT Technciogies Limited

35 & 36, Phase - 1, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park,
MIDC, Hinjewadi, Pune, Maharashtra-411057

Sir,

Sub: Observation letter regarding the Draft Scheme of Arrangement among KPIT Technologies
Limited, Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited.

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Arrangement among KPIT Technologies Limited, Birlasoft (India)
Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited and their respective shareholders and Creditors filed as
required under SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI vide its letter
dated June 01, 2018, has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of
arrangement:

- “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter
is displayed on the websites of the listed company.”

« “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars.”

+ “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the cbservations to the notice of NCLT."

- %t is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by
SEBl/stock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its comments / observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to
the Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

. To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various
documents are disserninated on their (company) website.
To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

[n light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-fisting/continuous listing requirements within the
provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company o file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.
Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017.

Kindly note that as required under Regulaton 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six
months from the date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

BSE Limited (Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd)
Registered Office : Floor 25, ] Towers, Dalal Slreet, Mumbai 400
T. 491 32 2272 1234/33| E: corp.comm@bseindia.com | wwiybsgl
Corporate ldentity Number, 1 L67 I20MH2005PL e
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The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’
information submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / mi
any contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange
Guidefines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preciude the Company from complying with any
other requirements.

Yours faithfully,

Nitin Pojari
Sr. Manager
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) NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE -
OF INDIA LIMITED U
Ref: NSE/LIST/15237 June 07, 2018
The Company Secretary

KPIT Technologies Limited
35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park,
Phase-1, MIDC, Hinjawadi,
Pune - 411057
Kind Attn.: Ms. Sneha Padve

Dear Madam,

Sub: Observation Letter for Composite scheme of arrangement among Birlasoft (India)
Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited, and their
shareholders and creditors.

We are in receipt of the draft Composite Scheme of Arrangement among Birlasoft (India)
Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited, and their
shareholders and creditors, filed by KPIT Technologies Limited vide application dated
February 14, 2018.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/15237 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (‘Circular’), SEBI vide
letter dated June 01, 2018, has given following comments:

a. The Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the
Company, after filing the scheme with the stock exchange, from the receipt of this
letter is displayed on the website of the listed company.

b. The Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars.

c. The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/ Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT) and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

d. It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/
stock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation
as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its
comments/observations/ representations.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including
undertaking given in terms of regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we hereby
convey our “No-objection” in terms of regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, so
as to enable the Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

The listing of KPIT Engineering Limited is pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be
subject to SEBI approval & Company satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about KPIT
Engineering Limited and its group companies in line withotherthsekostme requirements

Signer: Divya Babu Poojari
Date: Thu, Jun 7, 2018 19:55:13 IST
. Location; NSE .
Regd. Office: Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Cor NSEE), Mumbai 400 051, India

CIN: U67120MH1992PLC069769 Tel: +91 22 26598235/36, 26598346, 26598459/26598458 Web site: www.nseindia.com
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Continuation Sheet

applicable for public issues with NSE for making the same available to the public
through website of the companies.

2. Exchange eligibility criteria at the time of listing on the Exchange pursuant to Scheme
of Arrangement.

3. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all the information about
KPIT Engineering Limited in line with the details required as per SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017. The advertisement should draw a
specific reference to the aforesaid Information Memorandum available on the website
of the company as well as NSE.

4. To disclose all the material information about KPIT Engineering Limited to NSE on
the continuous basis so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements, if
any, specified in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for disclosures about the
subsidiaries.

5. The following provision shall be incorporated in the scheme:

(@) “The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories
system till listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

(b) “There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern or control in KPIT
Engineering Limited between the record date and the listing which may affect the
status of this approval”.

(c) “KPIT Engineering Limited will not issue/ reissue any shares, not covered under
the Draft Scheme of arrangement.”

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations,
Guidelines / Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from June 07, 2018, within
which the scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Divya Poojari
Sr. Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the
following URL http://www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/further_issues.htm

2 This Document is Digitally Signed

Date: Thu, Jun 7, 2018 19:55:13 IST
" Location: NSE .
Regd. Office: Exchange Plaza, Plot No.C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Cor, NSEE), Mumbai 400 051, India

CIN: U67120MH1992PLC069769 Tel: +91 22 26598235/36, 26598346, 26598459/26598458 Web site: www.nseindia.com
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March 14, 2018

Ta,

The General Manager,

Department of Corporate Services,
Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor

Plot No. C/1, G-Block

Bandra-Kurla Complex

Bandra (East)

Mumbai - 400 051.

Dear Sir/ Madam,

SUB: Application for grant of approval under Regulation 37 of Securities and Exchange
Board of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

REF: Complaint report in relation to Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst KPIT
Technologies Limited (“the Company”), Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT
Engineering Limited and their respective Shareholders (“Scheme™)

This is in reference to our application under Regulation 37 of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obfligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed
Scheme,

Please find attached herewith details of Complaints received by the Company on the draft
Scheme during 21 days period from the date of filing of draft Scheme with National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (February 14, 2018) and hosting the draft Scheme by National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (February 20, 2018). The Company has hosted the Draft S5cheme along
with requite documents on its website.

Kindly take the same on record and provide us necessary “Mo objection™ at the eartiest to
enable us to file the Scheme with the National Company Law Tribunal.

Thanking you,
Youurs faithfully,

For and on behalf of KPIT Technologies Limited

w@h{,ﬂ»‘,‘qjﬁm

Authorised Signatory

KPIT Technologies Limited
Corporate and Registered Office: 35 & 38, Rajiv Gandhd infotech Park. Phase 1, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune 411057, India
T: +97 20 6652 S000 [ F+91 20 6652 5001 | kpitin@kpitoom | wew kpit.com | CIN: LT2200PN 1990PLCDG9554
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Complaints Report
Part A
Sr. Particulars Humber
Ha.
1. | Number of complaints received directly Nil
2. | Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange il
3. | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Hil
4. | Number of complaints resolved Mot applicable
3. | Humber of complaints pending Het applicable
Part B
sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status
Ho. {Resolved/Pending)
Mot applicable "
Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of KPIT Technologies Limited

7‘0@1& '{"'f/‘ﬂ-bm ~a

Authorised Signatory
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ORT AD D BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED AT ITS
MEETING HELD ON JANUARY 29, 7018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

1. BACKGROUMND

1.1. The Board of Directors (“Board”) of KPIT Technologies Limited (“Demerged Company/
Transferee Company”) at its meeting held on January 29, 2018 have approved the
compasite scheme of arrangement amongst the Transferee Company / Demerged
Company, Birlasoft (India) Limited (“Transferor Company”) and KPIT Engineering
Limited (*Resulting Company”} and their respective shareholders (“Scheme™),

1.2, Provisions of Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Directors to
adept 2 report explaining the effect of the arrangement on each class of shareholders,
key managerial personnel (“KMPs”}, promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the
Transferee Company / Demerged Company laying out in particular the share
entitlement ratio and specifying any special valuation difficulties and the same is
required to be circulated as part of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the

purpose of approving the Scheme.

1.3. This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of

Section 232(2)ic) of the Companies Act, 2013,

L4, Under the Scheme it is proposed to reorganize and reconstruct the companies as follows:

{a) the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and
issue of equity shares of the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company, as per the share exchange ratio determined by the B.5.R. &
Co., LLP, (“Independent Chartered Accountant”) as consideration:

(b} immediately upon implementation of (a) above, the Demerged Undertaking fas
defined in the Scheme) shall be demerged from the Lemerged Company into the
Resulting Company, on a going concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by
the Resulting Company to each shareholder of the Demerged Company; and

{c} the reduction of the share capital of the Transferee Company in the manner set out
in the Scheme, and in accordance with Sections 230 to 232, and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013; and

{d) the reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company in the manner set out
in this Scheme, and in accordance with Sections 230 to 232, and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

1.5. The following documents were, inter alia, placed before the Board:

ie} Draft Scheme, duly initialted by the Company Secretary of the Transferse Company

{ Demerged Company for the purpose of identification;

KPIT Technologies Limited
Corporate and Registered Office: 35 & 36 Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase 1, MIDC Hinfawadd|,
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(f} Valuation report dated January 29, 2018 (“Valuation Report”) prepared by the
Independent Chartered Accountant describing the methodology adopted by them in
arriving at the share exchange ratio;

ig) Fairness opinion dated January 29, 2018 (“Fairness Opinion®) issued by Equirus
Capital (P) Limited, [Independent Category-I Merchant Banker] providing the
Fairness Opinion on the share exchange ratio as recommended by the Yaluation
Report;

{h} Certificate dated January 29, 2018, obtained from the statutory auditors of the
Transferee Company / Demerged Company viz. B.5.R & Co., LLF, Chartered
Accountants, on the accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme;

(i) Pricing certificate from the M/s. B.S.R & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, on the
accounting treatment prescribed in the Scheme, Statutory Auditor of the Transferee
Company as required under SEBI Circular dated March 10, 2017 on Scheme af
Arrangement as per Proviso of Regulation 70(1) {ii) (b) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; and

(i} Report of the Audit Committee of the Board dated January 29, 2018.

VALUATION REPORT | ENTITLEMENT RATIO | ISSUE OF SHARES PURSUANT TO THE
SCHEME

Valuers have approved the following share exchange / entitlement ratio for the issue
of shares in terms of the Scheme:

For merger of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company:

For every 22 equity shares of the Transferor Company held by a shareholder on the
Record Date 1 (as defined under the Scheme), such shareholder shall be entitled to
receive 9 fully paid up equity shares of Rupees Ten each of the Transferes Company.

Such equity shares of the Transferee Company shall be issued to those members whose
names appear in the register of members of the Transferar Company and whose names
appear as the respective beneficial owners of the equity shares of the Transferor
Company in the records of the depositories {or to such of their respective heirs,
execitors, administrators or other legal representatives or other successors in title as
may be recognized by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company) as on the
Record Date 1,

For the demerger and vesting of Engineering Business (as defined in the Scheme) to
the Resulting Company

For every 1 equity shares of the Demerged Company held by a shareholder on the Recard
Date 2 {as defined in the Scheme), such shareholder shall be entitled to receive 1 fully
paid up equity shares of Rupees Ten each of the Resulting Company.

Such equity shares of the Resulting Company shall be issued to thase members whase
names appear in the register of members of the Demerged Company and whose names
appear as the respective beneficial owners of the equity shares of the Demerged
Company In the records of the depositaries {or to such of their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representatives or other successors in title as
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2.3

1.4,

29

3.2,

3.3,

may be recognized by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company} as on the
Record Date 2,

The aforesaid share entitlement ratio is based on the Valuation Report and the Fairness
Opinion. The aforesaid Valuation Repart and Fairness Opinion have been duly considered
by the Board and have come to the conclusion that share entitlement ratio is fair and
reasonable.

The equity shares of the Transferes Company or the Resulting Company, as the case
may be, to be issued and allotted shall be subject to the memorandums of association
of the Transferee Company or the Resulting Company, as the case may be, shall rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing equity shares of the Transferee Company or
the Resulting Company, as the case may be, after the Effective Date including with
respect to dividend, bonus, right shares, voting rights and ather corporate benefits
attached thereto. The Resulting Company shall seek listing of the equity shares allotted
by 1t on the Stock Exchanges in terms of and in compliance of the SEBI Circular and
other applicable provisions as may be applicable.

No special valuation difficulties were reported.

Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and nen-promoter) of
the Transferee Company / Demerged Company

In consideration for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company, the shareholders of the Transferar Company will be issued shares of the
Transferee Company as per the share exchange ratio determined by the Independent
Chartered Accountant: Both the promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the
Transferor Company will receive equity shares in the Transfares Company.

Immediately upon implementation of amalgamation as mentioned in para 3.1 above,
and in censideration for the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme), the shareholders of the Demerged Company shall be issued shares of the
Resulting Company, in preportion to their shareholding in the Demerged Company. Both
the promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company.

Simultaneously with the Scheme, the promoters of the Company along with the
promoters of the Transferor Company are making an open offer for 26% stake in the
Company. Consequently, assuming full acceptance of the open offer, the shareholding
of the pre-scheme public shareholders in the Transferee Company / Demerged Company
will reduce by 34.69% post scheme.,

Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Transferee Company / Demerged Company

Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs pursuant to Amalgamation

The KMPs of, if any, of the Transferor Company shall become employees of the
Transferee Company on effectiveness of the Scheme,
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The KMPs forming part of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) shall
become employees of the Resulting Company on effectiveness of the Scheme.

Effect of the Scheme on the 5 uant to De r

Further none of the KMPs have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the
equity shares held by them, if any in the Transferee Company.

In the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will be of advantage and beneficial to the
Company, its shareholders and oth keholders and the terms thereof are fair and
reasonable,

Place: January 29,2018
Date: Mumbai
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Itis hereby certified that the draft scheme of arrangement involving KPIT Technologies Limited,
Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited does not, in any way violate, override or
limit the provisions of securities laws or requirements of the Stock Exchange(s) and the same s
in compliance with the applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and this cireular, including the following:

Compliance Report to be submitted along with the draft scheme

Sl. | Reference Particulars )
1 Regulations 17 to 27 of Corporate govemnance requirements
2 Regulation 11 of LODR Compliance with securities laws
Requirements of this circular
(a) | Para (INA)(2) Submission of documents to Stock Exchanges
{B) | Para {1)(a)(2) Conditions for schemes of arrangement involving
unlisted entities |
(e} | Para (1)(A){4) (a) submission of Valuation Report
{d) | Para (1)(A)(5) Auditors certificate regarding compliance with
Accounting Standards
(&) | Para(l){A)3) Provision of approval of public sharehalders
through e-vating J
/&P ﬁ.d-r'-"ﬁ- R
Sneha Padve I z
Company Secretary CEO & Managing Director

Certified that the transactions / accounting treatment provided in the draft scheme of arrangement
involving KPIT Technologies Limited, Birlasoft {india) Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited are in
compliance with all the Accounting Standards applicable to a listed entity,

ﬂ,ﬂ@wwciw

Anil Patwardhan
Chief Financial Officer

kihor pati

CEQ & Managing Director

KPIT Technalogies Limited
Corporate and Registered Office: 15 & 35 Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase 1, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune 411057, India
T: +97 20 6652 5000 | F: +91 20 6652 5001 | kpitingkplteom | www kplboom | CIN: LYZZ00PN1 8901059594
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Regd. Office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase |, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pune 411057, CIN : U74959PN2018PLE174192

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED AT ITS
MEETING HELD ON JANMUARY 29, 2018 EXPLAINING THE EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT OM EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONMEL
PROMOTERS AND NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS

1.2,

1.3,

1.4,

1.5.

BACKGROUND

. The Board of Directors (“Beard”) of KPIT Engineering Limited (“Resulting Company”)

at its meeting held on January 29, 2018 have approved the composite scheme of
arrangement amongst the Resulting Company, Birlasoft (India) Limited (“Transferor
Company”) and KPIT Technologies Limited (“Transferee Company/ Demerged
Company”| and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”).

Provisions of Section 232{2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Directors to
adopt a report explaining the effect of the arrangement on each class of shareholders,
key managerial personnel (“KMPs"), promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the
Resulting Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio and specifying any
special valuation difficulties and the same is required to be circulated as part of the
notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the purpose of approving the Scheme,

This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements
of Section 232{2)ic) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Under the Scheme it is proposed to reorganize and reconstruct the companies as follows:

(ajthe amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company and
issue of equity shares of the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the
Transferor Company, as per the share exchange ratio determined by 5.R. Batliboi
& Co., LLP, the (“Independent Chartered Accountant™) as consideration;

(b) immediately upon implementation of (a) above, the Demerged Undertaking (os
defined in the Scheme) shall be demerged from the Demerged Company into the
Resulting Company, on a going concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares
by the Resulting Company to each shareholder of the Demerged Company; and

(c) the reduction of the share capital of the Transferee Company in the manner set
aut in the Scheme, and in accordance with Sections 230 to 232, and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013; and

id) the reduction of the share capital of the Resulting Company in the manner set out

in this Scheme, and in accordance with Sections 230 to 232, and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The following documents were, inter alia, placed before the Board:

(a) Draft Scheme, duly initialled by the Mr. 5.B. (Ravi) Pandit, Director, of the
Resulting Company for the purpose of identification;
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.2

2.3.

2.4

KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Regd. Office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infatech Park, Phase |, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pun= 411057, CIN : U74999PH201BPLC174192

{b) Valuation report dated January 29, 2018 (“Valuation Report”) prepared by S.R.
Batliboi & Co. LLP, the Independent Chartered Accountant, describing the
methodology adopted by them in arriving at the share exchange ratio; and

ic] Fairness opinion dated January 29, 2018 (“Fairness Opinion”) prepared Equirus
Capital (P) Limited, [Independent Category-l Merchant Banker] providing the
Fairness Opinion on the share exchange ratio as recommended by the Valuation
Report.

VALUATION REPORT | ENTITLEMENT RATIO | ISSUE OF SHARES PURSUANT TO THE
SCHEME

Yaluers have approved the following share exchange / entitlement ratio for the issue
of shares in terms of the Scheme:

For the demerger and vesting of Engineering Business (as defined in the Scheme)
to the Resulting Company

For every 1 equity shares of the Demerged Company held by a shareholder on the
Record Date 2, such shareholder shall be entitled to receive 1 fully paid up equity
shares of Rupees Ten each of the Resulting Company.

Such equity shares of the Resulting Company shall be issued to those members whose
names appear in the register of members of the Demerged Company and whose names
appear as the respective beneficial owners of the equity shares of the Demerged
Company in the records of the depositories (or to such of their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representatives or other successors in title as
may be recognized by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company) as on the
Record Date 2.

The aferesaid share entitlement ratio is based on the Valuation Report and the
Fairness Opinion. The aforesaid Yaluation Report and Fairness Opinion have been duly
considered by the Board and have come to the conclusion that share entitlement ratio
is fair and reasonable.

The equity shares of the Resulting Company, to be issued and allotted shall be subject
to the memorandums of association of the Resulting Company shall rank parf passu in
all respects with the existing equity shares of or Resulting Company, after the
Effective Date including with respect to dividend, bonus, right shares, voting rights
and other corporate benefits attached thereto. The Resulting Company shall seek
listing of the equity shares allotted by it on the Stock Exchanges in terms of and n
compliance of the SEBI Circular and other applicable provisions as may be applicable.

Mo special valuation difficulties were reported.
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Regd, Office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase I, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pune 411057. CIN : UT4999PH2018PLC1 74192

3. Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter) of
the Resulting Company

3.1, In consideration for the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Schemej, the shareholders of the Demerged Company as on Record Date 2 shall be
issued shares of the Resulting Company, in proportion to their shareholding in the
Demerged Company. Both the prometer and non-promoter shareholders of the
Demerged Company will receive equity shares in the Resulting Company,

3.2. The entire pre-scheme share capital of the Resulting Company shall be cancelled,
pursuant to demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined under the Scheme)
from the Demerged Company into the Resulting Company.

4. Effect of the Scheme an the KMPs of the Resulting Company
The KMPs forming part of the Demerged Undertaking {as defined In the Scheme) of
the Demerged Company shall become employees of the Resulting Company on
effectiveness of the Scheme.

Further none of the KMPs have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the
equity shares held by them, if any in the Transferee Company / Resulting Company.

In the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will be of advantage and beneficial to the
Company, its shareholders and stakeholders and the terms thereof are fair and
reasonable.

ﬁ

Place: Mum

ate: January 29, 2018
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Cexemcros birlasoft
REPORT AD D BY B OF DIRECTORS OF BIR FT {INDIA] LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD
ON MONDAY, 29™ DAY OF JANUARY PLAINING EFFECT OF THE COMPOSITE

ARRANGEMENT ON EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND NON
PROMOTER EﬂﬁEEHDL'Dm

1.

1.1,

1.2

1.3,

1.4,

15,

BACKGROUND

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Birlasoft (India) Limited (“Company” or “Transferor Company™)
atits meeting held on 29 January 2018 has approved the composite scheme of arra ngement amongst
the Company, KPIT Technologles Limited ("Transferee Company/ Demerged Company”) and KPIT
Engineering Limited (“Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders (“Scheme"),

Section 232(2) (¢] of the Companies Act, 2013 requires the Directors to adopt a report explaining the
effect of the arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel ["KMPs™],
promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Transferor Company laying out in particular the
share exchange ratlo and specifying any special valuation difficulties and the same is required to be
circulated as part of the notice of the meeting(s) to be held for the purpose of approving the Schome,

This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of Section
232(2})(c) of the Companies Act, 2013,

Under the Scheme it is proposed to reorganize and reconstruct the companies as follows;

{a) the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferce Company and issuance of
equity shares of the Transferee Company to the shareholders of the Transferor Compa vy, @s per
the share exchange ratic determined by the Independent Chartered Accountant as
consideration;

1]

immediately upen Implementation of {a) above, the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the
Scheme) shall be demerged from the Demerged Company Into the Resulting Company, on a going
concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by the Resulting Company to each sharehalder
of the Demerged Company; and

(e} reduction of the share capital of the Transferee Company, held by the Transferor Company; and
{d} reduction of entire share capital of the Resulting Company, held by the Demerged Company.

The following documents were, inter alia, placed before the Board:
{a) Draft Scheme, duly initialed by the Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of
identification;

(b) Valuation report dated lanuary 29, 2018 ("Valuation Report”) prepared by 5. R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP, Chartered Accountants (Independent Chartered Accountant), describing the methodology
adopted by them in arriving at the share exchange ratio;

Birlasoft {India) Limited

H-8, Sector 63, Noida 201306, India | +91 120 5629000 | contactus@birlasoft.com | www.birlasoft.com
Registered Office: Birls Tower 8th flpor, 25, Barskhamba Road, New Delhl 110001, India | CIN ;UT899DL1995PLC0B4560

/-_... D!l i ll“'E‘\- /-"' § i
; > oandigN
S e— ],

= )

i

X

®

'

TR

.

\
12,

o f
#

=
) :‘,‘r\x_._,f </
",

o

e X

95

\
|



(€ cx BIRLA GROUP

21,

2.2.

2.3.

3.1

32

H-3, Sector B3, Noida 201306, India | +91 120 6629000 | contactus@birlasoft.com | www.birlasoft.com
Registered Office: Birla Tower Bth floor, 25, Barakhamba Aoad, New Delhi 110001, 1%?.- |CIN :U78990L1995PLCOG4550

VALUATION REPORT | ENTITLEMENT RATIO | ISSUE OF SHARES PURSUANT TO THE SCHEME

birlasoft

Valuers have approved the following share exchange / entitlement ratio for the issue of shares in

terms of the Scheme:

Far merger of Transferor Company with the Transferes Company:

For every 8 equity shores of the Transferar Company heid by o shareholder on the record date, such
shareholder shall be entitled to receive 22 fully poid up equity shares of Rs. 2 eoch of the Transferes

Company,

For the demerger and vesting of Engineering Business (as defined in the Scheme) to the Resulting

Company

Far every 1 equity shares of the Demerged Company held by o shareholder an the record date, such
shareholder shall be entitled to receive 1 fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 10 each af the Resulting

Company.

The equity shares of the Transferee Company or the Resulting Company, as the case may be, to be
issued and allotted as above shall rank pori passw in all respects with the existing equity shares of the
Transferee Company or Resulting Company, as the case may be, after the Effective Date including
with respect to dividend, bonus, right shares, voting rights and other carporate benefits attached
thereto. The Resulting Company shall seek listing of the equity shares allotted by it on the Stock
Exchanges in terms of and in compliance of the SEBI Circular and other a pplicable provisions as may

be applicable.

No special valuation difficulties were reparted.

Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders {premoter and non-promoter) of the Transferor

Company

In consideration for the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, the
shareholders of the Transferor Company will be issued shares of the Transferee Company as per the
share exchange ratio determined by the Independent Chartered Accountant:

3.1.1.Both the promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the Transferor Company will receive

equity shares in the Transferee Company.

Immediately upon implementation of amalgamation as mentioned in para 3.1 above, and in
consideratiun for the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme), the
shareholders of the Demerged Company shall be issued shares of the Resulting Company, in

propartion to their shareholding In the Demerged Company:

Birlasoft (India) Umited
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3.2.1.Bath the promoter and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Campany will receive
equity shares in the Resulting Company,

4. Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs of the Transferor Company

The KMPs of, if any, of the Transferor Company shall become emplayees of the Transferee Company
an effectiveness of the Scheme.,

Further none of the KMPs have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity shares
held by them, if any in the Demerged Company / Transferee Company / Resulting Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

<
TAnjan Lahiri & %\
Designation: Managing Director & CEQ l,-,-_ f-_r: J
DIN - 06407055 \Veos——q/
Place: Delhi R

Date: January 29, 2018

Birlasoft (India) Limited
H-3, Sector 63, Noida 201306, India | +91 120 6623000 | contactus@birlasoft.com | www. birlasoft.com
Registored Office: Birla Tawer &th floor, 25, Barakhamba Aoad, New Delhi 110001, Irvclia fCIN LI7B990L1995PLOOGAS60
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Ealance Sheet
os ot 31 Morch 2018

[Amountin % milllon)

Note 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
ASSETS
Mon-currant assets
Prgperty, plant and aqulprent A 2,B88.95 191246
Capital work-in-progress €8.06 735,54
Intanglole assets 28 145,93 435.55
Intangible assets under developmens a3 524.29
Investment in subsidlarles 3 5,907.45 £,53E.9E
Financial assets
Loans 4 32.02 11B.6E
Other financlal assets 3 iz 2202
Income tak assers (net) 641.02 618,07
Deferred tax assets (net] B T785.85 502596
Cther non-current assets ? 54.83 $5.10
11,568.17 10,508.63
Cumant 858t
Inventones B 2772 74.9%
Financial assets
Investmedts 9 1,184.35 7768
Trade receivables 1 5477.33 505,65
Cash and cash equivalents 11 1,471.66 133229
Dther balances with banks 1 52.35 AR00
Loans 12 247.21 636.99
Unbilled revenue 464.50 azn
Other financlal assets 13 235 114.75
Cther cuffent assets 14 517.97 335.68
5.445.86 8,689.74
TOTAL ASSETS 21.014.03 19,194.37
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capltal 15 379.03 37639
Other equlty 31 1466333 11,366.81
15,042.36 13.743.20
Liahillties
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabilicles
Borrowngs 16 EE2.06 98531
Provisions 17 319.28 266.3_5-_
56144 1,251.66
Current liabilitles
Financlal liaki [[ties
Borrowings 1B 1,835.07 1,277.58
Trade pavables 18 £93.85 588,76
Other financlal liabilites 0 1.150.70 1,227.43
Qther current liabilitles 2L BA5.73 253.82
Provizions. T 215.63 19133
Income tax lishilitles [neth 209.25 64.58
4,950.23 4,203.51
TQTAL EQUATY AND LIABILITIES 21,014.03 19,1598.37
Eignihcant accounting pollcies 1
Motes referred bo above form an integral paet of the standaione fiinancial 24

statements

A per our reporl of even date attached

Far and on bahalf of the Board of Directors of

EPIT TECHNOLOG|ES LIMITED
Firm Reglstration Mumber: 101248W { W-100022 A

A
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Wljay Mathur Anll patwardhan
Partner chief Fnancial fficer
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Chartered Acrountants

25 Co\ A ooe

e
b lioon, S

Sneha Padve
Company Secrelary

Tﬂ‘?EI-UI'Id,

N 3 Joslharg, *
Matullaam,

Musbai- 400011

LN 0076150

Lal viate. Pune
o AT e 23 bay AD1E

5

98



KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss
forthe yeor ended on 31 March 2018

A mount in % million}

Note

Revedaue from operations 21
Other Income 24
Tatal income
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 25
Lhanges in inventaries of finished goads and work-in-progress i3
Employee beneflts expense 7
Firance costs i
Depreciation and amortization expense b4
Excise duty
Other expenses b1
Tatal expensas
Profit before exceptional ftems and tax
Exceptlanal items [Refer Hote 44(5]]
Profit before tax
Tax expense 43
Current kax
Deferrad tax (benefit}/charge
Total tax expensa
Profit for the yaar
Other comprehenslve Income
Items that will not be reclassifled ta profit or loss

Remeasurements of defined beneflt plans
Incame tax on items that will not be reclassifled to profit ar loss
Items that will be reclassified vo profit or Inss

Effective portion of gains / [losses) on hedging Instruments in cash flow hedges
Income tax on tems that will be reclassifled to profit or loss
Tortal ather comprebensive Income
Total comprahensive thcome for the year
Earnings per equity share for continuing eperations {face value per share € 2 each)
Basle 39
D1 luked EL]
Significant accounting policies 1
Motes referred to above form an Integral part of the standalone financiz| statements 2-44

As per our report of even date attached

ForB5R & {o. LLP

Chartered Acceuntants

Fiwm Reglstration Number: L1248V f W-100022

VN VAT | Mﬂﬁum‘}ﬂﬂ

Vijay Mathur e Anil Patwardhan

Partner Chlef Flnanclal Gfficer

Wembership No, 046476

Axbadie

Sneha Padve

B Company Secretary
p b ( .
4 C'; - ; <, \\\
Sl Flgnr, Wl
Pace: Mivnbat Icu!hd Extoius, K Place: Pune
Date: 23 May 2018 voel ] o Date: 23 May 2018
M Jc, It By,
Mahal.ami, )
Mumoai-aot11 f 52
Indla .“D’/I:—’
|' J'* - L
= N l:.ll Al

R
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A1 March 2018

31 March 2017

Farand on behalf of the Board of Dlrectors of
KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

14,423.53 13,223.23
420,75 159.40
14,844.28 13,382.63
59.07 233.0%
1.04 6.61
9,241,75 7,965.40
a8.31 85.39
725.30 F11.44
0.53 27.59
2,787.11 2,370.73
12,863,21 1140015
1,581.07 1,882.449
25.55 -
2,006.62 1,582.44
856,71 376.90
(225.59) [57.400
23112 289.50
1,775.50 1,602.84
[43.08) [23.42)
12.76 632
{128.69) 5114
44.54 [21.27]
{114.87) 23.07
1,660.53 1,716.01
9,22 8.83
8.81 247

B. [Ravi) Pandit
rman & Group CEOQ

DI 00075361

Kishor Patil
ﬁagmg Director
DIN : 00076190
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Statement of cash flows
Jar the yeor ended on 31 March 2018

{Amount In Trallllen}
PARTHULARS

A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year

Adpustments far

[heome Lax expensa

{Proflt)fLosa on safe of fixed assets (neth
Dapreciation £ Amortization

Write-down of slow moving inveniory
Profit)fLass an sale of Investment [net}
Interest expanae

Irnerest ncome

Dividend Income

Unraallsed forelgn enchangs lossfigain}
Frowlglon for doubtful debts and advances {net}
Bad dabts writven off

Share based compensation expanses

Operating Proflt befora working capltal chunges

Ad]usiments for changes In warking capltal:

Trade receivablas and unbliled revenue

Inyentories

Loans, ather financials azsets and ather aseets

Trade Payables

Other finandal ilabiides, other llabilltles and provislons
Cosh generated from operations

Tanes Pald

Wel eash from operating actlvites (A}

B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equlpment

Proceeds from Sale of property, plant and equiprient

Investment In Equity Shares af Subsidiaries

Purcha a of investments carrled at falr value thraugh pratit and loss fnet)
Eale of Investments carrled at fair value through prafit and loss

Loan [glven bo] / repald by subsldiary

Interest racelvad

Chidend recelvad

Flxad Creposil with banks {net) having orlginal matusity guer theae manths
Net Cash used In Investing activitlas {0}

C] CASH FLOAY FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Long term boan fram: banks

Repayment of Leng term [oan from banks

Proceeds from Lang wren bean from other than banks
Repayment of Long term [gan from ather Lhan banks
Procweds from lssue of Share Capltsl snd application monay
Proceeds from Worklng Capttal loan [Mat)

Procesds from f (paymenta for} shares Issuad / purchased by Employes Welfare Trust {net)

Dividend pald Inchuding corparate dividend tax
Interest and flnance charges
Het cash used In financing activitles [C)

D] Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency
tash and cash equivalents

Met Incresse / [decrease] [n cash and cash equivalents [A+ B+ C+DY

SahFlagr,
Loihy Eacelus,

H 1A Juai beard,
Wiahalatih,

Biuniai- dDOO

\x Irdia

100

31 tarch 2018 31 Merch 2017
1,775.50 1,692.84
23112 285.50
[1.33) [0.58)
725.30 71144
597 17.84
[25.55) .
LLE £5.39
147.39) {122.45]
[49.90) {2.71]
[192.53) AG.55
104.54 (214.43)
1154 135.16
1334 30.73
2,611.77 2,669.26
152263 (L.a20.94)
2130 214.41
(1z3.891) 31593
117.87 90.55
80833 (51.84)
2,991.63 1,817.47
(334.95] {557.85)
2,556.64 1,358.62
{557.21) {1.664.43)
168 5.0
{368,501 |500.14}
{524.52) [660.13}
143.10 .
264.96 108,57
58.24 134.73
25,50 321
875 1,031.04
1, 25860} [1,54121)
. 8.40
{647.65) 1325.22]
= 1157
(8.70) |B.75]
512 0.2
(72.53) 1,392.95
107.17 2826
(502.98) {503.01]
(a7.43) (72804
[1,367.00) 504,92
842 [0.04)
139.37 213139




KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

$tatement of cash flows [continued)
Jor the ended on 31 Marck 2013

famount In % rllon)
31 March 2018 31 March 3017
Cash and cash equhvalents at close of the year [refar note 1 below] 147166 133224
Cash and cazh aguina lanls at baginning of tha year {refer note 1 balow] 1,332.29 1,109.00
Cosh surplus / {deficit) Tor the year 13937 228.29
Mote 1:
Cash and cash equivalents Indude:
Eash on hand 03 0.0z
Cheques In Hangd F 1570
Balanze with banks
=In current accounts 1,084.39 1.314.48
= Indepoxit account jwith orlgingl maturlty of 3 ronths or less) 38000 2.1
Total Cash and cash equivalents 147156 1,332.29

Hote 2:
Flgures In brackets represent pulflows of cesh and cash aguivalents,

Nate 3;
The above Cash Flow Statement has beea prepared under the Indirect muthad s set out in Indian Accounting Slandard find-As) 7 on Statement of cash

flowrs,

A per our repor of even dale attached
ForB5AE Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors of
Chartered Arcountants KPIT TECHNOLOMGIES LIMITED

Firm Reglstrailon Numbear: 101 248W / W-100022 A
r'A‘h{,m Py
Y e AR A

Vijay btaihn Anll Patwardhan
Fartrer Chlef Financlal Olficer

Iermbership No, 046476

APodwe

Snehz Padve
Company Secretary
Place: A Lviniz ﬁrl Place; Pune
Date: 23 May 2018 Drate: 23 May 2016
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KPIT TECHNOLQOGIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalane financial statements
for the yaar ended on 31 Morch 2018

Company Qverview

KPIT Technologles Limited (“the Company”} s a public limited company Incarperated under the Companies Act, 1856 and Its shares are listed on the Matignal
Stock Exchange and Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company's registered offlee is In Pune and i has subsldiarles, associate/Ioint venture acrass multiple
gaopraphins. Most of the reverue Is ganerated from the expart of services.

The Company pravides Sof Development, global IT consulting and Product Englneering solutlons to Its clents, predominantly in futomotive &
Transportation, Manufacturing and Energy & Utlitles verticals. The Company s also engaged In the production of Integrated Systems, under Product
Englneering Solutlons vertical,

Thasa financlal statements were authorlsed far issus by the Company's Board of Directors on 22 May 2018,

1. Significant accounting pelicles

Basks of p of lene financlal

The standalane financial statements are prepared In aceordance with the Indlan Accounting Standards ("Ind-AS") as specified under Section 133
of the Companles Act, 2013 read with the Rule 3 of the Companles {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companles {Indlan
Accounting Standards) Amendment Aules, 2016 and the provisions of Companles Act, 2013, The standalene financlal statements are prasented
In milllions of Indian rupees rounded off to two decirmal places, except per share Information, unless otherwise stated.

Accaunting policies have been consistently applied excapt where a newly issued accounting standard is inltially adopted or a revision to an
exlsting accounting standard requires a change In the accounting palicy hitherta In use.

These financlal statements have been prapared on the histarlcal cast basls, ewcept for share based payments, defined benefit obligations angd
cortaln finanelal Instruments which are measured at fair values at the end of each reparting perled, as explalned In the accounting palicles
below,

Use of astimates

The prepatatlon of standalone financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affact the raparted balances of assets and liabllities and disclosures relating to the contingant Nabllities as at the date of the financlal
statements and reported amaunts of inceme and expenditure during the year. Actual results could differ from estimates. Differences between
actual results and estimates are recognlzed n the year inwhich the results are knawn / materialized.

Critlcal atcounting estimates
a. Revenue Recagnition

The Company Lses the percentage-sf-completion methad in accounting for its fixed-price contracts. Use of the percentage-of-completion
method requires the Company to estimate the effarts or costs expended to date as a propartion of the tatal efforts or costs 1o be expended.
Efforts or costs expended have heen used to mepsure progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship hetween Input and
productivity. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recarded in the perlod in which such losses become probable
based en the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.

b. Impainment of goodwill

Goodwill s tested for impalrment on an annual basls and when ever there is an indicatlan that the recoverabie amount of a cash penerating Unit
is less than Its carrylng amaunt based on a number of factors Including aperating results, business plans, future cash flows and econbmilc
conditions. The recoverable amount of cash generating units Is determined hased on higher of value-In-use and fair value less cost te sell. The
goodwlll Impalrment test 1s performed at the leval of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating units which are beneflting from the
synergies af the acqulsition and which represants the lowest level at which goodwill 1s manitared for internal management purposes.

€. Incame tax

significant judgments are involved In determining the provision for income taxes, Including ameunt expected 1o be paid/recovered for uncertaln
tax positians,

-

& Co o

L el o

W 0™

L

{f Aol khills it
R [ T Sosk Mary,

Mataler,

% Mumbai-400011

. tedid

Bih Flodr,

103



KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements feontinued)
for the year ended onr 31 March 2018

i1

1.2

43

Critlcal J:4

...,

d. M af defined benefit oblig and key actuarial assumptions

Informatian about assurmptions and estimation uncertalnties In respect of defined benafit obligation and share based payment In note 35 and
note 42 respectlvely.

Current-nan-currant classification
All assets and labllitles are classified into current and nan-current.
Assets -

An assat 1s classified ag current when 1t satisfles any of the following criterla:

a. it s expected to be realized in, or |5 intended for sale ar consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

b. 1t is held primarlly for the purpose of belng traded;

t. it s expected to be realized within 12 manths after the reporting date; or

d. it is cash or cash equivalent unless It Is restricted from being exchanged or used to seltle a liablfity for at least 12 manths after the reporting date.

Current assets Include the current portion of non-current financlal assets. All ather assets are classified as non-gurrent.
Ligbilities

A liabillty Is classifled as current when it satisfies any of the following criterla:

. it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

b. It Is hald primarlly for the purpose of baing traded;

&. it is due to be settled within 12 months afrer the reporting date; or

d. the Company does not have an uncendRianal right to defer settlement of the liabillty for at least 12 manths after the reporting date. Terms of 2
llability that could, 3t the optlen of the counterparty result In its settlement by the lssue of equity instruments do not affect its classificatlon.

Current liabillties include eurrent gortion of non-current financial llabilitles, All other labilitles are classified as nen-currant.
Operating gycle

Operating cycle 15 the Bme between the acquisiticn of assets for processing and thelr realization in cash or cash equivalents, The operating cycle of
the Company is less than twelve months,

Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenues primarlly from software development and related services and from the sale of licensas and products. Arrangements
with customers for softwara related services are either on a flxed-price or on a time-and-material basis.

Revenue from software development and services, an time and material basis, is recognized based on software development, services rendered and
related costs incurred based on timesheets and are billed ta cllents as per the contractual terms. Revenue from the end of the last billing to the
Balance Sheet date is recognized as unbllled revenues,

Revanue from flxed-price contracts, where there Is no uncertalnty as to measurement or collectabllity of consideratian, Is recognized as per the
percentage-of-completion method based on costs expendead subject to the cost (both incurred and espected future cost) belng identified and baing
measured reliably.

When there is uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectabllity, revenue recognition Is postponed untll siuch uncertainty is resofved,
Pravisions for estimated losses, If any, on uncompleted contracts are recarded in the perlod in which such lossas become prabable based on the
current contract estimatas, Earnings in excess of billings are classified as unbilled revenue white billlngs in excess of eamings are classified as
unearned revenue.

Maintenance revenue s recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance arrangement. Revenue from cllent trainlng, support and
other services arising due to the sale of software products is recognized as the services are performed.

For the arrangements for sale of license, related services and malntenance services, that meet the criteria for separately 1dentitiable companents, the
Company has measured the revenys in respect of each separable component of 2 transaction at its falr value to allocate the consideration in
accordance wlith principles glven In Ind AS 1B. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately 1s the best evidence of its falr value.
In cases where the company is unable ta establish abjective and rellable evidence of falr value far the software development and related services, the
company has used a residual method ta allocate the arrangement consideratian. in these cases the balance of the consideration, after allocating the
falr values of undelivered companents of a transaction has been allocated to the delivered eormponents for which speclfic fair values do not exlst,

& {1} H.wnr'bﬂ.rlum sale of third party licenses is recognised anly when the sale is comy d by passing ownership.

Hh

Leunt
[

W,

Sghvarivel rleeed for sorvices and products are separately reparted in the financials as advance received from custormers
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements fcontinued)
for the vear ended an 31 Morch 2018

1.2

1.3

14

L5

14

51 Hoor, )

Lot Ceoelis, Y \.II

Apolg RIS Compoundy g

|7 W st barg,
\ IAahatueni,

umbyai 400011

R recognitian {continued}

The Company accounts for volume and / or trade discounts to customars as a reduction of revenue. Also, when the level of discount varkes with
Increases In levels of revenue transactlons, the company recognizes the liability based on its estimate of the customer’s Future purchases. The
cormpany recognizes changes in the estfimated amount of obligations for discounts in the perlod in which the change occurs. The discounts are passed
on to the custamer efther 35 direct payments or es a reduction of payments due from the custamer.

Revenue from sale of goods Is recogrised upon actual delivery of goods slong with transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customers,

Expenses relmbursed by customers during the project execution are recarded as a reduction to assoclated costs,

The Cempany presents revenues from products gross of excise dutles and net of goods and servicos tax in its Statement of Profit and Loss

Interest income 1s racognlzed using effective interest rate method.
Cividend Income |s recognized whan tha right to recetve payment 1s established,
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of & quallfying asset are capltalized as part of cost of that
asset, All other Barrowlng costs are charged 1o the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The exchange differences arising from fareign currency borrowings, to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to Interest costs, are
regrouped from forelgn exchange differences to finance costs.

P ¥, plant and

Froperty, plant and equipment are carrled at cost of acqulsition or construction less accumulated depreclatlon andfor accumulated impairment loss,
if any. The cost of an item of praperty, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import dutlas and other non-refundable taxes or
fevies and any directly attributable cost of bringlng the asset to its warking condition for its Intended use; any trade discounts and rebales are
deducted in arriving a1 the purchase price. If signiflcant parts of an itern of property, plant and equipment have different useful [ives , than they are
accounted for as separate [tems [major components) of property, plant and equipment. The cost and related accumulated depragiation are

fimi d from the dalone financial vpan sale ar retirement of the asset and the resultant galns er [Dsses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. Assets under construction are dlschosed a2 capital work-in-progress.

Intangible assets
Intargllile assets are stated at cost less accurmnulated amortization and accumulated impairment, 1F any.

In case of Intermally generated Intangibles, costs Incurred during the research phase of a project are expensed when Incurred. Development activitles
Involie a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. Development expenditure |s capitallzed only i
developmant casts can be measured rellably, the product or process s technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable,
and the Campany Intends to and has sufficlent resources 19 complete development and to use or sell the assst. The expendlture capitalized Includes
the cost of materials, direct fabour, ovarhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing tha asset for its Intended use, and directly attriputable
borrowing costs {in the same manner as in the case of property, plant and equipment), Other development expenditure Is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as Incurred,

Intangible fixed assets are derecognlzed n disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from Its use and subsequent disposal or when
the economic benefits are not measurable.
Depreclatlon and amortization

Depreciatlon on property, plant and equipment Is provided on the straight-ine method over the useful lives of the assats. The estimated useful |lves
are as follows:

Type of asset Useful life
[Na, of years)
Bulldige'™! 25
Plant and equigment™ 4
Office Eovipment™ u
e Vehicle™ 5

Fsinilone oo fotres™ | —

{AN,
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Noteas forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
For the year ended on 31 March 2018

1.6

17

18

Depreciation and emortization {continued]

™ For these class of assets, based on Internal assessment, the useful fives as given obove are beleved to best represent the perfod over which the
ussets ore expected to be used. Hence, the useful lives for these pssets are different frorm the useful lives as prescribed under Port C of Schedule 1 of
the Companizs Act, 20113,

Leasehold |and and vehicles taken on lease are amortlsed over shorter of useful lives and period of Jease.

Perpetual software livenses are amortized over 4 years, However, time-based software licenses are amerttzed over the Nlcense perlod,

Capitalized development costs are armortized over a period of 3 to 4 years.

The estimated wselul life of an identiflable Intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other ecanomic factors (such as the stabillty of the industry, and known technolagical advantes), and the level of malntenance
expenditures required 1o abtaln the expectad future cash flows from the asset.

Improvermants ta leasad premisas are amortized over the remaining non-cancellable period of the lease.

Depreciatlon and amortisation methods, useful lives and reskdual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted il approprlaie.

Impairment

a. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether a financlal asset or a group of financial assets is impalrad. Ind AS 109 requires
expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recegnlzes loss allowances using the expectad credit loss (ECLY
model for the financial assets which are net fair valued thraugh profit or loss, Expected credit Insses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-
month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase fn credit risk from initlal recognition in which case those are measurad at fetime ECL.
Loss allowances far trade recelvables are abways measured at an amount equal to llifetime expected credit losses, The amount of expectad
credit losses {or reversal) that Is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that |s required to be recognired Is
recorded as an Impairment galn or lass in Statement of Profit or Loss.

b. Non-financial assets

. Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets

The manag it perledically using, external and internal sourcas, whether thare is an indication that an asset may be Impaired,
Impairment lass is recognized when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of
the asset's fair value léss cost of disposal and value in use, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together Inta the
smallest graup of assets (cash generating unlt or CGU} that geverates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely Independent of
the cash Inflaws of other assats or CGUs.

Infanglble assets which are not yet avallable for use are tested for impairment annually. Other assets (tanglble and fntangible) are
reviewed at each reporting date to datermine il there ts any Indlcatlon of impalrment. For assets In respact of which any such indication
exists and for Intangible assets mandatorily tested annually for Impalrment, the assat’s recoverable amount s estimated.

I at the Balance Sheet date there 1s an Indication that a previously assessed impalrmant loss no [onger exists or has decreased, the assets
or CGV's recaverable amount is estimated. For assets other than goodwlll, the impairment lass is reversed to the extent that the asset's
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been deterrined, net of depreciation or amertization, If no
Impairment lgss had been recognized. Such a reversal is recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss.

il. Goodwil

CGUs to which goodwlll has been allocated are tested for Tmpalement annually, er more frequently when there is Indicatlon for
Impairment. If the recoverable amaunt of a CGU Is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss s allprated first to reduce the
tarrying amaunt aof any goodwill allecated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basls of the carrying amount
of each asset In the unit,

Inventarles

tnventorles which comprise raw materlals, wark-in-progress, finiched goods and stores and sparos, are carried at the lower of cost and net reallzable
walue. Cost of inventorizs comprises all costs of purchase, costs of converslon and other costs Incurred in bringing the inventarles to their prasent
Ipeatign and condition. In determining the cost, weighted average cost method Is used, In the case of manufactured i igs and work in prog
Tt :rf:'i:}u.__rul.-tu'. overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capatity of prodoction {acillties
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes farming

part of the standalone financial statements {continued)

for the yeor ended on 31 Morch 2018

L9 Leases

Finance lease

Assets acquired under finance leases are recopnlzed at the lower of tha fair value of the leased assets at inceptlan of the lease or the prasent
value of the minimum |ease payments. Lease payments ara apportioned between the finante charge and the reduction of putstanding liability.
The finance charge is allocated to perlods during the lease tarms at a constant perled|c rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Operating lease
Lease arrengements where the risks and rewards incldental to the ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are classilied as

operating lzases. Lease rentals under operating lzases are recognized in the Statement of Proflt and Loss on straight line basis over the term of
the lease, unless the increase in rentals is In line with expected peneral inflation.

1.10 Earnlngs pershare

Basic

earnings par share are computed by dividing the net prafit for the year after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares eutstanding

during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year after tax for the year by the walghted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year as adusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the results are antl-diiutive,

1.11 Foreign cursency transactions

b.

Functianal and presentation currency
Indtan Rupee is the Company's functional as well as presentation currency,

Transactions in fareign currencles are translated to the functional currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevaillng on the date of the
tramsaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currendlas are translated into the functional currency at the year-end rates, The exchange
differences so determined and also the reallzed exchange differences are recoghized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-rmanetary ltems
denominated in Torelgn currencies and measured at fair value are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevalent at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-manetary Ttams denominated In foreigh currencles and measured at histerical cost are
translated Into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of teaasaction,

Translation of forelgn op

For transiating the financial statements of foreign branches, thelr functional currencles are determined. The results and the financial position of
the forelan branches are translated inta presentation currency so that the forelgn operation could be included in the standalone financial
statements,

1.12 Employee benefits
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Post-employment henefit plans
Defined benefit plan

The Company's gratulty schema is 8 defined benefit plan. For defined beneflt plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with independent actuarial valuatiens being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Remeasurement of net
defined benefit labillty, which camprisa actuarial galns and Insses, the return on plan assets {excluding interest) and the effects of asset celling
{if any, excluding interest} are recognlzed in Other Compr ive Income for the period in which they occur. Mat interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Past service cost is recognized Immediately to the
extent that the benefits are already vested or amortized an a straight-line basls awer the average period until the beneflts become vested.

The ratirement benefit abligation recognized n the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benaflt obligatlon as adjusted for
unrecognized past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of schema assets, if any. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to
the present value of avallable refunds and reductlons In future contributions to the scheme.

i,
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the yeor ended on 31 March 2018

{L" |I Nt Jout 42

1.1

il

1.14 Provislons, Contingent [iabillties and Contlngent assets

2 ployee benefits fcontinued)
Defined contribution plan
A definad contribution plan is & post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays spetifled contributlons to a separate entity and has
no obllgation to pay any further amounts, The Company makes specifled monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to
Gowvernment administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contrlbution ptan. The Company's contributlanls recognized as an expense
Inthe Staterment of Profit and Loss during the period Inwhich the employee renders the related service.

il Otheremployee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term emplayee benefits expected tu be pald In exchange for the services rendered by employees k
recognized during the period when the employen rendars the service. These benefits Include compensated absences {which cannot be carried
foerward) such as paid annual leavs, overseas soclal securlly contributlons and performance incentives.

3 Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income taw. Income tax expense |5 recognized In the Statement of profit and Loss except to the
extent that It relates to Items recognlzed directly In equity, in which case it 15 recagnlzed in other camprehenshe income, Current income tax for
current and prior perlods 1s recognized at the amaount expected to be pald to or recovered fram the tax autheritles, using the tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred ingome tax assets and [labititles are recognized for all temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and labilitles and thair carrying amaunts in the standalone financial statemeants.

Deferred income tax assets and liabjlitles are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable Income in the years in which those temparary differences are expected to be recovered ar settled.
The effect of changes In tax rates an deferred income tax assets and liabilltles |s recognized as income or expense In the period that Includes the
enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred Income tax asset s recognlzed to tha extent that 1t is probable that future taxahle profit will
be available against which the deductible temparary differences and tax losses can be utllized. Deferred Income taxes are not provided on the
undlistributed earnlngs of branches where it is expected that the earnings of the branch will not be distributed in the f ble future. The Company
ofisets current tax assets and current tax lishilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it Intends
qither to settle on a net basls, or to realize the asset and settle the lability simultaneausly.

Minimum Altemate Tax

Iinimum Alternative Tax ["MAT'} under the provislons of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
The credit avallable under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there i tonvincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carrled forward for set-off against the narmal tax llabllity.
WAT credit recognlzed as an asset ks reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and written down to the extent the aferesald comvincing evidence no longer
exlsts,

The Campany recognizes pravisions only when it has a present legal or constructive olligation as a result of a past event, It is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying econemic beneflts will be required to settle the obligation and when a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made,

Provisions are determinad by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that refiects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific 10 the liahility.
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes farming part of the standalone financial statements fcontinued)
for the year anded on 31 March 2018

1.14 Provisions, Contingent liabititles and Contingent assets fcontinued)

il

w

116

11

1.1

E Ly

2 i Hloar,

7

Ma provision is recognized for—

3. Any possible obligation that arises from past events and the exlstence of which will be confirmed only by the oceurrence er non-cecurrence of
one of more uncertain future events not wholly within the cantrol of the Company; or

b, Present obligations that arise from past events but are nak recognized because-
1}M Is nat probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benofits will be required to settie the obligation; or

2} Argliabla estimate of the amount of obligatien ¢annot be mada.

Such obligations are disclosed as contingent Nabilities, These are assessed continually and only that part of the obligation for which 2n cutfiow of
resources ambodying economic benefits 15 probable, is provided for, except tn the extremely rare clreumstances where no reliable estimate can be
made.

Contingent assets are not recognlzed in the standalone financial statements since this may result In the recagnition of income that may never be
reslized.

Provisions for anerous contracts are recoghited when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the
unavoldable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provislon is established the Company recognizes
any impairment loss on the assets assoclated with that contract.

Warranty

The Company has an obligatlon by way of warranty to malntain the software durng the period of warranty, as per the contractual requirements, for
certaln products/licenses. Costs associated with such sale are accrued at the time when related revenues are recordad and included In cost of service
delivery. The Company estimates such cost based on histarical experience and the estimates are reviewsd perlodically for material changes in the
assLmptions.

fesearch and development:

Cuosts incurred during the research phase of a project are expensed when incurred. Costs incurred in the development phase are recognized as an
intangible asset in accordance with policy defined in 1.5,

Employze stock option
In respect of stock options granted pursuant to the Company's Empleyes Stack Option Scheme, the Company recognizes employes rompensatlon
expense, uilng the grant date fair value in accordance with Ind-AS 102 - Share Based Payment, on straight line basls over the period over which the
employees would become uncondrionally entitled to apply for the shares.
Investrment in subsidiaries
Investment In subsidiaries are measured at cest less Impalrment.
Financial Instruments
a. initlal recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provislens of the Instrument. Financlal
assets and [iabilities are initlally measured at falr value, ewcept for trade receivables which are inltizlly measured at transaction price.
Transactlon costs that are directly atuributable ta the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabllitles {other than financial assets
and financlzl Nabllitles at falr value thraugh profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the falr value measured on inltlal reconitlon of

financial assat o financlal liabifity,

b. Subsequent measurement
i Mon-derlvative financial instruments
Financial assets carried at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequantly maasured at amortized cost If It 15 held within a business model whose objectlve 15 to hold the asset in
order to cellect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the linanclal asset glve rise on specifled dates te cash Fflows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Flnanclal assets at falr value through other comprehensive income

\ A linancial asset |s subsequently measurad at fair value through CQther Comprehensive lncome if it is held within 2 business model whose
iR '|\I objective s achieved by both collecting contractual cash fiows and selling financial assets and the contractual tarms of 1he financlal asset
| give rise on speclhed dates to cash llows thal are solely payments of principal and interest an the principal ameunt outstanding.
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes farming part of the standalone financlal statements fcontinued)
Sor the year ended or 31 March 2018

1.18 Financial instrumenis fcontinued)
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Financlal assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is net classified In any of the above categeries are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Howewver, In cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election for particular investments In equity instruments that would
otherwise be measured at falr value through profit or loss, the subscquent changes in fair value are recognized ln Other Comprehensive
Inrome.

Financial fiabilitles

Financial liabllitias are subsequently carrled at amortized cost using the eflective Interest method, except for contingent conslderation
recognied in & business combinatlon which Is subsequently measured at falr value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year fram the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate falr value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

i) ivative financial Inst
The Company holds derivative financial Instruments such as fareign exchange forward contratts to mitigate the risk of chanpes In
exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The Company does not use derlvative financlal instruments for speculative purposes. The
counter-party to the Company's foreign currency forward contracts Is enerally a bank.

Finantial assets or financlal liabilities, at falr value through prolit or loss

Derlvatives not designated as hedges are recognized inlflalty at falr value and attributable transactlon costs are recognized In the
statement of profit and loss, when incurred. Subsequent to Initial recognition, these derlvatives are measured at fair value through prafit
or loss and the resulting exchange galns or lossas are Included In other income. Assets/ labilitles in this category are presented as curcent
assetsfourrent llabllitles if they are either held for trading or are expected to be reallzed within 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Cash flow hedge
The use of hedging instruments is governed by the Company’s policy approved by the Board of Directors, which provides wiltten
principles an the use of such financlal derlvatives consistent with the Company's risk management strategy.

The Company designates certain foreign eschange forward contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange
exposure an firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions.

Hedging Instruments are |nitially measured at fair value and are re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. The effective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative 15 recognized in cther comprehensive Inceme and accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve,
Any Ineffective partion of changes In the Falr value of the derivative Is recognized Immediately In the Statement of Profit and Loss. Hedge
accounting 1s discontinuad when the hedging instrument explres ar is sold, terminated, or exerclsed, or no langer gualifles fer hedge
accounting. For forecast transactlons any cumulative galn o7 loss on the hedging instrument recognized In cash flaw hedglng reserve is
retained until the forecast transacilan pccurs. When a hedged transaction occurs of |5 no longer expected to occur, the net cumulative
gain or loss recognized in cash flow hedging reserve |5 transferred to the Statement of Proflt and Loss.

The ameunt recognised In Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment En the same period
as the hedged cash flows affect profit or Ioss, and in the same line [tem in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Camprehenslve
Income.

Iil} Treasury Sharas
When any entlty within the Group (KPIT Technologles Limited and its subsidipries) purchases the Company's ordinary shares, the
consideration pald including any directly atiributable incremental cost is presented as 2 deduction fram total equity, until they are
cancelled, sald or reissued. When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received |s recognized as an Intrease in
equlty, and the resulting surplus or deficlt on the transaction ts transferred to/ from share premium.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecagnizes a financlal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from tha financlal asset expire or It transfers the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind-AS 109. A financial Nabllity {or a part of a financial liability] is derecognized
from the Company's Batance Sheat when the abligation specified in the cantrack Is discharged or cancelled or explres.

Fair value of financial instruments.

‘The Company Uses discounted cash flew analysls method for the fair value of its financlal inslruments except for employee steck optians [ESOR)

(o
Lo <' “whern Black and Scholes optlons pricing model is used, The method of assessing falr value results in general approximation of value and such
{ -‘-.’*,:E rray never actually be realized.

| other financial instruments the carrylng amount approxinates fair value due to short maturlly of those lnstruments.
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part of the standalone financial statements fcontinued)

for the yeur ended on 31 March 2018

1.19 Recent accounting pronouncements

Stand

ards issued but not yet effective

In March 2018, the Minlsiry of Caorporate Affairs Issued the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) {Amendments) Rules, 2018, notifying
amendments to Ind-AS 21 ! The affects of changes In Forelgn Exchange rates and new Ind-A5 115 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
amentdments are applicable to the Company from 01 April 2018,
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Amendment to [nd-A5 21
Appendi B 1 Foreign Currency Transactions anci Advance Consideration, has been incorporated to Ind AS-21. The amendment clarilies that the
date of iransactlon to determine the spot exchange rate for translation, is the date of Initlal recogrition of the non-monetary prepaymant asset

or deferred income lzbllity, when forelgn currency consideration is paid or recelved In advance of the item i relates. If the transaction 1s
recognised In stages, then a transactlon date would be established for each stage.

The Company Is evaluating the requirements and the Impact of the amendrment on the standalone financlal statements.

Ind-AS 115 : from C with

The new standard will replace the existing revenue recognitlon standards Ind-a5 18: Revenue and Ind-AS 11: Construction Cantracts.

The core principle of the new standard Is that revenue should be recognlzed when (or as) an entity transfers control of goods or services to a
customer at the amount to which the entlty expects to be entithd.

Twa methads of transitlan is permissible as per the standard:
Retrospective approach : As per this appreach the standard will be applied retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented as per Ind-

AS.
Curnulative catch-up approach : Unger this approach the standard would be applied retrospectively with cumulative effect of inltially applying

the standard recognized at the date of initiat application.

The Company will adopt the standard fram 01 April 2018, using the cumulative catch-up approach. The Company Is evaluating the Impact of the
new standard on the dalana financlal t

S
Wy

o =

e

111



\ 'BNE T BYAGY
\ nY.\,../. OIS
b P (=

'sBuIMOaIBg 10} AndEs se pakpagd wwslktinby pue Jueld ‘Ausdoud 4o 5|1BI3R 10} BT AU 9T 210U JaE

H:a T

SEEBE L 10°EvE i 00T B66IT HTZZ5 GETET 791921 [ ST0T YIEV TF 8 SE JUNOLIE JUiiie)
97 L6 T SLE0Z i5'6 16T 59°50T SE°LT8 %0'6TZ 'TLY OZIEY ZT0Z [HEY T 18 5E JUNOLUE UIALIEY
TLEEE FEEel 86 7 €005 £9°EZ9 05 LL O 0B 66'87 RTOZ Y3/l TE 32 §% uonersidap paeniunayy
PET ¥EOQ - - 00 25T E - E UoRIUI0IRUER SIUIIRIRA flesad s ]
009 PIFE or't TET 418 LUETE SOTr BL8T 199 uoiesdin
£9'T€8 2568 EE) ot 9TTE e Ol SBE TS FArad LT0Z 1ady T 18 S8 usleEdap PRIRNWNITY
L9 BLEE BE'5AY IRHT TLD LT TESPT T B2 B5E OTVED ar'6av STOZ Y=1BIAl TE 32 52 JUNOWE FUALES SS0I5
oz 950 J & £0'0 Tl - * C =] S TR fredng
9T TEET TIELT TEY - PY'EE TL'R2T BEE 658 LELT SUCHIPRY
TIBrSE ¥EESZ SS9T [ 7] T8'9ET 0E°HIE DE'SST B0bLY i £T07 |udy T 12 S Junolue Buiiiie) 55019
A LIE T 9LT07 56 3 SFE0T 8EL15 SOBIE Crai:3 0z ZEv ZT0Z G2I8IAl T% 3¢ 5¢ Junowwe FmAies
ISPELT €908 S9°E we £0°26 PETEY T5'29T k2 SLEDY GT(T Mady T 1€ SE JUNOWe Fuparey
“S9TED 568 Y (T3 8T1E Triar Se 9t . 91s ZEZT ZT07 YIEIN TE 1B 52 UonEraidap paye[nuinaoy
0L =0T o ] [iyd 00 - 00 - UORNFoIRIE P SIUsAIRE fEsod s
ET9FE £E5h r5Z 507 el oroze YTRE £E'ST 959 ueueixadag
06T sy oz BE'Z S1PT SO TET iy 1857 ars STOZ juddy 1 48 se ucglensudap pate|nunoay
TOBrst TEEEL 50T T£9 TEOET 0T FIE 0£55¢ Dby 7560 IT0Z YS1EIA TE 1 58 VINOUOE Bujiiies 55010
ot OT's 1] [751] 05°€ CED - SE'Q [T ST S e T -
DFFit EO'OF 998 . ES'EE TE'S0E Fean:] . - S PRy
E£ 0RO TFIST S09 Wi EL901 BLETS E00LT FFRiT Fal STOZ IMdy T 28 se Junewe Sudiles ssoag

paumn pasIaq =TI PIE] 4ewdnby SUASATSEE] [PIoye=Ea)
[l =18 suawdinEy axuun SIYIN PUZ 2UNILLINS PUBILHd PloysseaT Auipying pum

wwdinhs pue jugyd ‘Auadoig we
(UD|HF 3 w1 unowy)

SIOZ Y0y TE Lo papua tusd syg sof

fpanuiies] sluaWwaYes [e(UeUl uojEpUE]S Y3 J0 Led Juiuninyg salan

pasiwn satdo|ouydal Lid)

112



N, LY
‘S50 PUE 14004 O IUILUSIELS FyY Ul S5k IMLeZIOWE Pl e Uoiesadap FApun pesudosnl UoW S079T X 4o S50 awmeduy ue b Bugnsa esse u_..n_r_ﬂmﬁ eyl peuerd)
sl AURdWoTy auy JESA SNAAEY 24 SUKNP ‘SIUBH MO} 01 pAi0a0xe 343 SUISUAT S UIIYM 1540 polad 341 SSASTE O NP SEM 3] LRYRNg RaE| ..ﬂ..uu:nuni.rr.mﬂtmut e
1B 5ns8) FUIHEA ARG S0} JIeD pagosdid Sl pUe S2URG JIUCUTIR BININ Syl Agyeiedas 324 03 3|qeun sem Auedwal syl ‘sesse 219 Funu 3yl o swns a1 uUm.nnm:._lr.._..m__._ |

“$5007 PUR 330ad §O JUBWLELS P U1 2suUadE UOREZRDWE PUE YoRERAIdap JEpUN pRsuBaIE ‘ol (5 £ T & 4O 50| JUSULIEDW uE W
Surynsau ‘read 3yl Fultnp paaadiul UM SIAS5E JYL F2UBY PUR SIRSEE BUJ 3O SIUSISA0SO0 Lt PAT REY ASOIoULYIR Byl W FHueyd ‘510858 ajqEeel) 2y po oS 0y 520 Y, (1

a30n
[ O LST T5°BEY BT0Z UBIA TE 3@ SE JUnowWe duiie]
SECEY 05 Pre SO°TE £10Z 138w T 12 se unewe Fupliied
PO BI'RZL SESEL BT0Z YW TE 17 S€ GE[RaIBap paie|nunIoy
&T'59E LT'SSE It [EoPLEETEER
517859 T9ELL YTSET LTOZ [0V T 1B 58 UDIERUCap pade| nuinasy
L6'694°T DT 956 IBERS FI0Z YIEW TE 18 58 WUNOWE Ju|dnies 55005
LI°GLS 60°'EaT 8505 SUORIPPY
0BT TO0'5T8 [T T d £T0Z (t4dy T 12 52 Junow e Aupiired sosg
S5 SER 05°¥re Ehaii ZTOZ YR TE 18 52 Junoute JuAlEeD
SEEEY 6T'9IE 95 CLT 9T0Z udy T I8 SEIURoWe Juliie]
SE'RS9 TS ELr TEEBL LTOZ Y2IBW TE 18 5B uci3e35.dap page|nwnasy
TE §9E zI 05z G5 PIL T
FESE [Trysd 59°0L atoz (dy T e se uieasdap paie|nwnoy

0EPEQ'T T0°8TB [~4°T+4 2TOZ YR TE IB S JUNOWE JUIALED $5005
T E0E £e'3de BO'EE SUGHIPPY
BEZT6L 20605 ITEYT orDz pdy T 1€ 5E junowe Sudues seais
fim
# (1) 230U J2)3y)
1507 Jualidolaaeg
JeMYas pnpodd
paieiauan
Afjeutazy paleIauaE
1210y LR JSYI0 Allewisi

nasse ajqduelu; gz

[CETTHIVETTR TN

BIRZ 4aroiy TE U0 papus 0@k ayl sof
{panuguros} SJUAWSIELS [RIDUEUY BuUDjEPUEYS 3U) §0 Wed Buiwiof $310N

pawr saifojouyday Lidy

113



KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Motes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the yeor ended ont 31 March 2018

{Ameunt In & million)
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
3 Investmant in subsldiaries

Investments (Unguoted)

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiarles [at cost)

Systime Computer Carporation, USA 4E69.36 465.38
A whally owned subsidlary cormpany incorparated in USA

[204,082 {Previous year 204,082) common stock of issued equity, no par value]

KPIT Infosystems ME FZE, Dubai %41 2541
A whally owned subsidlary company incorporated In Dubai
[1 {Previous year 1) equity share of nominal value of AED 1,000,000]

KPIT Technologies (UK} Limited 827.08 B27.08
A wholly owned subsidiary company Incorporated in UK
10,215,966 |Previous year 10,215,966) Equity shares of £1/- each fully paid-up.

KPIT Infosystems Incorporated, USA 2,870.17 2,879.17
£ wholly owned subsldlary company incorporated in USA
12,467 (Praviows year 12,457} Eguity stock without par value fully paid-up.

KPIT Technologies France SAS 215.597 215.57
Awholly owned subsidiary company incorporated In France
100,000 [Previnus year: 100,000) Equity stock of Eurg 1 each fully paid-up.

KPIT [shanghai) Software Technology Co. Limited, China 128.84 128.84
A wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated in China
14,074,702 {Previous year 14,074,702} Equity shares of RMB 1 each fully paid up

KPIT Technologles Netherlands B.W. 34.30 24,30
A wholly owned subsidiary cornpany Incorporated in Netherlands
5,000 {Previpus year 5,000 Equity shares of Eure 100 each fully paid up

KPIT Technologies Selucoes EM Lnformatica Ltda, o.04 0.0
A subsidiary of KPIT Infosystems Incorporated
1,000 |Previous year 1,000 shares of Brazilian Reas 1 each fully paid up

Impact Automotive Solutions Limited 1,326,29 958.79
A wholly owned subsidiary company incorperated in India
136,750,000 {Previous year 100,000,000) Equity shares of % 10 each fully pald-up.

KPIT Engineering Limited 5.00 .
A wholly owned subsidiary company incorporated in India
98,994 {Previous year NI EguTty shares of T 10 each fully pald-up.

5,907.46 5.538.96
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standajone financial statements (continued}
Jor the year ended on 31 March 2018

(Amount in X milllon)

31 March 2038 31 March 2012
4 Loans
{Unsecored, considered good unfess otherwise stated)
Loans and advances to related parties {Refer note 37)
- Lean to director 11.41 17.88
- Loan to Impact Automaotive Solutions Limited 101,33 L
Loans and advances to other than relatad parties
- Securlty deposits 115.56 95.86
-Loan ko employess 332 2.94
232.02 118.68
Note:
{1} Information about the Company's exposure to interast rate risk, foreign currency risk and llquidity risk s disclosed in nate 20,
5 Other Hinancial assets
fUnsecured, considered good unless otherwise stoted}
Flzed deposits with banks 9.64 2174
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.48 0.28
10.12 22,02
Mote:
{1} Information about the Company's exposure ta interest rata risk, foreign currency risk and liquidity flsk [s disclosed In note 30.
& Deferred tax assets
Defarred tax assets
-Pravislan for doubtful debts and advances 59.57 27.35
-Provision for compensated absences 45,27 42.84
-Provislon for gratulty 105.21 78.04
-Provlslon for CST 157 -
-Forward cantracts designated as cash flow hedges 5.42 -
MAT credit entitlement 642,51 490.39
B59.55 638.62
Deferred tax fiabillties
-Excess of deprecitionfamortisation on fixed assets under income-tax law over 71,47 G2.70
depreciationfamortisation provided in accounts
-Farward contracts designated as cash flow hedges . 39,13
-Others 2.23 3.84
73.70 135.66
Met deferred tax assel 785.85 50296
7 Other non-current assats
fUnsecured, considerad good unfess otherwise stoted}
Capital advances 538 34.75
Advance rentals 27.53 33.55
Prepaid expenses T.52 149
Balance in Group Gratuity Trust Account 20.40 19.31
6483 85.10
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes formlng part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
Jor the yeor ended on 31 March 2018

{Amgunt in £ milllor)

w

i Flu,
Logha Leculus,
| Apollo bilis
MK Jushi Marg,
Hehalzini,
Mumbai-400011

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Tnventaries
{valued ot the lower of cast and net realisable vafue)
Raw materlals (Refer note [i] below) 21.02 7332
Work-1n-progress 0.44 1.4
Finlshed goods H.11 035
Stores and spares 415 0.08
27,72 74.9%
Note ;
1) During the yvear ended 31 March 2018, the Company has written-down [t slow mowing Inventory of T 25.97 millian (Previous Year - X
17.84 milllon} with corresponding effect on cast of materials ¢ dinthe § of Proflt and Loss.
Current Investments
I in equity of other entlties 1 at falr vafue tt h Profit
of Los5 (unquoted]
Tnvestment in Sankalp Semiconductors Private Limited - 117.55
HIl {Previous Year 771,000) equlty shares of T 2 each fully pald up
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Limited 0.o0* Q.onv
1 [Previous year 1) equity share of ¥ 10 each fully pald up
Investments in Mutual funds measured at fair value through Profit or Logs (quoted)
882,300 units {Previgus year Ml units) Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Daily Gividend - 88.47 =
Regllar Plan
294,874 unlts {Previous year NIl units) - Axls Ligutd Fond - Dally Dividend 235,20 =
115,857 vnits [Previous year 170,108 units) Reltance Liquid Fund- Treasury Plan- Dally 177.21 26006
Dividend Option
184,588 unlts [Previous year Ml units) Kotak Floater Shart Term- Daily Dividend 186.73
1,838,983 units {Previous year 3,995,032 units] ICIC! Prodential Money Market Fund - Daily 184.24 400.08
dividend
09,076 units {Previous year Mil ualts] L&T Uquid Fund - Regular Daily Dividend 312.90
Rainvestraent Plan
1,184.¥5 171468
Since dencminated In % Mlllion
MNote:
{} The detalls of aggregate value of quated/ung il and the Company’s exposure ¢ liquidity risk are disclosed in note 30.
Trade recelvables
{Unsacured)
- Considered good BAT7.33 5,005.65
- Consldered doulitivl 187.61 8150
5,664.99 508715
Less: All es5 for bad and doubtful trade recelvabl 187.61 B159
5,477.33 5,005.65
Hotes:

{i} Trade receivabies from related parties are disclosed in note 37,

{il} The Company’s exposure to credit rlsk, evrrency risk and lass allowance related to trade recelvables are distlosed In note 30.

India
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements fcontinuetl)
for the year ended on 31 March 2018

[Amount In % milllon)

31 March 2018 33 March 2017
11 Cash ard bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.03 002
Cheques in hand T.24 15.70
Batances with banks
-In current aceounts 1,084.39 1.314.46
- 1In deposit accounts[with orginal maturity of 3 months of [ess) 3R0.00 211
1471.66 1,332.2%
DOther bank balances {Includes unclalmed dividend 52.35 48,00
of T6.84 milllan [Previous year € 5.84 millien))
1,524.01 1,380.25
Hote:
[ jon about the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk, Toreign currency risk and liquidity rlsk is disclosed in note 30
17 Loans
{Unsecured, cansidered govd unless otherwise stated)
Loans and advances to related parties {Refer note 37}
- Loan to KPIT Infosystems Incerparated, USA - 390,16
- Loan to director 5.08 5.64
- Dues from subsidlaries 16054 214,94
Loans and edvances to ather than related parties
Other leans and advances
- Loan to employees 1.60 1.52
- Security deposits 78.55 74.67
- Other recelvables B.06 0.06
247.23 686,99
Note:
{1 Inf ion about the Company's exp ‘o interest rate rlsk, foreign currency risk and liquldity risk is disclosed in note 30.
13 Other eurtent financial assets
{Unsecured, considerad good unfess otherwise stated)
Forward contracts deslgnated as cash flaw hedges (Refer Mote 30(3)) - 113.03
Interest acorued on flxed deposlts 235 1.72
2.5 114.75

Note:
{I} Infermatian about the Company's exposure (o Interest rate rlsk, foreign currency risk and liguldity risk |5 disclased in nate 30,

14  Other curcent assets
{Unsecured, considered pooad unless otherwise staled)

Advance rentals 8.14 144
Employee advances
- Consldered gopd 50.90 54.41
- Considered doubtful 29.51 20.50
£0.41 7521
Less: Provision for doubtul advances = 29.51 20.99
5080 5441
Advance to suppllers 56.30 3Les
Prepaid expenses 217.06 18009
Balances with statutory authorities 185.57 5209
4 517.97 375.68
B o
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LHWMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financlal statements fcontinved)
for the yeor ended on 31 Morch 2018

{Amaunt in T millian)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
15  Equity share capital
Authorised:
625,000,000 (Previous year 625,000,000 equlty
shares of T 2 gach, 1,250.00 1,250.400
1,25¢.00 1,250.00

Issued subscribed and fully paid up:
186,514,051 |Previous year 188,153,398} equity 375.03 376,29
shares of X 2 gach fully paid up

375.03 376.39

15,1 The Campany declares and pays dividends in Indfan rupess. The dividend proposed to be distributed to equity sharehoiders for the year ended 31 March 2018 is
£ 474,00 million e, % 2.40 per share {Previous year % 434,50 milllon i.e, € 2.20 per share). The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors {5 subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Dividends during the year ended 31 March 2018 Include T 2.20 per share towards final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 Dividends during the: year
gnded 31 March 2017 include X 1.10 per share towards final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016,

15,2 In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive a share in the ramaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportian to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

153 Reconcillation af the number of equity shares ding at the beginning and 2t the end of the yaar:
Paritculars As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017
Number of shares 1%} Number of shares 4]
Equity shares
At the beglnning of the year 138,193,358 376.39 187,826,324 375.65
Add: Shares issued on exercise of employee stock options 1,320,653 2.64 367,064 0.74
Quistanding at the end of the year 185,514,051 ara.03 188,153,338 37639

15.4 The Company has enly one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of % 2, Each shareholder of equity shares1s entitled to one vote per
share,

15.5  Mumber of eguiity shares held by each sharehalder hoiding more than 5% shares in the Company are as follows:

Mamae of the shareholdars Number of shares as Number of sharas as
at % of shares hald at % of shares held
31 March 2013 31 March 2017
Proficlent Flastock LLP 18,605,782 14.49% 28,605,782 19.49%
Warhol Limitad - = 19,483,674 9.86%.

15.6  Aggregate number of equity shares allotted as fully paid up by way of benus shares for the perlod of five years immedlately preceding the Balance Sheet date -
MIL [Previous year 88,971,438 shares).

15.7 Capital Management
The Company's objective is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and 1o maximlze
shareholder value, In order to fulfll its objective, the management of the Company menitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary
shareholders.
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 Morch 2018

[Amount in < million)

16

17

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Non-current borrowings
Term loans
- From banks (Secured)
Extarnal Commerclal Borrawing {ECB) (Refer note (1} & {ii} belows) 647.59 266,63
Other loan {Refer note {jii) below} 3.70 5.84
- From other than banks {Refer note {iv) & (v} below) 10.77 1197
Long term maturities of finance lease obligatlons [Secured) . 0.87
{Securad against fixed assets obtalned under finance lease arrangements) {Refer note
38{1)}
662.06 985.31
Notes:

{1} The ECB loan consisted of loan secured by parf passu charge over Company's Land and Building located at Plot No. 35,36 & 45, MIDC area of
Rajiv Gandhl Infotech Park, Phase |, Hinjawadi excluding charge over R&D Centre developed in the premises. The term loan carrled interest
rate of & months LIBOR + 220 basls points. This ECB lean has been repaid during the year.

(if} The ECB loan consists of loan secured by pari passu charge over Company's Land and Bullding located at Plot Ne. 17, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech
Park, Phase Ill, Hinjawadi. The term loan carrles interest rate of 6 months LIBOR + 160 basis points. The ECB loan is repayable in eight equal
semi-annual installments of USD 2.5 million each, with a moraterium of 1 year, upte March 2021. The principal amount of loan outstanding as
at the Balance Sheet date ks USD 15 million.

(i) Cther term loans from bank are secured against property, plant and equipment obtained under the lean arrangement. The loan carries

interest uptc 10.10 % p.a. and is repayable In equated monthly installments of X 6.28 miliion each upto October 2020

{iv} Term loan from other than banks is secured by way of first and exclusive charge on property, plant and equipment acquired under the
loan arrangement. This loan has been repald durlng the yeer.

{v) Term loan fram other than banks cansist of unsecured loan, carrying interest rate of 3% p.a. The repayment of lpan will start from Cctober
2018 upto October 2027,

tvi} Information about the Company's exposure to interest rate risk, forelgn currency risk and liguidity risk is disclosed in note 30
Praovisions

Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuity [Refer note 35{2)) 31938 266.35

319.38 26635
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standal financial stat

Jor the year ended on 31 Morch 2018

{Amgunt In % millian]

FL]

18

0

Z

[+

22

Current borrowlngs

Loans repayable oh dermand
= From banks [Secured)

Working capital Ioans from banks {secured J{Reler nota {[} balew]

- Frem other than barks {secured)f Refer nota {i] belaw)

Motes:

31 March 2018 31 tarch 2017
1,835.07 1,864.55
13.03

1,835.07_ 187758

{}§ The abote koan Is secured by way of first charge by way of hypothecation of Company's entire book dabts, both presenl and future, on parl

passu basis, carrying an everage interest rate upto 6 manths LIBOA plus 0.58% p.a.

[i1} The loan Irem other than banks was secured by way of first and exclesive charga on fived sssets scquired under the [oan amangement. This

Ioan has baen repaid during Lhe year,

[Hli) Information about the Company’s expasure bo Interast rate fisk, foreign currency risk and liquidity risk s disclosed In note 30,

Trade payablas

Trade payablas

Total nutstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises (Refer note 32)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other then micro enterprises and small enterprises

Nuotes:

[i) Trade payable from related parties are disclosed In note 37

[il} Information about the Company's exposurs to interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and liquldity rlsk is disclosed in note 30

Dther current flnancial Nabliities

Current maturltles of long lerm debt
- fram hanks [secured]

(Refer pole 16 - Tern losn from banks for detalls of security end repayment tarms)

= from othars {securad)

{Refer note L6 Teem loan from other than banks for detalls of securlty and repayment serms)

- Cusrent maturities of finance lease obllgalions [Rafer note 36{1])

Othar than trada payables :

Actrued amployoe costs

Unelalmed dividend

Payables In respect of fixed assets
Payable to subsidiaries {Refer noke 37)
Security deposits

Forveard contracts designated as cash Mow hedges {Rafer Nate 30(3))

Note:

{1} Information about the Company's exposure bo Interest rate risk, fareign currency risk and lquidity risk s disclased in note 30,

Cther current lakilities

Unearned revenue
Advances fram customers
Statubory remittances

Provisions

Pravision for employea benefis

- Compensated Absences

- Graluily [Refar nota 35(2))

Cher provisions

= Pravislon for Onercus Contracts

- Service tax payabla {nel of tax pald under pratest)
- Pravision for warranty (Refer note 41011

120

089 046
692,86 58830
£93.85 588.76
11615 B53.40

1.82 942
0.587 0.95
66197 442.60
684 5.84
173.m 110.95
7.95 3151
043 076
1566

1,150.70 1,227.43

62259 84.42

264 7.2
25250 152,12
885,73 233,83
158,92 158.50
45,52 277

0.66

3.58 354
119 631
215.63 19133




KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2018

{Amount in ¥ million)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
23 Rewvenue from operations
Software serviges 14,346.09 12,974.56
Sale of products
Finished goods 7744 4827
14,423.53 13,223.23
24 Other income
Interest income 47.34 122.45
Dividend Income from current Investments 49.90 an
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 1,33 0.58
Foreign exchange gain [net) {Refer note {1} below) 317.02 20.29
Other non gperating Income [net of expenses directly attributable to such 5.16 12.87
Income) (including miscellaneous income)
A420.75 155.40

Notes:
{i} Includes gainsf{losses) (net) on forward contracts designated as cash flow hedges transferred from cash flow hedging
reserve % {113.03} million (Previous year - % {51.55} million) {Refer note 30(3)).
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
Jor the yeor ended on 31 Morch 2018

{Amount in % million)

25 Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of materlals st the beginntng of the year
Purchases
inventory of materials at the end of the year

26 Ch in i ories of finished goods and work-'n-progress

Finished gaods
Inventories at the beglnning of the year
Inventories at the end of the year

Work-In-progress
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Inventories at the end of the year

27 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and incentives

Contribution to provident fund {Refer aote 35{1))

Share based compensation to employees {Refer note 42)
Staff welfare expenses

28 Finance costs

Interest expense [Refer note (i) below)
Met loss an foreign currency transactions and transiations
{considered as finance costs)

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
73.32 298.96
877 7.39
23.02 7332
54.07 233.03
0.35 491
0.11 Q.35
0.24 4.56
1.24 3.29
0.44 1.24
0.BD 205
1.04 6.61
8,910.60 7,653.89
278.34 240.07
13.76 .72
39.05 40.71
9,241.75 7,965.40
46.84 85.39
147 .
48.31 85.39

Note

(i} Includes amount of % 0,14 million (Previous year - % 0.22 million) pertaining to finance lease obligatians.
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2018

{Amecunt in X million}

29 Other expenses

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Travel and overseas expenses (net) 270.81 279.76
Transport and conveyance (net) 150.26 164,19
Cost of sarvice delivery {net) 240.36 245.67
Cost of professional sub-contracting (net} 305.53 32379
Recruitment and training expenses 102.55 107.85
Power and fuel 131.62 121.80
Rent {Refer note 38(2)) 330.78 301.75
Repairs and maintenance -
- buildings 1.59 514
- plant & equipment 246.25 245.45
- others 57.51 62.99
Insurance 97.34 83.46
Rates & taxes 37.64 7.12
Commun|cation expenses [net} .64 22,08
Legal and professional fees (Refer note 44{2}) 338.49 135.86
Marketing expenses 21.06 2811
Printing & stationery g9.28 8.29
Auditors remuneration {net of taxes)
- Audit fees 9.00 9.00
- Limited review of quarterly results 1.20 1.20
- Fees for other services 6.87 3,96
- Out of pocket expenses relmbursed 0.B9 0.949
Bad debts written off 11.54 135.16
Provislon for doubtfut debts and advances {net) 104.64 {214.49)
Contributions towards corporate social responsibllity {Refer note 44{1)) 27.17 25.61
Miscellanecus expenses (net) 214.09 205.99
2,787.11 2,370.73

Note
Certain expenses are net of recoverles/reimbursements from customers.
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financial staternents {continued)

For the yeor ended on 31 Moroh 2018

30  Financlal Instrumants

30.1 Finenclaf Instruments by category

The carrying value and falr vatue of fi

by catep)

a5 on 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Particulars Amortised | Flnanclal assets/ lablliies at falr |  Financial assats/llabiitles a1 | Total carrying | Total falr value
cost value through profit or lpss Fair value through OC1 value
= N + T " 4
- T )

upon Initial ugon Inittal

recopnition recognltion
Assels
Investrents - 1,134.75 1,184.75 1,134.75
Trade rerelvahles 547733 - 5417.33 5.477.33
Cash and cash egqulvalents 1471EE - - 147166 147166
Other balancas with banks 52.35 - 52.35 5235
Loans 475.25 - . 473,35 474.25
Unhilled revenue 464.50 . & . 464,50 464,50
GOrther financlal assets 12.47 - o _ . 1247 1247
Total Assets 7,957.56 * 1,184.75 = & 5,142.31 514231
Liahifties
Borrowings 2,457,132 . - - 245713 247354
Trade payables G93.B5 - L - = 693,85 E338%
ther finandal liahlitles 1,135.04 = . L 1565 11507 1150.70
Tatal Uahiliti 4.326.02 - = » 15.66 434158 4,315.09
The carrylng value and Falr valur of financial instruments by categerles as on 31 March 2017 were as fallgws:
Particulars Amartised | Financa) astets/ liahlHtles at fair | Flnancial assets/liabilities at | Total carrylng | Total falr value

cost vialue through profit or loss | fair value through DCI valua
L1 d Jatary i d Jatory

upon Inial upon initlal

recognition racognitlon
Asspte
Investmants . 77768 # o) 717.68 TIT.68
Trode receivables 5,005.65 E 2 ¥ = 5,565 5,005.65
Cash and cash equivalents 1,332.29 - - 1,33224 1,332.29
Other balances with banks 4800 = s 48.00 48.00
Loans B(5.BF = = . = B05.E7 BO5.67
LUnbilled revenue 3 - - - 33 Tl
Qther financlal assets 23.74 = 5 = 112.03 13637 136.77
Tutal Assets 7,330.06 B F71.68 = 113.03 3,429.7% 842077
Uabilities
Borrowlngs 286289 = . 1,662.89 1,835.05
Trade payatles 588.76 ' 588.76 SHE.76
Other Ananglal Nabilities 122743 ol 1,227.43 122743
Taotal Llablities 4.5759.08 - . = 1 # 4.679.08 4,651.24
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial statemants {continued)
for the yeor ended on 31 March 2018

30.2 Fairvalue hlararchy

Financial assets and labllitles Indude cash end ¢ash equivelents, other balances with banks, trade recelvabies, toans, unbllled revenua, other fAnandal
assets, trade payables and ather Fnandal lisbilltles whase falr values approximate thelr carrylng amounts largely due ta the shert term nature of such
assets and liabiiltfes,

Leve!1 - Queted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 1dentical assats or labllities.

Level 2 = Inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable far the asset or ligbility, elther directly {i.e. as prices) or Indirectly fLe.
darlved from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or labilitles that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inpuis).

The follawing table presents falr value hlerarchy of financial pssets and |labilitles a5 on 31 March 2016

Partitulars ALt Falr velue measurement a5 at

31 March 2018 Level 1 Lawvel 2 Lave| 3
|nvestments In Mutual funds 1,184.75 118475 E =
Irvestient [n equity instruments of other entitles g.op* - - 0.00*
Loan ta Impack Automative Solutlons Limited 101,33 s 10133
Derivative Anancial labilities 15.65 - 1566 =
Bomowings 2.473.54 = 247554 =
The Follgwing table presents fair value hlerarchy of agsels and llabllities measured as on 31 March 2017
Particulars Bs at Falr value measurament as st

3i March 2017 level Lewel 2 Level3
Inveslment in Sankalp Semicanductors Private Limlted 117.5% - s 117.55
Tnwestments In Mutual funds 60,13 6613 -
Investment in equily instruments of cther entities 0.00% . - 0.00*
Derivative financial assets 112,03 . 113.03 .
Rorrowngs Z.835.05 2B35.05

* Since denaminated in ¥ milllon.
Valyation tachnlque and significant unobservable inputs:

Level 2:

i} Derlvative financial assets are valued based on Inputs that are diractly or Indirectly observable In the market,

{ii) Borrawings and loans glven are valued uslng the discounted cash flaw method, the net cash flows expected to be generated are discounted using the
cost of borrowing that ere directly o indirectly observable In the market.

Lewel 3;
[adaation techeliguirs Sgnificant unobservabde inpuly
For valuatlon of In equity discounted cash flow method i « Budgeted revenue growth rate (5%}

used tg capture the gresent value of expected future economic benakits. Under te| - Welghted average cost of capital [19%)
discounted cash flow method, the net cash Rows sxpected to be gencrated are
dicsnted wiing the weighted tragn oot of eapial

Slgnificant Increase in discount rates and spreads above risk frea rate, in isalatlon would result In lgwer fair values. A significant increase In volatillty In
revenue growth rates will resuit In higher fair value,
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Naotes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the year ended on 31 March 2018

30.3 Financla! rfsk menagement

The board of di has overali r k for tha hilsh and ight of the Company dgk management framewark. The board of directors
has established the Rfsk i which Is respons|ble for plng and Itoelng the Company's risk managernent policies,

The Company has expasire to Lhe follawlng risks arising from financial instruments ;

a.  Credit risk
Credly risk is the risk of financlal losses to the Compeny If & customer or counterparty 10 financlal Instruments fails 1o discharge Its contractual
ohligations and arlses primarily fram the Company's recelvables from customers amounting to € 5477.33 million and % 5,005.65 millen and
unbilled revenue amounting to T 464.50 million and % 323,71 millign as on 3% March 2018, 31 March 2017 respectively, To manage this, the
Company periedically assesses the key accounts recefvable balances. As per Ind-A5 109 ; FinancTal Instruments, the Company vses expected credit
Enss model ko assess the impairment loss or gain,
The carrying amaunt of trade and other recelvables and other financial assets represents the maximum credit expasure.

I Trads receivables
The management has astablished accounts recelvable polley under whith customer accaunts are regularly monltared. The Company has a
dedleated sales 1eam at sach phy which 15 ragf ble for collecting dues from the custamer within stipulated period. The

managamant revlews status of eritical accounts on # regular bagis.

3. Impalrrent
A Ini the all & for impai I respact of trade and othet recehables
Particufars Amaunt
| smilom
Balance 25 on April 1, 2016 295.71
Impairment durlng the year .76
Reversal of impairment on account of cellection [118.18]'
Utllisatlon of allowance {135.16)
Foreign exchange translation 137
Balance as on farch 31, 2017 81.50
Impafrment durlng the year 21399
Reversal of impalrment on account of cellection [96.56)
Utillsation of allowance [12.79)
Foreign exchange translation 147
| Balance as on March 31, 2018 1B7.61
Trade recefvables that were not Impaired
Partlculars Carrying amaunt
33 March 2018|391 March 2017
Meither past due nor Impalred 374170 2,899 B0
Past due 1- 30 days 953.04 954.08
Past dua 31- 90 days 423.29 99516
Past due 91 - 180 days. 229.21 71.69
Mare than 1680 days 129,99 84,52

uUnbllled revenue is not outstanding for more than 90 days.

lil. Cashand bank balances
The Company held ¢ash and ¢ash balances of ® 1,524.01 milfion and T 2,380.25 million a3 ¢n 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017
respectively, The cash and bank balances are held with banks which have high credit ratings assigned by intemationa| credit raring agendes.

iw. Guarantess
The Company’s policy |5 to provide financlal guarantees only on behalf of subsidiaries/associatesfjoint venlures. The Company hat issued
the guarantees to certaln banks in respect of credit facilitles granted to its sub fatesfjolint on 31 March 2018.
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MNotes forming part of the standalene financial statements feontinued}
for the year ended on 31 March 2018
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Ligubdity risk

Uiquidity risk is the rizk that the Cormpany will encaunter dilflculty in meeting the chlizations associated with itz financial Kabilles that are settled
by delivaring cash or another finandial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity ¥ To ensure, as far as possible, that It witl have
sufiiclent llguidity to meet Its labllities when they are due, under beth normal and stressed conditlons, without incurring unacceptable lpsses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation,

The Company has a view of malntaining liquidity end to take miatmum possible risk while making i In @rder to mainkain liguldity, the
Company Invests 1ts excess Tunds In short term lguid assets ke liguld mutual funds. The Company monlters its cash and bank balances periodically
In view of its short term obligations assoclated with 1ts financlal liabilitles.

Eg", ify podition at mach rephiting dols i ghen Balow:

) Murnban-400011

Particulars 31 March ZDIB! 31 March 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 147165 1,232.29
Other balances with banks 45.51 4116
Investments in Mutual funds {guoled) 1.184.75 L1 E
Firad deposits with banks induding Interest accrued 1247 2374
Total 2714339 2.058.32
T lollowing are the iemalnbag contractusl matusities oA ancial lisbifitles as on 31 March 2018
Farticulars Less than 1-2 yrars 24 yaars d-5 yaars > 5 years Total

1 year
Barrowlngs 1,835.07 I2KE8 328.20 1.20 5.98 249713
Trade payebles 693,85 . - - - £93.85
Other financlal liabilities 1.150:70 . = = - 1,150,700
The following sre the reswning oosaracnasl maturitles of financial labltes o oo 11 8 piel iR
Partlculars Lass than 1-2 yaars 2.4 years 8.5 yenrs > 5 YEAIE Total
Borrowlngs 187758 325.30 BE1ES 3,38 = 2,862.89
Trade payables SRE.YE - . - - 588.76
Qther financlal liabllitles 121743 . - — = 1,237.43
Market risk

Market rlsk 1s a risk that the fair valug or future cash flows of a financlal instiument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The ohjective
of market risk management |s to manage and contral market rlsk expesures within aceeptable parameters, while oplirmizing the return,

i.  Forelan currency risk
Significant portfan of the Company’s revenues are in forelgn currencles, while a significant portian of the costs are In Indlan rupee Le,
functianal currency of the Company. The foreign currenclas b which the Company is majerly exposed to are Us Dallary, Euros and Pound
Sterling.

The Campany evaluates net exchange rate exposure based on currgnt revenue profections and expected valatllity In the market and covers
its exposUre up te 75% on net basls. Far this purpose the Company uses foreign currency derivative instrurenis such a5 forward covers Lo
mitigate the risk. The counterparty to these darivative instruments is 2 bank, The Company has 1 cartaln delvalive i a5
cash fiow hadge to mitigate the foreign exchange expasure of highly probable forecasted cash flows.

Ewposure to Currency Risk
The fnflowing is the Company's exposure (o ureency flsk from financial indlrursents as of 32 March 2018; [in % mifiion]
Particulars V5 Dallars Euros Pound Sterling Other Total
currencles
Cash and cash equlvalents 157.05 220.00 10055 31851 B46.55
Trade receivables 2,537.52 71131 255.72 B64.95 4,373.50
Other financlal assets [induding loan) 0148 3555 634 49,20 496,57
Borrowlngs 12,256.28] [161.24) . - {2417.52)
Trade payablas 156.584| [17.69] [L58] 13158 {108.67)
Qther financial Habllit! GAI_E.ZB.‘ [5.85] 14,501 f1.14] {357.72)
Net assets/iliabilitles) 386.70 53208 413.59 1,195.54 2,830 1

Lo
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Naotes forming part of the standalone financial statements {continued)
for the yeor ended on A1 March 2018

30,3 Financlal risk management fcontinued)

Tive fnllowing ic the Company’s eup o currency risk from fnancial i as of 31 March T0IT:
Partlculars Us Dolfars Euros Pound Starling THher

currencles
Cash and cash equivalents 103.51 64.01 1704 177.13 461,79
Trade recefvables 3,029.53 306,54 28233 399.43 4.017.83
Other flnanclal assels (Including loan) B67.2% 35,08 3564 4133
Borrowings [3.111.77) {36182} . 13,473.59)
Trade payables [80.50 |20.72) [2.57 [37.48) {141.27)
DOther flnanclal Aabllities [4?.69!’ 11.39) [1.R4 (17.98) .
Met assatsfillablitles! 560.37 1.0 319.55 652,43 1.574.05

For the year endad 31 March 2018, every 1% appreriation / deprociatian of the exchange rats between respeciive forelgn currencles and
the Indian rupee would impact the operatlng margins by approglmately 1.20% £ [1 20%.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, every 1% appreciation / depreclation of tha exchange rate between respective forelgn currencies and
the Indian rupes would impact the aperating marging by approsimately 0.60% [ (0.60%.

ii. Derivative assets and ligbilltles designated as cash low hedges

In accordance with Its risk gement polley and busi plan the Company has hedged Ws cash Aows, The Company enters inte
derlvatlve contracts to offset the forelgn currency risk arlsing from the i in ¢ cther than In [ndian rupess. The
counter party to the Company's foreign oumency contradts Is a bank. These contracts are entered Into to hedge the forelgn currency risks of
Flem commitments [sales orders) and highly probable forecest wansectlons. Hedge effectlveness is determined at the Inception of the hadge
relstionshlp, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an economic relationshlp exlsts betwesn the
hedged Itam and hedging instrument, including whether the hedging mstrument |s expedted to offsel changes In cash flows of hedged
itams,

The following are the outstanding GBP/USD/EUR: INR Currency Exchange Conlracls entered Into by the Company which has been
designated a3 Cash Flow Hedges:

Partlculars _ 31 March 2018 31 March 217
Forelgn T [million) Forelgn % |million)
Qurrency Currency
EUR 4.10 330.55 440 30469
LI 3935 2,550.45 3665 1,376.33
[ 160 147.56 100 80.58
The forward entered have ily b 30 days te & months from the Balance Sheet date.

The rmovement in the hedging reserve for derivativas, which have been designated az Cash Flow Hadges, ks as Follows:

Particulars 31 March 204B| 31 March 2017
Balance at the beginning of the year 7381 33
Galns/[losses} recognised In Other Comprehensive Income [15.66) 113,03
Armounts rectassiied to Statement of Profit and Loss [113.0%) 151.55)
Deferred tax on fair value of effective portlon of cash flow hedges 44,54 [21.27)

[10.24 73.91

i, Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk 15 the rlsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument will Auctuate because of changes in markat
Interest rates, The Company's exposure ta the risk of changes [n market Interest rates relates primarily to the Cempany's debt oblizations
with Floating Intecest rates and bank depesits, The Interest rate profilz of the Company's interest-bearing finandal instruments is as fallows:

Partlculars |31 March 2018] 31 March 2017
Fiked rate instrumants

Finaricial agsets 559.29 486,15
Financial liabllines 1,852.23 1,805 63

Varlable rate Instrumants
FInancfal aszets . .
Financtal llnbilitics 97870 |  1630.03

A change of 50 basis polnts in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased or decreased finance costs by % 4.98 milllon
{Previous year % 8.10 milllon).
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the dafone fi ial stat ts frontinued)
for the yeor ended on 31 March 2015

31 Ocher syuity

{1 Caphal reserve
Ay proflt or 1033 on purchose, ssle, issue or cancellatlan of the Company's own equity insteuments is tronsherrad To capital reserve.

I} Copltal redemption reserve
Fapresants the nominal amount of the preference share capital on redemption of 400,000, G.01% latr bila prel; thares,

On} Amalgsmation reserve
B the amount credited on account of lation of stack ogtions lssbed pursuant ta the scheme of amalgamatian and acquisition.

{lv) Securltles premium raserva
Securitias premium 15 used @ record the pramium received on issuc of shares. it 1a utliised In sccordance with the provisions of the Companles Act,
2013,

I¥] Share based payment reserve
The Company has establlzhed varicus equily-settled share bazed peyment plans far certaln categorles of employees of the Compeny. Refer note 42
for further detalls,

32 Dscl per the ragul of sectlan 22 of the Mira, Small and Medium Enterprise Devalopment Act, 2005:

a.  Princlpal amount payakle ta Micro and Smatl priscs (to the entent [dentilied by the Cormpany from avallabla Informmation] 85 3t 31 March 2018 ¢
20,55 miflen [Previous year - % 0.46 milllsn). Estimated Inter«st due thereon ks 2 NIl {Previous year - % il

b Amount of payments made e suppllers beyand the sppointed date durlng the vear 1s ® 0.74 millan [Previous year - % 0.34 millon), interest pald
theraon 1s ® Nil {Previous year - X Nil} and the estimated Interest dua and payabla thereon is % 0.01 mHlion [Previous year - % 0.00 milllan).

£ The amount of estimated Inverest acerued and ramalning unpald as at 31 March 2018 ks T 0.68 milllon (Pravious year - % 0.67 million).

d. The amount of further estimated Intarast due and payable fer the prrind fram 1 April 2018 to actual date of payment or 20 Aprll 2018 [whichever 1s
aarler) is % 4.0 millon,

33 Ewpenditure and Eamings in forelgn Currency

A, Bxpanditure In forelgn Currency

[iparticutars FY2017-18 | FY 201637

“3alaries snd wages 1B4.22 180,95
iCorst of professional subcontracting A6.00 43,17
Cost of sardce dullvery 18.16 40,838
Recruitment and training expenses 17.18 157
Travelling expenses 916 1383
arketing expenses 598 B804
Professional expenses 46.75 16.43
Finance charges 4.67 678
Onher Expances 22,63 B.20
Tatal 344.73 32040

8 Earmings In forelgn Currancy

Partieulary Fr 2017-18 FY 2016-17

Software services 9,559.3% 9,562.00
Interest lncome 10.24 24.28
Miscallaneous Incgrme a.10 HIL
Total 9.063.73 9,586.28

24 Partitulars of toans #nd agvances In nature of loans requied te be disclaged In the snnual accounts af the Company pursuant to Regulatlen 3A(3] read
with Schedule V of SEBI {Listing Obligatlons and Mstlosure Requirements) Regulatians, 2015,

Name of party F¥ 2017-13 FY 2018-17
Balanca Maximum amount Balance Manimunm armount
autseanding outstandin
WPIT dnfomy lecorparabed, USA friding inlrmet] = 333.8% 39016 513.37
mpact Aitreseive Solurions Limited [inciiuring isbereat] 10133 101,33 . -

35 Details of employee benefits as required by ind-AS 19 -"Employee benefis are a5 under":

1 Defined contethution plan - Provident fund
Amount recognized as an expense |n the Statement of Profit and Less in resprct of defined cantributlon plan is ¥ 278,34 millian [Previeus year ©
240,07 millicn)

2 Dehned benefl plan
i} Tho defined beneflk plan cormprises gratuity, which s un-lunded.
Iy Actuatial gains and lnsses In respect ol defined benofit plans are recagnizad in the Other Comprehensivo Income {91,

The Company provides for gratully for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratully Act, 1972, Gratuity 13 3 benefit toan employee in |ndis based

e —— o 15 days st drawn salary for sach cormpleted year of servica with a vesting pericd of free years,
)

S
in b U.- 3'\\
Mo '{/ -.1{.:-“- defined benefit plans éupose the Company to actuarizh flsks, such as longevity risk and interest rate rlsk.
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Motes forming part of the dalone financial stat feantinued)}
Jfor the yeor ended on 31 Muorch 2018

35 Detalls of employee benefits s required by ind-AS 1% - "Emplayes henefits are as under” frontinaed)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefiy F Matkon of apening mnd chaskng balances tharaof ara as Tollaws ¢
Particulars Fr 10i7-18 FY 201617
Prazant vaiki of delined benefit ohligation at the beginning of the year 28913 22875
Cufrit sorvlce cast 4553 5126
Interast cost 2102 17.82
Pail sarvice oost =
hctanrial loss £ [Galn) [sed In cther hensive Income
a) changes [n demogrs phlc assump lons 4310
b changes In financial ssturnplions 11.04) 20,43
<} experience adfusiments 1142 199
ey Transferred out f Dlvestments 10.a7)
manafien pald {30.03) (L]
vt vabo of defined benaln obgation ot the end of the yeas 368,90 269,13

Rnalysls of defined benefit ohllgation FY 2017-13 FY 201617
| tresent value of ahlizatlon as at the end of the year 26890 2E9.13

Netiassent S liabilly recegnliad ln the Balance Sheet _269.13 |
of emy P { Ized In tha of Profit and Loss FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17

et defvie cost 45,83 3128
| nberest cost 102 1782
Iznpenses recognlzad In the Statement of Proflt and Loss 66,85 59,08
Ci of amphoy f i In the Dther Comprehenshre Income Fr2(17-18 FY 2016-17
ocy

Actuarial loss { {galn) 4348 342
Het fincarmelfexpense reconized in the OC| 43.48 23.41
Actuarlal Assumptions: Fr2017-18 | FY201617 |
Discount rate 15845 2T
Salary Escalation 5.000%, £.00%
Atrrithan Aate F¥ 2017-18 F¥ 2916-17

= 2 years and balaw 25.00% 20.00%
- between 3 ond 4 yaars 20000, 20,00%,
= 5 yrars and above 7.50%] 2,008

8. The discount rate 1s based on prevailing yields of Indian Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the
obligation.

b.  Salwry Escelation Rate: The estimates of future $alary increases bakes inte account tha bntlation, senioity, promotion and other relevant factars,

©.  Assumptions regarding future mortality rates are the rates as ghen under Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-08) Ulimate,

Senslilvhiy Analysls

Reazonably possible changes at the reparting date to one of the ralovant actuaial assumptlons, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit gblization by tha ameunts shown below,

Y 200718 FY 200617

Projected benefit obligation on current Defined benella abligation Ciefined berefit abigatien

Increase: | Decrease Increase Decrease
Dis¢ount rate [1 % mavement) (24.45) 2.11 133.3¢] 40.29 |
Future salary grawth [1 % movement] _1"_&59 {2__5_.25I| A0.67 [ELNE]
| atiritlan rate 1% movernent] 446 | (5.23)] .15 19,64}
Malurity profife of defined benefit plan
IPrajected beneflts payable In futurs vears from the date of reporting FY 2017-18 FY¥ 2016-17
Wilth 1 yaar 43.52 177
1-2 year 2518 11.8
2-3year 3317 9.40
34 year 3325 1233
45 year Irs7 1223
5-10 years 145.30 7287
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the dalone financlal stat fecontinued]
for the pagr ended an 31 Muarch 2028

35 Detalls of employee beneflts na required by Ind-AS 19-"Employee beneflts are as under™ fcontimued]

ighted average used to M net perigdic benefit vost
Part]culars FY 201710 F¥ 201617
Numbar of acthe members 10,853 10,243
Per month salary cast for all agtlve members [2 milllon} 20029 181.96
Welghted averaga duration of the projected benefit abligatian {yzars} .00 15.00
Avarage expected future service {yenca) 7.00 13.00
Prolectad benefit oblleatlon IPBG] 368,90 88.13

36 Segmeat Informatlon

Where a financlal report containa both consolldated flnanch| statements and separate financlal statements of the parent, segment Information needs o be
presented only In case of diclated finanzlal segment Inform: 1 has besn ded anly n the lidarad financlal
StATEmERLS,

37 Related pany disclosures

A Relatlonship bevween the parent and s subsidiarles:

| Relationship wame of related party

Subskdiary Companles EPIT Technologles [LK] Limlted

|Direct holding} EPIT Infasyslems Incorparaled, US4
EPIT Technologies France SAS

KPIT [Shanghal] Software Technalogy Co. Limlted, China
KPIT Technologies Matherlands B.y.

SYSTIME Computer Corparation, U5A

KPIT Infasystams ME FZE, Dubai

Impact Automolive Solutions Limited

KPIT Englnesring Limlted fur o4 DR lanuary 20181

Subsldlary Companlzs KPIT Technol bH, v (Through KPIT Technobogles (UK] Linlted)

|indirect holding] KPIT medinl Technologies AS {Thraugh KPIT Technalagias GmbH, Germany]*
XPIT Selutlons GmbH (Th h KPIT Technologles GmbH,

Sparta Consulling Ine., USA [Throuwgh EPIT Infosystems Incarposated, USA}

KPIT Technologles Solug@es EM Informdtica Leda. [Threugh KPIT Infosyslers Incorporated, USA)

ifcroFuezzy KPIT TECHOUODGIA LTDA, Braail [Through SYSTIME Computer Corpatalion, USA]

KBIT Technologies Corparation, Canade (Through SYSTIME Camputer Corporatian, LISA}

MicroFuzzy industrla -Elektronic GmbH, Germany {w.e.f. 01 Becember 2016 through KPIT Tachnologias GmbH,

Germany}

Assoclate Yantra Clgltal 3ervices Private Limited, India (w.ef. 05 October 2016 and upto 31 January 2048 thraugh Impact
Autarnotlve Solutions timlted]

laint Yenture Yantra Digital Services Privata imited, Indla {w.e.f. 01 February 2018 through Impact Automctive Solutlons

Limniledi****

* Durfng previovs year, KPIT Technclogies GmbH sold the Tnvestment In KR medinl Technelogles AG, 15 subsidiary company. The transaction
resulted In boss of conirat with effect Trom Nevember 1, 2016,

B.  Ustof Key Managemeant Personnel =

Key Managamant Parsonnel [KMP} har, 5.B.Ravl) Pandit Dlrectar
Mr_Klshow Patll [Fareutive Riresbor
Mr. Sachin Tlkekar Exctcutlve Director
v, Ragh h Anant kfagh {upko 23 | Jant Director
Furgust 2017}

Lila Paonawalla |Indeoendem. Diractor

Praf, Alberta Sanglavanni | Indspendant Trecter
Mr. Sanjay Kukrefa jrpte 15 Septembar Non- execulive Director
2017}

fir, Anent Talaulicar Independant Diractor
M. Adl Engineer i Diractor
mAr. B ¥ A Subbu INan- executlye Diractor
iDr. Klaus Blickle lw.e.f, 34 January 2018} Mon- executive Director

BAr. Nickhl Jakatdar (w.c.f, 24 Janwary 2018)|Independent Diracter

M. Al P dh Chief Financial Officer
tAs, Snaha Fadve Cowmpany Secratary

. UstoF other related partlos with whom thera are transactions

Relative of KMP e Mr. Chinmay Fandt
Ms. Jayada Pandit

M, $hrevas Patwardhan

Enterprise avar which KMP hava significant Influence KP Corporate Solutions Limited

Froficent Findteck LLP
Kirtane & Pandit LLP
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalene financial statements feontinued)
JSor the yeor ended on 31 March 2018

D, Transactlons with related parties

No. |Name of related parly FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17
Amaunt of Balance a3 on Arnaunt ef Balanga a5 on
transactlions durng 31 March 2018 transactions durlng 31 March 2007
the year DrbitfiCredit) the year Debltf{Credit
{€ million) fKewllion] | ftemilomy | {Tmllion) |
Iransactians with subskdlary companlas®
L | KPIT Technologles [UK) Umited
Irvest ment in equity MIL B2T.08 HIL B27.08
Sales 1.189.57 2145 952,14 343,48
Relmbursement revenue 57.84 69,95
Suftware service charges 0.33 0.34] 0.08 0.19
Advance given [nac) 1974 2156
Relmburse ment of expenses {net) 5420 2289 A8.62 15.78
| fEusrantee fees 0.04 041
2 | KPITTachnologlas France
Investmant in aquity NIt 21597 HiIL 21597
e | L& 62,66 p———mdBLId. 1234
Relrmbursement revenue 5.05 9.53
softwara sarvite charges NIL 10031} 040 {0,338}
dyance given (net) 1.80 .85 2.55 T
| Relmbursement of expenses fneth 270 495
3 | KPT Technologles GmbH, Germany
sales 707.18 arLeo 59081 23066
Ralmbursement revenue 10.59 12.31
ipftware servica charges 15.84 (13468 7.A1 14750}
hedvance given [net) 1144 15.08 1303 1273
|| Relmbursement of expenses fret) 3TT L33
4 | KPIT Inforysiems Incorporated, USA
Investment in equity NIL 2,B79.17 ML 187917
Sales 4.825.49 1,816.63 452,60 1,144.87
Relmbursement revanue 9565 146,51
softwarse service charges ar.340 33,44 64.80 1,73
Behance given [nak} 33,95 3768
Relmbursement of expenses jnet) 270,61 19.43 26440 14251
FSuaraniee fees 26 &
Rapaymeontof laaa granted to subsidory*® 39388 134.77
Lean granted ta subsidiasy ML NiL MIL 39416
Interest Income 6.70 20,20
5 | Sparta Consultlng Inc., LISA
Babvance given fnat) 171 7132 0,31 216
Relmburse ment of expenses jnet] 72.03 1A
Raimburse mant revenue 1847 27986 57,47 193,10
Salles _700.60 70163
Geftwars sarvice charges HIL NIL .01 fo.139)
& |KPIT |sh hal) fi hnol Con Umhed,
China
Investment In 2qulcy HIL 128,84 HIL 12884
Sales 53.59 53.09 43,50 23,95
Raimbursement rovanise &M 0,92
Softwarg service charges 1.52 {1.64]} .83 f0.05}
Selvanca taken (net) NIL 172 0,15 544
| Peimbursement of enpansts [net) .04 4,34
7 | KPIT Technalygles Carporatian, Canada
Sales 39748 152.06 I71H2 96,62
Halmbursement revenue 5.29 .81
Software service charges 001 10.01Y) 0.24 {0.22))
advance glven {net} 534 .52 141 456
|___|Reimbursernant of akpenses net) 26.72 13.35
£ |KPIT Infosysterns ME FZE, Dubal
Irweskrment in Equlty MIL 2541 MIL 2541
Sales NIL {13.25) ML [13.24]
Relmbursement revenue NIL MIL
Advance lakan {net] 0.11 MIL
Advance glven [net) ML 031 .41 0.36
Reimbursement of axpenses (net) |G.Da! o.07
| |Guarantee feas 0.24 0,33

Sth FIgur "y
Lotha Zacelug,
* | Apwliy Mily el
W4 Jasi Marg,

Mahataemi,
Relwmbrai- 100011
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

[

Notes forming part of the dal iinanclal st {continued)
For the yeor ended on 31 March 2015
LLI
Na. | Nama of relatad party FY 20471 FY 2016-17
Amount af Balance a3 on Amaunt of Balance as on
tranzartions during 31 Merch 2018 transactlons during| 31 hdarch 2017
the yaar Debitf[Cradit) the year Deebit/ [Cradit)
{2 milllon] % miRienk 1% milllicn} 1% millan}
9 | KPIT Infosystams ME FZE {Australla Rranch}
5alos 75.04 2698 47, 25,45
Reimbursement revenue 31 11.08
Sattware sarvice charges 0.83 34 0,14 4.19
Advance taken (nat) (L] HIL
Advance glven {net] L 031 0.67 137
[net] 728 210
10 | KPIT Infosystems ME FZE [Korea Branch)
Sales 13175 47.24 5858 1B.59
Relmbursement revenus [T 0,32
Saftware service charges 0.81 {083} NIL ML
Hdvance taken (et 31 HIL
Advance gleen {net] MIL 174 1.48 .74
|| Relmbursement of ekoenzes [net} 271 4.14
11 | KPIT Tachnologles Metherlands BV,
Imvestmant In Equily MIL 34.30 NIL 34.30
Sa]_zs 20272 5673 180.35 |41
Reimbursemeant ravenue 1734 101
Adyance glven {net] 142 180 3.64 560
|____|Reimbursement of [neth 478 .08
12 | KPIY Yechnologles SalugBes EM Lada.
Inwerstinant in Equity MIL 0.04 NIL 004
Softwars sarvice tharpes 0.52 NIL 2673 I5.97]
13 | KPIT Technol {UE} Limited [Sweden Branch)
sales B0.06 2564 51.98 1378
Ralmbursement revenus 1.B1 313
Softwars service charges MIL 0.79 10,70} 067
Advance given {net} 1.41 MIL
Agvance taken (net) HIL .09 0.0 141
of Ineth .94 .81
14 | SYSTIME Computer Corporation, USA
Irwrestmcat i Equity HIL 465.36 fanl 454,36
Sales 37315 22950 653,31 233,37
Reimbursement revenue 11.69 .83
Software service charpes 0,34 0,02 10.16 16.77))
Adyance given [net) 4.22 {2.03] 3,02 Bat
| |Reimb of expanses (net] 27.69 30.16
15 | Impact Automotive Solutlons Limited
Investment in Equity 16T.50 1326.2% 500,10 953.79 |
Advanca glven [nel) .25 180 .26 187
Reimbursement of expanses [nat] f0.26} 0.05
Loan granted 1o subsidiary®** 100,00 10L33 HIL HIL
Intorest Incarme 148 HNIL
Rent and administration chargas 6.05 NIL 5.61 NIL
Furchaze of Camponents 180 HIL MIL .01
Licarsa Fags 1R.8% L84 NIL 17838
Sales 21,14 214.51
16 | KMIT Sclutions GmbH
|| Reimbursement of expenses {net} NIL 004 004 0.04
17 | kPIT medinl Tachnalogles AG
Purchase of license NA NA ML HIL
| |software servlce charges WA o.78
18 | MicroFuzzy Industrd k GmbH, ¥
Sales 4613 36.83 HIL NIL
| |Software service charges 102 11931 HIL L |
19 | KAT Engineering Umited
Inwastment in Equity 1.00 1.00 Hh MA
|____|Relmbursement of [nex) 2.51 2.51 HA M
30 | rantra DAgital Servlces Private Limited, Incdla
|| delmbursament of expenses [net) {2.38) {1.36} HiL MIL
Transactkons with Key Mahagamant Persenael
1 | Mr. 5. B. [Ravt) Pandlt
Shart term employes henefits 3707 NIL 31.70 MIL
Post ermployment heneflt plans 1.78 NIL 148 NIL
imt af axpenses fnet) 0.23 10.04)| 237 HIL
2 | Mr. Kishor Patll
thart term employec benefits 29.63 MIL 16.65 BIL
Fast employment beneflt plans 0.85 1 MIL 0.7 HIL
Perqulzites 0.59 NIL .70 &
Repayment of loan granted .63 i7.6% 5.23 2352
Interest recelved 163 MIL .04 _HIL
imk ol expenses inet] 0.31 {7} - 2.44 10.33]

Louba kxcelis. Y
[

[
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Motes forming part of the standalone finandal statements fcontinued)
Sor the year ended on 31 March 20613

0.

nastation) Wi reiated parties fiatiaud]
No. |Name of relaced pariy FY 2017-18 FY 2015-17
Amount of Balance az on Ammaunt of Balance 335 on
transactions durlng. 31 March 2018 wansaclions durlng 31 tarch 2017
tha year Deblif{Credit) he year Debit/{Credit)
|% million} % milton] i mtilllond {2 million)
3 | Mr. Sachin Tikekar
short term employee benellts 29.35 LT} 35.13 HIL
ost =mployment benelit plans D40 HiL 033 HIL
|| Feimbursemert of expanzes (neth 048 HIL 2 (1.005]
4 | Mr. Anll Patwardhan
Short term erployes benefits 1.87 NIL 843 _HIL |
Post emplayment heneflt plans 0.21 ML 0.21 HIL |
|| Reimbursement of axpenses [net] .03 NiL 0.32 HIL
5 |Ms. Sneha Padve
Shart term employee benefits 4.00 MIL 3.70
Post employmant benefle plans 0.13 NIL 0.12 il
| {Relmbursement of expenses inet) 0.03 NIL MIL HIL
§ | Dr. Raghunath Angnt Mashelkar
“ommisslon pald 185 2631
| Lsitting feas HIL - 240 oL
7 |Ltla Pognawally
Connmissien pald 1 2.23 ML 3.12 NIL
| |3ltting fees .29 0.23]
8 |Prof. Albartc Sanglovanal Vincentelll |
Commlssfan pald 240 3.6
] fees 006 ML 0.1 NI
4 |Anant Talaulicar
] Eiltlni feas 0.07 HNIL ] MIL
10 | Al Englneer
Commisston paid 116 ™ 274 WL
| Lsitting lees 0z? 0.3
11 | BV A Subbu
Tommiszion paid 161 NIL 2,32 NIL
| |5ltting faes 0,05 0.1%
12 | Dr. ¥laus Blickle
sitting fees 02 NIL MA HA

Transactiens with relative of Key Management Personnel
1 |Mr. Chinmay Pandit

Short term employee benefits 418 HIL 4.16 M |
Post employment benefit plans .11 HIL £11 HIL
|___|#eimbursement af fner) .54 f0.13) 2% HIL
2 |Mrs, Jayada Pandk
Shart term employee benafits 1.52 NIL 1.72 ML |
| P2t EployrEnt banefit plans 0.06 MIL 0.5 RIL |
3 |Mr. Shreyas Patwardhan
Shert term amployee benefils 0.51 MIL 067 MIL
Posl ermployment benefit plans 0.0 HIL a.a2 __hli |
| lReimbursement of {ngt) 0.10 0.0 HiL HIL
| Tramtactisns with enterprise ever which Kry Managemant Persaned hive significast influence:
1 |EF Corparate Solrtions Lyd. T
| e J faes 1A% mg{ 151 pal
2 | Kirtane & PandIt LLP
Professional feac .27 m,mI 044 0.04
3 |Prefickent FinStock LLP
\Denaitg for reappeintmant of directors KIL HIL | 0,40 {0.40
Note = engludes |sicn foor i benellts a3 separate astuarial valuation for the directors, key management persannegl and thelr

relathees |3 par available.

®  Alltrangactions with these related partles are priced on an atm's length basls.
The loan carrles Interest rate of 5.25% p.a. and s repayable on dermand, net exceeding thitty six maonths fram the date of [oan grealed. The loan
was repald by KPIT Infosystemns Incorporated, LS4 durlng the current year.
*** The loan carries [nterest rate of 9,35% p.a., and |5 blé on domand, not

-

sikty months from the dete of loan granted,

“¥U® The Investee is » subsidiary as defined under section 2{8Y) of Lhe Companles Act, 2013. For the purpese of Ind-A5 fnancial staiements, the
entity has been consldered a5 8 Joint Ventura as defined under lnd-AS 28 11 T Aszocianes and Joine
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the dalone financial stat feonti 1)
Jor the year ended or 31 Morch 2018

38 Lease transactions
1. Flnance leases
The Company has taken vehlcles undar finante (¢ase for & period ranging from 3 1o 4 years, Upon payment of all sums dhis towards the agresment,
the Company has the optian of acquiring the Veicles, During the laasa periad, the Company can nalthar s2fl, aszlen, sublet, pledge, mortgage, charge,

encumber or part with possession of the assets, nov create or allow to creste ahy Hen on the vehlcles taken on lease.

The Compary has also taken jand under finante kase wnd the lease rantal of which has been pald In lts entinsty at the commencement of the lease
period.

Reconeiliation batwean future minlmum lease payments and their present valuas under finance |ease as at tha year snd 5 33 fellows:

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 3017
& milllcn = milllon
Future minimum beass pryments
- neit |ater than one year 481 1.9
- [ater than one year and nat later than flve years NIL 0ol
- later than flve years NIL HIL
Totel future minimurm lesse payments 091 .00
Ameount represanting fucure Intarast 004 Q.13
Present value of huture minimum [eaze payments 087 162
= not fater then one year 0.8y 0.95
- later than ane year and not Jatar than fve years NIL .87
- laker than five yaars HIL HIL |

et carning amount of assets held under finsnce ease az on 31 March 2018 s ® 45117 miflten {31 March 2017 % 439.51 milllon).

1. Operating leates

ol towards lable op g Leases:
The Coerpary has saken laeilvies and office prermésay on braye. The heture lests pyments for fhivs eStiesare is usder
|Perticulary 11 March 2018 31 March 2017
L4 m]llg_l * i
Bl lease payments
= Wt later than ane year A05.10
- later than one year and Mot latar than flve years 597,43
= kater th n five puari 9E2.07 ,133,
Total minimum lease payments 2,159.60 2.430.62
Rental expenses of % 330,78 million |Previous year % 30175 million] in respect of chtigation under operating laases have been recegnized In the
Staternent af Profit and Loss.
ozt of the fing lease arr arer ble an a perlodic basls. Some of these lease agreemants have price escalation clauses.
30 Basle and dllyeq earnbigs per ihire
Particulary F¥ 2017-1R FY 201€-17
Nominal valua per egully shere T a0 00
Proflk for the year T pmillian} 1,775.50 1,692.84
‘Welghted average number of mquity shares Mo, of shares 151,578,384 191,832,066
Carpings per shore  Bugls T 522 LKL
Effect of dilutva potentlal equity shares-
Employee 3tack options (Incduding shares held by Employes Welfarz Trusk) Wi af shares 6,600,204 8,020,201
ielghind avernge number of diluted equity sharas. M, of shares 199,178,564 189,852,267
arningy pei ihire « mul;__ ki 8.91 BA7

A0 The Company haz recebed recognition from Department of Scientific and Induskrial Research, Minlstry of Sclenca and Technology DSIR an 1 ARl 2014 far
its Research nnd Devalopment [R&D] facllity at 1ts premises In Hinjews di which is effective from 1 April 2014 ko 31 March 2018, Durlng the year, the R&D
facllity |s approvad for the puspose of sectlan 35[248] of the Income Tax Act, 1561, trom 1 Aprll 2094 to 31 March 2018,

and devel i debiled 10 the Statement of Profit and Loss aggrogating to ® 19311 milllon [Previous year % 188.53 milllen} has
been Incurred by the Compary and disciosed under approprisle account heads. Out of total R & D chpendilure incurrad during the year T 14134 milllon
(Preious year % 125.61 million] is towards eliglble R & D ekpenditure under section 35 [2A8), Also refer nate 43.

the Company has set up a new facliity for its & & O activities, Tote| capital expanditure on this faclity is as fellows, which b5 disloted in respeciive flwed

assets blocks:
Particulary i FY 2017-18 FY 201617
= milion = milllon

Bullding | NiL NI
Camputers .65 ER-1Y
Plant and Machlnery HIL e ]
Office Equlpments 023 NIL
Furnitwre nd Figtures — HIL 024

= “Eagitel nxpenditure incurred o various research and developmenl prejectsis % 110,42 million {Previous year % 230,22 million}

ORI A
Lot Exgelg, Y
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalona financial {continued}
for the yeor ended on 31 Morch 2028
41 Delails of pravislons and movements In each class of provisions as required by the ndlan Acceunting Stanadard (lng-As] 37 - Proviskons, Contingent
Hakllies pnd Contingant assaks -

1. Warranty
The Company has an obligation by way of warrenty Lo maintaln the software during tha perod of warranty, which may vary from contract to coatract,
fram the date of sale of lcense of software to Tler | suppllars. The movament In tha satd proviston Is as under ;

Parthculars 31 March 2018 31 Warch 2017
T milllon

Carrfng Amount as at the beginning of the year
Additiont| provizlon mada durlng the year
Amount paldfutllized durlng the year

Unused ameunt reversed during the year
Carrving amount at the end of the year

The warranty 3 d to be uthized 4 perlod of one year.

2, Contlngenk Nabilitias

5r. |Partkulars 31 Morch 3018 31 March 2017
Neo. % milflan T milllen
1 _| Dulstanding btank guarantees In rowtine course of business 17024 | 176.75
2 |Corporate guarantee provided by the Company for loan availed by KPIT Infagsysterns incorporated, B50.49 E48.39
USh
3 |Corparate guatanles providad by the Company for loan avalled by assoclatasf]oint ventures in Indla 149,16 MIL
4 | Corparata guarantes provided by the Company fer loan avalled by KPIT Infosystems ME FZE, Dubal NIL £4.84
5 | Carparete guarantes provided by the Company For laan avalied by KPIT Technologles {UK} Limired HEL E0.88
& |Incama tax matiers L 5,25
7 _IWAT matters 1857 175
8 | Service tan matters (extluding interest and penaltyvl[Refar nots M) 31116 T37.28
Note

{ll Service tax matters

a. The Campany has received a show cause cum demand notles fram Compisgloner of Central Exclse & Senvee Tax, Pune | for the period October
2006 o harch 2015 dernanding service tax reflating to:

- ® 369.34 million (Previeus year % 524.11 million] towards Servite Tax on the smaunt recelved by branches from overseas elieots on behalf of the
Company, vnder tha head "Business Auxiliary Services'.

- % 46,58 mlllon [Previous year & 11788 million} towards the amount of expenditure made In forelgn currency In respect of category 1 and 11|
seryices.

= %479 milllen [Previous year % 4.7% milllon} tawards the amount of ditura agalnst r af From April 2030 to luna 2012,

The Compary has fled an Appeal In the Mumbal Tribunal.

b. The Company has received a show cause cum demand notlee from Directorata General of Central Excise intelligence Mumbai for the perlod
Celober 2008 w0 March 2012 challanglng the correctness of sardce tax Input credit avallad and corractnass of discharga of snrvlca tax lablilty,

The contingent liebillty in respact of thla aotice i & 3047 milllon (Praylous year ® 30,47 milllon),

Commitments

Estimated amaunt of contracts remalning o be exsculed on capltal account end not provided for:-
A, Property, plant and equipment - % 171.00 million {31 March 20172 240.57 million).
b, Intangibla assets - % B.94 million {31 March 2017 & 2¢.93 million].

ML Jrsin Migrg.
{hahznenn,
Mumipai-+10011,
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Notes forming part of the fal
for the year ended on 31 March 2018

s d b g1

financial st fc

42 Share based payments
1 Employea Stock Cptlen Plan= 2004

The Board of Directors and the shareholders of the Company approvad the Emplayees Stock Option Plan at thelr meelng In August 2001 and 1n
Epptember 2001, respectively. Pursuant to this appraval, the Company Instdtuted ESOP 2004, Plan I uly, 2004, The compansalion committee of the
Campany adminlsters this Plan, Each option carries with it the Fght ta purchase ene equity share of the Company, The Optlans have been granted to
amployeas of the Company end lts subsldiaries at an exerclae grlea that Is not lass than the fair market valus. The vesting ol the optiens |5 33%, 33%
and 34% of total optlons granted after end of Arst, secand and third year respect|valy from the date of grant. The maximum exerclse periad 15 5 years
Jrem the date of vesting,

Mumkber and welghted avarage exerclsa prices of optlons grantad, exerclsed and cancelledfiapead durlng the nanclal year

Partlculary FY 2017-16 Fif 2016-17

Ho.ofshares  |Welghted  average| Mo olshares  [Weighted  average

exerclse price eharcise orice

Optlons putstanding at the beginning af tha year 2dT,020 J0.60 334,988 FOED
Granted durlng the year = - s 5
Forfeited f surrende red during the year 12,214 a0 6,504 F0.ED0
Exerclsed durlng the year 12026 TO.60 8,162 F0ED
Lepsed durkng the year B A4Z 060 2802 TFOED
Optlans sutstanding at the end of year 153,938 FO.E0 247,020 7060
Qptlons exarcisable at the end of the vear 153,938 pE: 247020 050

The welghted average market price of the optlons ewerclsed under Employees Stock Optéan Schame - 2004 sn the date of exerclze during the year
was § 175,93 (Previous year ¥ 147,66}

The avErage ing ¢ | life are as follows:
Range al Exerclse Price FY 2017-18 FY 3016-17

Welghted average |Mo. of  Optlons| Walghted average [He,  of  Gptlons)

conteactual Ife  [Outstanding contractusl ife  |Outstanding
fyears] — Lyears]

% 0ta %50 NIL HNIL ML HIL
= 50 te ¥ 100 Q32 153,834 121 247,00
10010 X 15 NIL NIL HIL HIL
215010 %200 ni aiL _tn nIL

The falr value of each optlon pranted during the year is estimated on the date of grart uslng Black and Scheles aptlon priclng model. There has been
no grant of aption under the plan for the year endad 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017,

The Campany recarded an employen compensation ¢ost of £ NI [Previows year T NI in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The expected price volatlily |3 based on the historlc velakility, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatlity due 1o publicl available
infarmation,

1  Employee Stock Option Plan — 2006

The Board ol Dlrectors and the shareholders of the Company approved ancther Emplayees Stack Optlan Man at their meating in July 2006 and in
Auguct 2006, respectivaly. Pursuant to thls approval, the Company Institutad ESOF 2006, Flan In Qctober, 2006, The compensatian committea of the
Company adminlsters this Pan, Fach option carrles with it the right ta purchase one equity share of the Company. The Oplions have been granted to
emgplayaes of the Company and [ts subsldlarles ot an exerclse price that 1z not lesz than the fair market value. The vesting of the options is 30%, 30%
and 4% of kotal optiens granted after and of first, srcond and third yaar respectively from the date of grant. The mavinum exercise perlod 1s 5 years
frem the date of vesLing.,

Mumber and welghted average exerclsa pricas of oplions granted, enerclsad and cancaled/lspsed durlng the financlal yesr

pe
MR

Mahalzom,

(Partlculars FY 2017-18 F¥ 2016-17
Mo af sharac Welghted  averags Mo, of shares  |wWeighted  awerage
exercse orice werclie prlee
Optons outstanding at the beginning of the year 4,685,172 5248 5,176,953 2183
Granted durlng the year = = 30,000 15160
Forelted { surrendered during the year 250,542 102,14 252,179 102,21
Exercisad during tho year 1,205,6%F 84.43 269,602 7751
Lapzed during the year 126,430 75.03
Options outstanding al the end of year 3,102,421 95.53 4,685,172 G248
Orthans exercfsabie at the end of the year 2.125.423 92,27 2,934,772 85.61 |

The weighted nverage market price of the options exergised under Employess Stack Option Stheme - 2006 on the date of exercise during the year

was % 160.65 (Previgus year ¥ 143.38)

Joski Marg,
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the standalone financlal statements fcontinued)
Jor the yeqr ended on 31 March 2018

42 Share hased paymants {continved)

The walghted average | llf2 are as folowes:
Range o Exarcke Prica B 2012-18 FY 2016-17

Waelghted average [No. of  Optlons| Welghted average (Mo,  of  Oplions

e D dl Ilife o
{years] fvears)

0 to T5D HiL 42,503 0.50 215,603
TEOte T 100 1.23 1,138,240 177 1,284,848
T100to ® 150 449 1,920,780 541 2,454,741
R 15010 ® 200 NIL MIL .18 30,000.00

The falr valug of each spilan granted durlng the year iz estimated on the dale of grant using Black and Scheles aption pricing model with the fellowlng

assumpticns:

Farticulars FY 201713 F¥ 2016-17

1. Exerclse price T} NIL 151.60
2. Price of the underlying share o market at the time of the optfon grant {=) NiL 151.60
3. Welghled average fabr value of opthons granted %] NiL 5435
4, Expected [ifa of tha option [years) NiL E L
3, Risk free interesk rate {%] MiL T.i8%
5. Expected yolutlity (%} NIL 42.50%
F. Dhddend vield (%} NiL 0.78%

Tha Campany racordad an emplayes compensatlon cost of % 13,21 millkon |Previgus year @ 28.52 milllon) In the Statement of Profit snd Loss.

The expected price volstillty 11 basad on the historle valatilty, adjusted for any expected chenges to future volatlllty due 1o publicly available
infarrmatlan.

3  Employee Stock Dptlon Plan - 2014

The Board of Diesciors and the shareholders of the Company approved anether Employaes Stock Optlen Flan at thelr meeting In February 2014 and In
April 2014, respectlvely, Pursuant to this sppecval, the Company Instituted ESOP 2014 Plan in April 2014, The compensation commities of the
Cempany administers this Flan. Each optish carfies with 1t the right 1o purchase ore equity share of the Company. The Optians have beaen granted Lo
emplsyees of the Company and |ts subsidiarles at an axerdise prite of % 2 per option, The vesting of the aptlons is 304, 30% and 40% of total options
pranted afler end of FAirst, second snd third year respactively from the date of grant. The maximurm exerelss perlod |5 5 years from the date of vesting.

Hurnber and weighted average exerclse prices of options granted, exercised and cncelled/lagsed during the Enanclal year

Particulars Y 2017-18 FY 2016-17

No.ofshares  |Welghted  average| Mo, ofshares  |Welghted  average

exercise price EXEFCIZE DrEE

Options autstanding at the baginning of the yaar 150,H0 .00 155,000 2.00
ranted during the year = a = &
Forfelted f surrendered duting the year B ¥ & 1
Exercised during the year 15,000 2.00 5000 2.00
Lapsed durlng the year - a & =
Options outstanding at the end of year 135,000 .M 156,000 200
| Qoilons exerclsable at the end of the year 111008 .00 EB.000 2.0 |

The welghted averaga markat price of the optlons exerclsed under Emplayees Stock Oplion Scheme - 2014 on the date af exerclse during the year
was ® 121,85 {Previous vear % 164.65)

The welghted average remalning contractual life are as follows:

Range of Ewerclse Price F¥ 2017-18 FY 2016-17

Welghted avernge (Mo,  of  Options| Welghted averaga |No.  of  Optleng

contractual tfe  |Qutstanding cantractuallife  |Outstanding
{years} (years)

R0to %5 3491 135,000 4.99 150,000
=50 10 NI MIL NIL HIL
%100 1 ©150 NIL NIL MIL HIL
= 150 to T 200 MIL HiL MIL ML |

& U
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N Mumbare00011,
- By Inatla

138



KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Notes forming part of the dal
Jor the year ended on 31 Murch 2018

42 Shore based payments fcontinued)

financial st

f.
WS |

The falr value of each eption granced during the year k estimatcd on the date of grant velng Black and Scholes optlan pricing medel with the fellewing

sgsumptlons:

articulari FY 2017-28 F¥ 201€-17

L. Fxerclse price (%) ML, MIL
4. Price of the underbdng share In market at the time of the opdon grant {43 L8 HIL
1. Welghled average Falr value of optlons granted [7) Wi, MIL
A Expected lle of the option [years) ML ML
5. Risk free Innerest race %) ML MIL
i Expected volatiliey (3 ML ML
1. [Dvichoned ol P L ML

The Company recorded ah omployes compensation eost of 015 million {Pravious yoar % 0.31 milien] In the Statement of Proflt and Loss.

The expected price volatility s based on the historic volatiity, adjusted for any expected changes ta future volatlity dua to publicly avallable

Information,

4 Emplayee Stack Opthon Plan — 2015

The Board of Directors and the sharehelders of the Compeny approved another Employee Stock Optlon Flan at thelr meating In April 2015 and
August, 2015, respectively. Pursuant to this appreval, the Campany natltuted E3QP 2015 Plan In August 2015. The compensation committee of the
Company adminlsters this Plan, Each option carrles with it the right to purchase one squlty share of Lhe Company. The Gptlons have been granted to
employaes of the Compary and Its subsidiarias at an exerclsa price that 1s net less than the falr market valea. The vesting of the optlons |3 30%, 20%
and 40% of tatal opticns granted after end of first, second and third year respectively from the data of grant, The maslmum ekercise perlod is § years
fremthe date of yesting.

Mumber and welghted aversge exerclae prices of options granted, everclsed and cangeledy]apsed during the Anancial year

Partlculars FY 201714 FY 201617

Mo, af shares ghted B Mo of shares  |Weighted  average|

exerclse price mxeheise Drice

opllens gutstanding at the beginning of the yaar 465,150 10370 1,051,500 103,70
Granted durlng the yaar 110,000 131,20 = =
Forfeitad { surrendered durlng the year 58,150 10270 85,350 10370
Exerclsed during the year 27,950 1370 - -
Lapsed durlng the vear ® . . *
Options putstanding at the end of year 85,050 106,78 965,150 10270
Options exercisable at the end of the vear 516,250 103.70 290709 103,70

The weighted average market price of the options exercised under Employees Stock Dplion Schame = 2015 on the date of exerclse during the year
was® 21250 (Previous year % NI}

[
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The welghted average ife are 35 follows:
IRange af Exercize Price FY 2007-18 FY 201617

Welghted average [Mo. of  Optlons| Weighted average [No.  of  Dptlons

contractunl Ife  Mutstanding contractual lifa  [Cutstanding
ymars) [yenrs]

[COe® NIL NIL HIL MIL
|'® 50 to T 100 MIL NIL ML MIL
't 100 0 150 471 989,050 E.50 965,150
L'e 150t ' 200 118 NA | HIL HIL

The Falr valoe of #ach option granted during the year ks estimated an the date of grant using Black and Schales option pHicing model with the following

assumptions:

fiParticulars FY 201715 0167 |
L. Exerclse price (%) 131.20 HIL
2. Price of the underlylng share I market at the time of the option grant (%] 131.20 HiL
1. Weighted average falr value of options grantad (%) 48,95 NIL

F4. Expected llfe of the oplion [years) 3.76 MIL
3. sk iree intarest rate 1%) 6.71%] NIL
3. Enpected volathlity {3} AL.23% WiL
7. Dividend wiald i3] 0.84% ML

The Company ind an emplay

cnst of T 0.40 milllan [Previaus year £0.90 mllllan] in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The expectad price volaflity Is based on the historic volatility, adjusted for any expected changes te Tulure volatility dun ta publicly available

Taformatlon,

Employee gompenaation cost Is net of recoveries made from subsidiaring,

{_:".:u______
% Lin P
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
Notes forming part of the standalone financial stat s fcontinued)
for the year ended on 31 Morch 2018

43 Income taxes

The bncorme tax e consists of
Partl = FY 201718 FY 2046-17

= milllon = milllah
Tas enpenie
Current tax 456,71 376.90
Daferrad tax fanefith £ charge 122559 {87.40)
Total tas akpanse 231.12 289.50

The deferred tax relates to orgination/reversal of temperary differences.

The reconcillation of astimated insome tax expense at Ingdlan statukary ncome tax rate to Income tax expanse reparted In Statorment of Profle o Loss |s a5

follows:
Fartlculars FY 2017-18 FY 2018-17

T mifen X mifion
Prodit before tax 2,006,62 1,982.44
Waellif gbatukony ncome La rate J.E61% 234.61%,
Expected tax expense 63445 EBE.0%
Taw EHfect of adjusimentls to reconclle expected Infome tad expense to iDpaeied
Incame tax ekpanse
Effact of Lok holiday, saemptions and dedyctions 2N 2h] 450,52
iThent relating to prict years -k HIL
fimét of permanent ad)ustmants 2B.35 19.42
Fifeed of differential overseas m@x rates 55.94 EERIL
iitest of unrecognlzed deferred tax assets 135 ML
ey {net) i) 1.42
Total Lin rpenie FITRF] 18850 |

Durlng the yesr epded WMarch 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, the company has clalmed wetghted taw dedustion on eligible research and devalopment
expenditures hased on the approvel recelved from Department of Scientfic and Industrial Koscarch (D5HR) on June 2, 2011 which hes been renewed tll
tarch 2018, The wolghted tax deduction is equal to 150% of such expenditures Incurred.

Additionally, the cormpany benafits fram tha tax hofiday avallable for units set up under the Special Economic Zone Act, 2005(SEZ} Accordingty, units In
desighatod SEZ are ellgible for o deduction of 100 porcont of profits of galns derlved frem the awpart of services for the first five years from the tinancial
yaar In which the unil sommenced the provislan of servces and 50 percent of such profits o galns for & further flve years, Certmin tex benefits are alse
available far a further flva years subject ta the unlt meeting defined conditions. The tax holiday perlad belng currently avallable to the Company ewplres In
varlous years through fiscal 2025, From April 1, 2011 units $et vp under SE2 scheane are subfect to Minimurn Altcrnate Tak (MAT].

Defarrad Tay

Tha gross movervent In the deferrad Income tax aceount fof the year ended arch 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, Is as follaws:

FarshsiEn FY 2017-18 FY 201617

% BANlinn = willlon
M4t delmired Income tax assel st the beginnlng 502.96 430.51
WAAT Credit gntitlerent for the year 152.12 13126
iCredita f (charge) relnling to temporary dltferances 73.47 |43,88)
Temperu ry diffarences on olher comprehenslve Incama 5730 Iu-“ﬂ
| Mt deferredimoome tus asit at the end 74585 S0.06

Tha credit rekating to temporery differznees during the yoar anded March 31, 2018 are primarlly on sceaunt of provision far doubtiul debts & bad dabte,
provislan for gratuity & property,plant and equipment . The charge relating to tempomary dilfarehees during the year onded March 31, 2007 are primarlly on
account of property, plant and equipment and provision for doubtful debts partlally aifsct by credit on aceount of provislon for gratully sad |eava
ancashment,

44 Other disclosures and saplanatory notes
1 The Campany was reguired to spend % 45.93 mitllan towards Corporata Soclal Responsiblllty, During the year the Company has spent and paid ©. 27,17

milllan {Previous yar % 25.61 milllon) towards Carparete Soclal Responsibikity, in varlous activitlss as specifled In Sthedula VIl of the Ce s At
2013, read with the Rules theraunder, 25 direct spend for purposes other than eenstructlon/acqulsition of any assat.

Also, refer Anhaxura 7 of the Clrector’s Report.

7 The Brard of Directars af tha Campany at its meeting held on 26 January, 2018 have appraved a draft composite scheme ["Draft Scheme} for: (]
amalgammation of Bldesofl {Indis] Limited ["Birdasoft”) with tha Company ["Propesed Merger®l; and {b} demerger of the engineerng businass of the
Company into KPIT Englncating Limited ["KEL*], 8 whally owned subsidiary of the Carpany, [“Proposed Demerger’], to be renamad as KPIT
Technologies Limited, in terms of the Draft Scheme and an | i and othor agl that are d b the
Company, Blelasoft and other partles, During the year, the Company has incurred expenditure of % 163.13 milllon lawards sasbling the executlon of
this transaction. The Company ls in progress to obtaln approvals from various regulatory authorlthes.

- e,
t Co X
G) e F -'}_\ the year, the Company has Infused further equity of % 367.50 millicn in its wholly owned substdiary, Impact Automethee Salutlons Limited,
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KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Motes forming part of the standalone financlal statements fcontinued)
Jor the yeor ended on 31 Morch 2018

44 Other discl and sapl ¥ HOME [t ]

4 The Company has lidatad the KPIT Technologles Umitad

ployee Walfare Trust,

5 Durlng the yoar, the Company has sold of its antlre staka in Sankalp Sermiconducters Privete Limited, The galn on dispeas) is recorded under
1 lt#ms in the of Prafit and Lass.

& The Company has d a syatem of mai of infermation snd docurments 83 required by the transfer pricing leglslation under Section 92-
92F of the Income Tax Act 1961. The Company |3 In the process of updating the documentation for the Flnanclal Year 2017-2018.
The management 13 of the oplnfon that intermational Iransactions are at arm's length and dIngly the af Id imglsl will net have any Impact
on tha financlel statements, partioularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision far lation,

Az per ourreport of even date attached

For BS R & Ca. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charterad Accalmtant: KPIT Technalogies Umited
Firm Raglstratlon Rumber 101248W f W-lEIIJOZZ}
WAL 7. @ Wtﬁw
Vijay Makhur L Anil Patwardhan
Partner Chief Financlat Qfficer

Membership No, 46476

ARodwe

Sneha Padve
Company Secrelary
HMare: M | Place : Puna
Cate: 23 May 2018 Date: 23 May 2018
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2018

[Currency - % million)

Mote 31 March 2018
ASSETS
Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2 0.95
0.95
TOTAL 0.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3 1.00
Other equity (2.66)
{1.66)
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial llabilities
Trade payables 4 0.09
Other financial lHabilities 5 251
Other current liabilities ] 0.01
2.61
TOTAL 0.95
Significant accounting policies 1
Motes referred to above form an integral part of
2-12
the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

ForB SR & Co. LLP Faor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants PMTENGINEERING LIMITED
Firm Registration Number: 101248W [/ W-100022 »'

A A y A\,
: Y L
. {I:L)Pllﬂlt hav Fﬂtil
IM: 00 TS EE bIw: oboT4 10

Swapnil Dakshindas
Place: Pune Place: Pune

Partner
Date: 25 April 2018 Date: 25 April 2018

Membership No. 113896
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss
for the period from 8 January 2018 to 31 March 2018

(Currency - T million)

For the period from B

Note January 2018 to 31
March 2018
Total income -
Expenses
Other expenses 7 2.66
Total expenses 2.66
Loss before and after tax (2.66)

There is no other comprehensive income for the current period. Hence, the Statement of Other Comprehensive income
is not prepared.

Earnings per equity share for continuing operations (face value per share % 10 each)

Basic 12 (30.24)
Diluted 12 (30.2a)
Significant accounting policies 1
Motes referred to above form an integral part of the financial 2.12
statements

As per our report of even date attached

For B SR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants KP| GINEERING LIMITED
Firm Registration Number: 101248W / W-100022

T '
A .
Swapnil Dakshindas /_/Eireﬂm

' s & (favi) Pandit

1S

Partner
Membership No. 113896 prMi0opTISEE| pIN. Qo0 TEIND
Place: Pune Place: Pune
Date: 25 April 2018 Date: 25 April 2018
fp
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity

(Currency - % million)

A

T

Equity share capital
Equity share capital issued :Iurlr:g the period 1.00
Balance as at 31 March 2018 1.00

Other equity
Reserves & Surplus
Particul Total
S & Retained earnings ity
Lass for the period (2.66) (2.66]
Balance as on 31 March 2018 (2.66) (2.66)|
Significant accounting policies 1
MNotes referred 1o above form an integral part of the financial statements 7-12

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 101248W / W-100022

O

Swapnil Dakshindas

Partner —

Membership No. 113896

Place; Pung
Crate: 25 April 2018

ector
st (Caw) landi L
DIv:. 00015 E6!

Place: Pune
Date: 25 April 2018
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Cash Flow Statement
for the period from 8 January 2018 to 31 March 2018

(Currency - T million)

For the period
from B January
PARTICULARS
2018 to 31 March
2018
A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss for the period (2.66)
Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Increase in Trade Payables o.09
Increase In Other financial llabilivies, other liabilities and provisions 2.52
Met cash used in operating activities (A) [0.05)
B] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 1.00
Net cash from financing activities (B) 1.00
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B) 0.95
Cash and cash equivalents ot close of the period (refer note 1 below) 0.95
Cash surplus for the period 0.95
Mote 1:
Cash and cash equivalents include:
Balance with banks
-In current accounts 0.95
Total Cash and cash equivalents 0.55
Note 2!

Figures in brackets represent outflows of cash and cash equivalents.

Note 3:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting

Standard [Ind-AS) 7 Statement of Cash Flows.

As per our report of even date attached

ForBSR & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101248W [ W-100022

"

Swapnil indas
Partner

Membership No. 113896 DIn:oDR TS RGN DIN: pope/A D

Flace: Pune Mace: Pune
Date: 25 April 2018 Date: 25 April 2018
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the period from 8 January 2018 to 31 March 2018

Corporate information

KPIT Engineering Limited ("the Company”) Is a public imited company incorperated on 8" January, 2018 under the Companies Act,
2013, The Company is whiolly owned subsidiary of KMT Technologies Limited (“holding company”). The Company’s registered office
Is In Pune.

The Company provides Software Development and Product Engineering solutions (o its clients, predominantly in Automotive B
Transportation, Manufacturing and Energy & Unilities verticals.

1 Significant Accounting Policies

1.1 Basis of preparation of financal statements

12

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {"ind-AS") as specified
unider Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 3 of the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and Comnpanies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 and the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

The financial statements are presented in millions of Indian rupess rounded off to two decimal places, unless otherwise
stated,
Since the Company is incorparated on B lanuary 2018, there are no comparatives in these financial statements.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported balances of sssets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as #t the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of income and expenditure during the year. Actual results could differ from
eitimates. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognized in the year in which the results are known /
materialized,
Current-non-gurrent classification
All assers and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
Assets
An assot s classified as current when It satisfies any of the following criteria:
n. it is expected to be realined in, of is intended for sale or consumption in, the normal operating cycle;
b. it ks held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
c. it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d. It bs cash or cash equivabent unless it i restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabllity for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion af non-current financial assets, All other assets are classified as non-current.
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the period from 8 Janvory 2018 to 31 March 2018

1.2  Current-non-current classification (continued)

13

14

Liabilities

A llability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;
a. Itis expected to be setthed in the Group's normal operating cycle;
b. itls held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
€ itisdue 1o be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or
d. the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement of the liability for at least 12 months after
thet reporting date. Terms of & liability that could, at the option of the counterparty result in its setthement by the issue
of equity iInstruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabifities inchude current portion of non-current financlal llabilities. All other Rabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets lor processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents.
The aperating cycle of the Company is less than twehwe months.

Accounting for taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense s recogniced In the statement of profit
and loss except 1o the extent that it relates to items recognized directly In equity, in which case it is recognired in other
comprehensive income. Curment income tax for curnent and prior periods is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to
or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax Laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date, Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and labilities and thelr carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured wsing tax rates and tax laws that have becn enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet dote and are expected to apply 1o taxable income in the years in which those temporany
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date, A
deferred income tax asset iy recognized to the extent that it s probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and tax bosses can be utilised. The company offsets current tax assets and current
tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amownts and where it intends aither to settie
on a net basks, or to realize the asset and settle the Rability simultancously.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit for the year after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares cutstanding during the year, Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by
the weighted sverage number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares except wherne the results ane anti-dilutive.

Provisions:
The Company recognizes provisions only when it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and when a

reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments at the time value of money and the risks specific to the Fability,
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

MNotes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the period from 8 January 2018 to 31 March 2018

1.6 Financial instruments
Inltial recognition:

Financial assets and labilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financlal assets and llabilities are initially measured at fair value, except for trade receivables which are Initially
mieasured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financlal assets and
financial Habilities [other than financial assets and financial labiities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial lability.

Subsequent measurement:

a) Financial assets carried at amortized cost

A financial ssset Is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective ks to hold
the asset In onder to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash Aows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b} Financial lisbilities

Financial liabilithes are subsegquently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest mathod, except for contingent
consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due 1o the short maturity of these instruments,

Derecognition of financial instruments :

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer gualifies for derecognition under ind-AS 109. A financial lability {or a part of &

financial liability) is derecognized from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the period from 8 January 2018 to 31 March 2018

{Currency - £ million)

31 March 2018
2 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
= In current accounts 0.95
0.95

MNote:
Information about the Company's exposure to Credit risk, Market risk &

liguidity risk is disclosed in note 11.
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued )
for the period from 8 January 2018 to 31 March 2018

{Currency - X million)

31 March 2018
3 Equity share capital
Authorised:

25,000,000 equity shares of % 10 each. 250.00
250.00

Issued subscribed and fully paid up:
100,000 equity shares of % 10 each fully paid up l.pﬂ-
1.00

31
Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period:

Particulars As at 31 March 2018

Number of shares| (% million)

Equity shares
Shares issued during the period 100,000 1.00
Outstanding at the end of the period 100,000 1.00

3.2 The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of % 10. Each
shareholder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,

3.3 Number of equity shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company are as follows:

Name of the shareholders Mumber of shares| % of shares
as at held
31 March 2018
KPIT Technologies Limited [Holding Company) 99,994 99,99%

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive a share in the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Capital management

Currently, the capital management policy of the Company is primarily driven by the holding company. The
Company is funded only by equity funds. The Board of Directors at regular intervals monitors the capital
requirement of the Company and decides upon the mode of additional funding, which could be either through
equity infusion or debt infusion,
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the period from 8 Jlonuary 2018 to 31 March 2018

{Currency - T million)
31 March 2018

4 Trade payables

Trade payables (Refer Note 9) 0.09

0.09

Note:
Information about the Company's exposure to Credit risk, Market risk & liquidity
risk is disclosed in note 11,

5  Other current financial liabilities

Payable to related party [Refer note 10) 2,51

2.51

6 Other current liabilities

Statutory liabilities 0.01

0.01
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the period from 8 January 2018 to 31 March 2018

(Currency - £ million)

For the perlod from &

January 2018 to 31
March 2018
7 Other expenses
Rates and taxes 2,51
Auditor's remmuneration

- Audit fees 0.05
- Fess for other services 0.05
Legal and professional fees 0.05
2.66
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED
Motes forming part of the financial statements [continued)
for the period from 8 Jonwary 2018 to 31 March 2018

(Currancy - ¥ million]

Contingent liabllities:

The Comparry has no labilities of contingent nature outsianding as ot 31 March 1018

Disclodure a1 per the reguirement of sectian 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Emterprise Development Act, 2006:

There are no Micro and Small Enterprises, as defined under the Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 to whom the
Company owid duns eithar during the pericd or as 3t 31 March 2018,

Redated party transaction:

A Wame of the related party and nature of relationship where control exists

Relatonship rame of related party
KPIT Technodagies Limited

B, List of Key Management Personnel ©

[ey Management Personnel (KWP] r, 5.0 | Ravi] Pandi Executive Director
Mr, Kishor Patil Exocutres Director
Mr, Sachin Tiekas [Exeguitive Diroctor
€. Tramactions with related parties®
$r.  |Mame of the related | Description of [Wature of transaction Amournt af Balance receivabie
no.  [party relationship transaction [payabie] a3 ot 31
01718 March 2008
ki [
1 [KPIT Technologies Halding Comparny  |tstae of equity 10 -
Limited Reimbisrsement of incarporation 251 [2.51

* M3 transaction with thide relabed partiey e priced on en arm's lengh baa.

Financial Instruments

111 Financial instruments by category

The carrysng valie and fair vakue of financlal instruments by categories as on 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Particulars Amortited cost | Total carrging value) Tetal fair value
Asiety

(Cash and cash eguivalonts 0ss 085 0.5
Tedal Asiets oS o8s 0.9%
Liabfeties.

Trade payables oos o oo
Oithar financial llabities 2151 251 151
Total Lishilities 160 L.60 2.60

11.2 Fair wabue bierarchy

Firancial assets and Hatbties include cash and cath equivalents, trade payables and other financial labdtes whose fabr values
aopronimate their carrying amounts forgely dug 1o the shor term natiee al such assets and Rabilities.

11.3 Financlal risk management

Cradit Risk

Cred risk [ 1he risk of financial losses 1o the Compary ¥ 8 customer or counterparty to financlal instrumarts fails to dischange s
contractusl cbligations. The Company heid cash and cash batances of % 0.95 million as on 31 March 2018, The cash and bank balances
are held with Banky which have high credit ratings assigned by intemational crodit rating agencies. Hence the Company doas not have

significant credit ik
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KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements (continued)
for the period from 8 Jonuary 2018 to 31 March 2018
[Curvency - % millian)
11 Fingncisl Imtrument |continued)
Lgusdity risk

Ligguidity reske Is the rigk that the Company will gncounter difficalty in meeting the obiigations assocaved with &5 financial Rabinties that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach o managing liquidity is 1o ensuhe, B3 Tar as possibie,
that it will hawe sufficient liquidity to mest ity linbiities whan they Bre dwe, undar both nosmal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable loases or risidng e to the C Ve 3

The Comparry has & view of maéntaining Rquidity and to take minimum possibie ridk while making imwestments. The Comgpany monitors
its cash and bank balances periodically in view ol its thort term obligations associated with s financial Eabilities.

The Bquidity posithon & st 31 Manch 201 i ghn below:

Particular | 31 march 2018
Cash and cash equivabenis | [T

Remaining comtractual maturities of financial Habdties a5 on 31 Manch J018:

Particulars 31 March 2008

Trade payables (kess than 1 year) 008
(Other Financial labities [less than 1 year) 15
(Toul Lh0
Market Risk

Mariet risk iy & risk that the fair value or future cash flows of @ fnancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market peices.
Thir Company b not exposed o foneign exchange risk and interest rate ritk wnce it does not hald any faredgn exchange aasets / Rabilities
and inenest bearing financial atsets and liabilities a5 of 31 March 2018,

11 Basic and diluted earnings per share

l-"l'!!l:l‘al.l
u 10.00

Lows for the perod ® milllon [2.88)

Weighted swerage number of equity shanes® Mo, of thares 87,952

Earnings per share - Baic L |30.24)

Eamings per share - Diduted U {30.24)

* The shares hawe Been aflotted on 18 lemsary 210
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BIR1ASDFT (INDIA) LIMITED

Standalone Balsnce Sheet ns ot March 31, 2018 (Al amounts bn Ry, Lokbs, usless otherwhie stated]
HNoter

Al wi Murch 31, 2HIR

Ad at March 33,2017

Assely
Noa-furntul ety
Property, plat wd equprmen. 21 647413 3J%016
Cwld_wuri in pregnas LN} 120141 -
UOthar itangille amcis 3t 274 J58 B
Investmen in pubtativrics 4 504t %90
Fimancal s
Ciba fnancial mach 13 13098 w17
s mom-curtent assy 11 244141 157325
Defered tax asseds {ner) 3 1344 71 1310 68
Totsl poo carrest sy 12AMEAE 109319
Crrread nxseh
Feucia) wisns
Livetst menits ] 163514 1463984
Trads recenvables T 432177 6,792 66
Cish and cath cwnalots 1 117697 178440
Bank halinee otber than “Cith and el squrabing® 2 4315 00 +
(et Gnaneil acseis 11} Lam 1,512 43
Crilber curren! st 1] 120308 12 5%
Total current waely 185950 2LAt)1
Toral aemis -M'!G.N 3551521
Equity nad Bebilities
Equity
Equiry share capilsh 12 313348 111548
Quber Equity 1 34,408.31 35169 65
Totul pquity 17,5431 505 13
Nt rurten Kabeities
Proviksns 17 W 461
Dther Non-curenl lintsthhem 21 1209 66 118 5
Temnl zea-curmeol Eabibilier 1,238 42 T 57
Currest Rabikrie
Frwancid lishioes
Trade payshies 1
& Lotsd <umsnding duts of aicn exerprisss and small micprion . -
b 1eial subtanding duss of cosditars ore tham mecrn eWpprises 1,195, 46 L
wnd soall onlerprise
Other payables
Ouher Francil lubilities 1] 3,493 07 1,493 64
Provision kv emopkoyes emefs L& 51.m nie
Current tax Jaksbrica 19 5857 -
Chther current liabilites w SN 53 T3 47
Total curreni kabiBrcn D6y A} LN IR
Toiw hisbilitees s 010.18
Tocal equity amd Lnbilites 551531
Summary of dgnilicant stcounfing paicie 1

The Aecompamisg noles are an integrad part of the standuione finwncal s emeaty

As per ow repon of seea daie
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AIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018 {Al amounts in B, Lekhy, wnless atherwize sated)

Mates Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 Mareh 31,2017
Tncame
Revenue from operations n 43, 508.48 48,908 48
Ouber invome [inchding Qain on ransfer of bosiness of Rs. 9,322 20 lakhs (March 3 47 11,215.08 141723
31,2017 Rs. Wil) and income fiom recovery of support costs of Ra. 215,98 (akhs
(March 31, 2017: Rs. Nill]
Total locome 55.414.56 $1,325.71
Expenses
Purchase of raded goods 24 150 0% 146.34
Emplavee benefits expense 5 1,195 38 2824509
Finance cosis 26 5607 40.93
Depreciation and amortization expenas ki 147590 13211
Oiher expenses 2837 12,568.38 9.969.31
Taiafl Expenses 42 445 7% 39,733 88
FProfit befere tax 12,978.78 11,581 B3
Income tax eapense k)
Curnmi Lax 4,066.31 341942
Adjustment ol tax relating to sarlier periods 247,89 (5.68)
Defemred 1ax (734,11} 577.84
Tota) income Lax expense 3,580.0% 31.991.58
Prufil for the year 9.398,69 7.400.25
Oiber comprebensive income:
hems diat will nol be reclassified o profic or loss in subssquent periods:
Re-measurement gains{losses) oo defined benefit plan - Grafuity 22864 {124.36)
Inone fax eflect {7913 43.4
Other comprebensive income J {loss) Tor the year, met of hx 149,51 {81.32)
Toml comprehensive ineome for the year, oet of e 9,548.20 7,518.93
Altribotable 1g -

Equity hadders of the Company 9.543.20 7,518 93
Total comprehensive income for the year 9548 10 7.518.93
Earnings per ¢quity share kL]

- Basic earnings per share and Diluled camings per share 12,98 .24
21

Summasry of significani sccounting policies

The accompanying nides are an intepral past of the
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BIRLASOFT (INDAA) LIMITED

Srandalone Stalerment of Chaages in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2018 {All amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital Motes MNuoiber AFount
Equity shara of Ra. 1D each issued, subscribad and fully paid
Ad a2 March 31, 2017 1z 31,354 300 313548
As ot March 31, 2010 74 3 354800 3,13%.48
B. Oriber Equity
yrwr pwifed Marek 31, $018
Aitribudable do Lhe equity bnlders of the Compeay “Tolal
Descripdon Naees Rirnarwed and urjilus
General reaerve R rnila
| Bl mare ag ot Agrid 1, 2017 13 4 000.00 I2.369.65
Profit for the year 3 - V,8.6%
{ther comuorthencive icarma 13 - 14951
Total rom nrebetave inrom e - 9.54E.20
Dividends fincludbvg tux om dividend disknbubon -
intevim dividend (18 - 677,10}
final dividend [T} . 1627.16)
iz on meexim dondond [F] = (427.65)
{aa o Foal dividend 13 . {127.66)
Tranafermed from remsined &) 10.000.00 410.000.00
iﬂlllnuu 2t March 31. 1010 14,000.00 10,408.33
For the year ended Mareh 30, 7907
e in the equity kalders of the Campany Total
Descriplion Notes 8
] & Raliiand anrmings -
Aalance o & I, #1 400000 [[RICET] 10,360,204 |
frruf for the yras - FXTEL 7 20038
pn = (2133 T
il @ dalirniive iniaims s 15149 TA1893
st o b TS iy
1] = I TEAL ]
(5] e - (627,10 [[ELA]
At o adasin dividead i =% {177 i) RERCE
13 : [T %
atancs wa ai Murch 31, 3607 o] FERTL 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
As per owr repor of even date

Fot Price Walerhouse Chartered Actountanis LLP
Pirn Registration Mumber: 0) 2754 N/NS00016

Harinderjit Singh
Partner
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Plare ; New Delhi
Date . May 1, 2018
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n
Chairperson
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Date : May 3, 1018

Dharmander Kapoor
Chicl Financinl Officer
PAN: AIXSPKS541M

Plaoe.'Pm
Date : MGUJB, 3‘-)'8
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BIRL.

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2018 1ANl ameunis in Bs. Lakhs. unless otherwise statedy

A

Ry

)

ASOFT {INDIA) LIMITED

Year ended

Year ended

Maweh 31, 2019 March 31, 2017
CaASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profil before tax 12.978,74 1159183
Adiustment to reconcile nrofit before tax to not cash Nows
Deprecialion of property. plant and eanipment 1.237.94 1.078.14
Amertization of intaneible assets 23796 25407
Allowance for doubtful debis-trade recervables 63,10 226
Allowanee for doubtfn] glher assets and other financial assets 3517 165.67
Uniealized foreipn exchange loss! { eain} {26.63) |7 69
Fealised wain on sale of curven| investmenis 1890 64) 1544 71
Unreatised 2ain on cumenl investmenls 387 7" (347 1N
Lease eqnalization reserve 911 55 108
Loss on sale of property. olant and eauipment {net) 175
Unbilled reverme wrillen off 15.00
Fait value {eainifloss on finsncial mstrainents at fair value throuels profil or loss 1.052) B8 (G103 83y
Ouler finance income (31 85 175
Gain on transler of busimess (refer nole 471 {9,322 200
Juterest meome on bank deposits and income (ax tefund (269 30y 1117 594
Operating Profit before Working Carita) Chances 5.610.97 11.468.42
Mavements in working capilal :
Decreases (Incicase) in irade 1eceivables 243104 1.106 57
Clecieasel {Inerease) in other financ(alinon-financial assels (147130 344 01
Decieasef {Increase) in Bank balances other than "Cash and cash eawnalem” trefer nole 93 (9315000
In¢reasedi Decrease) in emploves benelil povisions 50588 (941 38
IngreasefiDacrease) in wade pavable 2.034 65 53092
IneyeasefiNecrease) in ther finanial inan financial lishilties LA 263 57
Cash generated from operations 1883.7N 12,172.51
Direel taxes nad fnet of refinds) {3657 4% 3 k06 69
Med cash flow from oneratioe activities (44 (4,541,175 RAO&S AT
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIYITIES
Furchase of properly, plant and equipment {including capitat work in gromess and canital advances) {3866 35 [1.626 29}
Proceeds from sole of oroerty, plani and equipment 1213 10 31
Matmity of bank deposilx {having orivinal malurity of more ihan 2 months) 300 00
Proceeds (iom sale of cuirent invesiments 19.226 49 18.586 19
Purchase of curtenl inveshnents (34,800 99 {26399 98}
Proceeds rom sale of business {refer nole 47) 9.038 80
_ Molerest received 17 35 178 69
et epeh Now fromfused ind investimg wciivings (18 ASLLY L2001
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from shorl lenn bonowinus 5.018 63 912 58
Repaywpents of shon tenn borrowings (5018 67 15,009 45
Inierim dividand (627.10% {627 107
Tinal dividend (62710} {627 107
Toax on mterim dividend t127 66Y {127 66
Tax nn final dividend — LB aslsg N A
Met cash flow fnsead ind linaneing aetivities {073 i1L500.51y (AN LE]
Met (decreaselincrease in cash and cash couivalenls iA+B+C) (1.507.43) 1.158.36
Cash and cash equivalents at bevinning oi the ven 1784 20 262605
— — 13% 07 3IR4AD
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BIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED
Standakone Stoviement of Cash Flows far the year suibvdl Margh 31, 2018 (AN snssunts i Pl Lakhs, unleas otharwise slated)

- Year ended Yius sucduid
Prlarih 31, 20N March 30, 2007

Compeaents of exsh and ensh cyuivalenn a3 o1 end of ihe year [refir nate 5) ¢
Cauch on hand # aon
Cheque oo hand g4l
Funds in repaia Wi
Wit bank:
-in CUTnL BCcunts 1LY imR
~in EEFC pecouns pr 8] 138
Toeal Cazle uod Caabi equivalenss TITRAT ATEAA0

# 0 regresenia amoumt is below ihe rounding off norm adepted by (he Company

Note - The sbowve cash Dow statemers bat been propared using indirect nstbod a8 per Lad AS 7 "Steteroant of Cash Flows®.

Summary of significant sccounting policies 1

The scoinpanyiap noses are an integral pat of the

As per our report oleeen date

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of Birlasofl {Indin) Limated

A -
Chainpersun Manapmg Dircclor ad Chesf Executive OfBcer
Membormhip Mo, D865 Dy COAVTTIE DIM:D640M053
Place : Gungmm hfr:Nstli Piaca : New Dol
Date : May 3, 2018 ks - My 3, 2008 Date : Muy 3, 2012
'
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Y ) J] J{
\x tiSmmnder Kapoir Sakshi Jain

Chief Finmeil Officer Commpany Seorctary
PAN: ADSPKSSAIM M. No.: ACS 42743

Place sm Place : New Delhd
Date  May 3, 2018 Deie : May 3, 2014
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Birlasoft (India) Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

1. Corporate information

Birlasoit (India) Limited (*the Company’) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company also has overseas
branches at Singapore, Australia, Sweden, Switzerland, Canada, Poland and subsidiaries in Malaysia,
United States and China.

The Company is a global provider of IT solutions and services. The Company provides services in
the arcas of software development, package implementation, application management and testing. It
leverages its domain knowledge in the areas of Banking, Financial Services, Manufacturing and
Healthcare and ERP implementation.

Also refer notes 37 and 47 for developments relating to composite scheme of arrangement filed with
respect to a proposed transaction and slump sale of a business, respectively.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of Standalone Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Company has been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 issued
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and policics
(as amended).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the assets and liabilities
relating to financial instruments which have been measured at fair value. Refer note 2.2(iii} below,

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Rs. Lakhs except when otherwise indicated.
2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
i. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
Icast twelve months after the reporting period

an o

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when;
a. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
b. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
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Birlasoft (India) Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the ycar ended March 31, 2018

¢. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

ii. Foreign currency translation

a. Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also the company’s
functional currency. For each foreign branch, the Company determines the functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each branch are measured using that functional currency
which is Indian Rupees.

b, Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the finctional currency at spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Company uses
an average rale if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

iii. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives and investments in mutual funds at

fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

T?.a‘ Rt praanme -f'.v"'l

" '?h-u;-;‘.n“ ’
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Birlasoft (India) Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
inlerest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it 1o another
market participant that would usc the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which tair value is measured are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

a. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b. Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢. Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period,

The Company’s finance team determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and
for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distributicn in discontinued operations, The
team comprises of the head of the treasury operation and chief finance officer.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. Involvement of externai
valuers is decided on the basis of nature of transaction and complexity involved. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained.

At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies, For this
analysis, the team verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agrecing the information
in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents. A change in fair value of assets
and liabilities is also compared with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classcs of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair valve
hierarchy as explained above.
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Rirlasoft (India) Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2018

iv. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, taking into account contractually defined terms of
payment and excluding taxes or duties collected en behalf of the government. The Company evaluates
principle versus agent considerations in all of its revenue arrangements. Revenue is measured af the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and allowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates.

Sales tax/ value added tax {VAT)Y Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on
its own account, Rather, it is tax collected on value added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of
the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised,

Rendering of services

Revenue from time and material contracts is recognized during the period in which the related services
are provided. Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognized using the percentage completion method
whereby revenue and prefit are recognized throughout the performance period of the contract. The
stage of completion is measured by reference te hours incurred till date as a percentage of total
estimated hours for each contract. The cumutative effects of changes in estimates of contract costs are
recorded in the period of change. If estimates of cost indicate a loss, provision is made in the current
period for the total anticipated loss. When the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue
is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered. Revenues
recognized in excess of amounts billed, if any, are classified as Other Current Assets.

Revenues from maintenance contracts arc recognized pro-rata over the period of the contract as and
when services are rendered.

The Company offers discounts on certain revenue transactions to customers based on accelerated
payment terms. The discounts are estimated at the time of recognition of revenue,

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of trading goods (licenses) forming part of projects is recognized where the
significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of
the goods and there are no unfulfilled obligations that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the

goods.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (E1R) on a time proportion basis taking into
account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Intercst income is included under the
head “finance income” in the statement of profit and loss.’

v, Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current peried’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and Jiabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company generate taxable income.
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Birlasoft {India) Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions wherc appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilitics are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition
of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only
if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in subsidiaries and branches where the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in subsidiaries and branches where it is not probable that the differences will
reverse in the foreseeable fiture and taxable profit will not be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilized.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or 1o realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly,

Current and deferred tax is recognized in profit or Joss, excepl to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

vi, Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing
part of the plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
rccognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied, All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. The present value of the expecied cost for the decommissioning of an asset afier its use
is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives estimated by the
management which is in line with rates prescribed under the Schedule I1 to the Companies Act,
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Birlasoft (India) Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

vii.

2013 except for vehicles and furniture & fixtures. The management believes that these estimated
useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely
1o be used.

In case of Leasehold Improvements, the depreciation is provided over shorter of economic useful
life or the period of lease including probable extendable lease period.

The Company has determined the following useful lives for its fixed assets.
Management estimated useful life  Schedule II prescribed useful

life
Computer Systems
-Hardware 3 years 3 years
-Servers 6 vears 6 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years 10 years
Vehicles 7 years 10 years
Office Equipment’s 5 years 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised vpon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit
and loss when the assel is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried al cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulaled impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite,

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the estimated useful economic life being 3
years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an inlangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end ol each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful
life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are
considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting cstimates. The amortisation cxpense on intangible assets with finite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value
of another asset.

Gains or losses arising [rom derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net dispusal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statemcnt of profit or loss when the asset is derecogniscd.

\ .-.-1,...\1.-f
ah%_lum ml



Birlasoft (India) Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

viii,

ix.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur, Borrowing costs consist of inlerest

and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cast also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of’
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or asscts and the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lcase is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially atl the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified
as a finance lease.

Operaling lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straighi-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating vnit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does net generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups ol assets. When the
carrying amount of an assct or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-1ax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specilic to the asset, In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactiens can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual asscts are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer
periods, a long-term growth rale is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth
year, To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subscquent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case,
this growth rate does not exceed the lang-term average growth raie for the products, industries, or
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recoghised, The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Provisions
General
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or consiructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Decommissioning liability

The Company uses various premises on lease to run its operation and records a provision for
decommissioning costs to be incurred for the restoration of these premises at the end of the lease
peried. Decommissioning costs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the
obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the particular asset.
The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurced and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as an interest expense. The
estimated future costs of decommissioning and interest rate are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied arc added to or
deducted from the cost of the asset.

Employee benefits
a. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benelit obligations in the balance sheet.

b. Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve

months, as long-term employee benefits for measurement purposes. Actuarial gains/ losses
are immedialely taken to the statement of the profit and loss and are not deferred. The
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Company represents the entire leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, since it docs
not have an uncenditional right to defer its settlement for at least twelve months after the
reporting peried, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

¢. Post-Employment obligations
i Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense,
when an employee renders the related service.

Retirement benefits in the form of Central Provident Fund are a defined contribution
scheme in Singapore {relating to Singapore branch) and the contributions arc charged to
the Statement of Prefit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds
are due. The contribution varies on the basis of permanent residential status of the
employee. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the Central
Provident Fund Board in Singapore.

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation are a defined contribution scheme in
Australia (relating to Australia branch) and the contributions are charged to statement of
profit and loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are
no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the respective Superannuation
fund in Australia.

ii. Defined benefit plan-Gratuity obligations

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered trust fund. The Company fully
conlributes all ascerlained liabilities to the Birlasoft (India) Limited Employees Gratuity
Fund Trust (the Irust). Trustees administer contributions made te the trust and
contributions are invested in a scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India as
permitted by laws of India.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determincd using the
projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan asseis (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained earnings through Other Comprehensive Income in the peried in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassificd to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or Joss on the earlier of:
i. The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
ii. The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs
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Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate 1o the net defined benefit liability
or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined bencfit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

i, Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses
on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
ii.  Netinterest expense or income

d. Bonus Plans

The Company recognizes aliability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognizes
a provision where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created
a consteuctive obligation.

Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-setiled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is
made vsing ah appropriate valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fuifilled
in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions
at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The statement of profit and Joss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that peried and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions, Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair valuc of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest becausc non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or naon-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions arc satistied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the
expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are mct. An
additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as mcasured at the date of
medification. Where an award is cancellcd by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining
element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.
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The dilutive effect of outstanding oplions is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of diluled earnings per share.

xiv, Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives risc to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commils to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets arc classified in three categories:
1. Debt instruments at amortised cost

2, Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTQOCI)

3. Debt instruments, derivatives at fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL)

Financial assets carvied at amortised cost

A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if:

a. The asset is held within a busincss model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPL) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cosl using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and foes or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amottisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial asset at fair value other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payment principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange and forcign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss.

Financial asset al fair value through profit & loss (FVTPL}

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the
criteria for categorizalion as at amertized cost or as fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCD, is classified as at FVTPL..
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Derecognition _

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) is primarily derecognised {i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

i. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

ii. The company has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflecis the rights and obligaticns that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
thal the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk

exposure:

i. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

ii. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 18

The company foltows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables.

The application of simplificd approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, il recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a
subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such thal there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the litetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible wilhin 12 months after the reporting date.
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ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance
wilh the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive {i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to censider:

i. All contractuai terms of the financial instrument {including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the cntity is
required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

it. Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms,

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivabies. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-locking estimates are analysed.

In case any balance is disputed by the customer then it will be reviewed separately for creating the
provision and amount up to 100% of the balance may be provided on the basis of nature ol dispute.
Any disputed balance which is considered separately will be excluded from the normal ageing
bucket for making the provision.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described
below:

i. Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue recefvables: ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-
ofT criteria, the company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

For assessing incrcasc in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis.

The company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets,
i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ crigination.

Financial fiabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables.

All financial liabilities arc recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
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The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. Trade and other payables represent
liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition,
Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective intercst method.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial Labilities depends on their classification, as described below:

i. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain ot loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit ot loss. The
company has designated all financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss (except
for 1oans and borrowings).

ii. Financial Liabilitics at amortised cost {Loans and borrowings) - After initial rccognition,
interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cosl is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance

sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and Lhere is an
intention 1o seltle on a net basis, to realise the assels and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.




Birlasoft (India} Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2018

Xv.

AVl

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts to hedge
its foreign currency risks. Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to prefit
or loss.

The Company has not designated any of its derivate instruments as hedge instrument,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts (if any) as they are considered
an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

xvii.  Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized and no
longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but net distributed
at the end of the reporting period.

xviii. Earnings per share

Xix.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of cquity
shares outslanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding of amountis
All amounts disclesed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off 1o the nearest
lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.
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BIRLASOFT (INDA) LIMITED

Nales lo financial stalemenis for the year ended Mavch 31, 2008 (Al amounts in Rs.

4

[a

Investment [n subsidinries
Investments at cost (fully paid)
Unguored equily instrumenls

5,000 (March 31, 2017 5000) equiry shares of Rs 12,1325 each in Birlasoft
Sdn Bhd (Mataysia) 4
Rs. [,186.13 lakhs (USD 2,000,000} [{(March 37, 2017: Rs. 1,186 13 lekhs]

in Birlasoft (Wuxi) Infonnation Technologies Co Ltd (China) [refer note 39)

Less: Provision far impainnent in value of invesiments [refer note 3%]

10,000,000 (Mareh 31,2017 13,000,000} equity shares of Rs 2 59003 ench

in Birlasofl INC, S A (acquited by virtue of amalpamation) -
[refer nole (a) belowl

Agpregale ameunt of waguored invesimen|s
Appregale amount of provision for impairment in valne of investments
MNate-

Lakhs, unless pdherwlse stalel)

As M March 31,2018

0H
1.186 13
1,186 13}

5901

250.01

1.445 14
1186 13

Asal March 31,2017

0og
1.186.13
(1,186 13)

25901

25901

1445 14
118613

{a} Pursuant to stock buybeck agieement dated November 9, 20172, Jannary 6, 2018 and January 16, 2018 execuned between Birlasofl Inc . a subsidizry and its minctiry shaehaiders, the

shineholding of 1he Company in Pivlaseli Inc has increased from 98 76% to 100%
# @ represents amount is below Lhe rounding +ff nonm adopled by the Company

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferved lux assets

Lease equalisation reseive

Pravigion for pratwiny

Provigion for leave benefits

Provision for diminution in valve of investimenis in a subsidiary
Allowance for doulu ful linancial assets and other asse1s
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assels

Provision (or incentive and bonus refating (o earlien years
Cihers

Total dleferred ran pssets

Deferred tax liabilities

Investmenms w mutual funds a1 Fair value wowsh profi or loss
Foreigm exchange forward contiacts at fait value throngh profit or loss
[desivalive financial insimment)

Provision for prauiry in Other Comprehenstve Income [QC1)

Omers

Tota) defereed tax Nabilitics

Net geferred tax assels

Movement of deferved tax in starement of peafit pnd loss-

Reni egualisaiion reso ve

Provision [or gratuily

Provision [on leave benelils

Prevision for impairment in value of myveshinen

Prowvision o donbilel delt and advances

Propery. plant and egquipnent and liangible asses. Iinpaet of diflesence
berweenn 1oy depreciation and deprecialion! amenzation charped [ he
finameral 1eponinge

Provisicn Ton incentive and bows ielaling 1o earlier yeas

Onliesrs,

Total delermed fax assels

Sel-olT of deferied wax liabilities

Invesimentan fain valoe theeweh profin or loss

Foreipn exchanpe lonvnd conhacls

Prorvision Ton gratuity i Siher Comprehensive Tncome

I'tervision for Izaee benefits

Oy

Neldelerred (ax asscl

As af March 31, 2018

441 8¢
34 59
180 BO
41t 50
147.05
836 84
4% 49
1209
2,003.25

29010
757

(7913)

118.54

1.944.71

177

Y ear enided
Mlareh 31,2018

RIERE
i O Dy
2338
[ERLT
5235
106 21

4134
3T R
EEVNR)

151 1%
[REANRT
1122 o

PRI AT
13411

As M March SI,EOE

12875
134 6%
1574t
424 79
144,69
T30 63

49 15
177414

155 w2
36122

43 (4
332
563.50

1,2 1060

Year ended March 31,
e

106
(280 23)
Pl
1 2%
3812
kNI

(1 45y
{151.000

12202
218136
B 6]

1 B4
1577841



BIRLASOFT {INDIA) LIMITED
Nates 16 linancial sistemenls for the year ended Mareh 31, 2013 (Al amounts in RS, Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Income tax expense

ic

Bireak-un of dax exnense
Current lax
Adjusiment of 1ax relaling Lo emlier periods

Deferred tax {exeluding tax impact recoghi
Total tax expense

1 in Other Compr

Income)

Teconciliation of dax expense and the ace

Acconmiing pofil before 1ax

Tax &t the India tax rale of 34 603% {(Margh 31, 2017 - 14 608%5)

Capital pain 1axable an lowes rae
Corporale social responsibility expense
Expenses allowed emlicr under tax purpose

Incentive acciual in the previous year allowed i this year

Soncry itams

Sub-toral

Adjustment of bax relating 1o earlier reriods
Income lax ¢xpense

Tayx losses

Unused [ax losses for which no defened (ax assel has been recopnised

Poiential tax benefit

ing profit

Hiplied by India’s d

Year ended
March 3. 2013
4066 31
788

(734,11}
— 358009

ic lax rate for March 21, 2018 and Murch 31, 2017,

As ol Mareh 31, 2 &

1297878
4,401 70
(07541}

704

(6 8T}
(25,16}

333220

247 89
3 581,00

As ot Murch 31, 2018

#3505
296 23

Year ended
March 31. 2007
341942

(5 68)

T34

—taflA

As at March 31, 2017

11,591 83

101171
006
271}

14 80}
3,997.24

(3.68)
3,991, 58

Az at March 31, 2007
78495
271 &6

‘The wnused losses were incvmed by cenain averseas branches that 15 nol hikely to penerate taxable income in the foncseeable funne The logses can Tre carried forward subject to regutations

in respective ax jurisdiciions

Financlul nsseis - Curvent investments*™

Investments in Mutual Furds at fair value thraugh profit or lnss

{Ouoted on a recopnized slogk exchange)

L& T Liguid fund Repalar Growih

1CICL Pru Flaxible Income -Growih

Ketak Flopaer Shon Ferw - Giowth

Bmodn Pioneer Treasury Advantaee Fund
Baroda Pipneer Ligud FundtGY

IC1C1 Pru Money Markel Fund (G

Birla Sun Life- FRIF Shot Tenm Plan - Growth
Rirla sun Life Saving Fund-Grawih - Regular Plan
THAFE Maating Kate Income Fand-5 i

Axis liquid Fund- Girowlh

S131 Una Shon Tenm Deby Fund-Reular
IDFC Ulina Shon Term Fond- Crowih

Apperate amoml af quoted invesinens
Agpregane amonn) ol uigueled Wivestingins
Agprepiie amown of ipamem

* Reten none 3700 Tar camarking o autual funds
Trade receivahles

Trende 1eceivables

Receivables iom elaved panes el nol 444
Lessi- Allowance for donbi [l dels

Tetal trade receivilbbes

Cureeni petign
Mon cunent podlion

Tetal

Break-un of trade veccivables

Tracde receivalles
Unseculed, considered wool
Vnseemed considered deali ol

Adlewance for daeuliful debis
Linsecinod  comsigdened dovd il

Frab Urade receivables

"

" As a1 March 31,2018

MNo. of Units Amaunl
45933 100 2%
178,674 5072 7]
25430 51703
2,594,921 5,996 17
075,430 230709
1.26%,985 Q81|
16,814 601 45
6.416.202 10,5874
o 551 T

As at March 34, 204

JHH
2R Ah

152 1y
1320177

4377

4.321.37

At Yarch 312008

13097
3207
A3 d

W2 17
ML
FEETRE)

As at Mareh 31, 2017
N, al Linits Amaunt
336407 1.670.04
(1,936 1651 18
92441 145229
693,997 1.568 42
419492 a7 10
3T0863 1,669 30
1263985 o924 14
180032 323701
14308 3 RO
1684.730 843 56
0 A%A I07T 1460 R
14,639 B4

Asad March 30,2017

1034 28
571745

{1907)
6,7192.66

6 792 b6

6,792.00_

st Mlaech 31, 2007

6,792 Gty
1907
BT

i 1907
(T
0, TUL60



BIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to Bnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 {All amounts In Ts, Lokhs, unless olherwise siated)

Trode receivables are non-interas besing and are genecally on terms of 30 1o 180 days. Refer note 42 for irade teceivables given as collateral

Ng trade or other recejvable are due from directors or other offivers of' the Company either severally or jpintly with any other petson Noi any bsde or other receivable are due from fims

or privete companies respectively in which any direcror is a pariner, a director or 3 member

Movemenl in allowance for doubilul trade receivables

Opening allowance

add: allowance created dming the year (Refer Nole 28)
Less: Amount wiitten offAwriten back

Clasmy alfowance

Cash and cash eqquivalents

Halances with banks:

= I cunent xccous
—in EEFC accoml
Cheques/ deaits on haad
Funds in transil

Cash un hand #

# 0 represents amount is below the 1ounding ofT non adopied by the Company

Bank balances other than "Cuash and cash equivalent'”

Balances wilh banks:
- Deposits with original maturiry of more than thies months #

As at March 31,2018

1947
6310

8217

AsatMarch 31,2018

1.980 31
28 &3
22843
3033

0 0d
.216.97

Asal March 31,2018

Rs.

9.315 00
SRS

Asg at March 31, 2017

L6 81
226

1907

As ar March 31, 2017

3782 82
I 58

As at Maveh 31, 2017
Rz

# Eannarked in an escrow accounl maintained with Kobak Mahindia Bank Laniled (meichant banke ) as per terms of scheme of anangenent {refer hote 37}

Other financial ussets

Foreign exchange forward conlracts at fair value through profil or loss
Unbilled revenue

Security deposits

Inrerest accrued on fixed depesils

Other bank balances®*

Allowange for doubtiul bakances
Unsecored, considered good
Unsecured, considered Dowbuful
Total ather Financial assels

Breabup of above-

Non-curcenl

Unsecured, consilered gomd
Secmiry deposils

Other bank balances**

Tutl nun-vurvent immcisl assels

Current

Unsccured, considered good

Foreign eschangs Forwad comiacis at (i vatue hroogh malin or loss
Uinbilled revemie

Seturily depositg

Interest aceined on [ixed deposits
Diher bamk balances*™*

Unsecured, considersd dowbiiv)
Seenurin deposils

Less: -Allewance for deubn i) deposits
Tatal cwrrent financial assers

#* Caler bk slanees mclodes mangin money o Rs 16 lkhs (el 30, 2607 Rs [ lakhsd iven szt ik, giamniee issoed by i hank and faed deposil of Rs Nil iMarch 31 2017

s 17 laklis) given as seemity 1o sales lax department

As ol Baweh 30,2014

2| 87
672 53
BY3 8o

97 37

1600

1.701.63

191 63}
1,609.98

14 95
14 O
330,95

2 R¥
67233
487 2y

91 57

IR
1 65y
L2903

Inierest acerued an Mxed denosins temesens neerued intercst on lived denosits as disclosed in noies 8 sl %

179

As ul March 31,2017

1043 75
424 73
827 10

17 74

151332

(733
22301

083 63
1774
™mI37

1043 75
424 73
64 15

93]
(L)
150063



BIRLASOFT {INDHA} LIMITED
Netes 1o Tinunclal statements Tor the year ended March 31, 2018 (All amounts ia Rs. Lakhs, unless ofherwise stated}

1L Other assets p——
As at March 31, 2018

Unsteured, considercd gnod

As at March 31, 2017

Prepaid cxpenses 691.06 197 00
Capital advances 644 10 2385
Advance 1o subsidiary 2 16
Advance lax / 1ax deducted a1 source (net of provision for 1axation) 1,528 17 161314
Balance with governmell amhorilies 1,248 91 61738
Other advances {including recoverable from employees and inlercst on income tax refund)
Unsecured, considered paod 512 14 11947
Unsecured, considered doubi ful 395.55 31872
5,044 05 3.175 56
Allpwance for ather assers
Unsecured, considered pood
Unsecured, considered doubiful [395.55) (31970
Total olher assets 4,648 50 i 2 B55 B4
DBreakup of above-
Non-current
Prepaid expenses 200 84 [0 96
Capital advances G4 10 285
Advance tax f Tax deducied al source (met of nrovision (o taxatinn) 1.528 17 1619 14
Balance wilh poverminen authorilies 7030 7030
‘Total non-curreni 1.443.41 1,873,125
Current
Mepaid expenses 490 22 31604
Advance to subsidiary 24 16
Balance wilh poverunent authorities 117861 S47.08
et advances (ineluding recoverable from employees and inlercs on income tax refund) Q0765 43919
Less: -Allowance for douliful other assets {395 55) 31272)
Tatal current 2,205.09 981.59
12 Share capital
Mo, Ampunt
{a}  Authorised Share Capitsl
Equity shares of 5. 11 each
As at dacch 31,2016 49,000,000 490000
Change duning (he yea
Asachlach 31,2017 . 49000000 4,900 00
Change during the year -
Asar March 31,2018 49,000,000 4,900.00
(B} Termsfvighis sttached 10 equity shares
The Company: has only viee class of equily shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share Each holder of equity share is ennitled 1o one voie pee share 1 he Company declmes and pays
dividends n Indean ruppees  he dividend proposed by 1he Bomd of Direclors is subject to the approval ol the shareholders in the Annual General Mecting
Jit tlie event of liquidation of the Company. the boldess of equify shaies will be entitled 1o receive 1emaining assels of the Company, after distribaion of all prefziential amounts The
disnilution will be in proponion 1o (he mmber of equity shates held by the shareholders
iy kssoed Share Capital
Equity shares of s, 1) each issaeil, subscribed and Tully paid
Mo, Arniniinl
Asan Mareh 31 2016 31,354 800 313548
Change durimg the vea
Asan Mach 31 2017 31,354 500 113548
Change duning the iz
Asal saveh 31 2008 31,354,800 3135 48
fal}  Shares el Iy heldingfullimate holling company

Ot wl cguity shaves 1ssied by the Company. shares beld by its holdiog company are as below:-
Asal March 31, 208

Sational Engineer, s Linzited, 1he helding company
9 20000 N areh 312007 29 240.008) equity shares of ks 10 each [ully
aicl wp

102400

180

As i darel 31, 2007

292100



BIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED
MNaotes te financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 {All ameunts in Bs. Lakbs, unless pthenwise stated)

{e}  Details af Shaccholdeys helding more than 5% sharves in 1The Company

Name of (he sharchohler As al March 31,218 As at March 3, 21T

Mo. % holding in the ¢lass Ne. "% holding in 1he class
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up —
Hational Enginzerng Industties Limited, ultimare holding company 29,140,000 9y 29,240,000 Bi%
Ceniral India Indusiries Linited 2.114.800 T 2,114 800 T
AZ per The records maintained by 1he Company, including its vegister af sharaholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial mterest, the ubove

sharehelding represenms both lepal and benaficial ownership of sharss, Alse refer note 37

(F Shaves veserved lor issue vnder aplions
For details al shares yeset ved for issue under the emplovee slock aption (CS0PY plan of 1he Compamy, please refer nole 32

13 Mhre enmwily A5 a1 March 31, 1018 42 at Maveh 3122017

General reserve

Cpening balance 4.000 08 4.000 00
Add: Transfer fram retained camings 10,000 08
14,600.74 4,000,008

Retined carnings
Cipening balsnce 22369 63 16,160.24
Add Toanl comprehensive income during the year, nol of tax 95448 20 751893
l£s8; Approp iarions ©

Final dividend * (627 1) (62T 10

Inlerim dividend * (627 1 1627 10
Diividend disiralwalion lax on

Final dividend * {127 66) [127 663

Interim dividend * (127 &) [127 60%
Tvansfer 1o Geneval ieserve 10,0000
Net surplus in the stateinent of profil and loss 20,904,353 —
Toral Orher equiny R [ £ 26,349,565

Refer Naie 14

14 Distribution made and proposed

As nl March 31, 2004 A at March 31, 2017
{2} Cash dividends on equily shares declared and paid
Fumal divadend fon 1he year ended March 31, 2017 ol Rs 2 (Maich 31, 2016: 627,10 627 10
Rs Xper fully paid share
Imerim dividend for (he year ended hdarch 31, 2018 of Rs 2 {Mmeli 31, 62719 627 10
20017 fs 2 per My paid share
Diividend disuibwion wax on finnl dividend 127 & 127 66
Dividend diswibuiicn rax on interinn dividend : 127 &6 177 66
1.50% 52 |.50% 52
(l} Proposed dividend on equity shares
Final cash dividend for (e year ended an kMarch 31, 201%: Rs 2 per share G171 637 10
Ivlaeh 3102017 Bs 2 per shane)
Prvadend dishobution s ou poposed dividend 127 6 127 6
T34 76 754 76

Proposed dividends on equily shates me vecoimmended o payment by the Board of Direciors and e sulijec) o mpnoval ol ihe slivelhalles s ihe enswng annual geosal eening The
s i o recoemised as a lability dinctudime divedend distribution ias (hereon) as at yean end

15 Prate payaliles

Ac ol Mavel 372018 Asat Maveh 3, 27

1 otal oatstand i duss of cieduons othes than micio enterprises and small
LRICHTHISS

Dinies wy el panlies B8

Ol s ERENI] 1715
[cond corstamcing dues ol imicio enlen prises ind sl enterposes (refe note 34)

ERCERTY [ETERY!

Breakup of above-
Mon-curment
T nnent 37950 LIR30
Toin) (UL 1L.712.31

Frade pavcishles s non-interest beanmg and ane aoanally setlled on 30-day rems
o e prlimnione o e Canmuny s credil nsk maiuewmen) provesses, wefen to nole 43




BIRLASOFT (INLMA) LIMYTED
Netes to Anancial statenvents for the year ended Mavch 31, 2008 (Al amounis in Rs.

16 Pryvision for employee benefirs

Asa March 31,2018 As at March 31, 2017
Frovisions for pratuity {refer note 31) 3286l 276 34
Provisions [or leave benefits 322 40 454.85
Total = #5101 73019
Hreakop of above-
Non-turrent
Provisions for gratuity *
Prowisfons for leave benefits [refer note 314b)] .
Teial - =
Current
Mevisions for gratyity * 32861 76 34
Provisions for leave benefits 3 52740 434 BS
Taml L 851.01 13119
* The povision For pratuity has been shown 9 cuizent basis actnarial valuation certificate
Movement in above Dalanges-
Gratwiry  Leave benefits ‘Total
As at March 31, 2016 12247 37878 [ B
Provision duting the year 64 21 152 |8 356 3¢
Utilised (21223) {282 309 494 53]
Remeasurement gains{losses) on Tiabiliry 125 82 166 19 9101
Less - Foir value of plan assets (including actuarial pains and losses) 11,213 93) (1,213 33)
As at March 31, 2017 276,34 434.85 13119
Provision during 1he year 352 64 27 62035
Utilised {18539 {36177} (347 |6}
Remeasurement painsflosses) an liability (232.76) 20061 {3115}
Less:- Fair value ol plan assets (including actuarial gains and losses) (1 036.15) - (1,136.15}
As at March 31, 2018 328.61 512,40 R51.01
17 Frovisions
As at March 3¢, 2018 Az at March 31, 2017
Provision for lewse reslonaiion costs [non-cemven 2876 T
I8.76 — 961
*Pravision for lease restoration wosls
The Company uses various promises on lcase to run its opetation A provision is recopmized fr (he costs (o be ivcwmed for the restoration of these premizes al e end ol lhe leage paviod.
1L 15 expected that this provision will be ukilized at the end of the lease period of 1he 1espeacrive sites as per ihe respeciive lease agreemenis
Pravision for leuse restorakion costs
Pavticnlars Year ended Yewr ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Laliance 35 a1 1he beginning of the year b6l -
Add; Provision ereated during the year 1803 ED0
Ll mding: ol discount and changes i ihe discoumt rale (VS 07l
Balance as at the ool of the yemwe 28.76 pa|
Classilicd ag curen -
Total 28,7 .61
18 Other Tnanchal ablliries (curvent)
Asat March 31, 2018 Asat March 31, 2017
Pavables fon fisved assels = 213203 108 53
Emiployee 1elmed payables 1341402 238511
340307 2,493.64
19 Correnl tax liakililies Asan March 3, 2018 As at March 31, 2007
Provisiour lin gaxaniom dnet ol advance 1ax / las deducled a1 sonced S T
A65.74
2y Cher currend labilities As at March 31, 208 Adalt Maceh X1, 2017

Lease eoualizanon eierve
Advanees [lam custemen s
Lingwmicd revenoe
Stalinony dues pavable

Lakhs, untess otherwise sinted)

67 21
153 24

Tl (H
D54.55

263
i
1494 28
G0
124.47



BIRLASOFT (INDEA) LIMITED
Noles 1o fimancial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2018 {All amounts in Rs. Lakhis, wnless otherwise stared)

Uncarmied 1evenm:

. 164 28
Statutory ducs payabie - 68 Ol 500
288,55 — a7
21 Omer Mon curvent lishilities As a1 March 31, 2008 As at March 31,2017
Lease equilisation 1eserve 1,209 66 33896
1,200.66_ 33894

- L
W s
£3 ’ 2
'F Rl
‘!cu“‘ L]
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BIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mavch 31, 2018 (ANl amounts in Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

22. Revenue from sperations Yenr ended Yeur ended
Muarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Sale of services
Export 3936632 45,509.65
Domestic 398917 324738
Sale of traded gonds
Software licenses {refer noie 33) 152 99 15645
43.508.48 48,018 AR
23.1Other ineome Year ended Yeur eoded
NMarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest income on bank deposils 109 62 1759
Interest income oan incoma tax refund 139 68 .
Income from recovery af suppon ensts (refer note 47} 21598 .
Reahised gain on sale of current investiments 890 64 544 .71
Fair value gain oo financial assets {investments) at kair value through profil or lpss 33773 34779
Met gain an foreign currency transaction and translation 1,413 47 F15.80
Fair value {lass)eain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss* (1.021.88) 610 33
Other finance incomeid 3| 29 41.75
Gain on transfer of business {refer nowe 473 # 932220
Miscellaneous income (refer note 43) 406 75 38 7o
11.016.08 2417.23

* Represent fair value gain/{loss) on fmeign exchange forwvard contracls

it Represent interest income on [inancial assels
ff Includes adjustment of Rs 307 39 lakhs (Mareh 31, 2017, Rs Nil} towards provision for gratuity of transterred employees pursuant to slump sale (refer note 47)

24, Purchase of iraded poeds Year enided Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Soltware licenses purchased 15003 146 34
150.05 146.34
5. Emplayee benelils expense Year ended Year emded
March 31, 2018 Mareh 31, 2017
Salaries. wagces and bonus 25.125 82 25,243 b6
Contribution (o provident fmd and onher Tunds* Jrelor nates o below and 3] 1.409 99 1.364 72
Grawly expenses [reler note (b below] 62123 364 21
Leave benefits éxpenses [reler nale 310 429 32 35837
Stafi wellare expenses A8 97 Sl t3
28.195.38 IR 245 09
MNutes-
{a} Defined contribution plans:
Descripion 31 March 2013 31 March 20417
Contribution (o pravident iund 1,282 45 1,238 44
Contribution towards adminsteative charges iprovident [und} 7339 7905
Contribulion 1o Finplayee Stale Insurmee Fund 217 814
Contribution 1o superanmualbon {ind and other funds (loreign branches} 32 44 3900
1,409.99 1,364.72

Total

by Includes ndjustment of Rs 307 39 lakhs (Maeh 31 2017 Rs Nil) wowards provision (o1 gratuily o) trimstirred emplovyees puesuant 1o sloug sale feelier now 47)

26. Finance costs Year encled Year ended
Marel 31, 2018 Mareh 31,2007

Finanee Charpes

- L banks 123 [h59
- Lo olhers bin 143
Bank vharies und processmg fees - - 33 Yl
{E £ A6 0T 41193
. If
St e
thh_ [ T —
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BIRLASOFT (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to financial statements Tor the vear ended March 31, 2018 (All amouats m Rs. Lakhs, onless otherwise stated)

27, Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of propedy, plant and equipment {refer note 3 1)
Amorizalion of imangible assers {(refer note 3 2}

28. Mher Expenses

Powver and fuel
Cosl of oulsourced work
Rent {reter note 33)
Rales and taxes {refer note 37)
Insurance -
Repairs and mainienance

-Camputers

-Others
Travelling and convevance
Communication cosls
Printing and slalionery
Lepal and professiomal fees (refer note 37 below)
Drireciors' sitting tees
Directors’ cominission
Pavinent 10 stalutory auditors {reler nole ¢ belaw)
Loss on sale of property. planl and equipment {net)
Unballed revenue wrilten olT
Allowance for deubtiul other assets and other financial assets
Allowanee for doubtful debis-trade receivables
Corporate social responsibility expenditure (reter nate 38)
Recruitment and traiming expenscs
Business prometinn expenses
Miseellancous expenses

Nates:
(a). Paymenl to slatwtory anditers

As audilor
- Audil fee
- Tax audil lee
In ether capacily
-Aundifreview ol special purpose linancial statemenls
-Centification
Reimbursement of expenses

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

185

1,237 94 1,078 14
23796 254 07
1.475.9% 1,332.21
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31,217
518 67 81004
1,532 95 1,047 77
297412 1,620 63
30433 11698
65 57 6091
696 31 767 66
1,119 78 939 72
1,477 91 203296
55924 §72 00
6325 7830
2,195 97 667.23
44 50 28 00
42 00 117 0
68 66 4993
375

1500

8217 165.67
63 10 226
1300 G418
251 38 548 97
£l 86 163 63
190 11 60 63
4,969,531

12,568.38

Year ended
helareh 31, 2018

3300
200

24 50
525
191

68.66

Year ended
March 31, 2117

39 50
200

465
3718
49.93



Pre and post Scheme of Arrangement shareholding pattern of the companies involved in the Scheme:

SrNo | Descripti | Name of KPIT Technologies Birlasoft (India) KPIT Technologies Limited
on Shareholder Limited - Pre Limited — Pre and KPIT Engineering
Arrangement Arrangement Limited - Post
Arrangement
No. of % No. of % No. of %
shares shares shares
(A) | Sharehol
ding of
Promote
r and
Promote
r Group
1 Indian
Individua | Names of
Is/ Hindu | Promoter
Undivide | Kishor P. Patil 29,89,080 1.51 29,89,080 1.09
d Family ["ajay Shridhar 26,36,300 1.34 26,36,800 0.96
Bhagwat
Shrikrishna 11,00,000 0.56 11,00,000 0.40
Manohar
Patwardhan
Sachin 8,40,800 0.43 8,40,800 0.31
Dattatraya
Tikekar
Shashishekhar 4,30,500 0.22 4,30,500 0.16
Balkrishna
Pandit
Nirmala 2,39,000 0.12 2,39,000 0.09
Shashishekhar
Pandit
Anupama K 1,22,330 0.06 1,22,330 0.04
Patil
Ashwini Ajay 43,300 0.02 43,300 0.02
Bhagwat
Pandit 38,620 0.02 38,620 0.01
Chinmay
Shashishekhar
(b) | Central
Govern
ment/
State
Govern
ment(s)
(c) Bodies
Corporat
e
(includin | Proficient 271,30,949 13.74 271,30,949 9.90
g Finstock LLP
sharehol

186




ding of
nominee

)

K And P
Management
Services Pvt.
Ltd.

3,00,910

0.15

3,00,910

0.11

National
Engineering
Industries
Limited

14,81,241

0.75

292,40,
000*

93.26

729,56,797

26.61

Central India
Industries
Limited

21,148
00

6.74

51,69,511

1.89

(d)

Financial
Institutio
ns/
Banks

(€)

Any
Others

Sub
Total(A)(
1)

373,53,530

18.91

313,54,
800

100

139,98,597

41.58

Foreign

@)

Individua
Is (Non-
Resident
S
Individua
Is/

Foreign
Individua
Is)

Ms. Hemlata
Shende

40,000

0.22

40,000

0.40

(b)

Bodies
Corporat
e

©)

Institutio
ns

(d)

Any
Others

Sub
Total(A)(
2)

40,000

0.02

40,000

0.01

Total
Sharehol
ding of
Promote
r and

373,93,530

18.93

1140,38,59
7

41.60
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Promote
r Group
(A)=
(A)D)+(
A)(2)

(B)

Public
sharehol
ding

Instituti
ons

(@)

Mutual
Funds/
UTI

Total

92,67,695

4.69

92,67,695

3.38

Idfc Sterling
Value Fund

35,55,935

1.80

35,55,935

1.30

Aditya Birla
Sun Life
Trustee
Private
Limited A/C
Aditya Birla
Sun Life Pure
Value Fund

25,45,700

1.29

25,45,700

0.93

(b)

Foreign
Portfolio
Investor

Total

978,67,030

49.55

978,67,030

35.70

Fidelity
Puritan Trust-
Fidelity Low-
Priced Stock
Fund

63,00,000

3.19

63,00,000

2.30

New Horizon
Opportunities
Master Fund

58,28,000

2.95

58,28,000

2.13

Acacia
Partners, Lp

48,00,000

2.43

48,00,000

1.75

Government
Pension Fund
Global

46,20,404

2.34

46,20,404

1.69

Acacia
Institutional
Partners, Lp

45,97,575

2.33

45,97,575

1.68

Acacia
Conservation
Fund Lp

34,30,056

1.74

34,30,056

1.25

Vanguard
Emerging
Markets Stock
Index Fund, A
Series Of
Vanguard
International

29,80,659

1.51

29,80,659

1.09
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Equity Index
Funds

Acacia Banyan 27,557,184 1.40 27,557,184 1.01
Partners
Vanguard 23,76,222 1.20 23,76,222 0.87
Total
International
Stock Index
Fund
Lsv Emerging 22,48,700 1.14 22,48,700 0.82
Markets
Equity Fund Lp
Dimensional 20,56,795 1.04 20,56,795 0.75
Emerging
Markets Value
Fund
Ishares Core 20,30,453 1.03 20,30,453 0.74
Emerging
Markets
Mauritius Co
Fidelity 20,00,000 1.01 20,00,000 0.73
Northstar
Fund
(c) Central | Total - - -
Govern
ment/
State
Govern
ment(s)
(d) Financial 76,711 0.04 76,711 0.03
Institutio
ns/
Banks
(e) Insuranc 2,65,000 0.13 2,65,000 0.10
e
Compani
es
) Foreign - - -
Institutio
nal
Investors
(9) Alternat 1,95,792 0.10 1,95,792 0.07
e
Investm
ent
Funds
(h) Any Foreign - - -
Other Mutual Fund
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Sub-
Total

(B)(1)

1076,72,228

54.52

1076,72,22
8

39.28

Non-
instituti
ons

(@)

NBFCs
registere
d with
RBI

Total

50,04,945

2.53

50,04,945

1.83

Bengal
Finance &
Investment
Pvt. Ltd.

50,00,000

2.53

50,00,000

1.82

(b)

Individua
Is

Individua
Is -i.
Individua
I
sharehol
ders
holding
nominal
share
capital
up toRs
2 lakhs

187,28,987

9.48

187,28,987

6.83

ii.
Individua
I
sharehol
ders
holding
nominal
share
capital in
excess of
Rs. 2
lakhs.

82,15,227

4.16

82,15,227

3.00

Ashish
Kacholia

35,25,000

1.78

35,25,000

1.29

©)

Any
Other

129,16,437

6.54

129,16,437

4.71

IEPF

1,65,974

0.08

1,65,974

0.06

Trusts

4,50,698

0.23

4,50,698

0.16

Foreign
National
S

1,47,070

0.07

1,47,070

0.05

Hindu
Undivide
d Family

4,77,297

0.24

4,77,297

0.17
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Friends
&
Associat
es

5,36,920

0.27

5,36,920

0.20

Non
Resident
Indians
(Non
Repat)

13,81,161

0.70

13,81,161

0.50

Non
Resident
Indians
(Repat)

11,56,660

0.59

11,56,660

0.42

Clearing
Member

12,71,987

0.64

12,71,987

0.46

Market
Maker

19,235

0.01

19,235

0.01

Bodies
Corporat
e

73,09,435

3.70

73,09,435

2.67

Rajastha
n Global
Securitie
s Private
Limited

23,82,040

1.21

23,82,040

0.87

Tata Aia
Life
Insuranc
e Co Ltd-
Whole
Life Mid
Cap
Equity
Fund-
ulif 009
04/01/0
7 Wile
110

2,05,501

0.10

2,05,501

0.07

Sub-
Total

(B)(2)

448,65,596

22.72

448,65,596

16.37

(B)

Total
Public
Sharehol
ding (B)=
(B)(1)+(B
)(2)

1525,37,824

77.23

1525,37,82
4

55.64
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TOTAL
(A)+(B)

1899,31,354

96.17

2665,76,42
1

97.24

©

Shareshe
Idby
Custodia
ns and
against
which
DRs have
been
issued

Employ
ee
Benefit
Trust

75,67,388

3.83

75,67,388

2.76

GRAND
TOTAL
(A+(B)+(
0

1974,98,742

100.00

2741,43,80
9

100.00

* 12 shares are held by 6 nominee shareholders for as a nominee of National Engineering Industries Ltd

Notes:

1.Pre-scheme shareholding is the company’s shareholding as of June 2018

2.Pre-scheme, the entire share capital consisting of 100,000 equity shares of INR
10 each of KPIT Engineering Limited is held by KPIT Technologies Limited. Post

Scheme, the shareholding pattern of KPIT Engineering shall mirror the
shareholding of KPIT Technologies Limited.

3.Shares which may be issued to the employees in lieu of stock options held in

Birlasoft (India) Limited have not been taken into account in the above
shareholding details

4. Since Birlasoft (India) Limited shall be dissolved without being wound up, the
post Arrangement shareholding pattern shall not be applicable.
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This is a disclosure document prepared in connection with the proposed composite scheme of arrangement involving
KPIT Engineering Limited (“Company”), KPIT Technologies Limited (“KPIT”), Birlasoft (India) Limited (“BSIL”)
and their respective shareholders under sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (“Scheme”).

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS 4 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL
THE PAGES. NO EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE SOLD OR OFFERED PURSUANT TO THIS
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT

You may download the Scheme & other relevant documents from the websites of KPIT and BSE Limited & National
Stock Exchange of India Limited where the equity shares of KPIT are listed (“Stock Exchanges”); viz: www.kpit.com;
www.bseindia.com; and www.nseindia.com respectively.

This Disclosure Document dated July 20, 2018 should be read together with the Scheme and the Notice to the
shareholders of KPIT.

KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED

Registered Office and Corporate Office: Plot-17, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, MIDC-SEZ, Phase-111, Maan,
Hinjawadi, Taluka — Mulshi, Pune — 411 057

Contact Person: | Mr. Vinit Teredesai Telephone: +91-20-66525000

E-mail: connectwithus@kpit.com | Website: www.kpit.com | CIN: | U74999PN2018PLC174192

NAME OF PROMOTER OF THE COMPANY

KPIT Technologies Limited

SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

The Scheme provides for:

(i)  amalgamation of BSIL with KPIT and issue of shares of KPIT to the shareholders of BSIL;

(i) immediately upon implementation of (i) above, the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as
defined in the Scheme) from KPIT into the Company, on a going concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by
the Company to the shareholders of KPIT;

(iii)  the reduction and cancellation of the equity share capital of KPIT to the extent of shares held by the BSIL, if any; and

(iv)  the reduction and cancellation of entire pre-scheme share capital of the Company.

Subject to approvals under applicable laws, the equity shares to be issued by KPIT and by the Company in consideration of the
aforementioned amalgamation and demerger respectively, shall be listed on the Stock Exchanges.

For the purposes of obtaining approval under Regulation 37 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the designated stock exchange is BSE Limited.

NAME OF THE STATUTORY AUDITOR ‘ B SR & Co. LLP (Firm’s Registration No. 101248W/W-100022)

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY

The Promoter of the Company is KPIT. Currently, entire share capital of the Company is held by KPIT.

KPIT is a public listed company incorporated on December 28, 1990 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and is a
leader in technology solutions and services, and currently partners with 200+ global corporations.

KPIT has two business divisions (i) the enterprise resource planning business of Oracle and SAP, digital business (as comprised
under digital technology SBU) along with infrastructure management systems and extended product lifecycle management
business; and (ii) engineering business of solutions of electronic or mechanical engineering and usage of this data for
diagnostics, maintenance and tracking of assets and related connectivity solutions including data and analytics beyond
embedded or mechanical engineering and their connectivity and integration with backend IT systems and platforms
(“Engineering Business”).
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KPIT’s business IT solution offerings help clients run their businesses more efficiently and smartly while its product engineering
solutions enable customers to build products that are energy efficient, cleaner, safer and yield more comfort for their end-
customers. Leveraging technology and domain prowess, KPIT partners with clients to co-create transformational value that
provides sustainable competitive advantage to their businesses.

Group Companies

The Company does not have any group companies covered in the list of related parties determined in accordance with AS 24,
with which it has entered into any transactions, for the year ended March 31, 2018.

BUSINESS MODEL/BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Overview

The Company has been incorporated on January 8, 2018 with an objective to engage in the Engineering Business. Pursuant to
the Scheme, the Engineering Business of KPIT shall vest in the Company and shall specialize in providing product engineering
solutions and services to key focus industries.

Strategy

The Company proposes to run the Engineering Business and ancillary and support services together with all the undertakings,
assets, properties, investments (direct and indirect), branches (direct and indirect) and liabilities of whatsoever nature and kind,
and wheresoever situated, of KPIT, as a going concern from the Appointed Date by virtue of, and in the manner provided in the
Scheme.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sr. No. Name Designation Experience including current/past position held in other firms
1. Mr. Shashishekhar Director He is the Co-founder, Chairman and Group CEO of KPIT. His vision has steered
Balkrishna Pandit KPIT towards achieving leadership position as product engineering and IT

consulting solutions and services provider. He currently focuses on development
of new technology and practices.

2. Mr. Kishor Patil Director He is the Co-founder, CEO and MD of KPIT. He has set high standards of
excellence in running high growth international operations, effecting successful
M&A and executing profitable integration. His exceptional people skill are
instrumental in building an innovative enterprise.

3. Mr. Sachin Director He being Co-founder and President of KPIT, is responsible for driving
Dattatraya Tikekar sustainable growth across Asia and leads initiatives to launch innovative
products and platforms. He has served in capacities like Head of US & Europe
and Chief of People operations.

| COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT ‘

The Scheme provides for:

(i) amalgamation of BSIL with KPIT and issue of shares of KPIT to the shareholders of BSIL;

(if) immediately upon implementation of (i) above, the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as
defined in the Scheme) from KPIT into the Company, on a going concern basis, and the consequent issue of shares by the
Company to the shareholders of KPIT;

(iii) the reduction and cancellation of the equity share capital of KPIT to the extent of shares held by the BSIL, if any; and

(iv) the reduction and cancellation of entire pre-scheme share capital of the Company.

Subject to approvals under applicable laws, the equity shares to be issued by KPIT and by the Company in consideration of the
aforementioned amalgamation and demerger respectively, shall be listed on the Stock Exchanges.
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PRE-SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON DATE

Sr. No. Particulars Number of shares % holding of Pre-Scheme
1 Promoter and Promoter Group 100,000 100
2 Public - -
Total 100,000 100

STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIALS |

(All Amount in INR million except per share data)

Sr. Particulars As at March 31, 2018

No (as per Ind-AS)
1. | Total income from operations (net) NIL
2. | Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and extraordinary items (2.66)
3. | Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and extraordinary items (2.66)
4. | Equity Share Capital 1.00
5. | Reserves and Surplus (2.66)
6. | Net worth (1.66)
7. | Basic earnings per share? (30.24)
8. | Diluted earnings per share? (30.24)
9. | Return on net worth (%)3 (160%)
10. | Net asset value per Share* (16.60)

Please note:

1. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit for the year after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

2. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the year by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares except where the
results are anti-dilutive.

3. Return on net worth (%) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the net worth as on March 31, 2018.

4. Net asset value per share is computed by dividing the net worth by the outstanding number of equity shares as on March
31, 2018.

5. The Company is yet to commence its operations and hence at this point of time is loss making and having negative net
worth.

6. No financials are available for preceding years as the Company was incorporated on January 8, 2018.

7. Consolidated financial statements are not required to be prepared.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS |

1) The business of the Company depends on its ability to maintain consistency in customer service and other operations.

2) The Company is required to apply for and/or receive consents/ renewals of certain statutory approvals/registrations/
licenses/permissions, or renewals required in the ordinary course of our businesses, and if the Company is unable to
obtain these approvals, permissions and licenses, our business could be affected.

3) The Company may be exposed to product liability claims that could have an adverse effect on its operations.

4) The Company will have to file applications for trademark registrations. If it is unable to obtain or maintain the
registration of Trademarks, its brand value and consequently the business operations could be affected.

5) There has been volatility in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and other major currencies in recent years and
the volatility in such exchange rates may impact the operating results of the Company.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION ‘

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against the company and amount involved - NIL
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B. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against the company and amount involved

NATURE OF LITGATION NO. OF CASES AMOUNT INVOLVED (IN INR)
Civil proceedings NIL NIL
Criminal proceedings NIL NIL
Tax matters NIL NIL
Labour NIL NIL

C. Regulatory Action, if any — disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters/Group companies in
last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any - NIL

D. Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters - NIL

| ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY — NIL ‘

| DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY |

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/regulations issued by the
Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by SEBI, established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this disclosure document is
contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or
guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements in the disclosure document
are true and correct.

Date: July 20, 2018
Place: Pune
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THIS IS A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT PREPARED IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED COMPOSITE
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AMONGST BIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED (THE “COMPANY”), KPIT TECHNOLOGIES
LIMITED AND KPIT ENGINEERING LIMITED AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS (THE “SCHEME”).
THE SCHEME IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE WEBSITES OF THE COMPANY, BSE LIMITED (“BSE”) AND
NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LIMITED (“NSE” AND TOGETHER WITH BSE, THE “STOCK
EXCHANGES”) WHERE THE EQUITY SHARES OF KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED ARE LISTED;
WWW.KPIT.COM, WWW.NSEINDIA.COM AND WWW.BSEINDIA.COM

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS 7 PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL
THE PAGES.

NO EQUITY SHARES ARE PROPOSED TO BE SOLD OR OFFERED PURSUANT TO THIS DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT

This disclosure document has been prepared in connection with the Scheme pursuant to Regulation 37 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. This disclosure document dated
July 19, 2018 should be read together with the Scheme and the notice to the shareholders of KPIT Technologies Limited in
connection with the Scheme.

birlasoft

(G CK BIRLA CROUP

BIRLASOFT (INDIA) LIMITED

Registered Office: Unit-216, C-Wing, 2nd Floor, 215-Atrium, Chakala, Near Acme Plaza, A.K. Road, Andheri-East,
Mumbai-400093, Maharashtra

Corporate Office: Assotech Business Cresterra Tower-3, Plot No-22, Sector -135, Noida 201301, Uttar Pradesh
) S Email: sakshi.jain@birlasoft.com;

Contact Person: Ms. Sakshi Jain compliance@birlasoft.com

Telephone: 0120-6629000 | Website: www.birlasoft.com CIN: U74899MH1995PL C308512

NAME OF THE PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY

National Engineering Industries Limited and Central India Industries Limited

SCHEME DETAILS AND PROCEDURE

Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement amongst KPIT Technologies Limited, the Company, KPIT Engineering
Limited and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”), the Company is proposed to be amalgamated with KPIT Technologies
Limited. All the assets and liabilities of the Company shall be transferred to and vested into KPIT Technologies Limited. For the
purposes of obtaining approval under Regulation 37 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the designated stock exchange is BSE Limited.

In consideration of the aforementioned amalgamation, KPIT Technologies Limited shall issue equity shares of KPIT
Technologies Limited to each member of the Company as on Record Date 1 (as defined in the Scheme). Upon amalgamation, the
Company shall be dissolved without being wound up.

PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY

The Promoters of the Company are National Engineering Industries Limited and Central India Industries Limited.

National Engineering Industries Limited (“NEIL”)

NEIL, a public limited company, bearing corporate identity number U29130WB1946PLC013643, was incorporated on April 24,
1946 under the Indian Companies Act, VII of 1913 as ‘National Bearing Company Limited’. Its registered office is situated at
9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road Kolkata 700001. The name was subsequently changed from National Bearing Company Limited to its
present name ‘National Engineering Industries Limited” on December 27, 1957. NEIL is in the business of designing, developing,
manufacturing and dealing in bearings mainly for automotive, industrial and railways.

Page 1 of 7
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Central India Industries Limited (“CIIL”)

CIIL, a public limited company bearing corporate identity number U02710WB1938PLC209971, was incorporated on November
29, 1938 under the laws of India. Its registered office is situated at ‘Birla Building’, 11™ Floor, 9/1, R. N. Mukherjee Road
Kolkata 700 001. CIIL is inter alia engaged in the business of investment of shares/ securities, mutual funds and deployment of
surplus funds in fixed deposits with banks and inter-corporate deposits and is also involved in trading and marketing of bearings
in India. CIIL has made an application to Reserve Bank of India for cancellation of certificate of registration as NBFC, which is
pending.

Further, pursuant to the de-recognition of Delhi Stock Exchange Limited (“DSE”) vide SEBI Order No.
WTM/PS/45/MRD/DSA/NOV/2014 dated November 19, 2014, National Engineering Industries Limited and Central
India Industries Limited, were moved to the dissemination board of BSE. Subsequently, pursuant to the applications made by
them, names of National Engineering Industries Limited and Central India Industries Limited were removed from the
dissemination board of the BSE with effect from May 15, 2017 and June 8, 2017 respectively.

Following are the subsidiaries of our Company:

Birlasoft Inc., USA

Birlasoft Sdn. Bhd., Malaysia

Birlasoft (Wuxi) Information technologies Co. Limited (Under Liquidation)
Enable Path LLC, Atlanta (Step Down Subsidiary)

Birlasoft (UK) Limited (Step Down Subsidiary)

Birlasoft GmBh., Germany (Step Down Subsidiary)

ocoukrwpnPE

The Company does not have any other group companies covered in the list of related parties determined in accordance with AS
24, with which Company has entered into the transactions, for the year ended March 31, 2018.

BUSINESS MODEL/BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

Overview:

The Company is an information technology company with expertise on enterprise applications and digital technologies across
multiple verticals such as banking, financial services and manufacturing industries. The Company provides services across the IT
lifecycle from consultancy to development to support & maintenance, for customers globally. Specific solutions around data &
analytics, automation, CRM & ERP for customers in banking, insurance, manufacturing and life sciences are powering
digitisation across these industries. With a workforce of over 2,500 employees, the Company is serving its clients in various
geographies like United States, UK and Europe. The Company defines its mission as “Making societies more productive by
helping our customers run their businesses”.

Strategy:

The Company's business strategy is serving the global enterprises in digitization through IT solutions. The Company intends to
grow by serving its customers’ needs across industries and improving their business operations. The values of the Company are —
Engaged, Dependable and Challenger. Being ‘Engaged’, the Company believes in being closer to the customers, colleagues and
the suppliers with which it works. Being ‘Dependable’, the Company supports the customers in a way so that they may rely on
the Company for their work. Being ‘Challenger’, the Company strives to go the extra mile to drive success for its customers.
During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Company had divested its business with one of its largest customer and continued to
grow from operations from other customers.

Name of the current statutory auditor: Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
(Firm Registration No. 012754N/N500016)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Page 2 of 7
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Sr. Name Designation Experience including current/past position held in other firms

No.

1. Mrs. Amita Birla Chairman and Non- Mrs. Amita Birla, aged 61 years, is the Chairman of the Company.

Executive Director She is also the co-chairman of National Engineering Industries
Limited and is a director on the boards of various companies
including Orient Cement Limited and Neosym Industry Limited.

2. Mr. Chandra Kant Birla | Non-Executive Mr. C. K. Birla, aged 63years, is a director of the Company. He is the

Director Chairman of National Engineering Industries Limited and is a director
on the boards of various companies including Orient Paper and
Industries Limited, Neosym Industry Limited and Avtech Limited.
3. Mr. Anjan Lahiri Managing Director and | Mr. Anjan Lahiri, aged 52 years, is the Managing Director and CEO
Chief Executive of the Company. He is also an additional director of KPIT
Officer Technologies Limited and has been on the Board of Mindtree Limited
and Sasken Technologies Limited.
4. Mr. Pramod Chandra Non-Executive Mr. Pramod Chandra Agarwala, aged 86 years, is a director of the
Agarwala Director Company. He is also a director on the boards of other companies
including Central India Industries Limited, Rajasthan Industries
Limited, Hitaishi Investment Limited and Produce and Share Brokers
Limited.
5. Mr. Ashok Kumar Non-Executive Mr. A K Ladha, aged 69 years, is the director of the Company. He is
Ladha Director also a director on the boards of various companies including CK Birla
Corporate Services Limited, Indo Rama Synthetics (India) Limited,
TCI Express Limited and CK Birla Healthcare Private Limited.
6. Mr. Ananthanarayanan | Non-Executive Mr. A. S. Narayanan, aged 76 years, is the director of the Company.
Sankaranarayanan Director He is also a director on the boards of Avtech Limited, Neosym
Industry Limited, Hindustan Motors Limited and PSA Avtec
Powertrain Private Limited.

7. Mr. Rajat Mukherjee Independent Director Mr. Rajat Mukherjee, aged 39 years, is the Independent Director of
the Company. He is a Partner with Khaitan & Co. and is also a
director on the boards of various companies including Salesforce.com
India Private Limited and Comviva Technologies Limited.

8. Mr. Manohar Lal Independent Director Mr. M. L. Pachisia, aged 73 years, is the Independent Director of the

Pachisia

Company. He is also a director on the boards of other companies
including National Engineering Industries Limited, Orient Paper
Industries Limited, GMCCO Limited and Special Engg. Services
Limited.

COMPOSITE SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

The proposed Scheme provides for:

i)
i)

the amalgamation of the Company with KPIT Technologies Limited and the consequent issue of shares by KPIT
Technologies Limited to the Company’s shareholders;

immediately upon implementation of (i) above, the demerger, transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined
in the Scheme) from KPIT Technologies Limited into KPIT Engineering Limited on a going concern basis, and the
consequent issue of shares by KPIT Engineering Limited; and

iii) the reduction of the share capital of KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited.

Upon sanction of the Scheme by the National Company Law Tribunal and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”),

the Company would be dissolved without being wound up.

The Appointed Date for the Scheme is the Effective Date. The Effective Date means the day on which last of the conditions
specified in Clause 32 of the Scheme (Conditions Precedent) are complied with or otherwise duly waived.
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PRE-SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

Sr. No. Particulars Pre-Scheme number of % holding of Pre-Scheme
shares
1 Promoter and Promoter Group 31,354,800 100%
2 Public - -
Total 31,354,800 100%
AUDITED FINANCIALS |
Amount in Rupees Lakhs (unless otherwise stated)
FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
el Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS I-GAAP I-GAAP
(Note 2 below)
(@) (b) (© (d) (e)
Total income from operations (net) 43,508.48 48,908.48 47,763.19 45,987.89 46,777.50
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and
extraordinary items (before other 12,978.78 11,591.84 10,433.75 9,027.14 10,899.32
comprehensive income adjustments)
Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and
extraordinary items (before other 9,398.69 7,600.27 7,111.90 5,971.19 11,254.53
comprehensive income adjustments)
qu%'ty Share Capital (Face Value of 3,135.48 3,135.48 3,135.48 3,135.48 1,400.00
each)
Reserves and Surplus 34,408.33 26,369.68 20,360.24 13,472.23 10,202.35
Net worth 37,543.81 29,505.16 23,495.72 16,607.71 11,602.35
Basic earnings per share (%) 29.98 24.24 22.68 23.95 80.39
Diluted earnings per share (%) 29.98 24.24 22.68 23.95 80.39
Return on net worth (%) 25.03% 25.76% 30.27% 35.95% 97.00%
Net asset value per share (%) 120 94 75 53 83
FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
Consolidated Ind AS Ind AS Ind AS I-GAAP I-GAAP
(Note 2 below)
(a) (b) (© (d) (e)
Total income from operations (net) 89,879.83 109,949.73 107,582.61 101,862.37
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and 16,830.24 15,656.79 12,981.98 10,623.40
extraordinary items (before other
comprehensive income adjustments)
Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and 11,444.45 10,344.62 8,691.46 7,092.50
extraordinary items (before other
comprehensive income adjustments)
Equity Share Capital (Face Value of 3,135.48 3,135.48 3,135.48 3,135.48 | Refer Note 1
Z. 10 each) below
Reserves and Surplus 48,078.78 38,253.89 30,029.58 21,089.64
Net worth 51,214.26 41,389.37 33,165.06 24,225.12
Basic earnings per share (%) 36.50 32.89 27.64 28.44
Diluted earnings per share (%) 36.50 32.89 27.64 28.44
Return on net worth (%) 22.35% 24.99% 26.21% 29.28%
Net asset value per share (%) 163 132 106 77
Page 4 of 7
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*Note:

1. The Consolidated financial statements of Birlasoft (India) Limited and its subsidiaries were presented for the first time in the
financial statements of the year ended March 31, 2015 due to amalgamation of Birlasoft Technologies Limited, Birlasoft
Enterprises limited into Birlasoft (India) Limited.

2. Audited Statutory Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2016 was prepared in accordance with
the accounting standards, notified under section 211(3C) of the Companies Act 2013 [Companies Accounting Standards Rules,
2006 (as amended)], and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. However information presented above in relation
to March 31, 2016 is based on comparative information as disclosed in the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

For the purposes of the internal risk factors, the term ‘Company’ includes its subsidiaries.

1.

The clients of the Company are largely concentrated in a few industries such as banking, financial services and
manufacturing, which expose the Company to the overall performance of, and outsourcing trends within those industries. A
downturn in any of these industries or a slowdown specifically, could decrease demand for the Company’s services, which
can have a material adverse effect on the Company's, business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Company requires certain regulatory approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions to operate its businesses. These
approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions are required from a range of Central and State Governments, both in India
and outside India, and their respective agencies. In addition, some of the approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions
required for operating our businesses expire from time to time. The Company generally applies for renewals of such
regulatory approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions prior to or upon their expiry. However, there can be no
assurance that these will be obtained in a timely manner or at all and such delay or non-receipt of requisite regulatory
approvals, licenses, registrations and permissions could adversely affect the Company’s business.

The Company derives a significant portion of its revenues from a limited number of clients. For the Fiscals 2018, 2017 and
20186, the top five clients cumulatively accounted for 43%, 40% and 45%, respectively, of its consolidated revenues. Since
there is significant competition for the services the Company provides and the Company is typically not an exclusive service
provider to its large clients, the level of revenues from the largest clients could vary significantly from year to year. There are
other service providers who are working for the same clients. The loss of, or a significant reduction in the revenues that are
received from one or more of its major clients, may adversely affect the business and profitability of the Company.

The Company has historically derived, and may continue to derive, a significant portion of its revenues from clients
geographically located in the United States and the United Kingdom. Economic slowdowns in the United States and the
United Kingdom, declines in the value of the United States dollar and the United Kingdom’s pound, changes in the laws of
the United States and the United Kingdom including those relating to data security and privacy, laws that impose restrictions
on outsourcing or immigration, visa permits or hiring local employees and other restrictions or factors that adversely affect
the economic health of, or the ability of the Company to do business in, the United States and the United Kingdom may
adversely affect its business and profitability.

The success of the Company depends on its ability to anticipate technological advances and simultaneously adapt standards
and changing customer preferences and amend services to meet customer needs. Its future success in the information
technology business will depend upon its ability to keep evolving its technology in line with industry trends. The adaptation
to new technology may result in additional expenses. Further, any failure to anticipate technological advances and changing
customer preferences in time, or at all, may lower the demand for its services which may affect its business and financial
performance.

There has been volatility in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and each of the U.S. Dollar and Pound Sterling in
recent years and the volatility in such exchange rates may continue in the future. Our Company's operating results may
continue to be impacted by fluctuations in the exchange rate between the Indian rupee and each of the U.S. Dollar and the
Pound Sterling, as well as with other foreign currencies, including the Euro, Canadian Dollar and Australian Dollar.
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7. The IT industry is highly labour intensive and our Company’s success depends to a significant extent on its ability to attract,
hire, train and retain qualified employees, including its ability to attract employees with needed skills in the geographic areas
in which the Company operates. High attrition rates among tenured employees, in particular, could result in a loss of domain
and process knowledge, which could result in poor service quality and lead to breaches by our Company of its contractual
obligations.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTIONS

A. Total number of outstanding litigations against the Company and amount involved

NATURE OF LITGATION NO. OF CASES AMOUNT INVOLVED (X In lakhs)

Civil proceedings 3 267.46
Criminal proceedings - -
Tax matters 15 7,781.55

B. Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against or involving the Company and amount involved

SR.
NO.

PARTICULARS

LITIGATION
FILED BY

CURRENT STATUS

AMOUNT
INVOLVED
(R in lakhs)

1.

For Assessment Year 2012-13, the Assessing officer,
during assessment proceedings, made adjustment on
account of transfer pricing and interest disallowance on
borrowed loans. Aggrieved with the order of Assessing
officer, the Company filed an appeal with the Income
Tax Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi.

Birlasoft (India)
Ltd.

Currently pending with
ITAT, New Delhi

2,840.39

For Assessment Year 2006-07, the Assessing officer,
during assessment proceedings, made various
adjustment in assessment order dated December 29,
2009. Aggrieved with the order of Assessing officer, the
Company had filed an appeal with the Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal (ITAT). ITAT had pronounced its
order dated July 31, 2017 in favour of the Company.
Aggrieved with the order of the ITAT, New Delhi, the
Income Tax Department has filed an appeal with
Hon'ble High Court of Delhi and the same has been
admitted by the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, for
hearing on question of law.

Income Tax
Department

Appeal pending before
Hon'ble High Court of
Delhi

2,502.87

For Assessment Year 2013-14, the Assessing officer,
during assessment proceedings, made adjustment on
account of transfer pricing and interest disallowance on
borrowed loans vide its order dated December 26, 2016.
Aggrieved with the order of Assessing officer, the
Company has filed an appeal with the Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal, New Delhi.

Birlasoft (India)
Limited

Currently pending with
ITAT, New Delhi

926.30

A civil writ petition 36543/2013 was filed by the
Company at the Hon’ble High Court of Allahabad,
challenging the order dated 18.05.2013 passed by Dist.
Magistrate, Gautambudh Nagar. The matter relates
to imposition of stamp duty of % 1,29,79,100/- and

Birlasoft (India)
Ltd.

An amendment
application has been
filed for modifying
certain paragraphs of
previously filed writ

194.69

(Stamp duty of
¥129.79 lakhs
& Penalty of %
64.90 lakhs)
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SR. PARTICULARS LITIGATION CURRENT STATUS AMOUNT
NO. FILED BY INVOLVED
(R in lakhs)
penalty of X 64,89,559/-, by District Magistrate, petition, which has been
Gautambudh Nagar, vide its order dated 30.03.2009. admitted by the Hon’ble
Aforesaid writ was dismissed by the Hi%h court and the High Court of
Supreme Court vide its order dated 18" August, 2017, Allahabad and is now a
has remanded back the writ to High Court for fresh part of the writ petition.
adjudication. The matter is currently
pending and the hearing
is awaited.
5.| For Assessment Year 2004-05, the Assessing officer, | Income Tax Appeal pending before 505.36
during assessment  proceedings, made various | Department Hon'ble High Court of

adjustments in assessment order dated December 28, Delhi
2006. Aggrieved with the order of Assessing officer, the
Company filed an appeal with the Commissioner of
Income Tax (Appeals). A favorable order in this respect
has been received from CIT (A) vide order dated July
28, 2009 subsequent to which Income Tax Department
filed an appeal with the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal
(ITAT) against the order of CIT (A), ITAT pronounced
its order dated June 17, 2011 in favour of the Company.
Aggrieved with the order of ITAT, New Delhi, the
Income Tax Department had filed an appeal with the
Hon’ble High Court of Delhi.

C. Regulatory Action, if any — disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters/Group companies in
last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any - Nil

D. Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters: - Nil

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY: NIL

DECLARATION BY THE COMPANY

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the guidelines/regulations issued by the
Government of India or the guidelines/regulations issued by SEBI, established under Section 3 of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this disclosure document is
contrary to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or
guidelines or regulations issued there under, as the case may be.

Date: July 19, 2018
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Summary of the Valuation Report along with the basis of such valuation

Birlasoft (India) Limited (“Birlasoft”), KPIT Technologies Limited (“KPIT Technologies”) and
KPIT Engineering Limited (“KPIT Engineering”) (together referred to as “Companies”)
collectively engaged S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP (“Valuer”), as independent valuer to recommend
the Share Exchange Ratio in connection with the proposed composite scheme of arrangement
amongst Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited
and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”). Valuer has issued a valuation report dated 29
January 2018 (“Valuation Report”) which is enclosed as Annexure B-I.

KPIT Technologies appointed Equirus Capital Private Limited (“Equirus”) as the merchant
banker to provide an independent opinion to the board of directors of KPIT Technologies as
to the fairness of the Share Exchange Ratio recommended by the Valuer to the shareholders
of KPIT.

Equirus reviewed the Valuation Report and the draft Scheme and carried out such
independent analysis as is customary for issuance of fairness opinions. In its report dated 29
January 2018, enclosed as Annexure B-Il (“Fairness Opinion”), Equirus has concluded that the
Share Exchange Ratio recommended by the Valuer is fair to the shareholders of KPIT.

Based on the Valuation Report, the Fairness Opinion (in the case of KPIT Technologies) and
presentations made to the board of directors of the Companies, the Share Exchange Ratio was

approved by the respective boards of the Companies.

The Valuer carried out independent analysis using standard, generally accepted valuation
methodologies.

Amalgamation of Birlasoft with KPIT Technologies

Arriving at the fair Share Exchange Ratio for the proposed amalgamation of Birlasoft with KPIT
Technologies would require determining the fair value of equity shares of KPIT Technologies
in terms of the fair value of the equity shares of Birlasoft. These values have been determined
independently but on a relative basis without considering the proposed amalgamation.

For the proposed amalgamation, the Valuers have considered the following commonly used
and accepted methods for determining the Share Exchange Ratio, to the extent relevant and
applicable:

a) Market Price Method (Market approach)

b) Comparable Companies’ Multiples Method (Income approach)
c) Discounted Cash Flows Method (Income approach)

d) Net Asset Value Method (Asset approach)

Taking into account that KPIT Technologies is well traded and referring to SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10 March 2017, Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/26 dated 23
March 2017 and SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, the
Valuer has given 100% weight to the value of equity share of KPIT Technologies as computed
under the Market Price Method.
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To arrive at the value of Birlasoft, the Valuer has given 100% weight to the value arrived at
under the Comparable Companies’ Multiples Method as the value computed under the Net
Asset Value method does not capture the earning capacity of the business and hence the same
would not be representative of the fair value.

Demerger of Engineering Business from KPIT Technologies to KPIT Engineering

Once the Scheme is implemented, all the shareholders of KPIT Technologies (including the
shareholders of Birlasoft being allotted shares pursuant to its merger with KPIT Technologies)
would become shareholders of KPIT Engineering and their shareholding in KPIT Engineering
would mirror their shareholding in KPIT Technologies.

The effect of the demerger is that each shareholder of KPIT Technologies will become the
owner of shares in two companies instead of one. No shareholder is, under the Scheme,
required to dispose off any part of his shareholding either to any of the other shareholders or
in the market or otherwise. The Scheme does not envisage the dilution of the holding of any
one or more shareholders as a result of the demerger. Post demerger, the percentage holding
of the shareholder in KPIT Engineering and KPIT Technologies would remain unchanged from
the proportion of capital held by such shareholder (after merger of Birlasoft) in KPIT.

Considering the above, any entitlement ratio can be considered for the above demerger as

the proportionate shareholding of any shareholder would not vary. Thus, the management
has recommended the current Share Exchange Ratio for the demerger.
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 618 OF 2018

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

And

In the matter of the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
amongst Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT Technologies Limited
and KPIT Engineering Limited and their respective shareholders

KPIT Technologies Limited, a company incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
having its registered office at 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Applicant / Demerged Company /
Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057. Transferee Company

CIN: L72200PN1990PLC059594
Website: www.kpit.com | Email: connectwithus@kpit.com
Tel: +91 20 66525000 | Fax: +91 20 66525001

FORM OF PROXY

I/We, the undersigned Equity Shareholder/s
of KPIT Technologies Limited, being the Applicant Company abovenamed, do hereby appoint Mr./Ms.

of and failing
him/her of as

my/our proxy, to act for me/us at the meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the Applicant Company to be held at
the registered office of KPIT Technologies Limited at 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadli,
Pune - 411057 on Wednesday, the 29th day of August 2018 at 2:00 p.m. for the purpose of considering and, if thought
fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Composite Scheme of Arrangement
amongst Birlasoft (India) Limited, KPIT Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited and their respective
shareholders ("Scheme”) and at such meeting, and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof, to vote, for me/us and
in my/our name(s) (here, if ‘for’, insert ‘FOR’, if ‘against’, insert ‘AGAINST’,
and in the latter case, strike out the words below after ‘the Scheme’) the said arrangement embodied in the Scheme,
either with or without modification(s)*, as my/our proxy may approve. (*Strike out whatever is not applicable)

Dated this day of 2018. Signature
Name:

Revenue
Address: Stamp

No. of shares held:
(For Demat holding)

DP Id. Client Id.
(For Physical holding)

Folio No.




Signature of Shareholder(s): Sole holder/ First Holder

Second holder -

Third holder -

Signature of Proxy: -

Notes:

1 The proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at least 48 (forty-eight) hours before the
scheduled time of the commencement of the said meeting.

2. All alterations made in the form of proxy should be initialed.

3. Please affix appropriate revenue stamp before putting signature.

4. In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

5. Proxy need not be a shareholder of KPIT Technologies Limited.

6. No person shall be appointed as a proxy who is a minor.

7. The proxy of a shareholder blind or incapable of writing would be accepted if such shareholder has attached

his signature or mark thereto in the presence of a witness who shall add to his signature his description and
address, provided that all insertions in the proxy are in the handwriting of the witness and such witness shall
have certified at the foot of the proxy that all such insertions have been made by him at the request and in the
presence of the shareholder before he attached his signature or mark.

8. The proxy of a shareholder who does not know English would be accepted if it is executed in the manner
prescribed in point no. 7 above and the witness certifies that it was explained to the shareholder in the
language known to him, and gives the shareholder’s name in English below the signature.



KPIT

KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Registered & Corporate office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - I, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057, India
CIN: L72200PN1990PLC059594
Website: www.kpit.com « Email: connectwithus@kpit.com < Tel: +91 20 66525000 » Fax: +91 20 66525001

The last date for receipt of Postal Ballot is 28 August 2018, 5.00 p.m.

POSTAL BALLOT FORM
Postal Ballot No.

Sr No | Particulars Details of Equity Shareholder(s)

1. Name[s] of Equity Shareholder[s]
[in block letters]

2. Registered Address of sole /
first named Equity Shareholder
[in block letters]

3. Registered Folio No./
DP ID & Client ID

4, No. of shares held

I/ We hereby exercise my/ our vote in respect of the Resolution to be passed through Postal Ballot for the business
stated in Notice convening the meeting of the equity shareholders of the Company pursuant to Final Order passed
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench dated 12 July 2018 by sending my / our assent or
dissent to the said Resolution by placing the tick [v'] mark at the appropriate box below:

Item | Description No. of I / We assent | I/ We dissent
No shares held | [agree] to the to the
Resolution Resolution
[FOR] [AGAINST]

1. |Resolution for approval of the Composite Scheme of
Arrangement amongst Birlasoft (India) Limited and KPIT
Technologies Limited and KPIT Engineering Limited and
their respective shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 and

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Place: Pune

Date: 25 July 2018

Signature of the Equity Shareholder

NOTE: Please read the instructions printed overleaf carefully before exercising your vote.



INSTRUCTIONS FOR VOTING BY PHYSICAL VOTING / POSTAL BALLOT

1.

10.

11.
12.

13.

14,

An Equity Shareholder[s] desirous to exercise his/her vote by Postal Ballot may complete this Postal Ballot
Form and send it to the Scrutinizer in the self-addressed postage prepaid business reply envelope. However,
envelopes containing Postal Ballot[s], if sent by courier at the expense of the equity shareholder[s] will also be
accepted.

This form should be duly completed and signed by the equity shareholder. In case of joint holding, this form
should be completed and signed [as per the specimen signature registered with the Company or furnished by
NSDL/ CDSL to the Company, in respect of share/s held in the physical form or demat form respectively] by the
first named equity shareholder and in his absence, by the next named joint equity shareholder.

Unsigned / Incomplete Postal Ballot Forms will be rejected.

Duly completed Postal Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer on or before 5:00 p.m. on 28 August 2018.
Postal Ballot Form received after this time and date will be strictly treated as if the reply from the equity
shareholder has not been received.

Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid up value of shares registered in the name of the equity shareholders
as on the cut-off date i.e. 20 July 2018.

An equity shareholder may request for a duplicate Postal Ballot Form, if so required. The Postal Ballot Form can
also be downloaded from the link www.kpit.com. However, the duly filled in duplicate Postal Ballot Form should
reach the Scrutinizer not later than 5:00 p.m. on 28 August 2018.

The exercise of vote through Postal Ballot is not permitted through a proxy.
The Scrutinizer’s decision on the validity of the Postal Ballot Form would be final.

Equity shareholders are requested not to send any other paper / documents along with the Postal Ballot Form.
If sent, the said paper[s]/ document[s] will not be acted upon.

Equity shareholders are requested to fill the Postal Ballot Form in indelible ink and avoid filling it by erasable
writing medium/s like pencil.

There will be one Postal Ballot Form for every Folio / Client ID, irrespective of the number of joint holders.

Equity shareholders can opt only one mode of voting i.e. either by Ballot or through e-voting. In case, you
are opting for voting by ballot, then please do not cast your vote by e-voting and vice-versa. In case equity
shareholders cast their votes both by postal ballot and e-voting, the votes cast through e-voting shall prevail
and the votes cast through postal ballot shall be considered invalid. The equity shareholders casting their votes
through e-voting may log on www.evoting.nsdl.com and cast their vote, instructions for which are specified in
detail in the Notice convening meeting.

In the case of shares held by companies, financial institutions, trusts, societies, etc., the duly completed Postal
Ballot Form should be accompanied by a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution / Authorization.

A Postal Ballot Form shall be considered invalid if;

a.  Signature on the Postal Ballot Form does not match the specimen signature with the Company.
b. Aform other than one issued by the Company has been used.

C. It has not been signed by or on behalf of the equity shareholder.

d. Itis not possible to determine without any doubt the assent or dissent of the equity shareholder.

Only an equity shareholder entitled to vote is entitled to fill in the Postal Ballot Form and send it to the Scrutinizer,
and any receipt of the Notice, who has no voting rights should treat the notice as intimation only.



KPIT

KPIT TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

CIN: L72200PN1990PLC059594

Registered & Corporate Office: 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - |, MIDC, Hinjawadi, Pune — 411057, India.

Tel.: +91 20 6652 5000 | Fax: +91 20 6652 5001
Email: connectwithus@kpit.com | Website: www.kpit.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the meeting venue)

Registered Folio No./
DP ID & Client ID

Name and address of
the Equity
shareholder(s)

Joint Holder 1

Joint Holder 2

No. of shares

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the NCLT Convened Meeting of the Company held on Wednesday,
August 29, 2018 at 02:00 p.m. at KPIT Auditorium, SDB-II, 35 & 36, Rajiv Gandhi Infotech Park, Phase - |, MIDC,
Hinjawadi, Pune - 411057, India.

Equity Shareholder(s)/Proxy's name in Block Letters Equity Shareholder(s)/Proxy’s Signature

NOTES:

1.

Equity Shareholder(s)/Authorised Representatives/Proxies are requested to bring the Attendance Slip with
them. Duplicate Attendance Slip will not be issued at the meeting venue.

Equity Shareholders who come to attend the meeting are requested to bring their copy of the Scheme which
forms a part of the notice.

Equity Shareholders who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their client ID and DP ID
for easy identification of attendance at the meeting.

Equity Shareholders are informed that in case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder
whose name stands first in the Register of Members of the Company in respect of such joint holding will be
entitled to vote.

A proxy is requested to bring his/her valid photo identity proof at the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of not more than fifty equity shareholders and holding in aggregate not
more than ten percent of the total share of the Company carrying voting rights.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

(Electronic Voting Event Number)

EVEN User ID Password

Notes:

1.

Please read the instructions for electronic voting printed along with the notice of the NCLT Convened Meeting
to be held on Wednesday, August 29, 2018 at 02:00 p.m.

The remote e-voting period starts from Monday, July 30, 2018 (9.00 a.m.) to Tuesday, August 28, 2018 (till
5.00 p.m.) The voting module shall be disabled by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for voting
thereafter.


mailto:connectwithus@kpit.com
http://www.kpit.com/
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